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V. Chairman Krebsbach (Acting Chair) cal led the committee to order on Wednesday, 
January 1 4 , 20 1 5  at 8 : 30 am. Roll Call was taken.  All committee members were present 
except Senator Holmberg and Senator Erbele who were excused . M ichael Johnson , 
Leg islative Counci l  and Lori Laschkewitsch , OMB,  were also present. 

Dave Hunter, Chief Executive Director/Clo of the Board of the North Dakota 
Retirement and Investment Office (R IO) testified in favor of SB 2022 and provided written 
Testimony Attached # 1 which addresses the Teachers'  Fund for Reti rement (TFFR) ,  the 
State I nvestment Board (S IB) ,  and the budget in whole. He mentioned that they were able 
to rea l ize some fai rly sign ificant cost savings with our investment management fees. If you 
compare the fiscal year  end of J une 30, 20 1 3  with J une 30, 20 1 4 ,  we actually red uced our 
investment management fees as a percentage of assets u nder management from about 
.6 . 5% to about . 5 . 1  %. When you apply that to nearly $1 OB that we have invested it actual ly 
translates into nearly $ 1 4M of savings on an annual  basis. (8 .47) 

Senator Heckama n :  What do you attribute that savings to? 

Mr. Hunter: There are 3 primary d rivers :  #1 : we have more assets to invest. #2 : there is 
tier pricing ;  # 3: we are working with our managers to get the best deal possible. Another 
sign ificant component as wel l  is that we have h igher performance fees in the prior year 
than this year which is also a sign ificant d river as wel l .  ( 1 0 .09) He continued speaking 
from his written testimony on page 2 - Budget Review. He continued concern ing salaries on 
page 3 and moved on to page 4 wh ich shows the increases in  the assets . On page 5 the 
Legacy Fund Deposits . ( 1 4 . 1 7) 

Senator Heckaman:  When you look at the legacy fund and opportun ities to spend the 
interest off of that what is the current interest at $2 .8B per year  that you are seeing? 
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Mr. Hunter: We've earned about 3 .8% for the 1 2  months ending 9-30-2014 .  

Vice Chairman Krebsbach : and that goes right back into the fund .  She was told that is 
correct. 

Mr. Hunter: Turned to page 6, regard ing the operating l ine increases . R IO is not 
requesting an increase in the contingency l ine. There are no one-time funding requests or 
optional budget req uest i n  the RIO budget request. He continued on page 7 - refer to the 
chart - Ret irement and Investment Office Assets Under Management (AUM) vs Budget. 
( 1 7 . 58) 

Senator Heckaman: My question has to do with TFFR, percentages that the schools and 
the teachers pay. I sat over the interim this last fal l  on the long range planning team 
committee for school and the state of ND requ i res the school to have a 5 year long range 
p lan .  I n  doing so, one of the issues that came up is the school fund ing formula and the 
retirement percentages, and the school was asking why are you asking us to do a 5 year 
long range p lan ,  when you only g ive us 2 years of funding and then change the retirement 
percentages every two years for us. What do you see for the future of the retirement 
percentages for the d istrict and the employee? Do you see that chang ing ,  is it stable, 
because I th ink it wi l l  take a long t ime before it  d rops down , right? 

Ms. Kopp, Chief Reti rement Officer for the SIB Office in RIO Current rates for TFFR, 
our member contribution rates are 1 1 .75% and employer rates are 1 2 .75%. Those raises 
were approved by the 201 1 leg islative assembly to add ress funding chal lenges that came 
as a result of the market down-turn . When those increases were made there was actual ly 
two fazes; contributions went up 2% member and 2% employer i n  201 2 and then they went 
up another 2%0 1 4  for both members and employers. These rates are expected to stay in  
effect u nti l  the plan reaches 1 00% funding level on an actuary basis. Therefore , based on 
expected assumptions we do not believe that those rates wil l  be adjusted for 20 years or 
more,  which is when current projections show that we should be reach ing the 1 00% funded 
level rate . (2 1 .0 1 )  

Senator Heckaman :  That's what my d istricts were asking if there was going to be another 
i ncrease. It was an issue when we d id long-range p lanning.  

Senator Ki lzer: . had q uestions whether the state treasurer was one of their  cl ients He was 
told no,  but the state treasu rer does sit on the board .  Her cl ients are separate from RIO.  

Mr. Hunter: What I can speak to is  the cl ients that we serve with in the state investment 
board are defined in the N DCC. (23.22) 

Senator Wanzek: Could you get us a l ist of the 16 non-pension funds and the 7 pension 
funds in  your  portfol io? He was told yes it wi l l  be provided to the clerk. One of your  main 
jobs of RIO was determ in ing which managers you are going to select ,  how many d ifferent 
managers do you manage and uti l ize? 
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Mr. Hunter: We have about 35 investment managers that we work with for the $9 .9B.  . 
When you have that many investment managers you get g reat d ivers ification across your  
overal l  investment portfol io .  

Senator Wanzek: Do you tend to look at the priorities or the needs of each client and 
adjust you r  investments accord ingly as to what their priorities are? 

Mr. Hunter: Absolutely 

Vice Chairman Krebsbach : The TFFR board designates how they want theirs invested . Is 
there a t ime when management wi l l  work with the Board or the people to say th is would be 
a better a lternative? She was told yes ,  we are long term oriented . She then asked for a l ist 
of the members of the board of the S IB  and of the R IO and for a flow chart of your people. 
M r. Hunter stated he would provide that information . (27. 55) 

Sparb Col l ins Executive Director of the ND Public Employees Retirement System or 
PERS. Testified in  favor of SB 2022 and provided Testimony Attached # 2 wh ich g ives an 
overview of our agency, our  work efforts and our budget request. He explained the hea lth 
care plan on pages 7 and 8(34 .04) 

Senator Carlisle had questions about state employees after they retire after a certain date 
that they are not being able to enrol l  into the Blue Cross/Blue Shield . We voted on a PERS 
bi l l  last time and there was no descend ing vote. 

Mr. Col l ins :  Pre Medicare retirees wi l l  no longer be able after J u ly 1 ,  20 1 5 , join PERS 
plan .  Med icare retirees wi l l  continue to keep that plan open.  

Senator Carlisle: Why d id we do that? I looked at  the record , everybody in  the House 
and Senate voted for it. Do you have a memo so I can explain it. 

Mr. Col l ins:  I ' l l  g ive you a copy of the testimony from last time that goes through it but 
basical ly what it came down is this :  underneath new governmental county requ i rements 
they are cal led OPEB, (Other Post Employment Benefits) ,  you have to report l iabi l ities 
associated with you r  pre Med icare on your  state's financial statements. There is a s l ight 
subsidy in the Pre Med icare plan ,  so that OPEB l iabi l ity has gone from $30M the last time 
the last time, before th is change it was going $70M was on a projection just continued 
increase on you r  financial statements. We are historical ly in this market place because 
before the affordable care act if you left your  employer, you wou ld have gone out, you 
wou ld have been medical ly underwritten or had pre-existing cond itions put on you .  We are 
in market place because we were able to provide that assurance to retiring employees. 
With the affordable care act you can out there is no more there is no more per existing 
condit ions, no more medical screening ,  so people can find access to it without us having to 
be in  the market place. By getting out of it we red uced that OPEB l iabi l ities , it's gone down 
$20M just from last year to th is year. It wi l l  continue on a path downward to almost nothing.  
And second ly we made the retiree health cred it as part of that so that those retirees can 
now take portable with them to any product they want to use. It used to be just restricted to 
PERS (37.06) 
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Senator Carlisle: they have unti l  this Ju ly date, 

Mr. Coll ins: they have to be off employment by Apri l .  You have to be receiving a 
Retirement benefit by Ju ly 1 . He continued his testimony on pages 9 - 1 2 .  

Senator Mathern: What publ ic employer groups are sti l l  outside of  el ig ib i l ity in getting into 
PERS? 

Mr. Col l ins:  All government entities that have pol itical subd ivisions of the State of North 
Dakota are el ig ib le .  So state is ,  but government entities such as federal  entities aren't. 

Senator Mathern : So a l l  the townships can get in .  It's not closed any longer to any state 
pol itical subd ivision entities. He was told except for some of the voluntary programs. 

Sharon Schiermeister, Ch ief Operating Officer & Chief F inancial Officer, (40 .07) 
testified start ing on page 1 3  - 1 4  which l ists the major work efforts s ince last legislative 
session.  (43 .47) 

Senator Sorvaag: had q uestions regarding the pol itica l subs. He had q uestions regard ing 
the l iabi l ity being on the new report ing. 

Ms. Schiermeister: That is correct. The l iabi l ity wil l  not show up  on the PERS pension 
plan financial statement. it wil l be a l located amongst all the participating employers. 

Senator Wanzek: Would the l iabi l ity be the percentage that is not covered? 

Ms. Schiermeister: It wil l  be the net l iabi l ity so the l iabi l ity less assets. And it wi l l  be a 
proportionate chair for each employer. (44 . 58) She continued with testimony on page 1 4 .  
She continued o n  to the PERS Budget. The proposed budget i s  a l l  Special Funds, see 
page 1 5 . (49.37) 

Senator Carlisle: Will there be several CPA's affected by this equ ity increase or is that for 
other folks too? 

Ms. Schiermeister: It is wide spread through-out our agency, our equ ity issues are pretty 
wide spread . I don't have our turn-over rate calcu lated , in  the current bienn ium we lost 3 
who transferred to other state agencies and we have a person reti ring ,  I have to offer the 
new candidate the same wages that the retiree received . 

Senator Carlisle: When they retire, they sel l  back their monthly sick leave, is that already 
banked? 

Ms. Schiermeister: We don't budget for retirements or for annual  payouts . We do have a 
special l ine item in our budget for al l  of our annual leave payouts and sick leave payments 
are going to and so a l l  of this is h itting that but we know that we're going to need to transfer 
money out to meet our salary in  the last month of the bienn ium.  (52.03) 
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Senator Robinson asked if there is destinations where the employees are going with they 
leave your  office , as so many agencies are experiencing the same issue. We are early in  
the session , so many agencies are , is  there a common he also asked about the optional 
budget request and if in the governor's recommendation. He was told everything is in the 
governor's recommendation .  

Ms.  Schiermeister: The three employees, two were from our accounting area and one 
went to job service and one went to the AG office. Our optional req uest is in  the governor's 
budget. Everything I wi l l  be covering today is in the governor's recommendation .  

Vice Chairman Krebsbach : Of your  33 employees you ' re al lowed do you have any 
vacancies? 

Ms. Schiermeister: We currently have 1 vacancy, we are on the 3rd round of advertis ing ,  
we fina l ly have a appl icant pool that we can interview for. She continued on budget 
req uests (page 1 7  - 20) Page 20-2 1 shows the growth of the number of retirees and also 
shared their priority needs regarding FTE's. 

Senator Carlisle:  These folks that want to retire when they are 62 can they sti l l  stay on 
COBRA? He was told they stay on COBRA for 1 8  months. 

Ms. Schiermeister: When you terminate employment you stay on the plan for 1 8  months 
u nder Cobra. Then if you are not 65 at that time, you would need to go get insurance 
elsewhere but when you or your  spouse turns 65, there's certain q ual ifying events that 
a l low you to come back on the plan , and if one of those occur then you wou ld be el igible to 
come back on the plan as a Med icare. (1 .05.30) 
Vice Chairman Krebsbach : We're seeing a sh ift because a few years ago people were 
staying on as state employees because of the health insurance.  That was confi rmed . 

Ms. Schiermeister: : continued with testimony on page 22 - 4th priority - temporary 
position . PERS is also considering the possibi l ity of not offering a Med icare Part D product 
as part of our reti ree health insurance plan . ( 1 .07 .42) 

Senator Heckaman:  What are you r  thoughts of closing Part D? What is the reasoning 
for that? 

Mr. Col l ins:  That is not a decision that has been made we are just looking at it. For the 
Med icare retiree who offer a bundle prod uct, which means you have to take our med ica l  
and Part D .  And i f  you don't' take the bund le you are not el ig ible for either/or. So what 
we have, every year there is an enrol lment for Part D ,  some of our members sign up for 
Part D .  it gets involved to CNS and comes back to us and then we have to d rop them from 
the health ,  and now the other thing they changed where the retiree health cred it is 
portable, we can now say instead of being requ i red to take our Part D product you can just 
go on the market place every year and pick from the number of Part D products that are 
out there .  The big advantage is our Part D does not have a donut hole, but that's 
supposed to be phased down the other products by 20 1 7  or 201 8 .  ( 1 .09 . 33) 
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Ms. Schiermeister: continued on page 22 of testimony regarding a temporary positon ,  
5th Priority RH IC  Portabi l ity . (1.11.03) stated we may not need this funding.  The 5th 
Priority - RH IC  Website Redesign .  Page 24-25, what the project wou ld look l ike and the 
budget requ i rements .  (1 .13.54) 

Senator Mathern : On issues l ike this,  or even staff temporary changes, are you able to 
do some partnersh ip work with the R IO agency? 

Ms. Schiermeister stated they try to partner with R IO,  but it is not a lways feasible. Where 
it becomes more d ifficult PERS is more than just a pension plan and so we have al l  the 
other aspects and that's where our d ifferences usual ly l ie .  

Senator Mathern asked if i t  would be helpfu l for members to have common tools between 
the two agencies. 

Mr. Col l ins:  We do work together if there are opportun ities for cross- l inks,  a lot of voluntary 
programs are .  We can make this more of a seamless th ing for the TFFR side. Instead of 
having two conferences we have one. 

V. Chairman Krebsbach : Are you commun icating with the same people? That was 
confi rmed . 

Ms. Schiermeister: Priority 7 - cure PERS Reception Area - page 25. She explained the 
need for a ssecure reception area . (1.9.17) 

Mr. Col l ins:  Page 26- 28. Priority 8 - Self Funded I nsurance.  He explained that this 
priority is a contingent upon the outcome of health plan bid process to be completed in 
February 2015. 

V. Chairman Krebsbach: How long ago was it when you were self-funded? 

Mr. Col l l ins :  Since 1989.(1.21.50) 

Senator Robinson : In this section ,  8 priorities, have they a l l  been funded in the governor's 
budget? He was told yes and they appreciate the support in the executive budget. 

Senator Mathern : How many bidders do we have for the insurance plan,  who are they and 
when do suspect you wil l  come with the recommendation as to what p lan we have for our 
employees? 

Mr. Col l ins:  We are statutory requ i red to make a decision no later than the end of 
February. We have two bidders for the overal l  med ica l ,  and in add ition we have 3 or 4 
PTMS that have put in bids for the product. 3 separate one, one is part of the bund led 
arrangement. The bidders are Blue cross/ Blue Shield and Sanford , PDM - Blue 
cross/B lue Shield as prime therapeutics. The others that have submitted to us d irectly are 
Express Scripts, Kadaramand,  and Navatis. Those firms are coming in  tomorrow to talk to 
the board . So 1st decision would be fu l l  insured/ self insured ; 2nd decision wil l be to carve 
out prescription d rugs or to keep it bund led . Thank you for your  t ime. 
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Senator O'Connell :  Go back to your  website, for that cost where is that coming from? Is 
that outside vendor? 

Mr. Col l ins:  We have bid that out to an outside vendor. We are at the low end in  our 
estimate . We d id ta lk  to ITD if  they could do this project at th is t ime and they stated they 
could not do this at th is t ime. 

Vice Chairman Krebsbach asked what OPED stands for and she was told Other Post 
Employment Benefits . ( 1 .25 .59) 

Vice Chairman Krebsbach : Since you're considering d iscontinu ing Part D in  the 
combined plan have you considered offering the two separate? 

Mr. Col l ins: We have and we talked about it. For us to offer part D separate, probably 
wou ld not be viable because right now because they're bund led we are able to d raw in a l l  
of the 8,000 retirees into th is th ing .  I f  we offer i t  separate , we probably are going to lose a 
lot of them and since the product we offer is a h igh- end prod uct ,  we would probably only 
be attracting people who have high end costs, because if they could go out in  the market 
p lace and get one with h igher out of pockets and have lower premiums that we are going to 
offer and then we end up  with a spira l  down , a l l  of sudden our costs start going up and up.  

Senator Gary Lee: On that page where we had the scatter g ram ,  the salary ranges and 
employees, have the salary ranges changed? He was told no ,  the one here is the most 
recent salary range. Senator Gary Lee: I mean the top and the bottom of that salary 
range, the 70% competency as opposed to the $ 1 20.  Have the employees in that moved 
proportionately to what the salary range has changed at that same time? 

Mr. Col l ins:  Our  employees? No,  not necessarily. That's why some are at the bottom . 

Senator Gary Lee: that's the p roblem. When you do these things everybody gets pushed 
to the bottom . 

Mr. Col l ins:  The biggest thing that pushed that was the Hay Study because the Hay Study, 
which was g reat, it moved the pay ranges up to fai r  market but what it showed is that our 
employees weren 't moved along in that range so al l  of a sudden they were moved to the 
bottom .  We are not trying to get our employees up to market. All we want to do is get our 
employees to the same average as other state employees. 

Senator Robinson : In the budget, preparation we see varying deg rees of requests from 
one agency to another was there a concentrated effort to try to address the very thing that 
Sparb's talking to system wide? 

Lori Laschkewitsch, OMB Yes we d id put some targeted market pol icy increases into the 
agencies . 

Vice Chairman Krebsbach closed the hearing on SB 2022.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resolution : 

A Subcommittee hearing for PERS & RIO 

Minutes : ments: 0 

Chairman Krebsbach called the subcommittee to order on Thursday, January, 2015 at 
2:00 pm in the Senate Conference Room in regards to SB 2022. All subcommittee 
members were present: Senators - Krebsbach, Sorvaag, Heckaman Michael Johnson, 
Legislative Council and Lori Laschkewitsch, OMB were also present . 

Senator Heckaman :  On page 1, line 16, there are contingencies and page 2 lines 2, also. 
What are those for? 

Mr. Sparb Col l ins,  Executive Director, ND Public Employees Retirement System, both 
PERS and RIO are special funds agencies . If things come up it allows us to access these 
funds . When we gave testimony on the bill, we had a series on requests on changes to the 
budget . 1 was for a website development project, we had estimated about $74,000 for that 
program that was put in the budget, and then we thought, we issued an rp last Dec we got 
responses from 6 firms, the prices came in between $65,000 and $251,000 the median 
amount was $1 1 3k, the average was $133,000. We are over. We have three options: 1 .  
cut back the work efforts. 2nd for us to add some money to that 3rd_ we did request some 
money for a health retiree credit insurance program $(inaudible) . Based upon a plan that 
was adopted last session, will move us out of pre- Medicare retiree business and makes 
the retiree health credit affordable. That is a credit they get $5 times years of service they 
have in their retirement plan to purchase health insurance . Since we are getting out, we 
anticipated bringing that in the House. We re-evaluated that and are looking at it differently, 
which may mean bringing it all in house, we will be talking to the board in February to get it 
taken care of . If that is not the case we can use those funds for the website. (6 .44) 

Senator Sorvaag: What were the rp (request for proposals) responses 

Mr. Col l ins:  they range from $65K to $25 1 K, no chance to review them. And when we 
had worked with our consultant we listed our fee, broken down, at that time they were 
estimating we would be ok with $73, but that is low. 
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Chairman Krebsbach : how you would like to go with , to have additional dollars allocated 
to this? 

Mr. Col l ins:  to have additional dollars if the board decides not to go with the retiree health 
credit. 

Chairman Krebsbach : if you were looking right now in website re-design, what would be 
your guess 

Mr. Col l ins:  we would go to the medium proposal , hoping that those 3 that are below 
would be liable. That would be an increase to that line item to $116, 000. 

Chairman Krebsbach : when will you be reviewing those proposals? 

Mr. Col l ins:  We are meeting now, next week, and then we'll take it to the board late Feb. 

Senator Sorvaag where do your other funds come from? 

Mr. Col l ins:  from different sources, PERS administers the retirement fund , there are 6 
defined benefits plans composed of state employees and political subdivisions . On the 
retirement side about 50% of our income comes from the state, about half of that is general 
funds, and half other funds. Political subdivisions are all other funds. We also run defined 
contribution plans for some state employees, there is a fee on that , 6 basic points. The 
deferred comp , we don't get any fees from that . We are allowed to access the FICA tax 
savings account . We administer the FLEX benefits program that is about $3M. The other 
portion is the group insurance program. We get administrative fee off the health plan 
$2.80 that has stayed the same since the1 990's . We provide services to the state 
subdivisions and retirees . (13 .50) 

V. Chairman Krebsbach 28, 110 people in the FLEX plan, what are the "others" 

Mr. Col l ins:  had a drop on that , so we lost a little revenue off of that . Others would be 
water management districts, townships, very small cities . 

Chairman Krebsbach : we have the retiree health and website design, anything else on full 
time employees or things like that? 

Mr. Col l ins:  our other big initiative is to bring our employees up to our salary adjustment . 
It is included in the budget . 

Chairman Krebsbach : move into the RIO part of it . As I recall there wasn't much of that 
was needed. 

Connie F lanagan ,  FOSM at RIO we don't have a large initiative, the main area of 
increases is salaries . We are finding it is hard to fill a vacancy. This causes a lot of inequity 
with existing employees. We have a lot of long term employees. We are asking for 
additional funds which are included in the budget , for equity increases. 
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Chairman Krebsbach : what you requested was taken care of in the governor's budget. 
So you have one time funding $0 

Senator Sorvaag how do you get your funds, how do you come up with the amounts? 

Connie Flanagan,  we have 2 programs in our office: teacher's retirement program and the 
state investment board. Monies come from retirement contributions and from earnings from 
the investment fund. We charge the individual client funds we invest for a prorate share of 
the actual expenses for the office 

Mr. Hunter: executive RIO (Retirement Investment Office) , you look at our budget overall, 
it's an increase of about $600k, compared to our assets under management, it's a pretty 
modest increase overall . When we are going out to hire new individuals , in order to bring 
someone in at the right level we need to do equity adjustments. 

Chairman Krebsbach : there's a $1 00,000 overall request . Prepare some amendments 
and bring them to me. 

Mr. Col l ins:  we have two FTE, for the health plan , those depend on the final decision on 
the health plan if to stay fully insured or self-insured that will be decided in February . We 
are required to make this decision by March 1 51 . 

Chairman Krebsbach : from my understanding these bills will be held for a while anyway, 

Mr. Col l ins:  Some other things that have changed. The status quo isn't an option 
anymore. Every percent savings is about $5M. That's not all state on the group money 

Chairman Krebsbach : we will recess until we can get back to the final meeting. 
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Legislative Council - Sheila Sandness 
OMB - Lori Laschkewitsch 

Attachment 1 

Senator Krebsbach called the sub-committee to order on SB 2022. Senator Sorvaag 
and Senator Heckaman were also present as well as Senator Holmberg & Senator G. 
Lee. 

Retirement and Investment Office (RIO) -

Senator Krebsbach asked if there was anything they wanted changed. 

David Hunter, Executive Director and CIO, RIO: We have no changes to our previous 
submission for our budget at this point in time. We had no FTE changes, and overall we 
had in increase of about 13% from the prior biennium. This included $327,743 from 
Governor's proposal - $50,000 in equity and $17,550 in other operating expenses. When 
you look at how much the assets have grown at the State Investment Board over the last 
biennium - from $7.5B, and as of 12-31-2014, we're about $10.1 B. It's a significant 
increase in assets and we've been able to achieve a lot of significant cost savings with our 
investment manager expenses and continue to deliver a very high quality of service to our 
SAB clients and all our individual TFFR benefit plan recipients. 

Senator Krebsbach informed both entities that at this time, we are reducing the salaries 
from a 4-4 to a 3-3; removing any market adjustments and retirement contributions at this 
point, and health insurance will remain the same. 

Senator Heckaman asked about the base payroll and employee based level salary 
adjustments - where they have had two line items in their budget. 
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Senator Krebsbach said there have been extreme economic situations in the state and 
they have been forced to make some adjustments to their payroll and also to retain & 
attract employees. 

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) -

Sparb Collins, Executive Director, PERS: Concerning budget, we included in the budget 
some funding $43,052 for retiree health insurance credit program. Last session, a bill was 
passed to make that program portable so now people can take that health credit and 
instead of using it just for PERS, they can use it for any carrier. Now we have to work a 
way to be able to make payments to all the other carriers . It will be implemented July 1, 
2015. 
When we submitted the budget, we were planning to do that with our online business 
system, but that turned out to be complicated , so we looked at an alternative method where 
we will use an outside vendor. The board has agreed to go that route in the near term . We 
built in some adjustments for those staff that would've had a new workload by us doing it 
internally. Now that we're doing it externally, we won't be giving those adjustments. That 
$43,000 can be reduced . We also talked about our web proposal and in our budget, we 
had $73,000 for that. The bids came in as high as $250,000. The good news is that a 
company in Bismarck came out ahead and their price is around $80,000. We're going to 
request to reduce the $43,000 and take it out of the salaries and wage line item. Then 
because of the bid, put $16,000 into the operating line item to help with the web proposal. 
The two would net out to an overall savings of the 43 minus the 16. 

Senator Sorvaag asked about the math calculations. 

Sharon Schiermeister, Chief Operating Officer, PERS: What was built into the website 
re-design was the development costs plus one year maintenance. The costs were around 
$65,000 and the maintenance was $11 ,000. The vendor came in at $80,000 for the 
development so we would still need the maintenance - $16,200. 

Senator Krebsbach: So there was a $15,000 increase in the development. 

Sharon Schiermeister: Actually, it's right under $17,000 in development. Our request 
included $63,000 for development and $11 ,000 for maintenance for a total of $74,000. The 
bid came in close to $80,000 for development so the amount we're asking for is the 
additional so we just bumped it up to $90,000 to cover all. 

Senator Krebsbach: How long will it take to get this website up and changed? 

Sparb Collins: A lot of our priorities with the transfer to Sanford are being re-shuffled . 
Those in legislative are being moved back into the biennium. In the near term , it's going to 
take everything to get this transition done. 

Senator Heckaman asked about the differences in health care increases now in every 
budget because of the change to Sanford . Will it go down or be more? 
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Sparb Col l l ins :  Down. It will be about 3%. Blue Cross/Blue Shield has been a great 
company to work with. They've supported us well . They just priced higher than the 
competition . 

Senator Heckaman asked about their statement saying that this will be the rate for a year . 

Sparb Col l ins :  It's a 2 year rate. You may be referring to a statement in the press release. 
One thing we have in our plan right now is "preferred provider organization network" . 
That's above and beyond the network that BCBS has. We developed it with BCBS and 
they can't use it for any other lines of business and we can't take it with us. Sanford will 
have to replace that new PPO network . The board was concerned if they could do that by 
July 1,  2015. Our member's benefits will probably be processed at that higher level . 

Senator Heckaman asked what the total increase be across the board? 

Sparb Col l ins :  We are just finalizing the rates in the contract this next week. It will get 
down to the dollar and pennies, but right now it's down about 3% . 

Senator Holmberg :  It will be reflected in what we do the 2nd half of session . 

Sparb Col l ins :  We requested 2 FTEs if we went self-insured. We're staying fully insured 
so we'll still have transitional issues and extra work . We'd appreciate your consideration to 
retain one of those if possible. Sharon is our CFO and COO and we feel we need to 
segregate those two positions. 

Discussed the FTE positions and possible temporary positions. 

Sparb Col l ins:  We do transitions all the time, but never for the insurance plan. This is 
65 ,000 people and I don't have a clear idea what that will entail. We would like to become 
more active in being able to manage prescription drugs in our plan because we see the 
growth of specialty drugs which will be about 50% of our long term spend in about 5 years. 
We like to have someone in there who can oversee the prescription drug component -
someone in the pharmacy area. 
Our first transition needs to be completed by July 1, 2015 but secondary transition can be 
as busy as first because you have people using the system and there are a myriad of 
issues. 

Senator Holmberg said he doesn't think the optics would be very good and may hit a lot of 
legislators by surprise. If you need extra help , maybe Senator Sorvaag's idea of 
transitional help would be a better idea. 

Sparb Col l ins said there are 65 ,000 people on the plan and they could get several 
hundred requests for customer service. There are 29 ,000 contracts and about 8, 000 are 
retirees . Temporary dollars is ok with us. 

Sharon Schiermeister: We didn't come prepared but thought $122, 000 is enough to fund 
one full time person for the biennium. This grade is a semi-professional position - more at 
the level of our benefits people. 
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Senator Sorvaag said to maybe fund enough for 1 Yi more. That would take it up $180,000 
in addition to the $122,000.  

Senator Holmberg said that when carrying the bill , don't talk about transition, talk about 
workload. 

Clarified the amendment with Legislative Council (using green sheet - Attachment 1 )  -

Sheila Sandness, Legislative Counci l :  We would remove $43 ,052 which had to do with 
the portability of retiree health credit . Then add $16,200 for web design. On the FTE, we'd 
add $ 1 80 ,000 to the temporary positions and remove the 2 FTE. 

Senator Sorvaag: We're giving them enough for 2 Yi temporary . 

Sheila Sandness : Removing from the salaries line, $43, 052 relating to retiree health 
portability; adding $ 1 6,200 to the operating line for web design; adding $180 ,000 to 
temporary support position (#5 on the green sheet); remove #2 on green sheet which are 
the two positions and the entire $400,000 will come out . 

Senator Krebsbach closed the hearing on SB 2022. 
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Committee Clerk Signature Q c-se::; 
Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resolution :  

This is a vote on the budgets of the Public Employees Retirement System and the 
Retirement and Investment Office. 

Min utes : 

Legislative Council - Sheila Sandness 
OMB - Tammy Dolan & Lori Laschkewitsch 

II Amendment & Attachment 1 - 2 

Senator Sorvaag handed out amendment 15.8155.01 001 and 
Retirement and Investment Office - Budget No. 192 - Attachment 1 
Public Employees Retirement System - Budget No. 192 - Attachment 2 

Senator Sorvaag moved and explained amendment 1 5.81 55.01 001 . 
Senator Krebsbach seconded. 

They discussed needing more temporary help because they are moving from Blue 
Cross/Blue Schield to Sanford. 

The amendment voice vote carried. 

Senator Sorvaag moved Do Pass as amended on SB 2022. 
Senator Mathern seconded . 

A Rol l  Cal l  vote was taken .  Yea : 1 2  Nay: 1 Absent: 0 
Senator Sorvaag wi l l  carry the bi l l  on the floor. 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Krebsbach 

February 21, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2022 

Page 1, replace lines 13 through 17 with: 

"Salaries and wages 
Accrued leave payments 
Operating expenses 
Contingencies 
Total special funds 

Page 1, remove lines 23 and 24 

$3,772,504 
71 ,541 

973,324 
82.000 

$4,899,369 

Page 2, replace lines 1 through 4 with: 

"Salaries and wages 
Accrued leave payments 
Operating expenses 
Contingencies 
Total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Page 2, replace lines 9 and 10 with: 

"Grand total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Renumber accordingly 

$5,016,339 
103,217 

2,280,894 
250,000 

$7,650,450 
33.00 

$12,549,819 
52.00 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Summary of Senate Action 

Retirement and Investment 
Office 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

Public Employees Retirement 
System 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

Bill total 
Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

Base 
Budget 

$4,899,369 
4,899,369 

$0 

$7,650,450 
7,650,450 

$0 

$12,549,819 
12,549,819 

$0 

Senate 
Changes 

$528,360 
528 360 

$0 

$1 ,757,023 
1757023 

$0 

$2,285,383 
2 285 383 

$0 

Senate 
Version 

$5,427,729 
5,427,729 

$0 

$9,407,473 
9 407 473 

$0 

$14,835,202 
14,835,202 

$0 

$582,351 
(71,541) 

17,550 
Q 

$528,360 

$1,463,071 
(103,217) 

397, 169 
Q 

$1 ,757,023 
1.50 

$2,285,383 
1.50 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Retirement and Investment Office - Senate Action 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 

Base 
Budget 

$3,772,504 
973,324 

Senate 
Changes 

$582,351 
17,550 

Senate 
Version 

$4,354,855 
990,874 

$4,354,855 
0 

990,874 
82,000 

$5,427,729" 

$6,479,410 
0 

2,678,063 
250,000 

$9,407,473 
34.50" 

$14,835,202 
53.50" 
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Contingencies 82,000 82,000 
Accrued leave payments 71 ,541 171 5411 

Total all funds $4,899,369 $528,360 $5,427,729 
Less estimated income 4,899,369 528 360 5,427,729 

General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 19.00 0.00 19.00 

Department No. 190 - Retirement and Investment Office - Detail of Senate Changes 

Adds Funding Adds Funding 
Adds Funding for Salary and Adds Funding for Increases in 

for Base Payroll Benefit for Salary Operating Total Senate 
Changes' Increases' Adjustments' Expenses' Changes 

Salaries and wages $301 ,879 $230,472 $50,000 $582,351 
Operating expenses 17,550 17,550 
Contingencies 
Accrued leave payments (71 ,541) 171 5411 

Total all funds $230,338 $230,472 $50,000 $17,550 $528,360 
Less estimated income 230,338 230,472 50,000 17 550 528 360 

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1 Funding is added for cost-to-continue 2013-15 biennium salaries and benefit increases and for other 
base payroll changes. 

2 The following funding is added for 2015-17 biennium performance salary adjustments of 2 to 4 percent 
per year and increases in monthly health insurance premiums: 

Salary increase - Performance 
Health insurance increase 
Total 

Other Fund 
$148,434 

82 038 
$230,472 

Total 
$148,434 

82 038 
$230,472 

3 Funding is added for additional salary adjustments to increase the agency's compensation ratio from 
94.6 to 97 percent of the market policy points for employees. 

4 Funding is added for operating expense increases. 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Public Employees Retirement System - Senate Action 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Contingencies 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

Base 
Budget 
$5,016,339 
2,280,894 

250,000 
103,217 

$7,650,450 
7,650,450 

$0 

33.00 

Senate 
Changes 

$1,463,071 
397,169 

(103,2171 

$1,757,023 
1757023 

$0 

1.50 

Senate 
Version 

$6,479,410 
2,678,063 

250,000 

$9,407,473 
9 407 473 

$0 

34.50 

Department No. 192 - Public Employees Retirement System - Detail of Senate Changes 

Adds Funding 
for Base Payroll 

Changes' 

Adds Funding 
for Salary and 

Benefit 

Adds Funding 
for Chief 
Financial 

Page No. 2 

Adds Funding 
for Benefits 
Position' 

Adjusts Base 
Level Funding5 

Tota I Sen ate 
Changes 

15.8155.01001 
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Officer 
Increases' Position3 

Salaries and wages $532,831 $380,592 $195,950 $51,346 $302,352 $1,463,071 
Operating expenses 20,119 377,050 397,169 
Contingencies 
Accrued leave payments (103,217) 1103,2171 

Total all funds $429,614 $380,592 $216,069 $51 ,346 $679,402 $1,757,023 
Less estimated income 429,614 380,592 216,069 51 346 679 402 1,757 023 

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 1.00 0.50 0.00 1.50 

1 Funding is added for cost-to-continue 2013-15 biennium salaries and benefit increases and for other 
base payroll changes. 

2 The following funding is added for 2015-17 biennium performance salary adjustments of 2 to 4 percent 
per year and increases in monthly health insurance premiums: 

Salary increase - Perfonnance 
Health insurance increase 
Total 

Other Funds 
$225,151 

155,441 
$380,592 

Total 
$225,151 

155 441 
$380,592 

3 Funding is added from the general fund for 1 chieffinancial officer FTE position ($195,950) and related 
operating expenses ($20, 119). 

4 Funding is added from the general fund for .5 FTE position ($51 ,346) to support an increase in the 
number of retirement benefits processed. 

5 Base level funding is adjusted as follows: 

Remove 2013-15 funding for retirement plan election 
General operating expenses 
Perslink system refinements 
Temporary support positions 
Website redesign 
Secure reception area 
Total 

Other Fund 

Page No. 3 

($22,000) 
134,470 
147,000 
302,352 
90,080 
27,500 

$679,402 

Total 
($22,000) 

134,470 
147,000 
302,352 
90,080 
27 500 

$679,402 
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Roll Call Vote#: -----ilf---

2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES l'I 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 9 D d 

Senate Appropriations Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description : 

Recommendation: ~opt Amendment 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By __ S-~ ...... 1~V_a_J..~G~.. '----- Seconded By KY' i l;-.JdlJ 
8"" ~ 

Senators Yes No Senators Yes No 
Chairman Holmberg Senator Heckaman 
Senator Bowman Senator Mathern 
Senator Krebsbach Senator O'Connell 
Senator Carlisle Senator Robinson 
Senator Sorvaag 
Senator G. Lee 
Senator Kilzer 
Senator Erbele 
Senator Wanzek 

Total (Yes) No 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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Senate Appropriations Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description : 

Recommendation : Dj\dopt Amendment 
MJ)o Pass D Do Not Pass 
!l1' As Amended 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

Other Actions: 

D Place on Consent Calendar 
D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By ___ 5_._~0~---~--&--- Seconded By c<\..£d).l\SLrv'<'--' 

Senators Yes No Senators Yes No 
Chairman Holmberg t-- Senator Heckaman I~ 

Senator Bowman L--- Senator Mathern , ___ .... 
Senator Krebsbach '~ Senator O'Connell L----

Senator Carlisle J.--- Senator Robinson 
I ---

Senator Sorvaaq '~ 
Senator G. Lee L---

Senator Kilzer V""' 

Senator Erbele L-- -
Senator Wanzek ~ 

Total (Yes) I cJ- No 
----------~ 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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Module ID: s_stcomrep_36_002 
Carrier: Sorvaag 

Insert LC: 15.8155.01001 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2022: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended , recommends DO PASS 
(12 YEAS, 1 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING) . SB 2022 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, replace lines 13 through 17 with : 

"Salaries and wages 
Accrued leave payments 
Operating expenses 
Contingencies 
Total special funds 

Page 1, remove lines 23 and 24 

$3,772,504 
71 ,541 

973,324 
82 ,000 

$4,899,369 

Page 2, replace lines 1 through 4 with : 

"Salaries and wages 
Accrued leave payments 
Operating expenses 
Contingencies 
Total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Page 2, replace lines 9 and 1 O with : 

"Grand total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Renumber accordingly 

$5,016,339 
103,217 

2,280,894 
250,000 

$7,650,450 
33.00 

$12,549,819 
52.00 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Summary of Senate Action 

Retirement and Investment 
Office 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

Public Employees Retirement 
System 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

Bill total 
Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

Base 
Budget 

$4,899,369 
4,899,369 

$0 

$7,650,450 
7,650,450 

$0 

$12,549,819 
12,549 819 

$0 

Senate 
Changes 

$528,360 
528,360 

$0 

$1,757,023 
1,757,023 

$0 

$2,285,383 
2 285,383 

$0 

Senate 
Version 

$5,427,729 
5,427,729 

$0 

$9,407,473 
9 407,473 

$0 

$14,835,202 
14 835,202 

$0 

$582,351 
(71 ,541) 

17,550 
Q 

$528,360 

$1,463,071 
(103,217) 

397,169 
Q 

$1 ,757,023 
1.50 

$2,285,383 
1.50 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Retirement and Investment Office - Senate Action 

Base Senate Senate 
Budget Changes Version 

Salaries and wages $3,772,504 $582,351 $4,354,855 
Operating expenses 973,324 17,550 990,874 
Contingencies 82,000 82,000 
Accrued leave payments 71 541 171 ,541\ 

Total all funds $4,899,369 $528,360 $5,427,729 
Less estimated income 4,899,369 528,360 5 427 729 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 

$4,354,855 
0 

990,874 
82,000 

$5,427,729" 

$6,479,410 
0 

2,678,063 
250,000 

$9,407,473 
34.50" 

$14,835,202 
53.50" 
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$0 Do 
19.00 0.00 

General fund 

FTE 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_36_002 
Carrier: Sorvaag 

Insert LC: 15.8155.01001 Title: 02000 

$0 

19.00 

Department No. 190 - Retirement and Investment Office - Detail of Senate Changes 

Adds Funding Adds Funding 
Adds Funding for Salary and Adds Funding for Increases in 

for Base Payroll Benefit for Salary Operating Total Senate 
Changes' Increases' Adjustments' Expenses' Changes 

Salaries and wages $301,879 $230,472 $50,000 $582,351 
Operating expenses 17,550 17,550 
Contingencies 
Accrued leave payments {71,541} (71 541) 

Total all funds $230,338 $230,472 $50,000 $17,550 $528,360 
Less estimated income 230 338 230 472 50 000 17 550 528 360 

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1 Funding is added for cost-to-continue 2013-15 biennium salaries and benefit increases and 
for other base payroll changes. 

2 The following funding is added for 2015-17 biennium performance salary adjustments of 2 
to 4 percent per year and increases in monthly health insurance premiums: 

Salary increase - Performance 
Health insurance increase 
Total 

Other Fund 

$148,434 
82 038 

$230,472 

Total 

$148,434 
82 038 

$230,472 

3 Funding is added for additional salary adjustments to increase the agency's compensation 
ratio from 94.6 to 97 percent of the market policy points for employees. 

4 Funding is added for operating expense increases. 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Public Employees Retirement System - Senate Action 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Contingencies 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

Base 
Budget 

$5,016,339 
2,280,894 

250,000 
103 217 

$7,650,450 
7,650,450 

$0 

33.00 

Senate 
Changes 

$1,463,071 
397, 169 

1103 2171 

$1,757,023 
1,757,023 

$0 

1.50 

Senate 
Version 

$6,479,41 0 
2,678,063 

250,000 

$9,407,473 
9,407,473 

$0 

34.50 

Department No. 192 - Public Employees Retirement System - Detail of Senate 
Changes 

Adds Funding Adds Funding 
Adds Funding for Salary and for Ch ief Adds Funding 

for Base Payroll Benefit Financial Officer for Benefits Adjusts Base 
Changes' Increases' Position' Position' Level Funding' 

Salari es and wages $532,831 $380,592 $195,950 $51,346 $302,352 
Operating expenses 20,119 377,050 
Contingencies 
Accrued leave payments (103,217} 

Total all funds $429,614 $380,592 $216,069 $51,346 $679,402 

Total Senate 
Changes 

$1,463,071 
397, 169 

(103 217) 

$1,757,023 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 2 s_stcomrep_36_002 
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Module ID: s_stcomrep_36_002 
Carrier: Sorvaag 

Insert LC: 15.8155.01001 Title: 02000 

Less estimated income ~~-4~29~6_14 ~~-3_80~5_92 ~~_2_16~0_69 ~--5_1~, 34_6 ~~_6_79~,4_02 ,__~17_5~70_23~ 

General fund 

FTE 

$0 

0.00 

$0 

0.00 

$0 $0 

1.00 0.50 

$0 $0 

0.00 ,___~1~.50~ 

1 Funding is added for cost-to-continue 2013-15 biennium salaries and benefit increases and 
for other base payroll changes. 

2 The following funding is added for 2015-17 biennium performance salary adjustments of 2 
to 4 percent per year and increases in monthly health insurance premiums: 

Salary increase - Performance 
Health insurance increase 
Total 

Other Funds 

$225, 151 
155 441 

$380,592 

Total 
$225,151 

155,441 
$380,592 

3 Funding is added from the general fund for 1 chief financial officer FTE position ($195 ,950) 
and related operating expenses ($20, 119). 

4 Funding is added from the general fund for .5 FTE position ($51 ,346) to support an 
increase in the number of retirement benefits processed . 

5 Base level funding is adjusted as follows: 

Remove 2013-15 funding for retirement plan election 
General operating expenses 
Perslink system refi nements 
Temporary support positions 
Website redesign 
Secure reception area 
Total 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITIEE Page 3 

Other Fund 

($22,000) 
134,470 
147,000 
302,352 
90,080 
27 500 

$679,402 

Total 
($22,000) 

134,470 
147,000 
302,352 
90,080 
27 500 

$679,402 

s_stcomrep_36_002 
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2015 HOUSE STANDI NG COMMITTEE MI NUTES 

Appropriations Committee - Government Operations Division 
Medora Room, State Capitol 

SB2022 
3/11/2015 

Recording Job# 24699 

D Subcommittee 
D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk S ignature 
-

Explanation or reason for introductio 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of various state 
retirement and investment agencies; and to provide various transfers. 

Minutes : II See attachments A and B Ff(U\dol.dS #"I, ;#:1.. 

Chairman Thoreson :  Opened the hearing on SB2022. 

David Hunter, Executive Director/CIO, ND Reti rement and Investment Office : See 
testimony attachment A.  

Chairman Thoreson :  That's HB1 053. Some of the numbers may change on that . 

Representative Kempenich: We'll see where we're at . 

David Hunter continued with his presentation. 

Representative Kempenich: How long can we sustain a 33% increase? 

David Hu nter: We'll probably good for the next biennium. 

Representative Kempenich: Does it take more people the more assets you have? 

David Hunter: It does. 

Sparb Col l ins, Executive Director, ND Public Employees Retirement System: See 
testimony attachment B .  

Chairman Thoreson:  How are these members elected? 

Sparb Col l ins:  Once someone's term ends, we send out notice. They have to get 50 
signatures . Once they meet that threshold, they're registered for the election . They each 
get a chance to provide a picture and statement of what they want. We send that out to all 



House Appropriations Committee - Government Operations Division 
SB2022 
March 1 1 , 201 5 
Page 2 

the membership and the membership gets an opportunity to mail back their votes for who 
they would like to represent them on the board. 

Chairman Thoreson :  What is your election turnout? What percentage of members are 
usually voting? 

Sparb Col l ins:  It would probably be a couple thousand or less. 

Sparb Collins continued with his presentation . 

Representative Vigesaa: When is the PERS board required to bid out the insurance? Is 
there a requirement in statute that you have to bid it out for so many years? 

Sparb Col l ins :  The main requirement in statute is if we're in self-insured it has to be on a 
four year basis . On fully insured there isn't a specific requirement. In order to get a carrier 
interested, we bid it on a six year basis subject to two year renewals. 

Sparb Collins continued with his presentation . 

Representative Vigesaa : It's PERS policy that it's a six year contract? 

Sparb Col l ins :  Yes; subject to those two year rules. 

Representative Hogan :  When was the last time it was bid? 

Sparb Col l ins :  The last time was two years ago . 

Representative Hogan :  It's been awhile since it was fully bid? 

Sparb Col l ins:  Yes. It was bid on two years ago on a fully insured basis. 

Representative Kem penich : Sanford came in lower two years ago and then the Blues 
came in under that. 

Sparb Col l ins :  Right. On the initial one Sanford was in a little bit lower and best and final 
Sanford came up and Blue Cross Blue Shield came down. This last time in the best and 
final everyone stayed the same. 

Representative Kempenich :  I think the biggest thing is if it's going to apples to apples. 

Sparb Col l ins:  I don't mean to represent that everything is the same. The plan design is 
the same. The provider network isn't identical ; but they're close . 

Chairman Thoreson:  We're getting a lot of questions from our constituents because a lot 
of the people who live in our districts are employees and retirees and they're concerned. I 
want to see that so I can go back and answer those questions. There's also a delayed bill 
dealing with this issue and that's going to be looking at this also. 
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Sparb Col l ins :  We'd be happy to answer your questions. 

Representative Skarphol :  I'm going to spend next winter in Arizona and I want to know if 
I'm going to be able to pick whatever medical facility I want to go to down there or if I'm 
going to be limited. I have experience at the Mayo Clinic in Rochester; and I plan to go to 
the Mayo Clinic in Scottsdale. I want to know if that's going to be an option that's provided 
without issues. 

Sparb Col l ins :  The Mayo Clinic is part of the Sanford network and is part of the Blue 
Cross Blue Shield network . In the Sanford network you will need to get a pre-authorization 
and in the Blue Cross Blue Shield network you don't get a pre-authorization ; they review it 
subsequent and can deny the service. 

Representative Skarphol :  I'm not viewing this apples to apples in this case . If I need 
prior approval for somebody it means kind of like I have to get permission. I'm not into 
getting permission anymore at my age. 

Sparb Col l ins:  You are getting a permission from Blue Cross Blue Shield after the fact. 

Representative Skarphol :  Why isn't it possible for Sanford to do the same thing? 

Sparb Col l ins:  They're method is for prior approvals; you're getting approvals either way . 

Representative Skarphol :  The difference is very dramatic between what you're saying 
and what I'm thinking. With Blue Cross I went to wherever I wanted and if they didn't pay 
the bill , I paid the difference. In this case, if I don't get prior approval from Sanford, will they 
pay any of the bill? 

Sparb Col l ins:  Yes. There are differences and I don't mean to imply that the two plans 
are exactly the same. 

Representative Skarphol :  I don't read all the manuals on things I buy and I don't read all 
the manuals on insurance. 

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: My wife has had six back surgeries and she was referred 
to the University of Minnesota. Are they going to approve the University of Minnesota? 

Sparb Col l ins:  Sanford does allow the provider to get pre-approval for you as well . You'll 
find that most providers will get pre-approval. 

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: That's not true . They just took care of my wife without 
checking anything. 

Sparb Col l ins:  When it comes to the pre-approval, there are no criteria in the pre-approval 
process that says you have to go to a Sanford provider. The procedures approved on the 
pre-approval; not the facility . You can go out of state for the services ; medical necessity is 
the primary criteria as it is with the Blue Cross Blue Shield plan . There will be differences 
in formulary . 
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Vice Chairman Brandenburg: A year from now when we go home and I start getting calls 
from Dickey and Mcintosh counties; and they say you're not letting them go to Aberdeen, if 
you're saying that's not going to happen I'm ok . 

Sparb Col l ins :  As long as they're in the network , they're network facilities. 

Representative Kem penich : You do want to see some competition; but in the competition 
you want to gain. You want to make sure you're gaining something or at least not losing 
something. That's the biggest concern. 

Sharon Schiermeister, CEO and CFO, ND Public Employee Retirement System : See 
testimony attachment A .  

Representative Kem penich : Last biennium we had to put $2 million in to cover a certain 
segment of the employment in North Dakota; is that just built into the budgets now? Do we 
have to do that again? 

Lori Laschkewitsch, F iscal Analyst, ND Office of Management and Budget: There 
was $2 million; $ 1  million of general funds and $ 1  million of other funds in OMB's budget for 
the 201 3-20 1 5  biennium. However, the implementation date was moved down the road 
one year; so we didn't have to implement the affordable care act until January 1 ,  20 1 5. 
Because of that we didn't have any historical time that agencies have the opportunity to 
know how many of their people would actually qualify; where we'd be required to insure 
them. For the 2 0 1 5-20 1 7  our recommendation included $1 0 million in a pool in OMB's 
budget; because we didn't feel that the agencies had enough information to know whether 
they should include health insurance in their budget for their temporary employees. 
Because it was in November that the agencies were doing that review, we found we don't 
need $1 0 million. OMB's bill in the Senate was amended to return $500 ,000.00 of general 
funds and $2.5 million of other funds. 

Sharon Schiermeister continued with her presentation . 

Representative Kempenich : How far have you gotten into the ranges for salaries that you 
needed to be? 

Sharon Schiermeister: Not very far. We have a proposal to include an equity package in 
our base budget. 

Sharon Schiermeister continued with her presentation.  

Representative Skarphol :  You said earlier that you replaced your computers on a four 
year replacement cycle. What did you have to invest? 

Sharon Schiermeister: I don't have that number right now; but, I can get that to you. 

Sharon Schiermeister continued with her testimony. 

Representative Boehning: How many temporary employees does that involve? 
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Sharon Schiermeister: It is about 2.5 at any given time. 

Representative Boehning: Will they be salaried positions or hourly positions? What 
benefits will come with that? 

Sharon Schiermeister: What we were proposing is that they would be hourly positions 
and we felt that we would need the health insurance to retain them. Because of the nature 
of the various projects that we have , we may get someone on and they might only be 
working for six months. It may not be the same people, it may be different people with a 
different skill set. 

Representative Boeh n ing: Would you be hiring them directly or would you go through a 
temp agency? 

Sharon Schiermeister: We included it in the salary and wages line item; so we would 
have to recruit for them and hire them directly as opposed to contracting with a temporary 
service agency. 

Representative Boehning: Would there be any savings with going through a temp 
agency? 

Sharon Schiermeister: That could be a possibility . Currently , we do use temp service 
agencies. 

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: The Senate gave you the chief financial officer and the half 
time FTE. They pulled the other two FTE's and gave you more temporaries . Is that what 
I'm seeing of $180, 000.00 more than what was asked for? 

Sharon Schiermeister:  That's correct . 

Sharon Schiermeister continued with her presentation . 

Chairman Thoreson :  Would you have a copy of the proposal available? 

Sharon Schiermeister: Yes. 

Sharon Schiermeister continued with her presentation. 

Representative Boehning: Do you rent your office space or is this state property? 

Sharon Schiermeister: We rent that space. We're in the Wells Fargo building in 
downtown Bismarck . 

Representative Boehning: Would the property owner be willing to do that for us with our 
lease agreements without having to expend any more dollars? 
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Sharon Schiermeister: Whenever we do  any remodeling at our  space we do go back to 
the p roperty m anager; and this was the cost that they came with to do that. We've found 
that we can pay the cost d i rectly or  they reflect it  in our rent. 

Representative Boehn ing: When is your  lease up and wil l  there be an increase you r  rent 
being that you d id renovations? 

Sharon Schiermeister: Our  lease is up on June 30th; we contract for the biennium. We 
have not started our  lease negotiations for Ju ly 1;  but we're expecting there p robably wil l  be 
an increase with the demand for office space. 

Representative Boehn ing: M aybe they can work a good deal for that. 

Sharon Schiermeister: Maybe. 

Sharon Schiermeister continued with her p resentation. 

Chairman Thoreson:  C losed the hearing . 
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Chairman Thoreson : Opened the discussion on SB2022. 

Sharon Schiermeister, Chief Operating Officer, ND Public Employee Retirement: See 
attachment A.  

Chairman Thoreson : They did or did not provide you with a fixed fee option? 

Sharon Schiermeister: They provided us with a fixed fee. It's on page 26 of their 
proposal . 

Chairman Thoreson: That is mailed out to those who are eligible to vote? 

Sharon Schiermeister: Yes. 

Representative Vigesaa :  I'm wondering about the candidates. Do they actively seek 
these positions or are they drafted? 

Sharon Schiermeister: They seek the positions. They have to go through a process of 
getting signatures to get put on the ballot . 

Chairman Thoreson :  That is spelled out in the information? 

Sharon Schiermeister: Yes. 

Representative Hogan :  I'm interested in the numbers of people voting. Has there been a 
decline in the number of people voting? 

Sharon Schiermeister: It's been fairly consistent. 
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Sparb Col l ins,  Director, ND Public Employees Retirement System : It depends on the 
election. There have been elections where only one candidate has run . It also depends on 
what the issues are. 

Representative Vigesaa: Do the board members receive any compensation for serving? 

Sparb Col l ins:  Yes. 

Chairman Thoreson : That would be over and above any compensation as an employee? 

Sparb Col l ins:  We have active employees that are elected. 

Chairman Thoreson: What about the other members from health and Attorney General? 

Sparb Col l ins:  That's set up by statute. 

Chairman Thoreson :  Do they receive board compensation also? 

Sparb Col l ins:  Yes. 

Representative Boehning: Do you have any meetings during the week or are they on the 
weekend? 

Sparb Col l ins:  Meetings are during the week. 

Representative Boehning: When the employees come to the meetings, do they take 
vacation that day? 

Sparb Col l ins:  The statute provides that they don't. 

Representative Boehning: Then that rate is above their salary? 

Sparb Col l ins:  Yes. 

Chairman Thoreson : When is the next election going to take place? 

Sparb Col l ins:  It would be 201 7 .  Our board chairman's term expires this summer and that 
would be up to the Governor to appoint. 

Chairman Thoreson: That's an appointed. But the next election will be in 2017? 

Sparb Col l ins:  That's what it looks like. 

Chairman Thoreson: Several months prior to that is there a solicitation? 

Sparb Col l ins:  The rules lay out that by a certain date the board has to establish an 
election committee. A newsletter has to be sent out to all of the participants. If they are 
interested, they get a packet that lays out what they need to do . 
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Chairman Thoreson :  Can current members run for reelection? 

Sparb Coll ins:  Yes. 

Chairman Thoreson: Are there term l imits? 

S parb Coll ins: No.  

Representative Boehning: There's only one that's elected to the board? 

S parb Coll ins:  There are fou r  e lected to  the board out  of the seven .  

Rep resentative Boehning: They get $62.50 per d iem. 

Chairman Thoreson :  There is a section that does al low for a p rocess for electronic 
ballots. Has that been used? 

S parb Col l ins:  No. That is s
.
omething we would l ike to move toward .  

Chairman Thoreson: Wou ld that be done through PERS l ink? 

Sparb Coll ins:  No.  We wou ld p robably do it through the website . 

• Chairman Thoreson :  It would truly be a voting site. 

S parb Col l ins:  Yes. With PERS l ink everybody has their own identifier number. 

Chairman Thoreson : That is the d i rection you're headed? 

Sparb Col l ins:  That's not a d i rection the board has adopted yet. 

Chairman Thoreson:  If you do switch to that I wou ld guess that wou ld requ i re some new 
rule making to set u p  the standards in that area? 

Sparb Col l ins:  Yes. 

Representative Hogan :  How many people are using PERS l ink? 

S parb Coll ins:  This last yea r  everybody had to do their open enrol lment on it. 

Representative Hoga n :  What about retirees? 

Sparb Col l ins:  We'l l  get you the number. 

Representative Hogan :  The other change I would rea l ly l ike you to talk about is the 
change in the p re-Medica re healthcare coverage enrol lment. H ow is that going? 
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Sparb Col l ins:  That was passed last Legislative session . At this particular point where 
we' re at, in terms of feedback, there are employees retiring today so that they can meet 
that April date . 

Representative Hogan: That won't be avai lable after Ju ly 1 ?  

Sparb Col l ins:  Right. The other aspect of this that wi l l  be implemented on Ju ly 1 is that it 
made the retiree health credit portable. You don't have to use it now just for PERS. 

Representative Hogan :  It's a huge policy change and  system change particularly for the 
retirees . 

Sparb Col l ins :  Thirty percent more retirees are going to be elig ib le for this that weren't 
before. When it was tied to PERS and you had to have the PERS health insurance,  only 
about 70% of those chose it. Now they' l l  a l l  be able to get this coverage.  

Representative Hoga n :  How many people wi l l  that impact? 

Sparb Col l ins:  All of them.  We have about 9 ,000 retirees and 70% are a lready on it. 

Representative Hogan :  What's the current status of the actual  fund? 

Sparb Col l ins:  We report that to the Leg islative Employee Benefits Committee . 

Representative Hogan: We're just looking at the administrative side? 

Sparb Col l ins:  The status of the fund today is based upon actuarial value of assets and 
market va lue of assets . Actuarial value of assets is around 63%. Market value of assets 
we're over 70% of funded status. 

Representative Hogan :  Cou ld you get us those spreadsheets? 

Sparb Coll ins: What I cou ld do is give you the h istory of H B  1 080 too .  

Representative Hogan: How do we compare to other states? 

Sparb Col l ins:  We're probably in the middle. 

Representative Boehning: U nder your  temporary support position you had an increase of 
$ 1 80,000 from the Senate. Can you explain that? 

Sparb Col l ins:  We orig inal ly had in there two FTEs to help us go self-funded . The final 
decision was to not to go self-funded . We anticipated those two FTEs wou ld be able to 
help us in  the next few months on some other things. 

Representative Boehn ing: You want two temporary FTEs for $300,000? 

Sparb Col l ins:  Not two . 
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Sharon Schiermeister: The add itional was for 1 .5 temporary positions. The orig inal  
request for the $ 1 22,000 had included funding for a fu l l-time temporary position . The 
Senate amendment was to increase that by an additional 1 . 5 .  There's funding in there for 
2 . 5  temporary positions. 

Representative Boehning: The need for the ch ief financial officer position and the benefit 
support position of a half t ime. 

Sharon Schiermeister: How we're currently structured is a few years back we created a 
ch ief operating officer position , which is myself. I also occupy the ch ief financial officer 
position.  We've found that the needs warrant having two separate positions. 

Representative Boehning: Where would that position fit into that chart? 

Sharon Schiermeister: On the far right hand side where the finance manager is . 

Representative Boehn ing: We wou ld have a finance manager and the CFO? 

Sharon Schiermeister: The finance manager would be replaced with the CFO. It's just a 
name change. 

Representative Boehning: If it's just a name change, why the increase with the FTE? 

Sharon Schiermeister: I f  you put names in the boxes, I am the ch ief operating officer and 
finance manager. Regard ing the benefits position,  we're asking for a half FTE .  We do 
have a half-time FTE that's assisting . This is to make that a fu l l-time position .  

Representative Hogan :  I f  they're already working half-t ime, are they el igible for health 
benefits? 

Sharon Schiermeister: Yes . She's already receiving benefits . 

Representative Hogan :  So the only add itional cost for that position is the retirement? 

Sharon Schiermeister: The retirement and the salary that is currently in temporary. 

Representative Boehning: Do you have any vacant FTEs at th is time? 

Sharon Schiermeister: We do have a vacant member service position . It's one of our cal l  
center positions. 

Representative Boehning: I see that the Senate decreased the health insurance increase. 
Is that in reflection to the $30 less per month? 

Lori Laschkewitsch, F iscal  Analyst, ND Office of Management and Budget: That 
would be because of the reduction of the position that the Senate removed . 
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Representative Vigesaa: Rega rd ing the board ,  how often a re they schedu led to meet per 
yea r? Do they ever have to call special board meetings? 

S parb Coll ins: They a re schedu led to meet 1 2  times a yea r, once a month . Recently 
there has been a series of special board meetings. 

Chairman Thoreson: Are those meetings a l l  held in Bismarck normally? 

S parb Coll ins: We do them in Bismarck. B ut our board chairman is from Fargo and we've 
been video-conferencing. 

Chairman Thoreson closed the hearing. 
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Chairman Thoreson :  Opened the d iscussion on SB2022 . 

Representative J im Kasper, District 46, ND Legislative Assembly:  Explained 
amendment 020 1 4 .  See attachment A. 

Chairman Thoreson : The board itself would be the ones who would pick the aud iting firm . 
That's correct? 

Representative Kasper: Correct. They would contract with an outside audit fi rm . The 
language is very important; that we don't change this language. The attorney that 
recommended this language stated that you must have specific deta i l  language so you get 
to the rea l  root of how PBM's are operating in our health plan ; so we flush out the 
information that we need . I would ask that you do not amend that language at a l l .  

Representative Skarphol :  The only th ing I question is why would n't you let the state 
aud itors do this? I 'm curious why you excluded the aud itor's office. 

Representative Kasper: I had not thought about that approach . The one concern is that 
the aud itor may not have the knowledge and expertise dea l ing with health insurance to 
choose an audit entity that rea l ly knows what they're doing . 

Representative Skarphol :  They select consu ltants to do expert aud its in  a lot of d ifferent 
areas and they would consult with the board and whomever before choosing an aud itor. If 
you'd l ike us to change it in some fash ion we can do that in  fu l l  committee . 

Representative Kasper: I don't object to that. 
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Representative Skarphol :  Typically if we make a motion in  leg islative audit and fiscal 
review to do a performance audit of any other state agency, that state agency pays the 
cost; because leg islative audit and fiscal review have to approve that. 

Representative Kasper: I don't object to that concept 

Representative Hogan :  This sounds l ike a very special ized aud it with very d istinct issues. 
Do you have any idea how much it wi l l  cost and did you th ink  about including any funding 
for th is aud it? 

Representative Kasper: I recal l  in a d iscussion with the attorney that helped d raft this 
amendment that $ 1 00,000.00 might be appropriate. I d idn 't want to include dol lars on an 
appropriation b i l l .  

Representative Hoga n :  That's a pretty major expense . The other piece of that cost is  you 
asked for it annual ly so it would $200 ,000.00 for the bienn ium . 

Representative Kasper: Correct. 

Representative Skarphol :  That figure wouldn't at a l l  be unusual  in the cost of a 
performance audit .  

Chairman Thoreson : It can be a sign ificant savings back to the organ ization if there's 
issues found? 

Representative Kasper: That's correct. The attorney has formed a non-profit entity that 
she is working with state governments, mun icipal governments and large employers a l l  
across the Un ited States to provide th is  type of expertise and knowledge about how to do 
aud it correctly. There are b i l l ions of dol lars that is being spent and managed by PBM's. 
They have some of the sharpest attorneys you wil l  find any place in  the country; they 
represent the PBM's very wel l .  

Chairman Thoreson :  There was an emai l  that I received with her information and contact 
information .  If th is does go forward , maybe we can have a l ittle background on what her 
non-profit does ; or if there are others simi lar to this .  

Representative Kasper: I wou ld be g lad to contact her and ask for some information that 
would be supportive as wel l  as other potential consu ltants around the country that do this 
type of work. 

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Made a motion to move . 020 1 4 . 

Representative Skarphol :  Seconded the motion . 

Representative Kempenich: I th ink we should amend in that the aud itor's office be the 
lead on th is .  

Chairman Thoreson :  Would you l ike to further amend? 
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Representative Kempenich : That would be my suggestion . 

Representative Skarphol :  I agree that it's important. I 'd l ike to see the language before it 
goes anywhere into fu l l  committee. 

Representative Kempenich : I would g ive council enough time. 

Representative Hogan :  I 'm concerned with putting in annual ly because these aud its are 
major issues and I th ink that LAFRC has the abi l ity to mon itor th is. 

Representative Skarphol :  I wou ld guess that it might take them awh i le to do that and we 
cou ld consult with the aud itor's office in  the meantime. 

Representative Hogan :  Do we need to put $ 1 00,000 .00 in the PERS budget to pay for 
this? 

Representative Skarphol :  I would leave it out. 

Voice vote made and carried . 

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Made a motion to move amendment 02007. See 
attachment B .  

Representative Skarphol :  Seconded the motion . 

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: We need to address both parties . 

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Made a motion to further amend to have two parties from 
the House and two parties from the Senate; for a total of four .  

Representative Boehning: Made a motion to have two members of the legislative 
assembly appointed by the chairman ;  one from each party. 

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Seconded the motion. 

Representative Boehning: Do we want to put in leg islative management in l ine 3 to have 
one from each chamber from each house? 

Chairman Thoreson : We're a l ready going to have one person from each chamber by the 
majority leader. 

Representative Skarphol :  I wou ld hope they pick the people most expert in  insurance and 
if th ree of them are from one chamber; I don't know if we should care as long as they're 
experts in  insurance.  

Representative Hogan :  Do you know any of the history of how long the current structure of 
the board has been in  place? 
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Chairman Thoreson :  I know the board has been in p lace for qu ite a few years . 

Sparb Col l ins, Director, ND Public Employees Retirement System: I came to PERS in 
1 989 and at that time the leg islature had just passed a bi l l  changing the composition of the 
board .  It added at that time the retiree representative to the board and it a lso added the 
state health officer to the board .  Prior to that the board was the same since i t  was 
developed in 1 965.  

Voice vote made and carried . 

Representative Boehning: Made a motion to take the language out of H B 1 475 for 
emp loyee and benefits committee exception.  

Vice Cha irman Brandenburg: Seconded the motion. 

Representative Boehning: This would exempt th is bi l l l  from having to go through the 
employee benefits committee again .  

Voice vote made and carried . 

Representative Vigesaa: Made a motion to move amendment 02006 . See attachment C .  

Representative Boehning: Seconded the motion . 

Voice vote made and carried . 

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Explained amendment 02009. See attachment D .  

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Made a motion to move amendment 02009. 

Representative Boehning: Seconded the motion . 

Representative Kempenich :  How much are we gain ing and where are we at with these 
reserves? 

Sparb Col l ins :  General ly speaking the contract we've had for the last few years it's been a 
gain sharing contract with the carrier. We share 50/50 in  any losses up to $6 mi l l ion and we 
share 50/50 in any gains up to $3 mi l l ion .  The final closeout period runs 24 months. We 
get an in it ial settlement 1 2  months in ;  and a final settlement 24 months in .  We're rough ly 
around $40 mi l l ion .  We would expect this bienn ium that it's ru nn ing real ly tight and we 
could have a loss. We do fund the employee assistance program out of this .  

Representative Hogan :  It's real ly reducing the insurance premium that's the target of this 
amendment isn't it? 

Representative Skarphol : I th ink it's intended so that there can't be an increased premium 
paid during this next bienn ium . 
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Representative Hogan :  It's real ly targeted at the health insurance premiums; not at the 
EAP type of contracts. I just wanted it on the record that th is was our leg islative intent. 

Representative Skarphol :  I t  pretty wel l  says that in the amendment. 

Voice vote made and carried . 

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Made a motion to move amendment 0201 3 .  See 
attachment E .  

Representative Boehning: Seconded the motion . 

Chairman Thoreson:  I t's basically putting a two-year l imit on there and then there would 
be a solicitation for a bid after that. 

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Yes. 

Voice vote made and carried . 

Vice Cha irman Brandenburg: Made a motion to remove the 1 . 5 FTE's from budget 1 92 .  

Representative Boehning: Seconded the motion.  Is a l l  the money in  there a l l  for wages 
or is there anyth ing in there from operating that we would have to remove as wel l?  

Michael Johnson, F iscal  Analyst, ND Legislative Counci l :  See attachments F and G .  
There would be  some operating expense included with that l ine .  

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: I would amend the amendment to include the FTE's and 
the money associated with them.  

Representative Boehning: Seconded the motion 

Representative Kempenich: is this a second ch ief financial officer or is it a deputy? 

Sharon Schiermeister, Ch ief Operating Officer and Chief F inancial Officer, ND Public 
Employee Retirement System:  This position would be to spl it those duties. 

Representative Skarphol :  Did the agency decide to create a new office or was it created 
through leg islation? Was that a pol icy decision on the part of PERS or was it a legislative 
decision? 

Sparb Col l ins :  That was a decision of myself as the d i rector. PERS has not had an 
operating officer; we elected to use the operating officer. 

Representative Skarphol :  So you do not have a deputy? 

Sparb Col l ins :  No.  
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Voice vote made and carried . 

Representative Boehning: Made a motion to remove $200 ,000.00 from the temporary 
support position . 

Vice Cha irman Brandenburg: Seconded the motion . 

Representative Hogan :  I 'm concerned about this because I believe that money was used 
for the conversion of the purchase of health insurance credits at the end of this bienn ium;  
which is  a major systems change. I don't bel ieve that PERS has the staff to do that major 
conversion.  I 'm going to oppose this motion. 

Voice vote made and carried . 

Representative Boehning: Made a motion to reduce the health insurance increase on 
budget no 1 90 for R IO .  

Chairman Thoreson: That was done in  amendment 02006 . 

Representative Boehning: Made a motion to remove the $50,000.00 for employee based 
level salary adjustment. 

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Seconded the motion.  

Lori Laschkewitsch, F iscal Analyst, ND Office of Management and Budget: I bel ieve 
that $50,000.00 was added because they're having d ifficu lty h i ring the positions that they 
have vacant. 

Voice vote made and carried . 

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Made a motion for a "Do Pass as Amended". 

Representative Kempenich: Seconded the motion . 

Rol l  cal l  vote: 7 Yeas 0 Nays 1 Absent 

Representative Boehn ing carried the b i l l .  

Chairman Thoreson : Closed the d iscussion. 
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Chairman Jeff Delzer opened the hearing on SB 2022 . 

Representative Thoreson :  (Referred to Amendment 0201 8)(Handout #1 ) .  The amendment, 
starting on page 5, is the changes that we made on the financials .  We made the adjustment for the 
health insurance premium increases. There were some base level salary adjustments of $50,000. 
We did remove that amount ,  also. That's on the ret irement investment office portion of the bi l l .  If you 
go to page 6, for PERS, there's an adjustment for the health insurance premiums. We removed the 
salary increase funding for a new FTE position ;  there was a chief financial officer FTE posit ion, 
which we removed ; and also a benefit support position, which we removed . There was also some 
temporary salary money of $200,000, which was removed . Those are the changes, mostly in the 
financial areas. Most of the language changes take place starting on page 2. This relates to the 
governing authority, the board for PERS. This board make-up has remained the same for qu ite a 
few years, and we made a change. Currently the board is made up of 7 members. We increased 
that to 9, and that would include the Majority Leader of the House or their designee, and also the 
Majority Leader of the Senate or their designee. And then two members who would be appointed by 
the chai rman of legislative management, consisting of a member of the majority and a member of 
the minority party. Currently the board has a member appointed by the Attorney General  and also 
from the State Health Officer. Those persons were removed from the make-up. If you go to the top 
of page 3, it also makes the change showing that five of the nine board members constitute a 
q uorum,  and five votes are necessary for resolution or actions by the Board at any meeting . Moving 
on to section 5, this is language that was added to deal with audits of PBMs, and I bel ieve there is 
go ing to be another amendment being brought forward by Rep. Skarphol .  There was some areas of 
th is language which perhaps need to be changed, so what I would ask is when we move th is ,  that 
we adopt this and then Rep. Skarphol could move to further amend, and he could explain the 
language that would replace the language here . Just to summarize, the prescription drug coverage 
under PBMs have not been audited . This language here would al low for that audit to take place, 
and there would be a report made to the Leg islative Audit and Fiscal Review committee . I th ink we 
wi l l  have further d iscussion on this with a separate amendment. Those are the changes that your 
Government Operations division made. 

Rep. Thoreson:  I would move Amendment 0201 8 for purposes of d iscussion .  

Rep. Skarphol : Second. 
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Chairman Delzer: We have a motion to amend SB 2022 with 020 1 8 . Discussion by the committee? 

Rep. Kempenich:  It was brought to my attention on the Retirement I nvestment Office on the 
$50,000 that we can call it something else, but they need to get some of their people re-a l igned on 
it. It is something that the chief investment officer feels strongly about it . 

Chairman Delzer: One of the things i n  discussions with the Senate , we are talking about some 
equity money in a pool ,  and I don't remember if PERS is one of them or not. 

Representative Nelson:  The board changes, that's a major issue that we're contemplating .  I 'd l i ke 
to know a l itt le bit about the history of why there hasn't been any legislative placements on the 
PERS board in the past, and what's necessitating the need for that today. 

Chairman Delzer: I th ink the issue is there hasn't been much discussion about who was ;  there has 
been only one bid for many, many years. I n  the last couple years, there's been a couple bids,  and I 
th ink there was some pretty good consternation about what happened . The Attorney General one, 
you have a situation where you have an Attorney Genera l  who is having to defend both the state 
and the PERS board, and they might be on opposite sides. So you kind of have a conflict of 
interest. The State Health Officer, if you're going to have some state officer, I would have thought it 
wou ld be insurance. But the way it's stated, it was the officer itself, and that's not even who is on the 
board .  I th ink an issue of what's going on is we should have the d iscussion about change in the 
board . 

Rep. Nelson: I don't know the last time there was legislative identity on the PERS board ,  but at that 
t ime, was there only one bid? I s  that the reason? When were leg islators taken off the board? 

Chairman Delzer: I can't say for sure ,  but I don't th ink they were ever on the board .  

Representative Hogan: We asked that question about the history of the board ,  and the last t ime 
there was a major restructuring was 1 989. 

Rep. Nelson :  Was there only one bid at that point in time? Or was there a competitive s ituation at 
that time? 

Rep. Hogan: I don't bel ieve it was an insurance issue. It was a retirement funding issue, and there 
was concerns about it. 

Chairman Delzer: Would they have added the reti red changed the makeup of state employees at 
that t ime? 

Rep. Hogan : That was the last t ime the board's been restructured. 

Representative Si lbernagel :  Could Representative Thoreson answer if this is  the first t ime we've 
audited PBM, or is th is something new? 

Representative Thoreson:  I don't know it has taken place previously. I know there has been much 
d iscussion. There has been a broader discussion about these programs in other  committees with in 
the leg is lature .  

Vice Chairman Keith Kempenich : When we got into PBMs,  I know there was an extensive study 
on the state side. I don't know about the private side. I' haven't heard about an audit on them. 
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Representative Thoreson: I should direct you to page #4, section 6 of the b i l l .  There is another 
change here. If you look under Section 6 to Subsection 2; there is language deal ing with the term of 
the contract for health insurance. It says the term of a uniform group insurance contract for benefits 
may not exceed two years; and a contract subject to this subsection may not be renewed without 
sol icitation of a bid under the section of Century Code . This would say that the contract would be a 
two-year contract, and then there would be bids submitted . 

Chairman Delzer: Did you cover Section 7? 

Rep. Thoreson:  That is also language that I did not cover. That section was added, and it says that 
they may not spend any moneys from their fund or their reserves under the uniform group 
insurance program to reduce any increases in  the prem ium amounts beyond the rates that were set 
by the legislative assembly in developing the state agency budget. PERS does have a fund,  and 
this would restrict them from using money from that fund for any increase in the insurance 
premiums.  

Chairman Delzer: Just for the two years? 

Rep. Thoreson :  That is correct. 

Rep. Hogan :  I oppose this motion,  and particularly the two-year contract l im itation because it takes 
so much effort for insurance companies to do these kinds of major bids. To do it every two years , 
I 'm concerned that we're not going to have any bids. So I th ink this is an unreasonable issue. That's 
why I opposed it. 

C hairman Delzer: Further Discussion? Seeing none, we' l l  try a voice vote. 

VOICE VOTE TAKEN ON AMENDMENT 0201 8 TO SB 2022: THE MOTION I S  CARRI ED.  

Vice Chairman Keith Kempenich:  I t was brought to  my attention in that compensation package 
that REA (?) wouldn't be part of that conversation. It's special funds; I'd just as soon argue it here 
instead of next week. 

Chairman Delzer: I wouldn't say next week, I 'd  say tomorrow. 

Vice C hairman Keith Kempenich: I th ink there is some issues over there, and the amount of funds 
that are going into the investment office is something we want to keep some good people there, and 
it's been an issue. We can call it reclassification or real ignment or whatever. I t's special funds 
money. 

Chairman Delzer: I wi l l  say this ;  if we do adopt this, then we'd want to make sure we're not part of 
the pool .  Are you moving that? Where are you moving? And what are you moving? 

Rep. Kempen ich:  The $50 ,000; it 's on page 5, number 2. 

Chairman Delzer: Alan, do you need something more specific than that? 

Alan ( Legislative Counci l ) :  That's fine. We would el iminate the reduction of the $50,000. 

Chai rman Delzer: To replace the $50,000 for REAL, into the salary l ine, I would take it .  

Chairman Delzer: Is there a second? 
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Rep. Brandenburg :  Second. 

Chairman Delzer: Discussion by the committee? Seeing none. 

VOICE VOTE TAKEN:  RESULTS I NCONCLUSIVE. 

ROLL CALL VOTE TAKEN :  YES: 1 1  

MOTION I S  CARRI ED. 

NO: 1 0  ABSENT: 2 

Representative Skarphol Offered amendment 02020.(Handout #2)This is a very complex 
examination ,  the PBMs. To do it right, on a national leve l ,  requires some unique expertise. When 
we talked about this amendment with the Auditor's Office, after we had adopted the amendment on 
the b i l l ,  they suggested to us that audit was not the right term to use. If you use the word "audit ," 
according to North Dakota law, you have to use a North Dakota CPA fi rm . So the Auditor's Office, in 
discussing th is ,  after some conversations with a New York firm that does th is work, advised us to 
change the language as recommended in Amendment 02020. If you look at the difference, the only 
differences are in Section 5 of the bi l l  vs. the amendment. The only d ifferences are in Subsection 1 ,  
at the beg inning of the amendment, and then the very last section ,  which wou ld be number 3 at the 
end of the amendment. And the language referencing auditors comes out. I t  also changes it from 
once every year to once every two years . Because of its complexity, it is logical to do it every two 
years as opposed to every year. But it says at least once every two years the board shal l  request 
the State Auditor to select a firm to complete a financial and health care analysis of the prescription 
drug coverage under the health benefits coverage. This may not be construed to require the firm to 
be a Certified Publ ic Accounting firm . In contracting for the analysis ,  the State Auditor shal l  consider 
input from the board regarding the scope of the evaluation and the review of the proposals .  The 
analysis must include the fo l lowing without l imitations. And that language that fol lows is very 
specific in its needs. The very last section again;  it e l iminates the auditor language and refers to the 
fact that the board must submit and present this report to the Leg islative Audit and Fiscal Review 
Committee. I would move Amendment 02020 to SB 2022. 

Rep. Thoreson: Second. 

Chairman Delzer: Discussion by the committee? 

Representative Holman: How would this fit in with the bidding process that goes on with our 
carrier of insurance? 

Representative Skarphol :  Do you mean with Sanford or the Sanford practices? My impression 
would be it 's to insure that pharmaceutical prices are appropriate and that they are not overly 
aggressive in their profit ing , but rather that they are complying with whatever regulations are in 
place .  

Rep. Holman:  I am  th inking of how this might complicate the process of working with ou r  insurance 
carrier. I don't have any problem with what it's doing. 

Rep. Skarphol: These national fi rms have col lected hundreds of mi l l ions of dol lars across the 
nation with these types of financial examinations for what they bel ieve were inappropriate charges 
or excessive ones. 

Representative Nelson:  Is the language you presented being used i n  any other arena? Or is this 
new to PERS? Are any other agencies using anyth ing that resembles this? 
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Rep. Skarphol :  This is language as recommended by that firm that Rep. Kasper was consult ing 
with prior to the introduction of this to our committee. It 's very technical in nature, and it needs this 
type of expl icit definit ion in order to insure that the examination can examine al l  aspects needed to 
be examined to insure that things are being complied with. 

Representative Nelson: Is this policy being used in ret irement systems in other states? 

Representative Skarphol :  It's my understanding that this is a developing process, but it's being 
uti l ized in other states; it is not a new process, but one that is being util ized e lsewhere. 

Chairman Delzer: Further discussion on the motion to further amend? 

VOICE VOTE TAKEN:  MOTION CARRI ES.  

C hairman Delzer: Further amendments to SB 2022? We are not opening the hearing,  but we wil l  
g ive the majority leader and the minority leader, if he's here, an opportunity to present an 
amendment or two. 

Majority leader Al Carlson spoke on SB 2022. (Handed out Amendment) (Handout #3) Proposed 
amendment ;  marked up language bill 1 5 . 8 1 55.02021 . Changes are in g reen on the attachment. As 
you may be aware, the House passed out a major bi l l  on health care and the bidd ing process and 
the gu idel ines that would go with it. In response to the fact that we were going to be changing 
carriers, our attempt was to make sure that those policies were the same; that those providers were 
the same. We passed that bi l l  out of the House 77-1 4 .  That bi l l  went to the Senate , and it sat there 
for 3 � weeks. They voted on it today, final ly, with some significant amendments. They sti l l  voted 
46-0 for a Do Not Pass . We original ly had l istened to the testimony over there ,  had tried to respond 
to the things that they thought were a major concern , and we had amendments that were drafted for 
this b i l l  that pretty much wou ld have addressed al l  of those things ,  and it was very long,  lengthy 
amendments that were basical ly a rewrite of 1 475. In discussion and in looking at this, we decided 
there were two or three things that were crucial as we go forward for the health care del ivery for the 
68,000 North Dakotans that carry that policy. I 'd l ike to go through these, and I 'm recommending 
that these be amendments , what's h ighl ighted i n  green. These are bits and pieces. Only what's 
h igh l ighted in green is what I 'm presenting to you today. There are some things that are real ly 
important. The first one is on the first page,  in  section 4 .  The board contract for health insurance 
benefits coverage under this chapter must provide that for the duration of the term of that contract, 
must accept as necessary for treatment, payment and operat ion; the carrier may not disclose 
identifiable or un identifiable insured or provider data or information with a related or unrelated 
healthcare del ivery un it. We want to guarantee, being they're a l l  in the same,  in another company, 
we want to maintain that that information is private and is not shared. #2: if the board enters a 
contract for health insurance benefits coverage under this chapter with a carrier that has common 
ownersh ip with a healthcare del ivery entity, which they do, the purposes of the carrier's negotiated 
for prior discount rates with the carrier that has a common ownership with a healthcare delivery 
entity for purposes of the carrier's negotiated for prior discount rates with in-state providers. Then it 
says, a :  for a provider that is a critical access hospita l ,  that does not have common ownership with 
the carrier, the negotiated provider discount rates may not be less than negotiated provider discount 
rates the carrier has with a related healthcare delivery entity that is a crit ica l  access hospita l .  I n  
other words,  the discount rates have to  be  the same. I th ink that's pretty important for those people 
that are using other carriers. The second part: it says, for providers not a critical access hospita l ,  
that does not have common ownersh ip with a carrier, the negotiated provider discount rate may not 
be less than the negotiated provider discount rates the carrier has with a related healthcare del ivery 
entity that is not a crit ical access hospita l .  It's pretty self-explanatory, about discount rates. And I 
th ink it's only fa ir because if you want people to be in those networks, you should probably be 
treating them the same, or you'd be re-d irecting everything to your entity. I don't th ink it's asking too 
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much when you go that d irection. This is a significant change from where our bi l l  was in the 
beginn ing .  The other amendment that I have is on the last page, Section 7 .  This amendment, the 
Un iform Group and Health I nsurance Program Benefits Leg islative I ntent, says , during the period 
beginning with the effective date of this act, through June 30, 201 5, if the Publ ic Employee 
Retirement Board system determines that it is necessary to re-bid the Uniform Insurance Program ,  
Health I nsurance Benefit Contract, the carrier providing the coverage at the t ime of that 
determination may continue under the existing contract unti l  a new contract is final ized , but not to 
exceed nine months. So, we want to make sure there's not a gap there .  If, for some reason, 
someone is going to want out or want to re-bid, we need to make sure there's a t imel ine in there 
that makes sure that coverage is consistent for those next n ine months. I wi l l  be the first to tel l  you 
that I am not the largest insurance expert in the room.  I th ink these are pretty self-explanatory 
amendments. I th ink these are crucial things as we look forward : the sharing of information,  and if 
you read the side-notes, it l imits the carrier regarding disclosing information ,  and it l imits the carrier 
from marketing information un less approved by the board .  Then it talks about d iscount rates for 
providers having common ownership with this carrier l im ited. And that goes on to the next one. Of 
course the last one g ives the board authority to extend the current contract for n ine months if the 
contracts need to be re-bid . 

Chairman Delzer: We have a motion to further amend with language. Rep. Carlson ,  these are 
directly out of 1 475? 

Rep. Carlson :  No, these are different. 

Chairman Delzer: But this was part of 1 475? I'm just trying to get something on paper as to where 
they come from. 

Rep. Carlson :  This was responding to the issues in 1 475. Some of them were s imi lar; some might 
be j ust a hair different. 

Chairman Delzer: We have a motion to further amend Sections 54-52 . 1 -05. 1 with Subdivision 1 
under Divisions A and B and 1 .  Also #2 with A and B from this language provided; and then Section 
7 from the language provided . 

Representative Bel lew: Motion to further amend. 

Representative Brandenburg :  Second. 

Rep. Kem penich:  Do we need the emergency clause on this? We don't, do we? 

Rep. Carlson:  I bel ieve we do not, because the contract we have goes unti l  the end of the 
bienn ium.  I do not think there would be any overlap dates here that I am aware of. 

Laurie Laschkewitz, OMB;  commented on the emergency clause. You may need it if you choose 
to extend the current contract and bid another contract. 

Rep. Carlson: I don't bel ieve that's an issue. 

Chairman Jeff Delzer: We could put it on. I t  wouldn't hurt anything to have it. If it passed . 

Rep. Carlson: My experts are tel l ing me that we do need it. 

Chairman Delzer: Rep. Bel lew, would you make that part of your amendment? OK. Rep. 
Brandenburg? OK. 
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C hairman Delzer: So we have a motion to further amend with the language that goes into 54-52. 1 -
05. 1 ,  a s  provided Subdivision 1 ,  #2 the language A and B ;  Section 7 ;  and a n  emergency clause . 
Further d iscussion? Seeing none. 

VOICE VOTE TAKEN:  MOTION CARRIES.  

Chairman Delzer: Are there further amendments to SB 2022? Seeing none,  what are your wishes? 

Rep. Thoreson: I move a Do Pass As Amended on SB 2022. 

Rep. Skarphol :  Second. 

C hairman Delzer: Further d iscussion on the motion for a Do Pass As Amended? Seeing none, the 
clerk wi l l  ca l l  the rol l .  

ROLL CALL VOTE TAKEN:  YES: 1 8  NO: 3 

Representative Thoreson wi l l  be the carrier. 

ABSENT: 2 

Chairman Delzer thanked the committee members and adjourned the hearing.  
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2022 

Page 1, line 2, remove the second "and" 

Page 1, line 2, after "transfers" insert "; and to create and enact a new section to chapter 
54-52.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the uniform group insurance 
program and a report to the legislative audit and fiscal review committee" 

Page 2, after line 15, insert: 

"SECTION 3. A new section to chapter 54-52.1 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Health insurance benefits coverage of prescription drug coverage - Audit -
Report to legislative audit and fiscal review committee. 

1.,. Annually. the board shall conduct an audit of the prescription drug 
coverage under the health benefits coverage. The board shall utilize the 
services of a consultant on a contract basis to conduct this aud it. In 
contracting for the audit services. the board shall ensure the selected 
consultant does not have a conflict of interest. The audit must include an 
evaluation of the following, without limitation : 

a. Based on medi-span definitions of "brand drug" and "generic drug", 
the average annual brand drug costs and the generic drug costs at 
each of the following pharmacy channels: 

ill Retail ; 

0 Retail-90; and 

.Q). Mail. 

!h The average annual drug-by-drug costs of each drug dispensed from 
specialty drug pharmacies used by the carrier or the pharmacy 
benefits manager. 

c. The rebates and other third-party financial benefits passed through to 
the board, measured in the aggregate and on a per brand drug 
prescription basis. to verify the carrier satisfied the contract's rebate 
guarantees. 

Q_,_ ill At a minimum. an evaluation of the effectiveness of the following 
programs implemented on behalf of the board by the carrier or 
the pharmacy benefits manager: 

@). Quantity limit program: 

.(!:U Step therapy program; and 

.(£) Prior authorization program. 
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0 The evaluation of effectiveness under this subdivision must 
include: 

.(fil The approval and disapproval rates for each 
first-line-treatment drug in the prior authorization program: 
and 

.(Q.l Recommendations to the board addressing how to 
improve each of the programs. 

§.... An evaluation of and recommendations concerning the refill practices 
of the carrier or the pharmacy benefits manager to determine. without 
limitation: 

ill Whether and to what extent automatic refills are being 
dispensed: and 

0 The point in time refills are being dispensed. 

2. Upon the request of the board, the health benefits coverage carrier or 
pharmacy benefits manager that provides prescription drug coverage 
under the health benefits coverage shall produce. without limitation: 

a. The prescription drug coverage contract controlling prescription 
coverage under this chapter; and 

Q_,_ A list of the prior authorization, step therapy, and quantity limit 
programs implemented on behalf of the board . identifying, without 
limitation, each drug in the program and whether the drug is a first- or 
second-line-of-treatment drug or the relevant quantity limit. 

3. Annually, the board shall submit and present this audit report to the 
legislative audit and fiscal review committee." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
House Appropriations - Government 
Operations Division Committee 

March 27, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2022 

Page 1, line 2, after the semicolon insert "to amend and reenact subsection 17 of section 
54-02-01 and section 54-52-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the 
retirement board ;" 

Page 2, after line 15, insert: 

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Subsection 17 of section 54-52-01 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

17. "Retirement board" or "board" means the seven persons designated by 
this chapter as the governing authority for the retirement system created 
under section 54-52-03. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

54-52-03. Governing authority. 

A state agency is hereby created to constitute the governing authority of the 
system to consist of a board of seveRnine persons known as the retirement board . No 
more than one elected member of the board may be in the employ of a single 
department, institution, or agency of the state or in the employ of a political subdivision. 
No employee of the public employees retirement system or the state retirement and 
investment office may serve on the board. 

1. The majority leader of the house of representatives or a designee is a 
member of the board . 

2. The majority leader of the senate or a designee is a member of the board. 

~ Two members of the legislative assembly appointed by the chairman of the 
legislative management. 

4. One member of the board must be appointed by the governor to serve a 
term of five years. The appointee must be a North Dakota citizen who is 
not a state or political subdivision employee and who by experience is 
familiar with money management. The citizen member is chairman of the 
board. 

&. One member of the board must be appointed by the attorney general from 
the attorney general's legal staff and shall serve a term of five years. 

&.- The state health officer appointed under section 23 01 05 is a member of 
the board. 

4:-5. Three board members must be elected by and from among the active 
participating members, members of the retirement plan established under 
chapter 54-52.6, members of the retirement plan established under 
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chapter 39-03.1 , and members of the job service North Dakota retirement 
plan. Employees who have terminated their employment for whatever 
reason are not eligible to serve as elected members of the board under 
this subsection. Board members must be elected to a five-year term 
pursuant to an election called by the board . Notice of board elections must 
be given to all active participating members. The time spent in performing 
duties as a board member may not be charged against any employee's 
accumulated annual or any other type of leave. 

&.-§.,, One board member must be elected by and from among those persons 
who are receiving retirement benefits under this chapter. The board shall 
call the election and must give prior notice of the election to the persons 
eligible to participate in the election pursuant to this subsection. The board 
member shall serve a term of five years. 

&:7. The members of the board are entitled to receive one hundred forty-eight 
dollars per day compensation and necessary mileage and travel expenses 
as provided in sections 44-08-04 and 54-06-09. This is in addition to any 
other pay or allowance due the chairman or a member, plus an allowance 
for expenses they may incur through service on the board. 

-7-:-8. A board member shall serve a five-year term and until the board member's 
successor qualifies. Each board member is entitled to one vote, and 
fffiff:five of the seveRnine board members constitute a quorum. ~ive 
votes are necessary for resolution or action by the board at any meeting." 

Renumber accordingly 
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15.8155.02006 
Title. 

Fiscal No. 1 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
House Appropriations - Government 
Operations Division Committee 

April 10, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2022 

Page 1, replace line 13 with: 

"Salaries and wages $3,772,504 

Page 1, replace line 17 with : 

"Total special funds $4,899,369 

Page 1, replace line 23 with : 

"Salaries and wages $5,016,339 

Page 2, replace line 3 with : 

"Total special funds $7,650,450 

Page 2, replace line 9 with: 

"Grand total special funds $12,549,819 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Summary of House Action 

Base Senate House 
Budget Version Changes 

Retirement and Investment 
Office 

Total all funds $4,899,369 $5,427,729 ($14,304) 
Less estimated income 4,899,369 5 427,729 (14 304) 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

Public Employees Retirement 
System 

Total all funds $7,650,450 $9,407,473 ($27,103) 
Less estimated income 7,650,450 9,407,473 (27,103) 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

Bill total 
Total all funds $12,549,819 $14,835,202 ($41,407) 
Less estimated income 12,549,819 14,835,202 (41,407) 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

$568,047 

$514,056 

$1,435,968 

$1 ,729,920 

$2 ,243,976 

House 
Version 

$5,413,425 
5 413,425 

$0 

$9,380,370 
9,380,370 

$0 

$14,793,795 
14,793,795 

$0 

$4 ,340,551" 

$5,413,425" 

$6,452,307" 

$9,380,370" 

$14,793,795" 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Retirement and Investment Office - House Action 

Base Senate House House 
Budget Version Changes Version 

Salaries and wages $3,772,504 $4,354,855 ($14,304) $4,340,551 
Operating expenses 973,324 990,874 990,874 
Contingencies 82,000 82,000 82,000 
Accrued leave payments 71 541 

Total all funds $4,899,369 $5,427,729 ($14,304) $5,413,425 
Less estimated income 4 899 369 5 427 729 114 304) 5 413 425 
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General fund 

FTE 

$0 
$0 0 0 

19.00 0.00 

$0 

19.00 19.00 

Department No. 190 - Retirement and Investment Office - Detail of House Changes 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Contingencies 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

Adjusts 
Funding for 

Health 
Insurance 
Premium 

Increases' 
($14,304) 

($14,304) 
(14,304) 

$0 

0.00 

Total House 
Changes 

($1 4,304) 

($1 4,304) 
(14,304) 

$0 

0.00 

1 Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised premium estimate of 
$1 , 130.22 per month. 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Public Employees Retirement System - House Action 

Base 
Budget 

Salaries and wages $5,016,339 
Operating expenses 2,280,894 
Contingencies 250,000 
Accrued leave payments 103,217 

Total all funds $7,650,450 
Less estimated income 7 650 450 

General fund $0 

FTE 33.00 

Senate 
Version 

$6,479,410 
2,678,063 

250,000 

$9,407,473 
9 407 473 

$0 

34.50 

House 
Changes 

($27,103) 

($27,103) 
(27 103) 

$0 

0.00 

House 
Version 

$6,452,307 
2,678,063 

250,000 

$9,380,370 
9,380,370 

$0 

34.50 

Department No. 192 - Public Employees Retirement System - Detail of House Changes 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Contingencies 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

Adjusts 
Funding for 

Health 
Insurance 
Premium 

Increases' 

($27,103) 

($27,103) 
(27,103) 

$0 

0.00 

Total House 
Changes 

($27,103) 

($27,103) 
127,103) 

$0 

0.00 

1 Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised 
premium estimate of $1 , 130.22 per month. 
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1 5 .81 55.02009 
Tit le. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Carlson 

Apri l 6 ,  201 5  

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED S ENATE B ILL NO. 2022 

Page 1 ,  line 2, replace the second "and" with "to l imit the use of health insurance program 
reserves;" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 2, after "transfers" insert " ;  and to declare an emergency" 

Page 2, after l ine 1 5, insert: 

"SECTION 3. HEALTH INSURANCE RESERVE FUNDS - LIMITATIONS. 
Notwithstanding any other provis ion of law, for the period beginn ing with the effective 
date of this Act and ending June 30, 201 7 , the publ ic employees reti rement system 
board may not spend any monies in the fund created under section 54-52 . 1 -06 or any 
other accumulated reserves under the un iform group insurance program for the 
purpose of reducing any increase in uniform group insurance premium amounts 
beyond the rates used by the s ixty-fourth legislative assembly for developing 201 5- 1 7  
state agency budgets . 

SECTION 4. EMERGENCY. Section 3 of th is Act is declared to be an 
emergency measure . "  

Renumber accordingly 
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15.8155.02013 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Carlson 

April 8, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2022 

Page 1, line 2, remove the second "and" 

Page 1, line 2, after "transfers" insert "; to amend and reenact section 54-52.1-05 of the North 
Dakota Century Code, relating to publ ic employee retirement system contracts for 
health insurance benefits coverage ; and to provide for application" 

Page 2, after line 15, insert: 

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52 .1-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

54-52.1-05. Provisions of contract - Term of contract. 

i_ Each uniform group insurance contract entered ffite by the board must be 
consistent with the provisions of th is chapter, must be signed for the state 
of North Dakota by the chairman of the board , and must include the 
following: 

+.Q.... As many optional coverages as deemed feasible and advantageous 
by the board. 

2--:-Q,_ A detailed statement of benefits offered , including maximum 
limitations and exclusions, and such other provisions as the board 
may deem necessary or desirable . 

2. The term of a uniform group insurance contract for hospital benefits 
coverage. medical benefits coverage. or prescription drug coverage may 
not exceed two years. A contract subject to this subsection may not be 
renewed without solicitation of a bid under section 54-52 .1-04. 

SECTION 4. APPLICATION. Section 3 of this Act applies to contracts in effect 
on and after the effective date of this Act." 

Renumber accordingly 
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15.8155.02018 
Title. 

Fiscal No. 2 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
House Appropriations - Government 
Operations Division Committee 

April 13, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2022 

Page 1, line 2, remove the second "and" 

Page 1, line 2, after "transfers" insert "; to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-52.1 of 
the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the uniform group insurance program and a 
report to the legislative audit and fiscal review committee; to amend and reenact 
subsection 17 of section 54-02-01 and section 54-52-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code, relating to the retirement board ; to amend and reenact section 54-52.1-05 of the 
North Dakota Century Code, relating to public employee retirement system contracts 
for health insurance benefits coverage; to provide for application ; to limit the use of 
health insurance program reserves; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1, replace line 13 with: 

"Salaries and wages 

Page 1, replace line 17 with : 

"Total special funds 

Page 1, replace line 23 with : 

"Salaries and wages 

Page 2, replace line 1 with : 

"Operating expenses 

Page 2, replace lines 3 and 4 with: 

"Total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Page 2, replace lines 9 and 10 with : 

"Grand total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Page 2, after line 15, insert: 

$3,772,504 

$4,899,369 

$5,016,339 

2,280,894 

$7,650,450 
33.00 

$12,549,819 
52.00 

$518,047 

$464,056 

$972,063 

377,050 

$1 ,245,896 
0.00 

$1 ,709,952 
0.00 

$4,290,551" 

$5,363,425" 

$5,988,402" 

2,657,944" 

$8 ,896,346 
33.00" 

$14,259,771 
52.00" 

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Subsection 17 of section 54-52-01 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

17. "Retirement board" or "board" means the seven persons designated by 
this chapter as the governing authority for the retirement system created 
under section 54-52-03. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 
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54-52-03. Governing authority. 

A state agency is hereby created to constitute the governing authority of the 
system to consist of a board of seveA-nine persons known as the retirement board . No 
more than one elected member of the board may be in the employ of a single 
department, institution, or agency of the state or in the employ of a political subdivision. 
No employee of the public employees retirement system or the state retirement and 
investment office may serve on the board. 

1,. The majority leader of the house of representatives or a designee is a 
member of the board. 

£. The majority leader of the senate or a designee is a member of the board . 

3. Two members of the legislative assembly appointed by the chairman of the 
legislative management consisting of one member from the majority party 
and one member from the minority party are members of the board. 

-t-4. One member of the board must be appointed by the governor to serve a 
term of five years. The appointee must be a North Dakota citizen who is 
not a state or political subdivision employee and who by experience is 
familiar with money management. The citizen member is chairman of the 
board. 

&. One member of the board must be appointed by the attorney general from 
the attorney general's legal staff and shall serve a term of five years. 

&.- The state health officer appointed under section 23 01 05 is a member of 
the board. 

4:-5. Three board members must be elected by and from among the active 
participating members, members of the retirement plan established under 
chapter 54-52 .6, members of the retirement plan established under 
chapter 39-03.1 , and members of the job service North Dakota retirement 
plan. Employees who have terminated their employment for whatever 
reason are not eligible to serve as elected members of the board under 
this subsection. Board members must be elected to a five-year term 
pursuant to an election called by the board. Notice of board elections must 
be given to all active participating members. The time spent in performing 
duties as a board member may not be charged against any employee's 
accumulated annual or any other type of leave. 

-5-:-6. One board member must be elected by and from among those persons 
who are receiving retirement benefits under this chapter. The board shall 
call the election and must give prior notice of the election to the persons 
eligible to participate in the election pursuant to this subsection . The board 
member shall serve a term of five years. 

&:L The members of the board are entitled to receive one hundred forty-eight 
dollars per day compensation and necessary mileage and travel expenses 
as provided in sections 44-08-04 and 54-06-09. This is in addition to any 
other pay or allowance due the chairman or a member, plus an allowance 
for expenses they may incur through service on the board. 
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+:-a_ A board member shall serve a five-year term and until the board member's 
successor qualifies. Each board member is entitled to one vote, and 
fet:H:five of the seveRnine board members constitute a quorum. ~Five 
votes are necessary for resolution or action by the board at any meeting. 

SECTION 5. A new section to chapter 54-52.1 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Health insurance benefits coverage of prescription drug coverage - Audit -
Report to legislative audit and fiscal review committee. 

1. Annually, the board shall conduct an audit of the prescription drug 
coverage under the health benefits coverage. The board shall utilize the 
services of a consultant on a contract basis to conduct this audit. In 
contracting for the audit services. the board shall ensure the selected 
consultant does not have a conflict of interest. The board shall consult with 
the state auditor in the selection of a consultant and in the review of the 
audit results . The board shall submit and present the audit report to the 
legislative audit and fiscal review committee. The audit must include an 
evaluation of the following, without limitation: 

a. Based on medi-span definitions of "brand drug" and "generic drug", 
the average annual brand drug costs and the generic drug costs at 
each of the following pharmacy channels: 

ill Retail; 

0 Retail-90; and 

.Ql Mail. 

12,. The average annual drug-by-drug costs of each drug dispensed from 
specialty drug pharmacies used by the carrier or the pharmacy 
benefits manager. 

~ The rebates and other third-party financial benefits passed through to 
the board, measured in the aggregate and on a per brand drug 
prescription basis. to verify the carrier satisfied the contract's rebate 
guarantees. 

Q_,_ ill At a minimum, an evaluation of the effectiveness of the following 
programs implemented on behalf of the board by the carrier or 
the pharmacy benefits manager: 

@). Quantity limit program: 

.(!:D. Step therapy program; and 

(gJ Prior authorization program. 

0 The evaluation of effectiveness under this subdivision must 
include: 

@). The approval and disapproval rates for each 
first-line-treatment drug in the prior authorization program; 
and 
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.(h)_ Recommendations to the board addressing how to 
improve each of the programs. 

e. An evaluation of and recommendations concerning the refill practices 
of the carrier or the pharmacy benefits manager to determine. without 
limitation: 

ill Whether and to what extent automatic refills are being 
dispensed; and 

.(2). The point in time refills are being dispensed. 

2. Upon the request of the board , the health benefits coverage carrier or 
pharmacy benefits manager that provides prescription drug coverage 
under the health benefits coverage shall produce. without limitation: 

£:. The prescription drug coverage contract controlling prescription 
coverage under this chapter; and 

!h A list of the prior authorization, step therapy, and quantity limit 
programs implemented on behalf of the board , identifying, without 
limitation. each drug in the program and whether the drug is a first- or 
second-line-of-treatment drug or the relevant quantity limit. 

~ The State Auditor's office shall consult with the Public Employees 
Retirement System board to hire a consultant to conduct an audit. The 
board shall submit and present an annual audit report to the legislative 
audit and fiscal review committee. 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52.1-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

54-52.1-05. Provisions of contract - Term of contract. 

.1. Each uniform group insurance contract entered into by the board must be 
consistent with the provisions of this chapter, must be signed for the state 
of North Dakota by the chairman of the board , and must include the 
following: 

4:- £:. As many optional coverages as deemed feasible and advantageous 
by the board. 

-2--:- !h A detailed statement of benefits offered , including maximum 
limitations and exclusions, and such other provisions as the board 
may deem necessary or desirable. 

2. The term of a uniform group insurance contract for hospital benefits 
coverage, medical benefits coverage, or prescription drug coverage may 
not exceed two years. A contract subject to this subsection may not be 
renewed without solicitation of a bid under section 54-52.1-04. 

SECTION 7. HEALTH INSURANCE RESERVE FUNDS - LIMITATIONS. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of law, for the period beginning with the effective 
date of this Act and ending June 30, 2017, the public employees retirement system 
board may not spend any moneys in the fund created under section 54-52.1-06 or any 
other accumulated reserves under the uniform group insurance program for the 
purpose of reducing any increase in uniform group insurance premium amounts 
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beyond the rates used by the sixty-fourth legislative assembly for developing 2015-17 
state agency budgets. 

SECTION 8. EMERGENCY. Section 7 of this Act is declared to be an 
emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Summary of House Action 

Base Senate 
Budget Version 

Retirement and Investment 
Office 

Total all funds $4,899,369 $5,427,729 
Less estimated income 4,899,369 5,427,729 
General fund $0 $0 

Publ ic Employees Retirement 
System 

Total all funds $7,650,450 $9,407,473 
Less estimated income 7,650,450 9,407,473 
General fund $0 $0 

Bill total 
Total all funds $12,549,819 $14,835,202 
Less estimated income 12,549,819 14,835,202 
General fund $0 $0 

House 
Changes 

($64,304) 
(64,304) 

$0 

($511 ,1 27) 
(511 ,127) 

$0 

($575,431) 
(575,431) 

$0 

House 
Version 

$5,363,425 
5,363,425 

$0 

$8,896,346 
8,896,346 

$0 

$14,259,771 
14,259,771 

$0 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Retirement and Investment Office - House Action 

Base 
Budget 

Salaries and wages $3,772,504 
Operating expenses 973,324 
Contingencies 82,000 
Accrued leave payments 71 ,541 

Total all funds $4,899,369 
Less estimated income 4,899,369 

General fund $0 

FTE 19.00 

Senate 
Version 

$4,354,855 
990,874 

82,000 

$5,427,729 
5,427,729 

$0 

19.00 

House 
Changes 

($64,304) 

($64,304) 
(64,304) 

$0 

0.00 

House 
Version 

$4,290,551 
990,874 

82,000 

$5,363,425 
5,363,425 

$0 

19.00 

Department No. 190 - Retirement and Investment Office - Detail of House Changes 

Adjusts 
Funding for 

Health Removes 
Insurance Employee Base 
Premium Level Salary Total House 

Increases' Adjustment' Changes 

Salaries and wages ($14,304) ($50,000) ($64,304) 
Operating expenses 
Contingencies 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds ($14,304) ($50,000) ($64,304) 
Less estimated income (14 ,304) (50,000) (64,304) 

General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1 Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised premium estimate of 
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$1 , 130.22 per month. 

2 Removes funding provided for additional salary adjustments to increase the agency's compensation 
ratio from 94.6 to 97 percent of the market policy points for employees. 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Public Employees Retirement System - House Action 

Base 
Budget 

Salaries and wages $5,016,339 
Operating expenses 2,280,894 
Contingencies 250,000 
Accrued leave payments 103,217 

Total all funds $7,650,450 
Less estimated income 7 650 450 

General fund $0 

FTE 33.00 

Senate 
Version 

$6,479,410 
2,678,063 

250,000 

$9,407,473 
9 407 473 

$0 

34.50 

House 
Changes 

($491 ,008) 
(20,119) 

($511 ,127) 
1511127) 

$0 

(1 .50) 

House 
Version 

$5,988,402 
2,657,944 

250,000 

$8,896,346 
8 896 346 

$0 

33.00 

Department No. 192 - Public Employees Retirement System - Detail of House Changes 

Adjusts 
Funding for Removes 

Health Salary Increase Removes Chief Removes 
Insurance Funding for Financial Benefits Reduces 
Premium New FTE Officer FTE Support Temporary Total House 

Increases' Removed' Position' Position' Salaries' Changes 

Salaries and wages ($32,450) ($1 1,262) ($195,950) ($51 ,346) ($200,000) ($491 ,008) 
Operating expenses (20,119) (20,119) 
Contingencies 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds ($32,450) ($1 1,262) ($216,069) ($51 ,346) ($200,000) ($511 ,127) 
Less estimated income (32,450) (11,262) (216,069) (51 ,346) (200,000) (511 ,127) 

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 (1.00) (0.50) 0.00 (1 .50) 

1 Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised premium estimate of 
$1 , 130.22 per month. 

2 Funding for employee performance salary increases is adjusted to reflect the 1.5 FTE positions which 
are being removed. 

3 Funding is removed for 1 FTE Chief Financial Officer position. 

4 Funding is removed for 1 FTE benefits support position. 

5 Funding is reduced for additional temporary support. 

This amendment also: 
Adds sections creating a section to North Dakota Century Code Section 54-52-01 and amending 
Section 54-52-03, relating to changing the retirement board membership from 7 members to 9, 
which includes adding the Majority Leader of the House of Representatives , the Majority Leader 
of the Senate, and 2 members of the Legislative Assembly appointed by the Chairman of the 
Legislative Management. In addition, this section removes the member appointed by the 
Attorney General and the member appointed by the State Health Officer. 
Adds a new section to Chapter 54-52.1, relating to a health insurance prescription drug coverage 
audit, and reporting to the Legislative Audit and Fiscal Review Committee. 
Adds a section to amend Section 54-52.1-05, relating to changing a provision of the health 
insurance benefits coverage to requiring a contract not to exceed two years. 
Adds a section limiting the use of health insurance program reserves. 
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15.8155.02020 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Skarphol 

April 14, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2022 

Page 1, line 2, remove the second "and" 

Page 1, line 2, after "transfers" insert "; and to create and enact a new section to chapter 
54-52.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the uniform group insurance 
program and a report to the legislative audit and fiscal review committee" 

Page 2, after line 15, insert: 

"SECTION 3. A new section to chapter 54-52.1 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Health insurance benefits coverage of prescription drug coverage -
Analysis - Report to legislative audit and fiscal review committee. 

1.,. At least once every two years, the board shall request the state auditor to 
select a firm to complete a financial and health care analysis of the 
prescription drug coverage under the health benefits coverage. This may 
not be construed to require the firm to be a certified public accounting firm. 
In contracting for the analysis, the state auditor shall consider input from 
the board regarding the scope of the evaluation and the review of the 
proposals. The analysis must include a review of the following, without 
limitation: 

£.:. Based on medi-span definitions of "brand drug" and "generic drug", 
the average annual brand drug costs and the generic drug costs at 
each of the following pharmacy channels: 

ill Retail ; 

.(2). Retail-90; and 

.Q.l Mail. 

b. The average annual drug-by-drug costs of each drug dispensed from 
specialty drug pharmacies used by the carrier or the pharmacy 
benefits manager. 

~ The rebates and other third-party financial benefits passed through to 
the board, measured in the aggregate and on a per brand drug 
prescription basis. to verify the carrier satisfied the contract's rebate 
guarantees. 

Q_,_ ill At a minimum, an evaluation of the effectiveness of the following 
programs implemented on behalf of the board by the carrier or 
the pharmacy benefits manager: 

@l Quantity limit program; 

lQ.l Step therapy program; and 

[g_} Prior authorization program. 
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0 The evaluation of effectiveness under this subdivision must 
include: 

.(fil The approval and disapproval rates for each 
first-line-treatment drug in the prior authorization program: 
and 

.(Q.l Recommendations to the board addressing how to 
improve each of the programs. 

§.... An evaluation of and recommendations concerning the refill practices 
of the carrier or the pharmacy benefits manager to determine. without 
limitation: 

ill Whether and to what extent automatic refills are being 
dispensed: and 

0 The point in time refills are being dispensed. 

2. Upon the request of the board, the health benefits coverage carrier or 
pharmacy benefits manager that provides prescription drug coverage 
under the health benefits coverage shall produce. without limitation: 

a. The prescription drug coverage contract controlling prescription 
coverage under this chapter; and 

Q_,_ A list of the prior authorization, step therapy, and quantity limit 
programs implemented on behalf of the board . identifying, without 
limitation, each drug in the program and whether the drug is a first- or 
second-line-of-treatment drug or the relevant quantity limit. 

3. The board shall submit and present this report to the legislative audit and 
fiscal review committee." 

Renumber accordingly 
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15.8155.02023 
Title.03000 
Fiscal No. 3 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
House Appropriations Committee 

April 24, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2022 

Page 1, line 2, remove the second "and" 

Page 1, line 2, after "transfers" insert "; to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-52.1 of 
the North Dakota Century Code, relating to uniform group insurance program benefits 
coverage contract requirements, prescription drug coverage audits, and a report to the 
legislative audit and fiscal review committee; to amend and reenact subsection 17 of 
section 54-02-01 and section 54-52-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
the retirement board and section 54-52.1 -05 of the North Dakota Century Code, 
relating to public employee retirement system contracts for health insurance benefits 
coverage; to provide a statement of legislative intent; to provide for application; to limit 
the use of health insurance program reserves; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1, replace line 13 with: 

"Salaries and wages 

Page 1, replace line 17 with: 

"Total special funds 

Page 1, replace line 23 with: 

"Salaries and wages 

Page 2, replace line 1 with: 

"Operating expenses 

Page 2, replace lines 3 and 4 with: 

"Total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Page 2, replace lines 9 and 10 with: 

"Grand total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Page 2, after line 15, insert: 

$3,772,504 

$4,899,369 

$5,016,339 

2,280,894 

$7,650,450 
33.00 

$12,549,819 
52.00 

$568,047 

$514,056 

$972,063 

377,050 

$1,245,896 
0.00 

$1,759,952 
0.00 

$4,340,551" 

$5,413,425" 

$5,988,402" 

2,657,944" 

$8,896,346 
33.00" 

$14,309,771 
52.00" 

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Subsection 17 of section 54-52-01 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

17. "Retirement board" or "board" means the seven persons designated by 
this chapter as the governing authority for the retirement system created 
under section 54-52-03. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 
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54-52-03. Governing authority. 

A state agency is hereby created to constitute the governing authority of the 
system to consist of a board of seveAnine persons known as the retirement board. No 
more than one elected member of the board may be in the employ of a single 
department, institution, or agency of the state or in the employ of a political subdivision. 
No employee of the public employees retirement system or the state retirement and 
investment office may serve on the board. 

~ The majority leader of the house of representatives or a designee is a 
member of the board. 

b The majority leader of the senate or a designee is a member of the board. 

~ Two members of the legislative assembly appointed by the chairman of the 
legislative management consisting of one member from the majority party 
and one member from the minority party are members of the board. 

4-A. One member of the board must be appointed by the governor to serve a 
term of five years. The appointee must be a North Dakota citizen who is 
not a state or political subdivision employee and who by experience is 
familiar with money management. The citizen member is chairman of the 
board . 

2--: One member of the board must be appointed by the attorney general from 
the attorney general's legal staff and shall serve a term of five years. 

& The state health officer appointed under section 23 01 05 is a member of 
the board. 

4:5. Three board members must be elected by and from among the active 
participating members, members of the retirement plan established under 
chapter 54-52.6, members of the retirement plan established under 
chapter 39-03.1, and members of the job service North Dakota retirement 
plan. Employees who have terminated their employment for whatever 
reason are not eligible to serve as elected members of the board under 
this subsection. Board members must be elected to a five-year term 
pursuant to an election called by the board. Notice of board elections must 
be given to all active participating members. The time spent in performing 
duties as a board member may not be charged against any employee's 
accumulated annual or any other type of leave. 

&.-6. One board member must be elected by and from among those persons 
who are receiving retirement benefits under this chapter. The board shall 
call the election and must give prior notice of the election to the persons 
eligible to participate in the election pursuant to this subsection. The board 
member shall serve a term of five years. 

fr.L The members of the board are entitled to receive one hundred forty-eight 
dollars per day compensation and necessary mileage and travel expenses 
as provided in sections 44-08-04 and 54-06-09. This is in addition to any 
other pay or allowance due the chairman or a member, plus an allowance 
for expenses they may incur through service on the board. 
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7:-8. A board member shall serve a five-year term and until the board member's 
successor qualifies. Each board member is entitled to one vote, and 
feOOive of the seveRnine board members constitute a quorum. FEH:ff:Five 
votes are necessary for resolution or action by the board at any meeting. 

SECTION 5. A new section to chapter 54-52.1 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Health insurance benefits coverage of prescription drug coverage -
Analysis - Report to legislative audit and fiscal review committee. 

_L At least once every two years, the board shall request the state auditor to 
select a firm to complete a financial and health care analysis of the 
prescription drug coverage under the health benefits coverage. This may 
not be construed to require the firm to be a certified public accounting firm . 
In contracting for the analysis. the state auditor shall consider input from 
the board regarding the scope of the evaluation and the review of the 
proposals. The analysis must include a review of the following. without 
limitation: 

~ Based on medi-span definitions of "brand drug" and "generic drug", 
the average annual brand drug costs and the generic drug costs at 
each of the following pharmacy channels: 

ill Retail; 

ill Retail-90; and 

Ql Mail. 

b. The average annual drug-by-drug costs of each drug dispensed from 
specialty drug pharmacies used by the carrier or the pharmacy 
benefits manager. 

c. The rebates and other third-party financial benefits passed through to 
the board. measured in the aggregate and on a per brand drug 
prescription basis. to verify the carrier satisfied the contract's rebate 
guarantees. 

Q,. ill At a minimum. an evaluation of the effectiveness of the following 
programs implemented on behalf of the board by the carrier or 
the pharmacy benefits manager: 

.(fil Quantity limit program; 

fQ1 Step therapy program; and 

.(9 Prior authorization program. 

ill The evaluation of effectiveness under this subdivision must 
include: 

.(fil The approval and disapproval rates for each 
first-line-treatment drug in the prior authorization program; 
and 

fQ1 Recommendations to the board addressing how to 
improve each of the programs. 
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e. An evaluation of and recommendations concerning the refill practices 
of the carrier or the pharmacy benefits manager to determine. without 
limitation: 

ill Whether and to what extent automatic refills are being 
dispensed; and 

.(21 The point in time refills are being dispensed. 

2. Upon the request of the board. the health benefits coverage carrier or 
pharmacy benefits manager that provides prescription drug coverage 
under the health benefits coverage shall produce. without limitation: 

fh The prescription drug coverage contract controlling prescription 
coverage under this chapter; and 

~ A list of the prior authorization. step therapy. and quantity limit 
programs implemented on behalf of the board. identifying. without 
limitation. each drug in the program and whether the drug is a first- or 
second-line-of-treatment drug or the relevant quantity limit. 

~ The board shall submit and present this report to the legislative audit and 
fiscal review committee. 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52.1-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

54-52.1-05. Provisions of contract - Term of contract. 

1..,. Each uniform group insurance contract entered into by the board must be 
consistent with the provisions of this chapter, must be signed for the state 
of North Dakota by the chairman of the board, and must include the 
following: 

~ a. As many optional coverages as deemed feasible and advantageous 
by the board. 

~ b. A detailed statement of benefits offered, including maximum 
limitations and exclusions, and such other provisions as the board 
may deem necessary or desirable. 

2. The term of a uniform group insurance contract for hospital benefits 
coverage. medical benefits coverage, or prescription drug coverage may 
not exceed two years. A contract subject to this subsection may not be 
renewed without solicitation of a bid under section 54-52.1-04. 

SECTION 7. Section 54-52.1-05.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 
and enacted as follows: 

54-52.1-05.1. Provisions of health insurance benefits coverage. 

1..,. The board contract for health insurance benefits coverage under this 
chapter must provide that for the duration of the term of that contract 
except as necessary for treatment. payment. and operations. the carrier 
may not disclose identifiable or unidentifiable insured or provider data or 
information with a related or unrelated health care delivery entity. 
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£. If the board enters a contract for health insurance benefits coverage under 
this chapter with a carrier that has common ownership with a health care 
delivery entity. for purposes of the carrier's negotiated provider discount 
rates with in-state providers: 

§.:. For a provider that is a critical access hospital that does not have 
common ownership with the carrier, the negotiated provider discount 
rates may not be less than the negotiated provider discount rates the 
carrier has with the related health care delivery entity that is a critical 
access hospital. 

b. For a provider that is not a critical access hospital and that does not 
have common ownership with the carrier, the negotiated provider 
discount rates may not be less than the negotiated provider discount 
rates the carrier has with the related health care delivery entity that is 
not a critical access hospital. 

SECTION 8. UNIFORM GROUP INSURANCE PROGRAM HEALTH 
INSURANCE BENEFITS - LEGISLATIVE INTENT. During the period beginning with 
the effective date of this Act through June 30, 2015, if the public employees retirement 
system board determines it is necessary to rebid the uniform group insurance program 
health insurance benefits contract, the carrier providing coverage at the time of that 
determination may continue under the existing contract until a new contract is finalized, 
but not to exceed nine months beyond the date the board makes that determination. 

SECTION 9. HEALTH INSURANCE RESERVE FUNDS - LIMITATIONS. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of law, for the period beginning with the effective 
date of this Act and ending June 30, 2017, the public employees retirement system 
board may not spend any moneys in the fund created under section 54-52.1-06 or any 
other accumulated reserves under the uniform group insurance program for the 
purpose of reducing any increase in uniform group insurance premium amounts 
beyond the rates used by the sixty-fourth legislative assembly for developing 2015-17 
state agency budgets. 

SECTION 10. EMERGENCY. Sections 7, 8, and 9 of this Act are declared to be 
an emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Summary of House Action 

Base Senate House 
Budget Version Changes 

Retirement and Investment 
Office 

Total all funds $4,899,369 $5,427,729 ($14,304) 
Less estimated income 4,899,369 5,427,729 (14,304) 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

Public Employees Retirement 
System 

Total all funds $7,650,450 $9,407,473 ($511,127) 
Less estimated income 7,650,450 9,407,473 1511127) 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

Bill total 
Total all funds $12,549,819 $14,835,202 ($525,431) 
Less estimated income 12,549,819 14,835,202 1525 431) 

Page No. 5 

House 
Version 

$5,413,425 
5,413,425 

$0 

$8,896,346 
8,896,346 

$0 

$14,309,771 
14,309,771 
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General fund $0 $0 $0 I $0 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Retirement and Investment Office - House Action 

Base 
Budget 

Salaries and wages $3,772,504 
Operating expenses 973,324 
Contingencies 82,000 
Accrued leave payments 71,541 

Total all funds $4,899,369 
Less estimated income 4,899,369 

General fund $0 

FTE 19.00 

Senate 
Version 

$4,354,855 
990,874 
82,000 

$5,427,729 
5,427,729 

$0 

19.00 

House 
Changes 

($14,304) 

($14,304) 
114 304) 

$0 

0.00 

House 
Version 

$4,340,551 
990,874 

82,000 

$5,413,425 
5,413,425 

$0 

19.00 

Department No. 190 - Retirement and Investment Office - Detail of House Changes 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Contingencies 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

Adjusts 
Funding for 

Health 
Insurance 
Premium 

Increases' 
($14,304) 

($14,304) 
(14,304) 

$0 

0.00 

Total House 
Changes 

($14,304) 

($14,304) 
114 304) 

$0 

0.00 

1 Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised premium estimate of 
$1 ,130.22 per month. 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Public Employees Retirement System - House Action 

Base 
Budget 

Salaries and wages $5,016,339 
Operating expenses 2,280,894 
Contingencies 250,000 
Accrued leave payments 103,217 

Total all funds $7,650,450 
Less estimated income 7,650,450 

General fund $0 

FTE 33.00 

Senate 
Version 

$6,479,410 
2,678,063 

250,000 

$9,407,473 
9,407,473 

$0 

34.50 

House 
Changes 

($491 ,008) 
(20,119) 

($511, 127) 
1511127) 

$0 

11 .50) 

House 
Version 

$5,988,402 
2,657,944 

250,000 

$8,896,346 
8,896,346 

$0 

33.00 

Department No. 192 - Public Employees Retirement System - Detail of House Changes 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Contingencies 
Accrued leave payments 

Adjusts 
Funding for 

Health 
Insurance 
Premium 

Increases' 
($32,450) 

Removes 
Salary Increase Removes Chief 

Funding for Financial 
NewFTE Officer FTE 
Removed' Position' 

($11,262) ($195,950) 
(20,119) 

Page No. 6 

Removes 
Benefits Reduces 
Support Temporary Total House 
Position' Salaries5 Changes 

($51 ,346) ($200,000) ($491 ,008) 
(20,119) 
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Total all funds ($32,450) ($11,262) ($216,069) ($51 ,346) ($200,000) ($511 ,127) 
Less estimated income --~'3=2.4~5~0) --~'1~1,=26=2) -~'2~1=6,0~69~) --~'5~1 ,3~4~6) (200,000) ,__~5_11~1_27_.._, 

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 (1 .00) (0.50) 0.00 1.50 

1 Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised premium estimate of 
$1 , 130.22 per month. 

2 Funding for employee performance salary increases is adjusted to reflect the 1.5 FTE positions which 
are being removed. 

3 Funding is removed for 1 chief financial officer FTE position. 

4 Funding is removed for 1 benefits support FTE position. 

5 Funding is reduced for additional temporary support. 

This amendment also: 
Adds sections to amend North Dakota Century Code Sections 54-52-01 and 54-52-03 to 
increase retirement board membership from 7 members to 9 members; add the Majority Leader 
of the House of Representatives, the Majority Leader of the Senate, and two members of the 
Legislative Assembly appointed by the Chairman of the Legislative Management; and remove 
members appointed by the Attorney General and the State Health Officer. 
Adds a section to create a new section to Chapter 54-52.1, relating to a health insurance 
prescription drug coverage audit, and reporting to the Legislative Audit and Fiscal Review 
Committee. 
Adds a section to amend Section 54-52.1-05, relating to provisions of the health insurance 
benefits coverage to require a contract may not exceed two years. 
Adds a section to amend Section 54-52.1-05.1, related to uniform group insurance program 
benefits coverage. 
Adds a section limiting the use of health insurance program reserves. 
Adds a section of legislative intent relating to the extension of the existing health insurance 
benefits contract if the uniform group insurance program contract is rebid. 
Provides amendments related to uniform group insurance program benefits coverage and health 
insurance program reserve limitations are emergency measures. 
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Date :~ 1.3 1 .l..o~d.,_ 
Roll Call Vote #: I 

2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. S./3 d0 ;}.~ 

House Appropriations - Government Operations Divison 

0 Subcommittee 

Committee 

Amendment LC# or Description : _/_~ __ • _1$"~/_S~S:~._O_d--_/_<j~-----------

Recommendation: ~ Adopt Amendment 

0 Do Pass 0 Do Not Pass 
0 As Amended 

0 Without Committee Recommendation 
0 Rerefer to Appropriations 

0 Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: 0 Reconsider 0 

Motion Made By Seconded By ----------

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 

/ ~ J ' ~ ----
II I -- -::--- ,,-, I I I ;.. I '/ 
11 I I V / '~ I II 1 ( u 
I I II I ( J .-- { / l-'I I ~ 

I / / I __./ '~ 
y- v 

I / (/ 
(/ 

Total (Yes) No ----------- --------------~ 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

~~ 



Date.fl LLt ,,,.· / / 3 / d-0 l ~­
Roll calfTo"te #.ex 

2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. ~0-0dd--

House Appropriations - Government Operations Divison Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: /S, 2' IS S: (>ci()()'/ 
~--'---=---"'"-'--=--=-~"----'--"--~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Recommendation : ~ Adopt Amendment 
D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By 4 ~Seconded By 4 ~~ 
Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 

I \ r - ,-- '--

_,,, I I A' 11 II 
'/ I r'/ /1J v I I// l/ L-
I I t\ 

I ' I , ... - I/ L/ 

I I I I / \. ~- -
---I / { / 

v 

Total (Yes) No 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

~~-~,~~~~ 

;;;t:;t~~~ 



Date :~ /3/ ci6/J­
Roll Ca11\fote #: "Enter Vote 11-.3 

2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 56~().;;J.~ 

House Appropriations - Government Operations Divison 

D Subcommittee 

Committee 

Amendment LC# or Description: -~/~S~·~tf:~/_S:_S:~·-tJ~d-_()_o_G _________ _ 

Recommendation: ~ Adopt Amendment 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By .£tf2 -~~~ __ Seconded By 4" ~ 
Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 

' \ ~ -r 
,..,,. I I /1 \ ff--

----- //. I I ( J \{ L--/ 

I } 
< I/ I - v ,,, 

I / _/ 

I I I ~ 

,__ __,., 

I I I 
/ -~ 

I I v 
{/ 
~ 

Total (Yes) No 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

~~ 



Date :~ /3.,~0l.S 
Roll Cali"Vote # '-I' 

2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 5,6~0~ ~ 

House Appropriations - Government Operations Divison 

D Subcommittee 

Committee 

Amendment LC# or Description: -..&-,/__,,~=--'·--=~"---/1....;;;u;....S=--L-' ..... C).._d-=---(J~(},,.__9.__ ________ _ 

Recommendation: Ii( Adopt Amendment 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 
D As Amended D Rerefer to Appropriations 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By o/ ~econded By .¥ ~ 
Representatives Yes No 

- - ;-
<' / I /[__ 

' I 

. I /i I I ~ 

7 I I I (/ ,.___.... 

I I (/.--'1 
I I 
// 

Total (Yes) No 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

·~ ~ ·· 

Representatives Yes No 

r--
_.. J ' ( I f.t-
I / f I I I'-:-__ 

v """"' 



Date :~ /J, ;;).d.1s-' 
Roll Call Vote#: ' ...:;,-

2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2) Lf c9-<Jd-d.. 

House Appropriations - Government Operations Divison Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: ~A~~-~·~8_1~0_S-.~. ~<l~.}()_._._1~3 ____________ _ 

Recommendation: ~ Adopt Amendment 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 
D As Amended D Rerefer to Appropriations 

Other Actions: 

D Place on Consent Calendar 
D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By ,4a ~Seconded By ~ ~ 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes 

/ r-- I 
I I / 1 ( rr r-i--

--/ hJ I I ( J ) _v 
\ 

r A - I I 4-- l / 
I I I \ l.- ----I I v 

I \..._../~ 

/ 
'--" 

Total (Yes) No 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

~~ 

No 



Date :~~ d-olJ­
Roll Cail Vote # ~ 

2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. S8d<1d-d---

House Appropriations - Government Operations Divison Committee 

0 Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Recommendation : 

Other Actions: 

~ Adopt Amendment 
b Do Pass 0 Do Not Pass 
0 As Amended 
0 Place on Consent Calendar 
0 Reconsider 

0 Without Committee Recommendation 
0 Rerefer to Appropriations 

0 

Motion Made By 4 ~ Seconded By 4 & L,.~ 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 

/' , I / r 1 / 
;f I /'.) <" / . / / l · 1 / /117-

(/ I / 1 I / / ti // V / ..J' -

I I I J { .,./ ~ /:::;::.- ~ 

~ 

I / l /..-?1 
I/ 

Total (Yes) No 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

7f ~ ~ WE:t~~/9.J__.~~~ 
~~~-~~ 



Date :~ 13/ c9-d/S-
Roll Call Vote# r? t" 

2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO . ._3'8d-C)~ 

House Appropriations - Government Operations Divison Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Recommendation: ~Adopt Amendment 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 
D As Amended D Rerefer to Appropriations 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By ,A.p ·~ Seconded By 4 ~ 
Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes 

, 

- I ' 
-v ...-,---11 

/) 
r I / /I I d---

I I ;., I / I l--- I I ( ) J I 
I I I I l l/ --I I I I ~ v--

I L/ 

/ 

Total (Yes) No 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

~ ~ ~6~ 600. 02. /~ ::z£_,~ 
~~-~~~ 

No 



Date: YB~ _/s 1 d-O l S-­
Ro11 Call-V'lte # ii: 

2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. S~a-c?~ 

House Appropriations - Government Operations Divison Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Recommendation: ~ Adopt Amendment 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 
D As Amended D Rerefer to Appropriations 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By 4a ~ 
Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 

-
\ ,--- 4 ) \ I ~ "' 

I/ I /! I / ti I/ I I/ l 1--r--) 
I I / '1 I ( I / l _; I '--

I / I ) L---' I---"' -
I / "---"' ,,_ 
(/ 

Total (Yes) No 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

7t ~ ~CJ1 <?06~ CJO ~ ~~ 
~~ ~~ 



2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. S82022 

House Appropriations - Government Operations Divison 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description : 

Date: 4/13/2015 
Roll Call Vote #:'j 

Committee 

~----------------------~ 

Recommendation: D Adopt Amendment 

IZl Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 
IZl As Amended D Rerefer to Appropriations 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider D 

Representative 
Motion Made By _B_ra_n_d_e_n_b_u~rg~----- Seconded By Representative Kempenich 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Chairman Thoreson x Representative Hoqan x 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg x Representative Glassheim 
Representative Kempenich x 
Representative Viqesaa x 
Representative Boehninq x 
Representative Skarphol x 

Total 

Floor Assignment Representative Boehning 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILURESOLUTION NO. ---~ __ Q_;2~2.~ 

House: Appropriations Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 

Recommendation: ¢ dopt Amendment 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 

D As Amended 

D Without Committee Recommendation 

D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider D ~~~~~-----------

!Motion Made By: Seconded By: 

Representatives Yes No Absent 

Chairman Jeff Delzer 

Vice Chairman Keith Kempenich 

Representative Bellew 

Representative Brandenburg 

Representative Boehning 

Representative Dosch 

Representative Kreidt 

Representative Martinson 

Representative Monson 

Representative Nelson 

Representative Pollart 

Representative Sanford 

Representative Schmidt 

Representative Silbernagel 

Representative Skarphol 

Representative Streyle 

Representative Thoreson 

Representative Vigesaa 

Representative Boe 

Representative Glassheim 

Representative Gugglsberg 

Representative Hogan 

Representative Holman 

TOTALS 

Floor Assignment: 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

~:/F-- )~-; 8/5"{', O;J. O/$ 

Date: 

Roll Call Vote#: ___ / ___ _ 

V 6 .. cJ1 .. -\Jo +e 
~ \..~~ 

c~rr1'(}~ 



2015 HOUSE ST ANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. -----------
House: Appropriations Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 

Recommendation: 

Other Actions: 

Adopt Amendment 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 

D As Amended 

D Place on Consent Calendar 

D Reconsider 

!= u... f" -t~ (\-VIA e tVd 
D Without Committee Recommendation 

D Rerefer to Appropriations 

Date: L/43§S-
Roll Call Vote#: ___ ;2-__ _ 

!Motion Made By: s"°"'"' By '8 ('~ 
Representatives Yes 

Chairman Jeff Delzer 

Vice Chairman Keith Kempenich / 
Representative Bellew 

Representative Brandenburg ,/ 
Representative Boehning 

Representative Dosch / 
Representative Kreldt 

Representative Martinson v 
Representative Monson ../ 
Representative Nelson 

Representative Pollart 

Representative Sanford v 
Representative Schmidt v 
Representative Silbernagel 

Representative Skarphol .../ 
Representative Streyle 

Representative Thoreson 

Representative Vigesaa 

Representative Boe 

Representative Glassheim 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2022, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Delzer, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended , recommends 
DO PASS (18 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2022 
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 2, remove the second "and" 

Page 1, line 2, after "transfers" insert"; to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-52.1 
of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to uniform group insurance program 
benefits coverage contract requirements, prescription drug coverage audits, and a 
report to the legislative audit and fiscal review committee; to amend and reenact 
subsection 17 of section 54-02-01 and section 54-52-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code, relating to the retirement board and section 54-52.1-05 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to public employee retirement system contracts for health 
insurance benefits coverage; to provide a statement of legislative intent; to provide 
for application; to limit the use of health insurance program reserves ; and to declare 
an emergency" 

Page 1, replace line 13 with: 

"Salaries and wages 

Page 1, replace line 17 with : 

"Total special funds 

Page 1, replace line 23 with : 

"Salaries and wages 

Page 2, replace line 1 with : 

"Operating expenses 

Page 2, replace lines 3 and 4 with : 

"Total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Page 2, replace lines 9 and 10 with : 

"Grand total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Page 2, after line 15, insert: 

$3 ,772,504 

$4,899,369 

$5,016,339 

2,280,894 

$7,650,450 
33.00 

$12 ,549,819 
52.00 

$568,047 

$514 ,056 

$972 ,063 

377,050 

$1 ,245,896 
0.00 

$1 ,759,952 
0.00 

$4 ,340,551" 

$5 ,413,425" 

$5,988,402" 

2,657 ,944" 

$8,896 ,346 
33.00" 

$14,309,771 
52 .00" 

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Subsection 17 of section 54-52-01 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

17. "Retirement board" or "board" means the seven persons designated by 
this ohapter as the governing authority for the retirement system created 
under section 54-52-03. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

54-52-03. Governing authority. 

A state agency is hereby created to constitute the governing authority of the 
system to consist of a board of seveRnine persons known as the retirement board. 
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No more than one elected member of the board may be in the employ of a single 
department, institution, or agency of the state or in the employ of a political 
subdivision . No employee of the public employees retirement system or the state 
retirement and investment office may serve on the board . 

.:L. The majority leader of the house of representatives or a designee is a 
member of the board. 

~ The majority leader of the senate or a designee is a member of the 
board . 

.1. Two members of the legislative assembly appointed by the chairman of 
the legislative management consisting of one member from the majority 
party and one member from the minority party are members of the board . 

+.4. One member of the board must be appointed by the governor to serve a 
term of five years. The appointee must be a North Dakota citizen who is 
not a state or political subdivision employee and who by experience is 
familiar with money management. The citizen member is chairman of the 
board . 

~ One member of the board must be appointed by the attorney general 
from the attorney general's legal staff and shall serve a term of five years. 

d-:- The state health officer appointed under section 23 01 05 is a member of 
the board. 

4:-§.,_ Three board members must be elected by and from among the active 
participating members, members of the retirement plan established under 
chapter 54-52.6, members of the retirement plan establ ished under 
chapter 39-03.1, and members of the job service North Dakota retirement 
plan. Employees who have terminated their employment for whatever 
reason are not eligible to serve as elected members of the board under 
this subsection. Board members must be elected to a five-year term 
pursuant to an election called by the board . Notice of board elections 
must be given to all active participating members. The time spent in 
performing duties as a board member may not be charged against any 
employee's accumulated annual or any other type of leave. 

&-0. One board member must be elected by and from among those persons 
who are receiving retirement benefits under this chapter. The board shall 
call the election and must give prior notice of the election to the persons 
eligible to participate in the election pursuant to this subsection . The 
board member shall serve a term of five years. 

&.-L The members of the board are entitled to receive one hundred forty-eight 
dollars per day compensation and necessary mileage and travel 
expenses as provided in sections 44-08-04 and 54-06-09. This is in 
addition to any other pay or allowance due the chairman or a member, 
plus an allowance for expenses they may incur through service on the 
board. 

-7-:-~ A board member shall serve a five-year term and until the board 
member's successor qualifies. Each board member is entitled to one 
vote, and fot:H:five of the seveRnine board members constitute a quorum. 
~Five votes are necessary for resolution or action by the board at any 
meeting. 

SECTION 5. A new section to chapter 54-52.1 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 
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Health insurance benefits coverage of prescription drug coverage -
Analysis - Report to legislative audit and fiscal review committee . 

.L At least once every two years . the board shall request the state auditor to 
select a firm to complete a financial and health care analysis of the 
prescription drug coverage under the health benefits coverage. This may 
not be construed to require the firm to be a certified public accounting 
firm . In contracting for the analysis. the state auditor shall consider input 
from the board regarding the scope of the evaluation and the review of 
the proposals. The analysis must include a review of the following , 
without limitation: 

fL Based on medi-span definitions of "brand drug" and "generic drug", 
the average annual brand drug costs and the generic drug costs at 
each of the following pharmacy channels: 

ill Retail; 

ill Retail-90 ; and 

~ The average annual drug-by-drug costs of each drug dispensed from 
specialty drug pharmacies used by the carrier or the pharmacy 
benefits manager. 

~ The rebates and other third-party financial benefits passed through 
to the board, measured in the aggregate and on a per brand drug 
prescription basis. to verify the carrier satisfied the contract's rebate 
guarantees. 

~ ill At a minimum. an evaluation of the effectiveness of the 
following programs implemented on behalf of the board by the 
carrier or the pharmacy benefits manager: 

.(fil Quantity limit program; 

{Q)_ Step therapy program; and 

.{£1 Prior authorization program. 

ill The evaluation of effectiveness under this subdivision must 
include: 

.(fil The approval and disapproval rates for each 
first-line-treatment drug in the prior authorization 
program; and 

{Q)_ Recommendations to the board addressing how to 
improve each of the programs. 

~ An evaluation of and recommendations concerning the refill 
practices of the carrier or the pharmacy benefits manager to 
determine, without limitation : 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE 

ill Whether and to what extent automatic refills are being 
dispensed; and 

ill The point in time refills are being dispensed. 
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.£. Upon the request of the board. the health benefits coverage carrier or 
pharmacy benefits manager that provides prescription drug coverage 
under the health benefits coverage shall produce. without limitation: 

a. The prescription drug coverage contract controlling prescription 
coverage under this chapter; and 

~ A list of the prior authorization. step therapy. and quantity limit 
programs implemented on behalf of the board . identifying. without 
limitation. each drug in the program and whether the drug is a first­
or second-line-of-treatment drug or the relevant quantity limit. 

~ The board shall submit and present this report to the legislative audit and 
fiscal review committee . 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52 .1-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

54-52.1-05. Provisions of contract - Term of contract. 

.1. Each uniform group insurance contract entered into by the board must be 
consistent with the provisions of this chapter, must be signed for the state 
of North Dakota by the chairman of the board , and must include the 
following : 

4-:- a. As many optional coverages as deemed feasible and advantageous 
by the board. 

&. ~ A detailed statement of benefits offered, including maximum 
limitations and exclusions, and such other provisions as the board 
may deem necessary or desirable . 

.£. The term of a uniform group insurance contract for hospital benefits 
coverage, medical benefits coverage, or prescription drug coverage may 
not exceed two years. A contract subject to this subsection may not be 
renewed without solicitation of a bid under section 54-52.1-04. 

SECTION 7. Section 54-52.1-05.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
created and enacted as follows : 

54-52.1-05.1. Provisions of health insurance benefits coverage . 

.1. The board contract for health insurance benefits coverage under th is 
chapter must provide that for the duration of the term of that contract 
except as necessary for treatment, payment, and operations. the carrier 
may not disclose identifiable or unidentifiable insured or provider data or 
information with a related or unrelated health care delivery entity . 

.£. If the board enters a contract for health insurance benefits coverage 
under this chapter with a carrier that has common ownership with a 
health care delivery entity, for purposes of the carrier's negotiated 
provider discount rates with in-state providers: 

~ For a provider that is a critical access hospital that does not have 
common ownership with the carrier, the negotiated provider discount 
rates may not be less than the negotiated provider discount rates the 
carrier has with the related health care delivery entity that is a critical 
access hospital. 

~ For a provider that is not a critical access hospital and that does not 
have common ownership with the carrier, the negotiated provider 
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discount rates may not be less than the negotiated provider discount 
rates the carrier has with the related health care delivery entity that is 
not a critical access hospital. 

SECTION 8. UNIFORM GROUP INSURANCE PROGRAM HEALTH 
INSURANCE BENEFITS - LEGISLATIVE INTENT. During the period beginning with 
the effective date of this Act through June 30, 2015, if the public employees 
retirement system board determines it is necessary to rebid the uniform group 
insurance program health insurance benefits contract, the carrier providing coverage 
at the time of that determination may continue under the existing contract until a new 
contract is finalized , but not to exceed nine months beyond the date the board 
makes that determination. 

SECTION 9. HEALTH INSURANCE RESERVE FUNDS - LIMITATIONS. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of law, for the period beg inning with the effective 
date of th is Act and end ing June 30, 201 7, the publ ic employees retirement system 
board may not spend any moneys in the fund created under section 54-52.1-06 or 
any other accumulated reserves under the uniform group insurance program for the 
purpose of reducing any increase in un iform group insurance premium amounts 
beyond the rates used by the sixty-fourth legislative assembly for developing 
2015-17 state agency budgets. 

SECTION 10. EMERGENCY. Sections 7, 8, and 9 of this Act are declared to 
be an emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Summary of House Action 

Base Senate House House 
Budget Version Chang es Version 

Retirement and Investment 
Office 

Total all funds $4,899,369 $5,427,729 ($14,304) $5,413,425 
Less estimated income 4 899 369 5 427 729 14 304 5 413 425 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 

Public Employees Retirement 
System 

Total all funds $7,650,450 $9,407,473 ($511, 127) $8,896,346 
Less estimated income 7,650,450 9 407 473 511 127 8,896,346 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 

Bill total 
Total all funds $12,549,819 $14,835,202 ($525,431) $14,309,771 
Less estimated income 12549819 14,835,202 525 431 14 309 771 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Retirement and Investment Office - House Action 

Base Senate House House 
Budget Version Changes Version 

Salaries and wages $3,772,504 $4,354,855 ($1 4,304) $4,340,551 
Operating expenses 973,324 990,874 990,874 
Contingencies 82,000 82,000 82,000 
Accrued leave payments 71 541 

Total all funds $4,899,369 $5,427,729 ($14,304) $5,41 3,425 
Less estimated income 4,899,369 5 427 729 114 304) 5 41 3 425 

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 19.00 19.00 0.00 19.00 

Department No. 190 - Retirement and Investment Office - Detail of House Changes 
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Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Contingencies 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

Adjusts 
Funding for 

Health 
Insurance 
Premium 
Increases ' 

($14,304) 

($14,304) 
(14,304) 

$0 

0.00 

Total House 
Changes 

($14,304) 

($14,304) 
114 3041 

$0 

0.00 
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1 Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised 
premium estimate of $1 , 130.22 per month. 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Public Employees Retirement System - House Action 

Base 
Budget 

Salaries and wages $5,016,339 
Operating expenses 2,280,894 
Contingencies 250,000 
Accrued leave payments 103 217 

Total all funds $7,650,450 
Less estimated income 7 650 450 

General fund $0 

FTE 33.00 

Senate 
Version 

$6,479,410 
2,678,063 

250,000 

$9,407,473 
9 407 473 

$0 

34 .50 

House 
Changes 

($491,008) 
(20,119) 

($511, 127) 
15111271 

$0 

(1501 

House 
Version 

$5,988,402 
2,657,944 

250,000 

$8,896,346 
8 896 346 

$0 

33 .00 

Department No. 192 - Public Employees Retirement System - Detail of House Changes 

~ - -
Adjusts Funding 

for Health Removes Salary 
Insurance Increase Removes Chief Removes Reduces 
Premium Funding for New Financial Officer Benefits Support Temporary Total House 

Increases' FTE Removed' FTE Position' Position ' Salaries' Changes 

Salaries and wages ($32,450) ($11 ,262) ($195,950) ($51 ,346) ($200,000) ($491 ,008) 
Operating expenses (20, 119) (20, 11 9) 
Contingencies 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds ($32,450) ($11 ,262) ($216,069) ($51 ,346) ($200,000) ($511 ,127) 
Less estimated income (32,450) (11 ,262) (216,069) (51,346) (200,000) (511 ,127) 

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 (1 .00) (0.50) 0.00 11 .501 

1 Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised 
premium estimate of $1 , 130.22 per month. 

2 Funding for employee performance salary increases is adjusted to reflect the 1.5 FTE 
positions which are being removed . 

3 Funding is removed for 1 chief financial officer FTE position . 

4 Funding is removed for 1 benefits support FTE position. 

5 Funding is reduced for additional temporary support. 

This amendment also: 
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Adds sections to amend North Dakota Century Code Sections 54-52-0 1 and 54-52-
03 to i ncrease retirement board membership from 7 members to 9 members; add 
the Majority Leader of the House of Representatives, the Majority Leader of the 
Senate , and two members of the Leg islative Assembly appointed by the Chairman of 
the Leg islative Management; and remove members appointed by the Attorney 
General and the State Health Officer. 
Adds a section to create a new section to Chapter 54-52. 1 ,  relating to a health 
insurance prescription drug coverage audit, and reporting to the Leg islative Audit 
and Fiscal Review Committee. 
Adds a section to amend Section 54-52 . 1 -05,  relating to provisions of the health 
insurance benefits coverage to require a contract may not exceed two years. 
Adds a section to amend Section 54-52. 1 -05. 1 ,  related to un iform group insurance 
program benefits coverage. 
Adds a section l imit ing the use of health insurance program reserves.  
Adds a section of legislative intent relating to the extension of the existing health 
insurance benefits contract if the un iform group insurance program contract is rebid . 
Provides amendments related to un iform group insurance program benefits 
coverage and health insurance program reserve l im itations are emergency 
measures. 
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Committee Clerk Signature 

Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

SB 2022 (2:00 pm) 
4/27/2015 

JOB# 26430 

D Subcommittee 
~ Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/res 

A Conference Committee Hearing on PERS (1 51 Hearing on 04-27-15) 

Minutes: 1 Amendment# 15.8155.02023 

Chairman Krebsbach called the Conference Committee Hearing to order on Monday, April 
27 , 2015 at 2:00 pm in the Harvest Room in regards to SB 2022 . All Conference 
committee members were present. They are as follows: 

Senators: Karen Krebsbach, Chair. ; Dick Dever, Joan Heckaman 
Representatives: Blair Thoreson, George Keiser, Kathy Hogan 

Michael Johnson, Legislative Council 
Lori Laschkewitsch, OMB 

Chairman Krebsbach: Roll call was taken . 

Representative Thoreson: Working off the copy of amendment. Attachment # 1. These 
are the fiscal changes. We did make the adjustments for salary adjustments. We did 
remove the salary increase funding for the new FTE and then also the positions, so I think 
that is a total 1.5 FTE total that the House removed . The reduction reflected on page 7 
items 1 - 5 are the fiscal changes to the bill. Hopefully we won't end up in a bad position . 
Then if you go back to, starting on page 1 of the amendment 02023 there are the changes 
dealing with some of the issues with the Public Employee Retirement System and the 
Board and such . I would ask that Representative Keiser go through those changes. 

Representative Keiser: On page 2 of the amendments talking about the governing 
authority, the House has again proposed that the PERS Board be adjusted from 7 to 9 
members. The Majority Leader in both Chambers, or their designee be appointed to the 
Board and that there also be a member of the majority and a member of the minority also 
appointed to the board through I believe Legislative Management. Attachment #1 
15.8155.02023. Then in addition we removed the two individuals, the Attorney General or 
their designee, and the State Health Officer. The reason was when we had discussion , at 
the point with our House bill , that there may, legal action was threatened during the Senate 
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hearing .  We d id have a conversation with the Attorney Genera l  and certa in ly we have a 
process that the Attorney General  can fol low, but it does put the Attorney General 's office 
into an unusual position if one of his staff should be involved in  the orig ina l  decis ion that 
could eventual ly lead to some kind of legal action. In add ition to that, the State Health 
Officer, we became aware the current language says the State Health Officer, not the State 
Hea lth Officers' designee and that is current law and we were at that time operating 
somewhat d ifferently. But the Health Department is a regu latory agency, the I nsurance 
Department is a regulatory agency, and we don't believe that people who have regu latory 
responsib i l ity to either insurance or health issues should be a part of the decis ion making 
group because it does put them in an unusual situation relative. It may not be i ndependent 
from the regulatory perspective. On page 3, we did add the requ i rement the at least once 
every two years the Board shal l  request the State Aud itor to select a fi rm to complete a 
financial health care analysis of the prescription d rug coverage. We do have a q uasi-self­
funded health insurance program.  Quasi in  the sense that there are corridors ,  risk corridors 
associated with it, so, i n  a truly self-funded the entity assumes al l  risk both up and down . 
But we do have a risk corridor but despite them compan ies that are engaged in self­
insurance programs at any level nationally have been moving to having an audit being 
done to make sure that the spreads and rebate programs that are being uti l ized are 
appropriate and are not benefit ing one party or another or to the detriment of any of the 
parties . So we a lso added that provis ion . Members on page 4 for the term of the contract 
we d id add in Subsection 2, that this contract the current contract which was in it would be 
for 2 years.  We bel ieve that is appropriate under the position that we are i n .  In Section 7 ,  
o n  page 4 ,  provision for health insurance coverage two of the areas that we felt very 
strongly about on the House side, and were we in  the bi l l  that we sent to you that came out 
of your committee with I bel ieve a 6-1 do pass, certain ly amended but was never g iven the 
opportun ity to have a conference committee report between those two forms of the b i l l .  We 
feel very strongly that the identifiable and un identifiable information should not be used to 
the benefit of anyone other than to the insured and that the common ownership in  
Subsection 2 ,  when we have a situation where we have common ownership between the 
insurer and the provider that with the d iscounting rate that may be requ i red or used or 
negotiated must be establ ished in  a manner that is not to the detriment of those 
organ izations that are in the network but not within the common ownersh ip .  Section 8 ,  is a 
section that simply again is intent that if it becomes necessary for and th is is someth ing we 
should 've had probably on our wal l  a long time ago, but if it ever becomes necessary to 
reb id a contract that this does the g ive the power to the PERS Board to extend an exist ing 
contract up to 9 months if i t  were necessary. If any executed the options that were avai lable 
contractua l ly to cancel that there would be authority for the PERS Board to go forward . 
Then we put in Section 1 0  the emergency clause, which with the intent in  Section 8 ,  it was 
strongly suggested and I concur, that the emergency clause has to be there or the section 
8 has no merit whatsoever. That is a brief overview of the amendments presented by the 
House. 

Chairman Krebsbach : Any q uestions at this t ime. I hope it wil l take a l ittle wh i le to d igest 
a l l  the changes on th is .  

Representative Thoreson:  Do you want to work through the b i l l  section by section or 
what would be the best way of going about it? I know we've been g iven a lot of time today 
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during this session whether we need to use it a l l  or not, I am not certain .  But I guess, just 
wondering how it is we would l ike to present th is or work at it? 

Chairman Krebsbach : If there are any d i rect questions we should do them now. 
Otherwise , we need to do some d iscussion amongst ourselves. It is qu ite d ifferent from it 
was when we had the b i l l .  Probably at our next meeting we can go through it section by 
section .  But right now we have to kind of decide what we're going to be doing.  

Senator Heckaman :  A q uestion on Section 5 on the audit .  I guess, I 'm not real ly 
understanding for sure what the audit would cover? Is  it covering the providers or are you 
covering the insured ,  or are you covering just through money that PERS spends? I guess I 
would l ike a l ittle b it more explanation on what that audit would involve .  

Representative Keiser: It real ly is the PBM and the carrier. In  any case they have a 
contractua l  re lationship .  To provide their service this would simply be an audit of just the 
PERS accounts relative to the PBM's and the d rug prescriptions that are being fi l led and 
what are the associated costs, what are the rebate formulas that are being used and what 
are the spreads? The uti l ization of spread within the PBMs because the state although 
we're paying the dol lars for this, and we real ly probably can't d ictate u nt i l  the next contract 
but we certain ly should know what's going on relative to those spreads and to rebate 
programs. 

Senator Heckaman:  Would you expect the audit company to come in and look at your  
med ications that you take because you have the state p lan? Are they going to audit you 
separately? Are they going to audit the d rug compan ies that provide this or what? 

Representative Keiser: They wil l  audit the PBM.  The PBM and the carrier wi l l  have all of 
the records relative to prescriptions written ,  prescriptions fi l led , what their costs are ,  what 
kinds of spreads and rebates are being used for each of those? I suspect they wil l  be taking 
a sample rather than doing a 1 00% audit. 

Senator Heckaman:  I am concerned whether we have the authority to audit a PBM? I am 
thinking if DOT sends out a bid ; and Senator Dever business bids for DOT and got the bids 
to do a stretch of road , and then we come along and leg is lative audit and fiscal review says 
yes, we want to make sure that the money was spent so we' re going to audit Senator 
Devers' company. Is  that s imi lar to what I am th inking here ,  or am I on the wrong track? 

Representative Keiser: I th ink it is very d ifferent than that. In case of you r  example, 
couldn 't agree more with you .  On the other hand the state is paying these dol la rs.  In the 
case of you r  example,  if the DOT would accept the bid , and then at the end of the day, 
Senator Dever wou ld pay back to the h ighway department, a rebate , I th ink the state should 
know that. Whether or not we can affect a rebate, is d ifferent. But we should know how 
rebates are being used , and how spreads are being used . That is what self- insured plans 
began looking into and finding that although it was there money, there were considerable 
savings that maybe should have been shared more with the ind ividuals paying for the 
contract. So, rebates don't happen I don't th ink in those other bids, but I cou ld be wrong.  
Senator Dever knows better than I do ,  but I know that I don't g ive rebates for the state. 
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Chairman Krebsbach : Do you want to respond to your  b id? 

Senator Dever: Regard ing Section 5 ,  I don't  recal l  any kind of hearing in  the Senate. 
assume it must have been heard in the House. I am having a l ittle trouble fol lowing the 
rationale and just rea l ly fol lowing what it is that we're doing here .  Maybe I could come to a 
better understand ing ,  if I could have copies of testimony as submitted in  the House, both i n  
support and in  opposition to that. Maybe we can look a t  that before the next conference 
committee. 

Representative Keiser: That was not part of our b i l l  that we sent to you .  We d id not have 
the PBM information in there.  So I can't speak to what d id happen, but we can provide you 
with some documentation , whether it is from the hearing or not. 

Senator Heckaman : Section 5 d id not have a hearing at a l l? 

Representative Thoreson:  This information that is in  Section 5 of the b i l l  was put in  
during the process when the bi l l  had left. I n  this case this b i l l  was not in  pol icy committee 
because of course it was an Appropriation's committee b i l l .  We did have th is language, and 
there was d iscussion to this in  the fu l l  Appropriation Committee when i t  was i n  the House of 
Representatives. Whether it was added , as an amendment to the b i l l  at that t ime; and there 
was thorough d iscussion amongst the committee on it? Then of course, during the process 
of bring the b i l l  to the floor, there was d iscussion a lso. 

Senator Dever: Am I to understand then ,  that any member of the pub l ic who made have 
had an opin ion one way or the other, d id not have the opportun ity to present that? 

Representative Thoreseon:  Again ,  th is portion of the bi l l  was brought as an amendment 
to the committee. Just as amendments are brought to any committee and I guess fol lowing 
the procedures with amendments I don't know each committee deals with that i n  their own 
specific way I suppose, but it was an amendment to the b i l l .  

Chairman Krebsbach : I t  was d iscussed in  Appropriations Committee then? 
Representative Thoreseon:  That is correct. 
Chairman Krebsbach : Al ice then we' l l  request those minutes if you can get them for us.  

Senator Dever: I find it objectionable to include this kind of an amendment to a bi l l  that 
never. PBM I know it stands for Pharmacy Benefit Manager. But it is a big deal .  It seems to 
me that it should have had a hearing .  

Chairman Krebsbach : I n  regard to audits , i t  would be wise to hear to from Sparb Col l ins 
as to what the aud its do take place with in  the PERS budget? 

Senator Heckaman :  I th ink it would be okay if we were going to take a look at th is to see 
whether the counci l  th inks they can actua l ly audit this or someone? 

Chairman Krebsbach: From a legal ity standpoint? Senator Heckaman:  Right, I th ink so. 
Chairman Krebsbach: Can you get us an answer on that? 
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Allen Knudson,  We can have our legal staff review this section and provide information to 
the committee. 

Chairman Krebsbach: Any other questions? I am just wondering about the structure of the 
board in removing 2 agencies from their representation. You wou ld be add ing 4 leg islative 
leaders is that it or legislative personal? 

Representative Keiser: I t  would expand it from 7 to 9 and.  

Chairman Krebsbach : The other two would come from the change of th is .  (20 . 1 1 )  

Senator Dever: I t  appears to me, as a conservative , I feel a l ittle uncomfortable and maybe 
I am thinking about it wrong , of the idea of creating a leg islative bureaucracy. It appears to 
me to m icromanage an Executive Branch agency. That is what is going through my mind .  
I am open to conversation .  

Chairman Krebsbach : Anyth ing from the House side why you want this change? 

Representative Keiser: One is we were very careful not to put the majority to that position ,  
of legislators in  that position . We went with 4 ,  because we seemed it to be appropriate. 
C learly, during this b idding process, I know Senator Dever chairs a committee. Even the 
committee that he chaired d id have some information provided relative to this ,  but the 
PERs board is engaged in  all the very important parts for our employees. The leg islature is 
u lt imately responsible for paying for that, and for making and doing the best job we can with 
those benefits, not just the health insurance side. So we felt that we were derel ict in not 
being more engaged and that we can and this is an opportun ity to correct that. You have a 
strong voice by the leg is lature on this very important th ing .  We are responsible for the 
money. The only example,  I could provide you is, a major organ ization ,  compan ies who are 
other organizations certain ly the g roup that pays for it, is going to want to have membership 
on the board . They want to have a role in some of the decision making that has gone on 
and wil l go on into the future .  

Chairman Krebsbach : I am hearing what you're saying but a the same time we have the 
Statutory Committee of the Employee Benefits Committee which is made up of leg islators 
and we g ive the yea ,  nay, or go ahead , do not go ahead , recommendation on any and all of 
these things. So, I see that as our role. 

Representative Keiser: That j ust m ight be the d ifference in  our perspective. 
Chairman Krebsbach : That m ight be. 

Senator Dever: The House numbers on the Employee Benefits committee outnumber the 
Senate members .  That is of interest. 

Representative Thoreson :  I th ink if we read the way th is is written ,  it may be possible for 
the Senate cou ld outnumber the House on this one. We' l l  see , just because of the makeup. 
Very honestly we understand that the Board has a strong responsibi l ity and as 
Representative Keiser said we feel that because we have a fiscal responsibi l ity i t  was 
important to have legislative input. We left the majority of those not in the leg islature but I 
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th ink it is a good ind ication that we do want to work with the publ ic employees to make sure 
that they get the best product possible. Another th ing ,  maybe th is shou ld 've been done 
previously. In doing some research we did in  the House , the Board makeup I bel ieve has 
not been changed since 1 989, so we felt after a quarter of a century it was probably a good 
time to take a look at it interestingly enough I th ink the last time before that was 1 965 .  So it 
seems about every 25 years roughly there has been a change in the makeup of the 
Boards.  Maybe it is the natural time for it to occur. 

Senator Dever: I don't necessari ly d isagree with that. I am just concerned that it appears 
that this is a reaction to the fact that we had a competitive bid on the Health Insurance that 
we've been wanting ,  to have for severa l years . It d idn't turn out the way that some wanted 
it to. So here we are seeking to make some changes to reverse some of what took place. I 
am thinking if we put Leg islators on the PERS board they might want to sunset clause 
because in two years they are going to want to be off of it. 

Chairman Krebsbach : More points to ponder folks. I am j ust wondering if there is anyth ing 
else that you would l ike to go into today? 

Senator Dever: The provisions that came out of 1 475, I ' l l  be able to share about that. 

Chairman Krebsbach : That is where a lot of th is comes from. Any further explanations 
from the House about the changes? We will recess and we meet at 4 : 00 pm.  
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Chairman Krebsbach cal led the Conference Committee Hearing to order on Monday, Apri l 
27,  201 5 at 4 :00 pm in the Harvest Room in regards to SB 2022 . All Conference 
committee members were present. They are as fol lows: 

Senators : Karen Krebsbach, Chair . ; Dick Dever, Joan Heckaman 
Representatives: Blair Thoreson,  George Keiser, Kathy Hogan 

M ichael Johnson,  and Al len Knudson , Legislative Counci l 
Lori Laschkewitsch and N ick Creamer, OMB 

Chairman Krebsbach : Rol l  cal l  was taken .  We requested some backup document on the 
minutes of the hearings in the House on this particular bill and we're having a l ittle d ifficu lty 
going through those . 

Senator Heckaman:  They are not in  order that we can fol low them right now. So it's going 
to take a l ittle whi le to look through them.  I don't see any testimony from anyone else other 
than leg is lators speaking . There is no supporting documentation here at a l l .  Al l I see the 
amendments and the b i l l ,  and they happen to be the votes. I don't see anyth ing on any 
supporting documentation at a l l .  

Chairman Krebsbach : I f  any committee members can recal l  what supporting documents 
they were referring too and if they could provide that to us.  

Representative Thoreson : Our appropriation committee is b roken into subsections. As 
chairman of Government Operations Division ,  we had orig inal ly had th is amendment 
proposed in the subsection .  The way we work bi l ls is we wi l l  adopt amendments in  the 
section ,  and forward u nto fu l l  Appropriation committee wh ich we d id .  There were some 
techn ical language changes. The language you see before you ,  in the amendment, is qu ite 
techn ica l .  There is a person who has been working with several leg islators . This person 
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has been working with doing aud its of PBM's and she has provided lang uage to several of 
us.  I n  fact what we have done is requested additional  information from her. I was hoping to 
have it for th is meeting ,  but probably wi l l  have it at our next conference committee meeting 
at ?PM,  kind of add ressing why the language is as it is and what it is we should be looking 
for here. I would l ike to provide that information to the conferees. So, we were working i n  
ou r  subsection and  fu l l  committee. Representative Casper has been working with this .  I 
know in the I B&L committee Cha irman Keiser. This has been an issue they have d iscussed 
previously. He was u nable to be here at 4PM, but I th ink at 7 :00 pm he had been the 
person who have been contacting . The woman's name is Linda Conn .  We should have that 
information by that meeting . 

Senator Heckaman:  When I look at this, in the subcommittee, d id you have any 
conversation with PERS office or  insurance carrier at al l? Did they come and provide 
information because I can't find any of that in here .  

Representative Thoreson: Again ,  this was a conversation that was had amongst the 
committee. It was an amendment brought forward j ust as amendments are brought forward 
du ring meetings such this. I n  fact I was j ust in the OMB conference committee is going on 
and I know there is several amendments that have been brought forward there.  They are 
debating on them. I guess that is kind of how the process works and so I guess there have 
be conversations. I know that I bel ieve the folks from PERS, were aware of it as this 
conversation was going on ,  and again hopefu lly we can bring forward some information j ust 
so that everyone here knows exactly what it is these amendments are working towards.  

Chairman Krebsbach : Is there anything you want to review at this t ime on Section 6? 
What we were looking for was the amendment that was attached and some 
documentation and to be honest with you we haven't had a fu l l  chance to rea l ly review 
what we d id get either. We may be better prepared at 7. Can we go to Section 6? I am 
somewhat bothered by some of the word ing and requ i rements. I n  view of the fact that what 
we've entered into now is a new agreement and do you th ink that it is a l ittle l imiting in 
Subsection 2 of that for people to even bid on the process? 

Representative Keiser: Is that Section 6 in term of the contract? That was confi rmed . 
(6.40) On the contract, on 8 . 1 on page 1 6 , the term of this agreement shal l  be for two year  
period . This i s  the contract with the provider. 

Chairman Krebsbach: I am looking at the amendments . 
Representative Keizer: What I am sharing with you the contract, two year period with a 
possibi l ity of extension. The House felt secure in the fact that we should s imply implement 
the term of the contract as stated without al lowing an extension and without review of the 
leg islature .  

Senator Dever:  If that is a point in  the contract, I am not sure how we can change the 
contract? 

Representative Keiser: I th ink it's j ust fine. The contract says for a two year period . The 
Board may extend it and were saying the Board may not extend it, not without rebidding it. 
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But the contract, term of the contract is actual ly 2 years with the board may choose to 
extend it. The Leg islature as the pol icy setting branch of government can .  

Representative Dever: I fi nd it problematic because it's in  the contract and I bel ieve it wi l l  
i ncrease the cost of the contract. If we are going to go every 2 years, the b idder is going to 
go into it knowing that they may not be able to spread their costs of implementing the 
program over 6 years . They will just be spread ing it over 2 years. So it seems to me that if 
the desire is to go back to the previous contractor, the actual effect of th is may be to stifle 
that competition and another contractor may not. It would g ive it seems to me an unfair 
advantage to the incumbent. 

Representative Keiser: Your  point is wel l  taken .  This doesn't favor either party and there 
was never any intent by the House to go back to the previous p rovider by the House. That 
is a m isconception and I have to say that as a Representative of the House, it's a problem 
when I keep hearing people make that statement because it was not the intention .  The 
contract as it reads is a two year contract. There is no guarantee for an extension . Anyone 
who bids it on the assumption that I have for 6 years ,  I bel ieve is making a mistake. 

Senator Dever: What this provision wou ld do is guarantee that it wou ld not be extended. 

Representative Keiser: For the fi rst two years , that is correct. 

Chairman Krebsbach: I have a problem that we are taking authority away from the in it ial 
contract and the terms that the PERS Board made on the agreement but this can be further 
checked into and we can d iscuss it later. ( 1 1 .05) 

Representative Keiser: That wi l l  be fine. 

Chairman Krebsbach: Let's go to Section 8 ,  Un iform Group I nsurance program.  Perhaps 
you can tel l  us what's being looked at there and why? 

Representative Keiser: I n  Section 8, we recognized , it's real ly un related to providing for 
the futu re ,  what if there is a cancellation? If you read the contract there is always the 
possib i l ity that a contract can be cancel led . Now obviously, if a contract carrier was to 
cancel the contract they may have no interest in extending that contract. But this does give 
the Board the option to extend the contract with a ,  it just g ives them the authority, to do 
someth ing they can't I don't bel ieve now do. I n  case of a termination I th ink that is excellent 
pol icy. Again it has nothing to do with the past, or previous or current or future contractors . 
It is simply a provis ion g ranting authority to take an action if both parties are wi l l ing to do it. 

Senator Dever: Would the House consider changing the date from 201 5 to 20 1 7 , if it's not 
applying to this contract? 

Representative Keiser: I th ink if this is good pol icy it's good pol icy today, not in 201 9 or 
20 1 7 . I do believe it is good pol icy. 

Senator Dever: Would you suggest there is a possibi l ity that g iven the changes that were 
making,  in this b i l l ,  m ight d rive a change in the current process? 
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Representative Keiser: I do not bel ieve that we are doing anything in this b i l l  certa in ly 
changing the Board configuration should have 0 impact. The aud it of the PBM every two 
years is ,  it says right in the contract, that the carrier may lega lly receive rebates . So were 
not interfering with that, we're just saying we want to aud it it, so I don't believe that does 
that. The term of the contract I wou ld argue again ,  we rea l ly do have a 2 year contract and 
it's an option our options to whether or not and I bel ieve the Leg islature has the authority to 
suggest a term for the contract. The other provisions which we haven 't we haven't ta lked 
about we' l l  be happy to ta lk about. If you think that they wil l  interfere with the contract. I 
have problems with that. What we do know, is that on our House b i l l ,  which was very 
d ifferent than the amendments here it was much broader and much more extensive and 
were designed to what we bel ieve was to create a provis ion that said we wi l l  basical ly have 
a program simi lar  to what we have currently, that the fiscal note associated with that made 
the cost of the future carrier to be more than the bid of the current carrier for the 201 5-20 1 7  
period . 

Senator Dever: Weren't we rewrit ing the rules that might have affected that fiscal note? 

Representative Keiser: Before our committee, before the Senate committee, and I can 
refer to Mr.  Strinden's testimony in which before our committee, I th ink before the Senate 
committee, he does contrad ict himself but he said basically we were bidding the same 
th ing.  In the RFP ,  there is language that on page 1 1 , the health plan bidders must be able 
to reasonably match the existing provider networks to provide appropriate access to a state 
wide basis . There is language there in add ition to matching the current coverage provis ion , 
as noted below, the successful bidder I think there was clear ind ication that there was an 
expectation that in  the RFP that what we had is what we wanted . 

Senator Dever: We've had no objections from Blue Cross . We've had conversations with 
Sanford . During the hearing ,  I asked Blue Cross the question , did Sanford satisfy the R FP? 
They said yes . Then we had new ru les come out that affected the fiscal note. So I guess it's 
d ifficult for me to accept that we're denying that there was any effort to force a rebid .  

Representative Keiser: I apolog ize, I wasn't there and I haven't had the opportun ity as 
when it was in the House. The current carrier real ly was absent and did not part icipate . We 
did not ask them to participate. We designed the leg islation with counci l  based on what we 
had and what we wanted . That was basically our b i l l .  Without the Blues input on any level ,  
what I can say is un less we can identify specific th ings and not a l l  of that b i l l  is  not before 
us,  that we're d ifferent from what we currently had , then my cou nterargument is then there 
is no need for the fiscal note if everything is the same. 

Senator Dever:  Everything was the same before the bil l was introd uced . The only input 
that the Blued offered in  the Senate was when we asked them . They were and I th ink 
everybody has been happy with the Blues,  they've been upright about everything along the 
way. I think Sanford has too. I am not sure real ly what the problem is .  It seemed to me that 
1 475 was introduced with the assumption that the Sanford carrier was going to use its 
position to benefit Sanford provider, without any rea l  basis for that assumption .  I am not 
sure that is appropriate for us.  
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Representative Keiser: We did ask in our hearing one question that we d id present to the 
Blues,  was based on our legislation wou ld you have to change your  b id? There answer was 
absolutely not. 

Senator Dever: When we have language in here that says the Board enters a contract for 
health insurance benefits coverage under this chapter with a carrier that has common 
ownership ,  and then it spel ls out how they should negotiate their contracts with providers, I 
th ink we' re putting a rea l  burden on then that creates costs. I am not sure that we have told 
the Blues, how to negotiate contracts with their providers.  I am not j ust ta lking about 
provider that has Sanford's name on it versus a provider that does not. I am not sure where 
the hospitals are .  When I th ink about VC hospita l ,  versus Watford C ity Hospital there is a 
d ifference i n  the demographic that they serve and a d ifference in  their costs in provid ing 
that service and those kinds of things that they treat so, if  we d idn't demand that of the 
Blues, I am not sure that it is appropriate for us to demand that of anyone else. 

Representative Keiser: I speak only from the information that has been provided. The 
Blues offered all p roviders in the state the same basic d iscount rate to a l l .  What we do 
know in Med icaid expansion ,  in itial ly when Essentia approached on Med icaid expansion , 
that they were offered a d iscount rate that they cou ld n 't l ive with , accord ing to them . They 
have now entered both Med icaid Expansion and the PERS contract at a very acceptable 
d iscount rate from their perspective . But on the same time, that Medicaid expansion in 
Dickinson Hospital was offered a d iscount rate that was very sl ight percent off of b i l led 
charges; very d ifferent in two communities that created d isadvantage. What we do know is 
that in  the interim ,  that on Med icaid Expansion that there were sign ificant issues relative to 
the pharmacies and the reimbursement for pharmacists . We did reach an adjustment in  the 
reimbursement rate for pharmacists . So that it has been an equal  p laying field for al l  
p roviders ,  I wou ldn 't argue that it has not been and what we are doing is saying in our 
leg islation that we don't care what d iscount rate you want to charge, j ust don't use it  to d rive 
providers out of the market that aren't in your system because we've never had a situation 
where we have both with in  the same system . I don't know if you've seen the flow chart, I 
can provide that to you of their organ izational structure .  But th is is a d ifferent world that we 
are in  and I do bel ieve we have some obl igations to make sure that our members on our 
p lan as wel l  as the providers in  our state are treated fai rly. 

Senator Dever: I wou ld just simply say that it is a d ifferent world that we l ive in  and there 
are more and more insurance companies and common ownership with health care 
providers.  Sanford is certain ly not alone in that regard .  I guess if you ' re al leging some 
inconsistencies then maybe we need to see some documentation . 

Representative Keiser: You can talk to the Sanford people and see if that is true or not. 

Representative Hoga n :  This is an area that we d id not have this in depth d iscussion in 
appropriations .  So he had a d ifferent d iscussion than we had . Wou ld it be possible to hear 
from a representative from the insurance commission about how these provisions 
correspond to general  health insurance practice and is this, a change from current health 
insurance standards and practices? 
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Chairman Krebsbach : I am sure we can. I am not so sure we are at a point where th is is 
what we need but if there is someone here from the I nsurance Department that would l ike 
to add ress that we would take the information .  

Rebecca Ternes: ND I nsurance Department Deputy Commissioner Rep.  Hogan j ust in  
general related to specific sections of the b i l l ,  is that what you're asking? 

Representative Hogan :  I am looking particularly at Section 7 ,  and the whole issues of how 
benefits are defined and negotiation of contracts and that specific section . Is that standard 
practice across a l l  health insurance or al l  there or is this a new standard? 

Rebecca Ternes : The Senate is probably more t ired of hearing me say the same thing 
over. But I th ink when we started with the first committee hearing in  front of then Cha irman 
Keiser in  front of the House IBL committee, th is particu lar section what I sa id and what I 
continue to say is that. I th ink it was changed orig i nal ly because I brought up the fact that 
the rural hospitals are actual ly reimbursed at h igher rates than the non-rura l  which is the 
d ifference here with critical access and regular hospitals .  Is that the department always 
been asked to get involved in negotiations between providers and insurance carriers and 
we have always very consistently said that is not the job of the regulator to do that. 
Negotiations between two private sector entities , are j ust that and that the state. We as the 
regu lator cannot get i nvolved in  that and that there can be real ly good reasons for d ifferent 
rates some of which are related to uti l ization , could be fraud ,  could be geography, could be 
all kinds of d ifferent th ings. In the case of our rura l  critica l access hospitals it was ,  we 
wanted I th ink to support them or the carriers wanted to support them more. The B lues, and 
I am speaking of the Blues specifically because that is the one that I spoke to d ifferent 
rates. They wanted to make sure that they existed and they were there for people in the 
rura l  areas. There are d ifferent reasons to pay one over the other. It m ight be more than 
just geography, but it not something that we get involved in  as the regu lator. That we 
bel ieve that is hand led at the private sector very wel l .  

Representative Hogan :  So with th is ,  we would beg in to set standards for the PERS 
contract, again about how those rates would be establ ished . So,  th is is fa i rly new ground 
for us. This is a fai rly major ground . 

Rebecca Ternes : Yes ,  this is not language that we have anywhere else i n  the code, in  new 
practice , pretty major new practice. Yes ,  it wi l l  be something d ifferent. 

Chairman Krebsbach : So am I to understand there would put l im itations and restrictions 
on i nsurance compan ies or carriers , that they do not know have? 

Rebecca Ternes : This wou ld only l im it the carrier that gets this bid . 

Chairman Krebsbach : Just the PERS? 

Rebecca Ternes : Correct, the other carriers would not be subject to this provision the way 
I read it. 
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Chairman Krebsbach :  It has not been done in  the past, even on the PERS, am I correct 
there? 

Rebecca Ternes: Yes, that is correct. 

Chairman Krebsbach: Committee is there any else at this particular t ime that we want to 
review? 

Senator Dever: I would just point out that in Section 7, Subsections 1 &2, play a very 
d ifferent role. They are both regu lations but in Subsection 1 ,  that is ta lking about the 
sharing of information . I n  the Senate Human Services committee one of our concerns with 
that is that sometimes we look at. You know that the PERS popu lation is a large population .  
Its representative of a cross section of the state , and information from that i s  usefu l to our 
considerations of treating various cond itions, probably more representative than any other 
thing. So, we u nderstand that you do not d isclose identifiable or u n identifiable insured or 
private data or information with the related or unrelated health care del ivery entity. So it 
doesn't a l low sharing that information with anybody. We thought any information that they 
do share should be publ ic record and avai lable to anybody. So that was a d ifferent 
approach that we took than the House d id .  Just so you know going forward that is two 
d ifferent considerations in  that section .  

Representative Keiser: We d id recognize that approach in  you r  b i l l  a s  you mod ified it. 
Although we d id n't have a conference committee to on it with , we cou ld've had that 
d iscussion but our position would have been had we had it that one, a lot of that information 
is very proprietary, and a lot of that information and that's one reason we don't want it 
shared with the world , but more importantly anybody worth their salt, would simply start 
putting in  a formal request that anytime you have any information send it our  way. That 
doesn't make a lot of sense, a lthough  there may be a way to craft it that makes it work but 
certain ly if I were runn ing a health care faci l ity and everything was ava i lable, I wou ld put in 
a blanket order i n  effect saying send me everything so that I cou ld see everyth ing . I don't 
know that that is what you ' re Senate intended but that would certain ly be my reaction if I 
were engaged in that. 

Chairman Krebsbach : I would say that we also have things to consider such as H IPPA. 

Representative Keiser: Yes, you are absolutely right. There is repeated reference in the 
contract to P H I ,  or Personal Health I nformation ,  which real ly is a H I PPA information.  The 
aggregated information is a d ifferent animal .  It doesn't have any relationship to ind ividuals,  
i t  does have a relationsh ip to how many procedures of a certain type might be performed in  
a specific commun ity. The aggregated non-H I PPA information is probably more valuable 
than the specific H I PPA related information .  

Representative Hogan :  Regard ing the aggregate data , I know that in  behavioral health , 
when we needed to look at the numbers of people with psycholog ical issues, served 
sharing that aggregate data was real ly actually very helpfu l in systems planning.  My 
concern is that this might be to l imit ing in  that we can't add ress emerging needs. 
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Chairman Krebsbach : Those a re very serious questions that probably need more time to 
thorough ly review. Committee I th ink we are at a point, where we should take another 
break and we' l l  try to go through this material that we have and anyth ing that you can help 
us out with in the next meeting at ?PM.  

Representative Thoreson: We'l l  have the information deal ing with the PBM to bring to you 
at ?PM.  

Chairman Krebsbach: We are in recess unti l  ?PM.  
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Chairman Krebsbach cal led the Conference Committee Hearing to order on Monday, April 
27, 201 5 at 7 : 00 pm in  the Harvest Room in regards to SB 2022. All Conference 
committee members were present. They are as fol lows : 

Senators: Karen Krebsbach , Chair. ; Dick Dever, Joan Heckaman 
Representatives: B la i r  Thoreson , George Keiser, Kathy Hogan 

Shei la M .  Sand ness and Michael Johnson ,  Leg islative Counci l  
N ick Creamer, OMB 

Chairman Krebsbach : The clerk wi l l  record that a l l  conferees a re present. 

Senator Dever: I asked the question about the Essentia Med icaid coverage and I was told 
that I should ask Sanford and so I have . I wonder if we could a l low them to share that 
response. 

Chairman Krebsbach : On q uestion of Med icaid with Essentia 

Lisa Carlson,  Director, of Sanford Health for p lanning and regu lations. In that ro le for 5 
years I have also overseen the provider relations department which encompasses our  
contracting department as wel l .  I was present at  the time when Essentia Health sent a 
termination req uest to Sanford Health Plan to no longer be part of the Sanford Health Plan 
Network. P rior to that actua l ly since 2000, l nnovis at the time they had a contract to be on 
Sanford Health Plan network, at that point in time that was a decision made by Essentia . 
It d id not have anyth ing to do with the terms and the reimbursement that we had given 
them at the time. We were simply g iven a letter saying that they real ly questioned to 
exercis ing their rights to terminate the contract. We did follow up and asked them why and 
they declined to provide any more detai ls at that point in t ime. So they have been outside of 
our  network at their choice since 20 1 0 , and after Sanford Health Plan was awarded the 
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Medicaid Expansion Prod uct, for the state of North Dakota,  at that point in  time Essentia 
did reach out to us and say we would l ike to in itiate contract d iscussions again .  So I just 
want to shed l ight because there was a comment made and there was Rep. Keiser had 
asked if there was any add itional information to provide to that statement. At the t ime 
Essentia was offered a contract from Sanford Health Plan that they "quote" in "quote" 
cou ldn 't l ive with but Dickinson was offered a better rate. They j ust wanted to clarify that 
statement. Sanford Health Plan never offered Essentia a contract when they cal led and 
asked to be part of the network. We simply stated to them that we j ust bid on a Med icaid 
Expansion contract and that bid was depended upon what we knew at that point in t ime. 
Which was al l  of our contracts were from al l  of our existing providers and we told Essentia 
we would be wi l l ing to have contract negotiation d iscussions with them when the Med icaid 
expansion was up for a renewal .  We did honor that because as those of you who have paid 
attention this last week in the press release that was notified that we do have now a 
contract with Essentia. Furthermore, we wi l l  be provid ing add itiona l i nformation that that 
contract not on ly includes N DPERS but a lso including Med ica id Expansion as wel l .  So 
Essentia was not every offered a contract between 20 1 0  and now. I would l ike to further 
clarify that the statement that Dickinson was offered a better rate . Wel l  fi rst of al l  we d id not 
have a rate that we offered Essentia, but I wou ld l ike to point out that D ickinson l ike many 
other hospita l in  the state is a critical access hospita l so I think as we've d iscussed before, 
critical access hospitals are often offered a more generous contract because they are 
critical access in  that manor, so I just wanted to clarify that as wel l .  

Chairman Krebsbach : Any questions? 

Representative Keiser: I can only tel l  you there were about 7 of us that met with Essentia, 
the rate they were advised about, offered or suggested , something they cou ld not l ive with , 
their comment, not ours .  

Representative Hogan :  Section 7 ,  # 2 ,  Part A ,  regard ing critical access hospita ls ,  that 
they have at least the min imum equal rate, but I am hearing from you that they tend to have 
a h igher rate. Would th is mean they would need to be reduced? 

Lisa Carlson:  No, I don't bel ieve that they would need to be reduced . Our  concern with 
Section 2 ,  specifically is scenarios that may l ive outside of this .  We recog nize and 
appreciate the i ntent to be protective of critical access hospitals .  Even federally qua l ified 
rural health centers as wel l .  But our concern is that this language is vague and could go far 
beyond that. Example, look at Section 2 ,  it says for a provider that not a critical access 
hospita l and that does not have common ownership .  So let's say that in Grand Forks and 
imaging center sets up shop . Al l  they do is MRl 's ,  CT scans, maybe some xrays , as wel l  
and that is  a l l  they do.  They cou ld set up shop next to Altru . They would ask Sanford Health 
Plan to reimburse them for and they want to be in our network for M R I ,  CT scans etc. This 
language as it is written today, would say that we cou ld not pay they less than perhaps we 
would pay Altru , for a M R I ,  CT scan ,  even though again we negotiate contracts based on 
all factors including util ization , and overhead . So a stand-alone imaging center isn't run n ing 
an emergency room, they don't have that overhead,  and dea l ing with l nta l la ,  they aren't 
del ivering babies and having N ICU they are just runn ing an imaging center, so in the 
contracting world it wou ld make sense for Sanford Health Plan or Blue Cross/Blue Sh ield or 
any other carrier to perhaps pay the imaging center less for an MR I  than perhaps they 
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would for Altru , which is an  al l- encompassing hospita l .  So we renegotiate a provider rate . 
We take everyth ing into account. We take into the fact that yes they may be offered a $ 1 00 
more for per M R I  or for a CT scan,  than the center because the hospitals overhead is 
g reater and we will account for that. This language would prohib it Sanford Health Plan from 
conducting business that way but would al low Blue Cross and Blue Sh ield or any other 
carrier to contin ue to operate that way. That puts Sanford Health Plan at a clearer 
d isadvantage, a competitive d isadvantage in that it d ictates the contracting process. If that 
makes sense. 

Representative Hogan :  Would th is just apply to the PERS contract? So then wou ld those 
ind ividua l  providers could they end up with having to have two contracts with you? Say 
another Sanford Health insurance product and the PERS contract, could you end up with 
twice the negotiation? 

Lisa Carlson :  Perhaps. Sanford Health Plan has d ifferent contracts by d ifferent product 
l ine .  ND PERS would be one of them where professional  faci l ities actual ly are in a PPO, 
network as defined as NDPERS and taking an additional d iscount. But (8 .45) if  you read 
Section 2, that is a statement d i rected at Sanford Health Plan and that puts us at a 
d isadvantage. 

Representative Hogan :  Is there any other carrier with a common ownership other than 
Sanford , in the state other than North Dakota? 

Lisa Carlson : No,  although Catholic Health I n itiatives not in the state does not have 
l icense insurance compan ies but they have purchased their 4th insurance company. So 
there is now we have someone in  our backyard here national ly is starting to dabble in the 
provider owned insurance and we have talked of how this is un iq ue in  ND ,  but it certain ly is 
not unique in M innesota . There are publ ic employee programs is a bid process as wel l  and 
Health Partners bids on that process and they are provider owned health insurance 
company. 

Representative Keiser: Thanks. Two qu ick q uestions, wi l l  there be mu ltiple products and 
of course there wil l  be.  Sanford Health I nsurance I assume has ind ividual  markup products, 
they have smal l  g roup mark- up products , they have the PERS product and they may have 
other contracts which are self- insured that are entirely d ifferent and you are able to 
manage those I assume? 

Lisa Carlson :  yes. 

Representative Keiser: I was hoping you would say that. On Part B, it certain ly was not our 
intent to do that and I certain ly read i t  d ifferently than you do .  We are ta lking about 
d iscounting a rate , not a rate paid . If there is a provider out there ,  they a re going to charge 
$700 and the hospita l is going to charge you $ 1 200, and you have a 1 0% d iscount on the 
hospita l rate, so they may charge you $ 1 200, but they are only going to get $ 1 20 less 
which wou ld be more obviously than the $700 . This doesn't prevent you from purchasing a 
service. I don't understand the d istinction here ,  that you're able to buy from anybody you 
want, if they are lower that is a business decision. If we need to correct the language, you 
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know our intent, if there is a way, not to preclude you ,  we don't requ i re anybody to buy a 
less expensive prod uct? 

Lisa Carlson :  It is d ictating how business is conducted between carrier and provider in a 
manner that is normal ly governed by a mutual agreement between a provider as opposed 
to some external process stain ing and assessing what they shou ld 've been paid or what the 
floor is perhaps is what this is stating .  The clause as we read it wou ld be that they are 
trying to establ ish a floor and certa in providers have to be paid within that manner have to 
be paid , within that manner rather than letting the market determine how a contract is 
negotiated which is again as a whole of what services do they provide.  It puts a 
competitive d isadvantage from any other carrier who would be provider owned and in the 
future it may not j ust be Sanford Health Plan in North Dakota that is offering insurance.  We 
need competition in every state . Passing a law that dictates how private contracts are 
negotiated in the future would be of most concern to Sanford Health P lan .  

Chairman Krebsbach: I s  it done in other states? 

Lisa Carlson: no and we operate in 4 states. 

Senator Dever: Is the way that you negotiate those is typical of other carriers including 
Blues? 

Lisa Carlson :  Yes , it is very typica l on how we negotiate our provider contracts is based on 
which reg ion our provider is i n ,  what there patient mix is today. Are they heavily Med icaid , 
do they have a lot of self- pay members,  are they heavily Med icare ,  is there a good private 
insurance of large employer in the area where that employees those ind ividuals that have 
good insurance. As wel l  as the type of specia lties that providers offers whether they run a 
level 2 trauma is qu ite d ifferent from a hospital over here who has no trauma center at a l l .  
A l l  those factors are taken into account when we are negotiating a fa ir  market va lue 
contract for their services . 

Representative Hogan: Are there any regu lations or rules in that bidding process or is 
that private industry and you can do what you want? 

Lisa Carlson:  It is private practice. However, we are in the business of sel l ing insurance . 
The quotes that we provide to Dan's Supermarket and NDPERS, ACE Hardware , any 
private business, is d riven by how much we pay our providers .  If we are not competitive we 
can't sel l insurance as wel l  as if we do not offer a fa ir market va lue contract, they won't be 
in  our network and we can't sel l insurance in that case either because Dan's Supermarket 
doesn't want to buy a prod uct in which MidCo network for example St. A's is not in the 
network. So the external  existing cond itions of the market by its own nature req uire us to 
come to the table and offer a fa ir  value, because our providers have just as much leverage 
as we do.  

Chairman Krebsbach : Further Question? That clarifies a lot of i t  for us .  

Representative Thoreson : Presented attachment #1 , Sanford Significant Operating 
Entities. 
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Representative Keiser: This is the corporate structure of Sanford . The parent corporation 
as you can see, then there is Sanford North and then Sanford Health is on the right 
showing the various subd ivisions under Sanford Health. There is a blending of the hea lth 
care provider network with insurance company. It is one of the reasons we have a concern .  

Chairman Krebsbach : From m y  understanding there are separate rules, regu lations or 
whatever that control the health compared to the insurance end of it compared to the other 
part of the Sanford products , but I could be wrong . Here aga in ,  now this is SD nonprofit tax 
exempt. Their  home office is i n  SD.  The others are N D  non-profit entities. I th ink they could 
explain the separation .  

Lisa Carlson :  Explained the chart. It breaks out Sanford Health, as  a ND non-profit, with 3 
sub-d ivisions underneath it being Sanford West, Sanford West, Sanford North and Sanford 
Health . Sanford consists of not only the med ical center, the research ,  the health network 
you see what we cal l two rooms in a house. The Sanford Health is a corporate entity 
above . All you r  health service del ivery is on the one side; that is your  fi rewal l ;  it is Sanford 
Med ical Center, the cl in ic ,  the Health network and the World cl in ic .  You' l l  notice that 
Sanford Health Plan does not sit on that side or the ord chart .  We sit on what is cal led the 
research and development side of the house, th is is the other room of the house and you' l l  
notice the other areas that s it  on that s ide of the house with us, is the foundation ,  for both 
the cancer center and the health . Sanford Heart of America Health Plan which is a smal l  
health maintenance organ ization located in Rugby, ND, wh ich is a subsid iary of Sanford 
Health Plan.  We acqu i red them in late 201 3 .  Sanford Health Plan of M innesota which is 
and the Sanford Research , this is actual ly a good i l lustration of the d ivis ion.  Sanford Health 
Plan in  each one of these entities on th is side of the House has our own boards. 

Representative Keiser: I t  stands for what it  is .  

Senator Dever: I guess I am not sure of what the plan of this is a l l?  

Representative Keiser: As you can see there is  parent corporation .  We had a lot of 
d iscussion about their being fi re wal ls .  They have firewal ls,  but they a l l  do report to that 
parent corporation .  They are a l l  subd ivisions of that parent corporation ,  if there are great 
fi rewa l ls ,  then the provisions we have in the amendments, shouldn't be much of a problem , 
we simply are saying you can't share information in  our amendments and if there is a 
firewal l  that's g reat. It is doing that very thing then because it is our  contract we believe that 
we can make a request that be part of the law, and then no identifiable and non- identifiable 
information is shared between that channel and any of the providers with in  that entire 
network . This is an  entire system network. These are not free standing .  

Senator Dever: If the firewal ls exist, and were not here for the purpose of asking for rebid 
or anyth ing l i ke that, but I am not sure why the amendments are necessary. I think it is the 
fl ip side of you r  argument. 

Representative Keiser: I t  is a fl ip side. If they are there ,  show me. Would you please 
explain them right now what they are other than a statement that they are there? 
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Senator Dever: if you th ink  there is a problem then .  

Representative Keiser: Put i t  in  the law and i t  isn't. 

Senator Dever: I don't see a problem . I think there is a problem with the amendments. 
We already d iscussed in  the Senate how they share the i nformation and how we share that 
information now through the Blues for the purpose of looking at d ifferent cond itions in the 
popu lation and that is usefu l information .  But now we are going to prevent Sanford from 
sharing that i nformation with us. 

Representative Keiser: Again ,  sharing that information with a related or un related health 
entity. That doesn't mean they can't share it with us if we have a req uest. We are paying 
for this contract. We should have some rights . If you can say it better, that's fine. But the 
intent is to make sure we have that fi rewal l .  (25 . 1 5) 

Chairman Krebsbach : There comes a time and a point the word from the provider, in  
stating they have the firewa l l  there ,  unti l  proven otherwise , I am going to bel ieve them . We 
are sometimes looking for boogie man and they aren't even there .  They aren't existent. Is  
there anyth ing further that you have for th is from the Senate side? 

Representative Thoreson: I d id say at our previous meeting about the PBM issue. I do 
have another document to attachment # 2, from Linda Cahn, to J im Kasper. 

Senator Heckama n :  Who is L inda Cahn? 

Representative Thoreson:  This is a person who has worked extensively in  the area with 
the audit of PBM's and I bel ieve she is wel l  noted nationwide in this area. 

Representative Kasper: I am the person who brought Linda to ND. She has been i nvolved 
in l itigation against PBMs to get information of what happens beh ind the scenes i n  
pharmacy benefit management deal ings. I can certain ly provide information regard ing her. 
PBMs are a mu lti-bi l l ion dol lar business. It started out simply as being a record keeper to 
be the record keeper of the drug use in the hea lth plan and have now morffed into a huge 
profit center nationwide. Linda was successfu l in lawsu its against PBM's that recovered 
(30.59) The pharmacy side of the hea lth p lan is largely anywhere from 1 5  to 25% of the 
cost of the plan and gett ing larger because of the advent of specialty drugs that the 
manufacturers are inventing .  We have rough ly $ 1 00 to 1 20 Mi l l ion dol lars of cost, and 
without an audit of what is happening behind the scenes we know nothing.  I a lso asked 
Sparb ,  d id you audit Blue cross when Blue Cross had the plan and he said yes we did? 
We entered into a contract with a private consult ing firm and we aud ited them and we got 
reports from them. So what the amendment to 2022 , simply says is on the PBM side of 
things is we wil l  aud it PBMs and we wil l  have a report on the uti l ization .  She outlines in  her 
letter, the reasons she feels that any government entity should audit the d rug side of the 
equation . Now the insurance company wi l l  tell you this and this is where the problem 
comes in frankly. When you have a fu l ly insured plan we have g iven you the PERS plan,  
our premium quote and th is is the premium. Therefore , we the insurance company are at 
risk for the PBM side of things, so you don't need to know about it because the insurance 
company Sanford has a contract with the PBM which is Expressed Grips. So they wil l  have 
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a contract. They use Express Grips for where they said in the past, for a l l  of their other 
pharmacy plans that they have in the 4 states that Lisa has ind icated . So they have a 
contract and they say you real ly don't need to know about it. I submit that is incorrect 
because we are paying the premiums. If we as the payer and from the tax- payer dol lars 
do not have an opportun ity to look at what's going on by the PBM ,  we may next time 
around get an premium increase of another 1 5-20% we don't know why, the cost just went 
up.  So we have the opportun ity and I bel ieve we have the responsib i l ity to have that PBM 
audited . Now that audit is private and th is committee doesn't receive the aud it results. We 
don't know what's going on with any ind ividual  patient; that is a l l  confidential and just has to 
do with rebating and spread pricing and al l  kinds of th ings that may be foreign knowledge 
and foreign terms to most people. But there are hundreds of b i l l ions of dol lars of rebates 
that the manufactures pay to PBM's and a rebate is sort of bonus for using that 
manufacturer particu lar d rug or d rugs. The question is whose rebate is it? I submit fi rst of 
a l l  any health p lan needs to know what the rebates are ,  and then you need to decide the 
PERS board should know what they are and decide how they are going to be uti l ized . Is the 
health insurance plan going to keep part of the rebates? Are we going to g ive part of the 
rebates back to the prescription people who pay for the prescription? Is the health plan 
going to have the rebates or wi l l  we share ,  that is sort of important about the PBM? 

Senator Heckaman:  You mentioned that Blue Cross had there prescription portion 
audited . Were there find ings at that time with rebates and so forth? 

Representative Kasper: I do not know the resu lts of the audit .  I do know this ,  if you're 
covered under the PERS plan you may have received the same th ing .  About every quarter 
under the Blue Cross plan we would get a l ittle one pager that says your  rebate for this 
q uarter is so many dol lars.  I don't know how the information was obtained or how it was 
shared . You might ask Sparb about that. 

Representative Hogan :  Who would pay for this audit ,  a lthough I th ink we' re cal l ing it 
analysis aren't we? Who would be responsible for the cost? 

Representative Kasper: It would be a contract that PERS would enter into, but most of the 
time it's very inexpensive. Many of the consulting fi rms across the U S  wou ld enter into 
contract where it wou ld be a share of what we find that you should have as refunds to your  
health p lan .  Those are one time of contracts, or they could have a cost for the contract itself 
for the audit .  The reason we changed the words in the b i l l  from audit to the word ing in the 
b i l l ,  is because we found from the aud itors' office that if you use the audit in this area, you 
would have to retain a CPA firm to be the lead firm and CPA fi rms generally do not 
specia l ize in  aud it ing PBM's so we changed the language just the same thing but we could 
not use the term audit because we wanted the opportun ity for the PERS board to engage i n  
a consult ing firm that special izes in  this type of work. Linda ind icated for a p lan this size you 
m ight be ta lk ing $75 ,000-$ 1 00,000 for an audit . But that is just. 

Representative Hoga n :  I nsurance compan ies that use PBM's routinely audit them , is that 
an  internal practice do you know? 

Representative Kasper: That's a good q uestion . I 've been in health insurance over 20 
years. What the PBM's wi l l  try to say is wel l  the employer knows what's going on ,  they are 
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sophisticated and you don't need to interfere . What I found in  my practice is most 
employers have no clue what a PBM is. They don't know how it works , they don't know the 
intricacies of what I have j ust shared with you ,  just to a small degree, and therefore they 
need help, because they are at the mercy of the insurance company and the PBM or both 
depend ing upon what they do.  The major compan ies that is standard procedu re .  They have 
enough attorneys to know to do it. 

Representative Hogan :  I was interested though in that the insurer would have a strong 
interest in the assur ing effective util ization of the dol lars through a PBM,  because they are 
paying for those costs. And so the insurer not so much the employer or whoever is paying 
the benefit, but the insurer who is the middle man, would have a pretty strong vested 
interest, wou ldn't you think? 

Representative Kasper: You would seem to think so. They should probably support that. 
Remember the insurance company is in with PBM also. They may not have the right type of 
negotiated contract or may not know al l  the information they need , but this information 
would be valuable for the insurance company as wel l  as for the PERS board and the state 
tax payers to know exactly what is going on .  

Representative Hogan :  It seems to me this is a l ittle b i t  government over-reach in  the 
private industry. I a lways wanted to say that. To you especial ly. (39 : 36) 

Representative Kasper: We're ta lking about apples and oranges. The apples we are 
ta lking about here is a government contract. Therefore, we as a leg islative body 
appropriate the funds. They come from the taxpayer of the State of North Dakota . So I 
believe it is our obl igation and fid uciary responsibi l ity to find the truth , so that the truth 
makes us whole. In the private side of th ings, it is lazier fa i re buyer beware. The deal I 
have with my cl ients because we know about it. That may not be the case in other 
businesses across the state or nation .  We don't want government i nterference there .  

Representative Hogan :  i t  seems to me that one of the reasons we privatize insurance, its 
because we trust the private sector. She thinks we should trust the private section in this .  

Representative Kasper: I l ike the saying trust, but verify. 

Chairman Krebsbach : ask Mr. Sparb Col l ins to come up to the pod ium.  She 
understands that we have been doing this in the past with the Blue Cross B lue Sh ield and 
the PBM that has been handl ing our insurance up to this point. Is there any reason why we 
wi l l  not continue to do this type of analysis or audit in the future .  

Sparb Col l ins ,  North Dakota Publ ic Employee Retirement System.  We have done one 
audit about 4 years ago, taking a look at the relationship prime therapeutics was the 
contractor of Blue Cross Blue Sh ield . Prime is a whole owned subsidiary of a series of 
Blue Cross Blue Shield across the country that they use. As part of our fu l ly insured 
contract with them, that is who they use. We do not have a d i rect contractual relationship 
with Prime. We won't have a d i rect contractual relationship with Express Scripts here 
because this is a bundled product with Sanford . The type of audit we d id is ,  our 
expectation was that we wil l  receive 1 00% of the rebates that they get from Sanford . With 
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Blue Cross it was sl ightly less. We went i n ,  we wanted to take a look at that we were 
getting what we were told we were going to get. The company was TriCast. They took a 
look. The contract between Prime and Blue Cross Blue Sh ield is a confidential contract. 
North Dakota Publ ic Employee Retirement System itself d idn 't get a chance to take a look 
at it. Through arrangements in the contract, our contractor got the opportun ity to take a 
look at it, and they had to hold it confidential as wel l .  But they were able to  g ive us a report 
that we were gett ing passed through the rebates that we wanted . The peripheral  question 
that we had was whether there was any spread pricing going on. That is where there 
markup that goes on in  the system on the d rugs, and the PBM keeps some of that. It is a 
way of generating revenue in  the system.  We wanted to know that. We were able to verify 
that there wasn 't any spread pricing.  We went back one year  in  claims. We took a look at 
it at that t ime. Wou ld we continue to do aud its in the future? It would be prudent to do so. 
The timeframe of when you do them is what is critica l .  For example,  you might take a look 
at it over a longer period of t ime. You probably wouldn't want to do an aud it on somebody 
that we may not be keeping .  We probably wouldn't go out on an audit one year in advance 
of the b id ,  because we just fin ished up an aud it and we may end up not having that carrier, 
and that money wou ldn't do us any good . U ltimately you are looking at, you want to trust 
and verify, but you also want some return on investment out of this. It is $75,000 to 
$ 1 00 ,000. If you do big audits, when we were going to be self insured , the contract was 60 
pages long , with 1 6  exhibits . It specified everyth ing .  That audit would be substantia l ly 
more because of the detai ls .  They wil l  vary based on the scope. You want to be able to do 
it at a time that is usefu l ,  and to be able to do it often enough to be able to get some return 
on investment and verification .  

Chairman Krebsbach : we heard the figure of $75,000 to $ 1 00 ,000. 

Mr. Sparb Col l ins :  depends on how extensive . Ours was $40,000 a few years ago, but it 
was oriented to make sure we got the rebates and that there wasn't spread pricing .  Make 
sure the claims were priced correctly. 

Senator Heckaman :  (45 .48) you would have the authority to continue that practice with 
the new contract. 

Mr. Col l ins:  we wou ld have to work with Sanford to make sure that the condition that we 
had with Blue Cross Blue Sh ield , their contract with Prime is confidentia l .  PBMs are very 
guarded about. We have to make sure al l  these things would get worked out. What we are 
concerned with is not knowing the detai ls what that PBM does . We are getting back 1 00% 

rebates. Right now, we have what is known as a member rebate account, and some of 
these rebates flow back to the members. We wi l l  be contin uing with Sanford . We' l l  have a 
gap in  here . 

Representative Thoreson:  you said that program was d iscontinued under Blue Cross , 
but wi l l  start again with the new provider. Wil l  it start immed iately or a delayed 
imp lementation since there was a stopping of it before. 

Mr. Col l ins:  it wi l l  be effective in January, but some of the rebates don't get settled out for 
6 months or a year. 
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Representative Keiser: you mentioned if a contract was end ing ,  you mentioned that the 
t iming many not be of va lue to do an aud it .  Would there be some va lue at that point in 
doing an audit to find out information that might influence the way the next contract would 
be written? 

Mr. Col l ins:  From that perspective, yes. But you are also trying to get some return on 
investment. If we are going to spend $75 ,000 of our members money, we need to spend 
wisely and get some return on this. We do aud its with the state aud itor of our whole 
business system every year. There isn't necessarily return on investment on that. You j ust 
want to make sure that we are doing what we do. 

Representative Keiser: he understands that, but if you d id find someth ing that cou ld save 
that money.  The second th ing , Rep. Keiser read language from the contract .  (ends 50 :09) .  
The contract says that Sanford wi l l  do i t .  The audits functions is to make sure they d id .  I s  
that correct? 

Mr. Col l ins:  Yes. You also notice the contract, on page 1 9, that underneath our 
performance standards, there are performance standards that we get 1 00% of the rebates, 
and if we don't, there is a penalty. So if we go out and find out that there isn't, he th inks the 
penalty is about $ 1 0 ,000. We have performance standards in the contract that total up to 
about $500 , 000. The carrier has to meet certa in expectations. One of those is the 1 00% 
rebates. 

Representative Keiser: And you have to know that you got 1 00% of those rebates. 

Representative Hoga n :  her q uestion is about t iming of an audit .  Because we have a 
new provider start ing Ju ly 1 51 , how much time wou ld you need to have in  practice for them 
to be able to do a good aud it? Even at 6 months, would you have enough data? You 
would probably need at least one year. And then if you have to rebid in 2 years, we are 
right back into this cycle. So from a t iming point of view, if you were to do this type of audit ,  
how would it work? 

Mr. Col l ins:  it's one of the d i lemmas of a two year requ i rement. You would have to be at 
least one year in .  But keep in mind that you would prefer to be further in ,  because some of 
the rebates take a whi le to run through the system. You also have a claims lag . If you 
want a fu l l  year of data, you will be doing that further down the l i ne .  

Chairman Krebsbach : we are going to go on the floor. 

The hearing was recessed at this t ime. 
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Chairman Krebsbach ca l led the Conference Committee Hearing to order on Monday, Apri l 
27, 201 5 at 9 : 00 pm in the Harvest Room in regards to SB 2022 . All Conference 
committee members were present. They are as fol lows : 

Senators : Karen Krebsbach , Chair. ; Dick Dever, Joan Heckaman 
Representatives: Blair Thoreson , George Keiser, Kathy Hogan 

Shei la M .  Sand ness and Michael Johnson, Leg islative Counci l  
N ick Creamer, OMB 

Chairman Krebsbach: We wil l reconvene on  the conference committee on  2022. There 
is one entity we need to hear from, the PBM.  

Rod St. Aubyn, PCMA, Pharmacy Care Management Association said that his 
organ ization operates as the overal l  association for the PBMs (Pharmacy Benefits 
Management) and provided some information on PBMs and the ones representing Sanford 
in the contract. 
I would cal l  this more than an amendment; this is real ly a separate b i l l  that has been 
establ ished as an amendment. What this is real ly doing is establ ishing an audit ;  you are 
establ ishing th is on a downstream entity. There is no contract between PBM and PERS. 
Someone used DOT as an example with a contractor that is bu i ld ing a road and that 
contractor has a subcontract with someone who provides a materia l .  I n  those particu lar 
situations, this would be l ike having the state saying they want to do a financial analysis on 
that subcontract and that's simi lar to what is happening here when you have a contracting 
that is cal led a fu l ly insured product. The d ifference between fu l ly insured is that the insurer 
genera l ly assumes most of the risk , this is kind of a hybrid so it is d ifferent. In a fu l ly 
insured product, the insurance company assumes al l  risk and al l  ga in .  In a self-funded 
mechanism, the company assumes all risks and all gains.  They contract for these services 
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for health benefits, they contract for PBM services , and in those particu lar situations there 
is a d irect l ink between the two entities . 

Representative Keiser: There have been comments that ta lked about a l l  this stuff being 
confidentia l .  Where in  the amendments does it say anything about al l th is information 
being kept confidential? 
He read from the bottom of page 5 ,  number 3. 
If you look at al l the information they have, a lot of this information we wou ld consider it 
confidentia l .  U n less there is some provis ion to make it confidentia l ,  proprietary, I don't 
know how you could prevent the i nformation from being ava i lable to the publ ic. So that is 
one concern we have, ( 1 )  there is no contractual arrangement between PERS and the 
state. If it was a situation where it was self-funded , we would agree that it is log ica l .  Even 
when I worked at Blue Cross, we performed our own internal  aud it and we tried to identify 
that the arrangements made with that particular PBM are correct. We oppose these 
amendments we feel it is inappropriate between a fu l ly insured product and the state 
because there is no agreement whatsoever. 

Representative Keiser: With a large company that contracts with a carrier and the carrier 
then contracts with PBM,  does that large company contract d i rectly with the PBM? 

Rod St. Aubyn : Usual ly those large companies are self-funded and they wi l l  contract 
d i rectly with PBM.  

Representative Keiser: Are there any instances where they use the carrier to contract? 

Rod St. Aubyn : I 'm not aware , I don't know what a l l  the contracts that exist out there. But 
one thing they could do is require some type of third party admin istrators than what it is. I n  
those particular situations,  they may require that there needs to be some analysis done for 
a PERS to be self-funded . One other thing I should mention, the PBMs are not j ust some 
unregulated thing in  the state of ND .  There are specific provisions in ND Century code 
regu lating pharmacy. Not every state has that. 

Chairman Krebsbach: asked Rebecca Ternes to come forward and exp la in what the 
regu lations are for PBMs in  N D  

Rebecca Ternes, ND Insurance Department Deputy Commissioner, talked about the 
relevant sections of the c�ntury code. 

Representative Hoga n :  Do you do any audits of PBMs? 

Rebecca Ternes: We do not regularly examine PBMs l ike we do compan ies. Compan ies 
have to be examined on a period ic basis. 

Chairman Krebsbach :  If there were complaints, would you have the authority to do so? 

Rebecca Ternes: Yes , we would .  As a part of our regular financial examine on insurance 
carriers , it is defin itely a component that we look at to make sure that the rebates coming to 
the carriers are what is promised in their contract and they are being booked accord ing ly on 
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their financial  state. I n  the case of the two insurers that we keep talk ing about ( 1 ) Blue 
Cross Blue Sh ield , we are the domestic stake so we do those exams. (2) Sanford has 
regular exams by their domestic stake , SD. We cou ld look at those exams, we could 
participate if we wanted to or if we had a particu lar issue, or we cou ld issue our own audit 
because they do have a l icense in  ND .  

Senator Dever: Is there experience in having done those? 

Rebecca Ternes: I bel ieve we were involved in one with one carrier as far as PERS with 
Blue Cross Blue Shield , but I can't tel l  you specifically, I 'd have to go look to g ive you an 
exact answer on that. I don't recal l  many complaints on PBMs other than the legis lation 
you have looked at. 

Senator Dever: Who would be l ikely to bring it? 

Rebecca Ternes : I t  could be a self- insured g roup ,  even though we don't have authority 
over most of the contracting with them. If they had a problem with a PBM that was 
reg istered by us ,  we could probably look at that. It could be a carrier that has a contract 
that is having a problem with PBM.  More l ikely, it wou ld be one PBM complain ing about 
another PBM.  

Chairman Krebsbach asked the committee where they were at  with the b i l l .  

Representative Thoreson: We have tried to bring forward some information concern ing 
amendments which the House has put forward since our first meeting and we stand by 
them . I don't know if the Senate conferees have any additional q uestions at this hour or if 
we need to work certain parts of the b i l l .  I wou ld be happy to answer any questions or I wi l l  
work towards resolution .  

Senator Dever: Are we going to have any conversation about the appropriation part of this 
b i l l?  

Representative Thoreson :  We d id touch on that at the beg inn ing ; we certa in ly can look at 
that portion . We can go to the amendment and look at the changes in the detai ls on bottom 
of page 6 of the amendment. The health insurance premium increases, that is an issue 
we're somewhat comfortable with . The other issues revolve around the FTE positions 
with in the b i l l  and that was some determination in our d iscussion both in the government 
operation section and the fu l l  appropriation's committee with the budget situation as it was . 
We had looked at paring back that area at this t ime, including the temporary salary that was 
removed by our committee 

Chairman Krebsbach:  Were there any FTEs requested? 

Representative Thoreson :  On top of page 7: 
Item # 3 has one financial officer with one FTE 
Item # 4 is the benefits for the FTE position ; a l l  that shows is a . 5  FTE.  
Item # 5 is  temporary support staff; we removed that in  our appropriation committee. 
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Chairman Krebsbach: I am certa in ly g lad you brought this up because it is probably one 
of the more important things. We had added 1 . 5 FTEs and it looks as though the House 
removed those. The entire budget comes from special funds and I am going to have to 
reacquaint myself with those to see how strong we should ins ist on keeping them for the 
department. 

The committee d iscussed the fact that there are pol icy issues in  the b i l l .  

Chairman Krebsbach: I don't th ink we are going to come to resolution tonight .  We d id 
receive more testimony on H B  1 475 and we have not had a chance to review that, so we 
wil l  meet again tomorrow and look at the money on the bi l l  and then we wi l l  go into the 
pol icy. 

Chairman Krebsbach adjourned the conference committee on SB 2022 . 

• 
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Chairman Krebsbach cal led the Conference Committee Hearing to order on Tuesday, 
Apri l 28 , 201 5 at 9 : 00 am in  the Harvest Room in regards to SB 2022. All Conference 
committee members were present. They are as fol lows : 

Senators: Karen Krebsbach , Cha i r; Dick Dever ,  Joan Heckaman 
Representatives: Blair Thoreson ,  George Keiser, Kathy Hogan 

Michael Johnson and Shei la M.  Sandness, Leg islative Counci l  
Lori Laschkewitsch and N ick Creamer, OMB 

Chairman Krebsbach : Please note that a l l  conferees are present. 

Senator Dever: I 've had time to th ink about this and if we cou ld wa lk through and I ' l l  share 
what my thoughts are. They are not necessari ly those of the other Senators or possibly not 
the House. If we start on Section 3 and 4 and they involve the membership on the board . I 
am looking at the christmas tree Version . I could l ive with putting 2 legislators on the board 
and not removing the other two . 

Senator Heckaman:  You mean not removing the Attorney General and the Health 
Department? 

Senator Dever: That is my thought. 

Chairman Krebsbach : You are suggesting an increase of the board from 7 to 9 including 
two leg islators . 

Senator Dever: I n  Section 5 that is the audit of the PBMs.  I n  our conversation last n ight, it 
came to my understand ing that if there is a complaint the insurance commissioner has the 
abi l ity to cond uct those audits. It was also my understanding that the PERS board does do 
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those kinds of aud its when they consider it appropriate in  consideration of return on 
investment; that the cost of doing the audit j ustifies the audit .  So if it is a matter of good 
business practice I would hope that they do that. I don't see it as necessary and I am 
uncomfortable that they never had a hearing.  If it is important to the sponsors of that 
provis ion,  then maybe they can bring it as a bi l l  in the next session to a l low it that fu l l  
consideration .  Regard ing the term of the contract, I th ink that re-bidd ing i t  every two years is  
going to add expense and stifle competition.  I don't l ike that provision .  Regard ing the 
sharing of information in Section 7 ,  Subsection 1 ,  I think there is benefit to the state and to 
others of having certa in information that is agg regated and non-identifiable and I th ink that 
particu lar subsection creates a barrier to that. Subsection 2 ,  I th ink we had good 
conversation about that last n ight .  I don't think we should apply to Sanford requ i rements 
that we do not apply to other b idders. It seems to me that we are trying to i nterject leg islative 
input into the relationship between the carrier and the people they do business with .  On 
Section 8 ,  considering that we had the same carrier for 37 years, there may be some things 
that we should look at adjusting prospectively going forward . I am not sure that we are in  the 
environment r ight now to do that. That might be something for the next session.  Regard ing 
the l imitations, I th ink if we delete the other sections, we are not going to need to rebid the 
contract. I th ink that point would be mute too. What I am suggesting is that we put 2 
leg islators on the board and we wil l  have that kind of input and that we delete Sections 5 
through 9 which wou ld take also take Section 1 0  out. I am not ready to make a motion 
because I am not sure what the budget consideration should be. 

Chairman Krebsbach : There is good food for thought there .  

Senator Heckaman : I agree in  part with the majority of what Senator Dever said . I am 
trying to th ink on the number of stud ies that we have put in  d ifferent b i l ls  and i f  that shouldn't 
be part of this - to study the contracts and some of the issues in  here .  I went through a 
large part of the testimony on H B  1 475 last n ight and some of it is very d isjointed on how it 
is transcribed and so it is very d ifficult to keep any continuity in  it. It is not something that I 
fe lt that I could handle in  one even ing of looking at testimony. I don't want to be wrong about 
this when I make this decis ion . I agree that getting rid of the majority of these sections 
would probably be in the best interest of the state and our employees right now and maybe 
put a study in here .  We may have a study already that addresses this because we have 
had so many in the last couple of days. 

Chairman Krebsbach : I don't recal l  any studies. 

Representative Hoga n :  Last n ight I looked at all of the sections and of course the pol icy 
side of this b i l l  was new to me but I tried to find neutra l positions and so I have some draft 
comments. See Attachment 1 for SB 2022 Draft Ideas for Committee Review. I agree with 
Senator Dever's idea of having only 2 leg islators . I ta lked to Sparb about the l imitations in  
Section 9 and he said that was not an issue. 

(9 : 1 5)Representative Keiser: Certa in ly, from my perspective, the el imination of those two 
board members is critica l because of the confl ict of interest g iven their rules in the state. 
When we have ind ividuals from a regu latory department and i nd ivid uals from the Attorney 
Genera l's office participating in  the decision , if there ever is a court case it does create an 
unusual environment. Certain ly one that can be managed but we can avoid having to 
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manage those environments by not having those ind ividuals on the board making decisions 
that we then have to defend or oppose in the cou rts . We certa in ly can take under 
consideration the red uction of the number of leg islators and consider red ucing that. I am 
not agreeing to that at this time but it is a possibi l ity. The fact that we have those people - I 
feel very strongly they have to be removed in  order to maintain their integrity for their offices 
and for the operation of the state of North Dakota .  On Section 5 ,  I would suggest that the 
language be changed . I do not have it typed up but on the christmas tree Section 5, it could 
read , "at least once every 2 years the board shall select a fi rm to complete a financial and 
healthcare analysis of the prescription d rug coverage under the health benefits coverage.  
Th is may not be construed to requ i re the firm to be a certified publ ic accounting fi rm . The 
contract entered into shal l  have the confidential ity clauses necessary ."  It would strike 
"contracting for the analysis the state aud itor shal l  consider input from". And then the board 
shal l  develop the scope of the evaluation and everything would contin ue but in an 
appropriate p lace there would be included an appropriation of $ 1 00,000 from the health 
insurance reserve fund for the cost of th is review process. As was ind icated , there would be 
a cost associate with it so I th ink we have a reasonable requ i rement that we do that. As for 
the other sections, in Section 7 ,  as you know we did have another b i l l ,  at this point it is 
somewhat i rrelevant except we did remove a great number of the areas of concern that we 
had that never had the opportun ity for d iscussion . We el iminated the sections on marking , 
the sections on network adequacy which we felt very strongly about, we el iminated al l  of the 
sections relative to process - which involved exped ited bidding and t iming and other issues 
related to management, and we el iminated the section on claims processing in  North 
Dakota and we also e l iminated open access to providers .  We d id not place them in this b i l l  
because we d id want to come in good faith to you and say that these other sections of our 
b i l l  a re very important to us and we believe they are important to our constituents and 
important to the integrity of the healthcare provider system in the state . I feel very strongly 
that we have to mainta in those. 

( 1 4 : 1 1 )Chairman Krebsbach :  We have a vast d ifference between the House and the 
Senate on this .  I th ink the Senate takes the position that they have trust in what the PERS 
board has been doing and wil l  continue to do. I th ink that is qu ite evident by the vote that 
came out of the Senate. 

Senator Heckaman :  I guess I wou ld l ike to add ress the concerns of Representative Keiser 
on the board with the removal of the Attorney General and the Health Officer. I th ink if you 
are going to set a p recedent and do that here you would have to remove them from every 
other board that they sit on and that is qu ite vast in the state of North Dakota . You would 
have to address that some other way because the Attorney Genera l  s its as a member on 
many boards and commissions for the state . If you feel it is a confl ict of interest in this, I 
would certain ly say it wou ld be in  al l  of the rest of the areas too. Are you suggesting that 
happen for a l l  of the rest of the boards too? 

Representative Keiser: If there are potential law suits involved , I do th ink that is a conflict, 
absolutely. 

Senator Heckaman:  I think the Attorney Genera l  currently s its on some boards and 
commissions that is a possibi l ity and I do not know that I consider it a confl ict of interest as 
much as doing the job of the position that he has been elected to . 



Senate Appropriations Committee 
SB 2022 PERS Conference Committee ( 1 51 Hearing) 
04-28-201 5  9:00 am 
Page 4 

Representative Keiser: I do th ink each case is a un ique case . Here we had the potential 
of two state agencies su ing each other and in  that case if the Attorney Genera l  is in  that 
position on any of those other boards. Now, if we are suing the Un ited States, the Corp of 
Engineers, or someone else that is an  entirely d ifferent issue; wherever we have the 
potential for two state agencies to be engaged in  a law suit. You could always argue that 
the leg islature could a lways be involved in  a law suit .  To my knowledge, and my experience 
in  the leg islatu re this is the first time this has ever arisen .  

Chairman Krebsbach :  Where has i t  arisen? Can you explain that to me? 

Representative Keiser: This is the first time I 've ever seen the potential threat ra ised that 
we wou ld have one state group suing another state group in  court .  

Chairman Krebsbach:  I am not aware where i t  is done now? 

Representative Keiser: There was testimony in the Senate hearing that l isted 4 areas 
where Sanford wou ld be su ing and the board as wel l  as the state would be involved . At that 
point I asked the Attorney Genera l  who he would be representing if we were on opposite 
sides; between the PERS board and the leg islature .  He said that's a chal lenge but it cou ld 
be m�maged . 

Senator Dever: I am a l ittle bit confused by that. If the PERS board and the leg is lature are 
on opposite sides of a law suit which one would be the plaintiff? 

Representative Keiser: It depends which one brings forth the charges. 

Chairman Krebsbach:  Here we are ta lking about what ifs. 

Senator Dever: I guess at that point it was Sanford that was the injured party. If we 
address the concerns in th is b i l l  and we delete them as I have suggested , then there is no 
threat, and if there is a perceived confl ict, which wou ld have a lready been created because 
that was a part of the process bringing th is forward . 

Chairman Krebsbach:  Are there any further suggestions as to amendments on this b i l l?  

Senator Dever: I am not sure where we are at with the budget port ion of this .  Is that 
something that is under consideration? 

Chairman Krebsbach : I t  is on the Senate side, it is our b i l l  for the agency. 

Senator Dever: I would be prepared to propose the amendments as I suggested then 
and see where they go. 

Chairman Krebsbach :  That would be to include two in  the board ,  and what 
recommendation wou ld you have as to who they would be? 



Senate Appropriations Committee 
SB 2022 PERS Conference Committee ( 1 51 Hearing) 
04-28-201 5  9 :00 am 
Page 5 

Senator Dever: My suggestion would be that they would be the majority leaders or their 
designees . And then the rest of the amendment would be to remove section 5 - 1 0 . 

Chairman Krebsbach : Would not includ ing the leg islators on the board be as much a 
confl ict as having the Attorney General  and the Health Department. 

Senator Dever: If the law suit is going to be between PERS and the legislature I guess you 
cou ld make that argument. I th ink it is important to the House that leg islators sit on the 
PERS board . I th ink there would be some benefit to that in  that they would come away with 
a l ittle d ifferent perspective and next session they may l ikely ask to be removed . I have the 
g reatest respect for both Tom Trenbeath and Arvy Smith who serve on that board and I 
would never pretend to the q ua l ifications that they both bring to that board . 

Representative Thoreson :  I would echo the comments of Senator Dever. I t  is not a 
q uestion of the persons who are fi l l ing those spots at this t ime, I th ink it's more the position 
itself; whether it is those ind ividual  or whoever else. It is more of a process issue having 
persons from those agencies not the ind ivid uals who are there .  I certain ly respect the work 
they do.  

Senator Heckaman:  Seconded. 

Chairman Krebsbach:  We have a motion and let's cal l  the rol l .  

A Roll Ca l l  vote was taken .  Yea: 3 ;  Nay: 3 ;  Absent: 0. 
Motion fai led. 

Representative Keiser: I would move that at least we would have one amendment for 
Section 5 ,  as I ind icated , which wou ld simply g ive the board itself the abi l ity to contract for 
the PBM review and that we also put in  the financing of $ 1 00,000 from the health insurance 
reserve fund . I can have amendments prepared . The concept is to s imply take the auditor 
out of it and put in a confidentia l ity requ i rement and then also put i n  the funding for that 
review of $ 1 00,000.  

Chairman Krebsbach:  I would say to go ahead and have i t  prepared . We are open to any 
and al l  amendments i n  the committee. 

Representative Hogan :  Is it you r  intent that this audit be presented to lapracy sti l l  or is that 
the correct organ ization . Perhaps we want to change that last section . 

Representative Keiser: I th ink it should go to the PERS board . There is a confidential ity 
issue. 

Senator Dever: Somehow I am approach ing my time on employee benefits. I have a 
problem with coming to other people's pre-conceived conclusions. I am curious if it is sti l l  
the intent in  the amendment that i t  be a mandatory audit every two years.  

Representative Keiser: The language says that i t  shal l  be done i n  the next two years.  
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Senator Dever: It does not spell out beyond that. 

Representative Keiser: I t  does not. 

Chairman Krebsbach :  I th ink we have moved as far as we can go at this t ime. 

Representative Hogan :  Could we get an amendment d rafted on Section 6 regard ing the 
language to mi rror the language on the Sanford contract right now as an alternative to the 
current language, and cou ld we get an amendment drafted on section 7 - #2 , regard ing the 
insurance commissioner. I have the rol l  of the insurance commissioner monitoring provider 
agreement contracts and doing reports on that activity rather than us setting those l imits . 

Senator Dever: You might take a look at the Senate amendments on H B  1 475 regard ing 
that provision because we made reference to that section .  

Representative Hogan :  Perhaps leg islative counci l  can he lp us do that and prepare that. 

Chairman Krebsbach :  We wil l recess unti l  1 1  : 30 am . 
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Chairman Krebsbach called the Conference Committee Hearing to order on Tuesday, 
April 28, 201 5 at 1 1  : 30 am in the Harvest Room in regards to SB 2022. All Conference 
comm ittee members were present. They are as fol lows: 

Senators : Karen Krebsbach , Chair; Dick Dever, Joan Heckaman 
Representatives: Blair Thoreson ,  George Keiser, Kathy Hogan 

M ichael Johnson and Shei la M. Sandness , Legislative Counci l  
Lori Laschkewitsch and N ick Creamer, OMB 

Chairman Krebsbach : Let the record show that a l l  conferees are present. When we left we 
had some d iscussion and you were going to look at some further amendment and we were 
also going to look at the budget on this b i l l .  F irst we wi l l  take up any amendments that are 
being presented at this t ime. 

Representative Keiser: I don't have them yet but I th ink that they wi l l  be com ing but if you 
want to go on to the budget we can do that. 

Chairman Krebsbach : Was there any other amendments to be presented? If not let's look 
at the budget. I asked for a recap so we can see what we have to d iscuss. 

1 .  PERS Budget No. 1 92-Senate Version/House Version/House Changes to Senate 
Version.  

2 .  RIO Budget No.  1 90 - Senate Version/House Version?House Changes to Senate 
Version.  

3 .  R IO  Budget No.  1 90 - Executive Budget Recommendation 
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4 .  PERS Budget No.  1 92 - Executive Budget Recommendation 

Chairman Krebsbach : We are going to the 1 90 and 1 92 which is just the retirement with the 
Senate and the House and the House changes . 

Representative Thoreson :  I a m  looking for budget number 1 90 with the d ifference between 
the Senate and the House that one I do not have yet. 

Chairman Krebsbach : Let's go to the 1 92 version of the Senate House and changes. 

Representative Thoreson :  On this version, Senate verses House on the PERS budget, 
number 1 92 .  In the House there were 2 positions when we got the b i l l .  One was for a ch ief 
financial officer position which is a fu l l  FTE and the associated funding of j ust over $21 6 ,000 
and then there was a second half-time FTE for benefit support position with a funding of 
$51 ,346. I n  the House we did make the change to remove those two positions because of 
the changes between when th is budget was developed , if you look at the executive branch 
budget version those were included in there. From the time the budget had been developed 
we were looking for potential for savings understanding that this is not a genera l  fund 
budget but we sti l l  removed those two positions. We can have further d iscussion on those 
but it was the House's position at that time that they cou ld get by without them but we can 
certa in ly d iscuss that. The other issues here are that there is a red uction in the hea lth 
insurance of $32,450 and then we removed the $ 1 1 ,000 for the market equ ity salary 
increase portion.  The overal l  change if you look at the bottom of the sheet laying out 1 92 is 
a d ifference of a l ittle over $500 ,000.  

Chairman Krebsbach : I see that, the removal of the 1 . 5 employees that we had included . 

Representative Thoreson :  That is correct, madam Chair .  

Chairman Krebsbach : Let's ta lk about the ch ief financial officer position . From my 
understanding we have not ever put in a COO position and they are find ing that the person 
that is doing the work is doing the work of two people. Listening to the addit ional duties that 
are being performed there and al l  of the work that is needed we felt that it was important to 
spl it those two positions and have two people handle al l  this work making it more efficient. 

Representative Thoreson :  I know that we have testimony from when the House heard this 
bil l very much a long those l i nes and we understand spl itting the COO and the CFO into two 
positions maybe important for the organ ization .  I n  our d iscussions we thought that perhaps 
that, for the current time, the positon can be handled the way it is . We would contemplate 
that and see where we are on that. 

Chairman Krebsbach : Let's look at the next one, the benefits support positon that is a half­
time position. 

Representative Thoreson :  If I am not mistaken I bel ieve that position does exist and it wou ld 
take it from a half to FTE. 
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Chairman Krebsbach : I am sure the work is there for a fu l l  t ime person especia l ly in view of 
where we are at today. 

Representative Thoreson :  We did receive information on that; there was some information 
with tables showing the increase in  work and this is an area the House is wi l l ing to d iscuss. 
If the work load is there we' l l  see if we can include it in this budget. 

Chairman Krebsbach:  Then the benefits for those people, is that the $43,000? Lori can you 
help me out here? 

Lori Laschkewitsch , OMB:  The amount that was the 3 and 3 was the $ 1 1 ,000 to $62 ,000 
was the salary increase for those two positions. 

Chairman Krebsbach : And that is not reflected here whatsoever? 

Lori Laschkewitsch :  You' l l  see the minus $ 1 1 ,262 towards the top of the sheet that was 
handed out by leg islative counci l .  That wou ld automatically occur if you change the FTE. 

You asked about the $43,000 that was additional fu nding that was included in the budget 
due to the extra workload that has been occurring because of the retiree health cred it 
changes to become portable in this next bienn ium.  Anybody who is reti red that health care 
cred it can go with them to whatever health plan that they choose , there is significant work 
load if that goes forward and that is what the $43,000 was for. 

Chairman Krebsbach : That is not l isted separately here .  

Representative Thoreson :  Where is i t  that you are looking on here? 

Chairman Krebsbach : The benefits would be taken care of automatical ly in  the change in 
n umbers so we do not have to concern ourselves with that. However there is an additional 
$43,000 for temporary employees? 

Lori Laschkewitsch : That is add itional work load increase and temporary staff. The reason 
you aren't seeing it on there is because on one of the first sheets that show executive 
budget recommendations it wasn't moved over to be included in the budget and that is why 
you are not seeing a negative amount on the House side. 

Chairman Krebsbach: The Senate did not include that. This is something that has come 
later. 

Representative Thoreson :  We are now looking at the sheet with the executive budget and 
the Senate and House version is that correct? And where are we looking at that. 

Lori Laschkewitsch : Portab i l ity of retiree health credit is most of the way down the page. 
That was not included in  the Senate version that is why you don't see it on the last page 
with the House changes to the Senate version. 
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Chairman Krebsbach : But this is something because of the portabi l ity and the change in  the 
health credit is going to cause a lot of extra work for the PERS orig i nation .  

Lori Laschkewitsch: As of Ju ly 1 ,  201 5 anyone who retires and is pre Med icare rather than 
remaining on the PERS plan they wil l  go out to the exchange to purchase insurance unti l 
they reach Med icare age. Because of that one of the benefits you receive is that you have 
th is retiree health credit that currently assists you in the buying down of your  PERS p lan .  
Now, because you ae going to the exchange you are going to receive that health credit to 
take with you . 

Chai rman Krebsbach : My understand ing is that they have to retire by May 3 1 . 

Lori Laschkewitsch : Anyone who retires going forward this wi l l  be the case if they retire 
before they are 65 .  That admin istrative process has to be hand led by PERS.  

Chairman Krebsbach : We did ask th is  question of agencies and they were anticipating this.  
This comes because of the affordable care act. 

Lori Laschkewitsch : That is correct, I bel ieve that you are referring to agencies who retire 
before April 301h so that they could stay on the PERS plan and would not have to worry 
about their portabi l ity. Otherwise this wil l  apply to everyone who retires before they are 65 

Chairman Krebsbach : I was th inking that i t  was May 3 1  but i t  is Apri l .  This i s  j ust the 
anticipated add itional work that wi l l  be caused by this change. 

Representative Thoreson :  This is something that is not included in  the Senate version .  
would l ike some d i rection on why was i t  removed from the governor's budget when the 
Senate first took action on this b i l l .  

Chairman Krebsbach: I do not remember. Is i t  something that we can d iscuss that i f  we wi l l  
be wil l ing to add that? I wou ld appreciate it if you would converse on that and get back to 
us .  

Representative Thoreson:  If i t  is not in  there now I am not sure i f  we would be looking to 
put it in but we can have a d iscussion . However I am going to make a motion concerning 
the FTE positions. In  an effort to get it  moving that the House would recede from the 
House amendment, j ust this portion of it, to place back in the budget the one CFO 
and the half-time benefits support position.  

Representative Keiser: Second. 

There was no further d iscussion, rol l  was taken and the motion passed on a 6-0-0 
count. (Vote # 1 )  

Chairman Krebsbach : That takes care of that and if you need to mu l l  a l ittle b it o n  the other 
we can hold off on that and add ress it later. 
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Representative Hogan:  I n  terms of that $43,000 we a lso cut $200 , 000 in  overtime and I do 
not know if the overt ime and the $43,000 can be merged in  some way. 

Representative Thoreson :  That was another area I was going to bring up and in that case 
the executive budget and I bel ieve that was in addition of $200 , 000 and we had taken it 
back to the orig inal  amount and I am wondering for the $200 , 000 why that was placed over 
and above where it came in  the orig inal  recommendation . The executive recommendation 
was $ 1 22, 352 and the Senate had increased it by $200, 000 and the House had agreed with 
the $ 1 22, 352 so I am looking for the reason ing for the increase. 

Senator Heckaman:  I am looking at the executive budget now on pub l ic employees and 
Representative Thoreson , just said that they restored it back to the executive but I th ink 
that is $20 , 000 less. Just to make sure that it is on the record appropriately 

Representative Thoreson :  Where are you finding this? 

Senator Heckaman:  I am on the executive recommendation for temporary support position ,  
$ 1 22 , 352 . 

Representative Thoreson :  The House d id have it at $ 1 02, 352 so we did take it down from 
the executive budget. My question was where the Senate saw the need for the additional 
$200, 000 if we were to have a d iscussion on that. 

Chairman Krebsbach : I am going to plead ignorance I d id not carry th is b i l l  to the floor. I am 
going to ask Sparb to clarify why we d id what we d id .  

Sparb Col l ins ,  PERS:  Yes a s  the budget started out from the executive budget there was 2 
add itional FTE in  here and they were associated with us going self-funded if we were going 
to do that. Part of that, we anticipated , was those FTE wou ld help us with the transition 
things that we have l ike the retiree health credit, the governmental accounting standard 
board and we thought those FTEs wou ld help us in the first year  to transition to take care of 
some of those work efforts. We d idn't  see the need for the FTE in  the future as we were 
not going self-funded . What you decided was to take the FTE out and to assist in some of 
those transitions things to put in some temporary dol lars we wou ld hopefu l ly get through 
those work efforts and wou ldn't need the FTE in  the longer term . And a lso why the reti ree 
health insurance credit went down because that is now part of the bridging and using 
temporary persons,  we don't know if we have the work for those two FTEs long term but we 
do have short term need . So they were taken out on the Senate side.  

Chairman Krebsbach : So that is the two employees at $ 1 80 ,000 for the biennium? 

Sparb Col l ins :  $406 , 000. It is on the executive recommendation bottom l ine.  Since we d idn 't 
go self-funded we d idn 't need those two FTEs on the long term but we d id have shorter term 
efforts that we thought that they would help us out with and so we got rid of the $406 ,000 ,  
added a couple hundred thousand to get us through the near term and we wou ldn't have the 
longer term FTE .  
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Chairman Krebsbach: I am looking about 4 or 5 l ines above that you find the executive 
recommendation of $ 1 22, 352 and in the Senate version we went to $302 ,352.  

Sparb Col l ins: That is for the temporary support for the FTEs we need short term. 

Chairman Krebsbach : That d ifference makes $ 1 80, 000 and then if we go back over here we 
are $200,000 shy because we reduced the governor's by $20,000. 

Sparb Col l ins: That is also why we were able to get r id of the retiree health insurance cred it 
because it was added in to this portion .  

Chairman Krebsbach: So i f  we can get the House to agree to the $200,000 we are in  good 
shape, right? 

Representative Thoreson : I was going to put forward a motion here that wou ld move to 
restore the portab i l ity of retiree health credit in the amount of $43 ,052 and for the temporary 
support position the House had taken it down $20,000 from the executive recommendation 
and add that back and add an add itional $50,000 so that there would be an additional 
$70 ,000 put back in  from the House version for some additional help. 

Chairman Krebsbach : Can we spl it those into two? 

Representative Thoreson : I would move that we restore the $43,052 for the portabi l ity 
of retiree health credits. 

Senator Dever: Second.  

There was no further d iscussion, rol l  was taken and the motion passed on a 6-0-0 
(Vote # 2) 

Chairman Krebsbach : If we look at what we are exchanging for the other $ 1 20,000 and you 
were add ing $50, 000 besides that. 

Representative Thoreson :  That is correct; we would go back to the $ 1 22 ,000 and then add 
an addit ional $50,000 so the amount would then be $ 1 72 , 352.  

Cha irman Krebsbach : So we are a l ittle bit apart on that one. 

Representative Thoreson:  I th ink that it sti l l  g ives them some flexib i l ity; it may not be the ful l  
amount so I guess i t  would help bridge the gap so to speak. 

Chairman Krebsbach : Please repeat that for the record . 

Representative Thoreson : The total amount then for the temporary support position,  the 
House amount is $ 1 02 , 352 it would increase to $ 1 72 , 352 it would take it back to the 
executive budget recommendation and then add an add itional $50,000 on top so $ 1 72 ,352 
would be the amount. 
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Chairman Krebsbach : I feel l ike that it wil l  run them short in the temporary support positions 
and I look at it this way: it is there money and if they don't use it they don't need it. To have 
the authority is another th ing . Is there any other d iscussion on this? 

Senator Dever: Just so I am clear we are talking about genera l  fund dol lars we are talking 
about special funds derived from income? 

Chairman Krebsbach : Yes from with in  thei r  own area. 

Senator Heckaman:  Does th is go into ongoing or one-time funding? 

Lori Laschkewitsch , OMB: This would go into the ongoing temporary salaries. 

Chairman Krebsbach : Is there a way that can be spl it into some of it ongoing and some into 
one t ime. My understanding the d ifference, the $200 ,000 or $ 1 80,000 is not needed long 
term . 

Lori Laschkewitsch,  OMB:  That is correct a portion cou ld be spl it to one-time if you prefer 
and then reeva luated at the next budget to see if they sti l l  have that ongoing work load . 

Representative Thoreson :  Which portion wou ld best be identified as one-time? 

Chairman Krebsbach : The d ifference of going between the executive budget and the 
Senate version . The d ifference there would be the one-time. The $ 1 22 ,352 in the governor's 
budget wou ld be the ongoing . 

Representative Thoreson:  That was not identified as one-time when the Senate added the 
add itional $200 ,000 is that correct? 

Chairman Krebsbach : But the senate would be wi l l ing to make the change on that I am 
sure.  

Representative Thoreson :  I am not certain about the fu l l  amount i f  we wish to do this we 
cou ld spl it the d ifference.  I am not sure if I need to withd raw my motion or amend my 
motion . 

Chai rman Krebsbach : We have not voted on it. 

Representative Thoreson : What I would suggest is that we would basical ly go back to 
the executive branch and spl it the difference, add another $1 00,000 but identify that 
as one-time funding.  The $1 22,352 would be as it was in the executive 
recommendation and then that the House would add $1 00,000 for the temporary 
support position.  The total amount would be $222,352. 

Chairman Krebsbach : The only change is the health insurance . 

Representative Hogan :  Second. 
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Roll was taken,  motion passed on a 6-0-0 count (Vote # 3) 

Chairman Krebsbach: Just so we are clear here the on ly change on the ret irement 
investment office budget was the change in  the health insurance increase I believe. We 
have gone through a l l  the changes on the PERS. 

Representative Thoreson :  I a m  just checking that and a l l  I see i s  the change of $ 1 4 ,304 on 
the health insurance. 

Representative Keiser: Amendment # 1 5 . 8 1 55 .02025.  Attachment # 5.  

Representative Keiser: I suspect some of the numbers on the front sheet wi l l  have to be 
adjusted with the actions that we just took. The key amendments a re on page 2 ,  one of the 
problems with rush ing amendments though is that I see one thing that d id not get caught. 
On page 2, under governing authority this amendment rea l ly is designed to change the 
board back to a 7 person board and as membership on the board the speaker of the House 
of Representatives or designee, the majority leader of the Senate or a designee the other 
language is common but it does strike the attorney general  position and state hea lth officer 
position and may leave it at 9 because we have left in  here the appointment of m inority and 
majority from number 7 .  That may have been something that was missed . 

Representative Thoreson:  Looking at these, item #1 identifies a member from the majority 
leader in the House or their designee, item 2 from the Senate l ikewise, item 3 is the 
governor's appointee and item 4 is 3 additional members from active members and item 5 
one from the ret irees . 

Representative Keiser: I agree. The second major change is on page 3 ,  under the hea lth 
insurance benefits coverage of prescription drug analysis. Item one, take out the aud itor and 
say that at least once every 2 years the board shal l  select a fi rm to complete a financial and 
healthcare analysis,  that language stays the same. I cannot find it but the contract the 
board enters with the fi rm must include a confidentially clause and the analysis must include 
the fol lowing so we a re putting into stature that this is confidential in  nature a lthough I th ink 
that the contract would have ind icated that we are reinforcing that here. I ta lked to the 
legislative counci l  and asked to put in  an appropriation for $ 1 00 , 000. 
Pr ior to our session this morn ing ,  Sparb ind icated that we do not need that appropriation on 
page 5 ,  section 1 0  I have no problems putting appropriation in .  Those are the amendments. 

Representative Keiser: Moved the amendment. 

Representative Thoreson:  Second. 

Chairman Krebsbach : Is there any d iscussion? 

Senator Dever: I can't support removing the attorney genera l  and health officer in  section 4. 
In section 5,  in  our  previous conversation ,  I thought that the audit was going to be done 
with in  the next 2 years and not continue beyond that but the language appears to be the 
same as it was .  Section 6 I thought that we were talking about putt ing i nto code the same 
language that was in  the contract regard ing bidding every 2 years and it appears to be the 
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same that it was.  Section 7 appears to be the same that it was ,  a lso section 8 ,  9 appear to 
have no change. 

Representative Hogan : I have some additional amendments on 6 and 7.  

Chairman Krebsbach : We do have a set of amendments that were moved and seconded , 
take the rol l  ca l l  on the adoption of amendments . 02025.  

Rol l  was taken ,  the vote count was 3-3-0 and the motion fai led. (Vote # 4) 

Representative Hogan :  presented Attachment # 6- Amendment # 1 5 . 8 1 55 .02026. This 
amendment appears l ike section 5 has been changed s imi lar to what we just did but the 
information d id not get changed from the orig ina l .  The major things that I asked for was in 
section 6 ,  item #2 which goes to the contract and in  item #7 , #2 it ta lks about the 
compl iance with the carriers of preferred providers arrangements and benefits 
arrangements and how we comply with current state law. I have not had time to look at the 
d ifference but I know that I am very much in  support of section 6. I am wondering if we 
should look at it section by section .  

Senator Heckaman:  Were you saying that you were looking at  section 4 to add some 
d ifferent amendments but they d idn't get there, can you clarify that please. 

Representative Hogan :  I was supportive of the House amendments on section 4. I d id have 
some smal l  changes in  section 5 but I am ok with these if we want to just look at it section 
by section that would be wise. 

Chai rman Krebsbach : That would be fine. 

Representative Hogan :  Section 5 changes the responsibi l ity for the health care audit ;  it 
doesn't have the confidential ity in  it. Section 6 has the terms of the contract and the subject 
to two year  renewal ,  the status. Section 7 ,  rather than defin ing the specific issues it says the 
du ration of the compact and compl iance with chapter 26 .0 1  to ensure that we are 
contracting and complying with al l  the existing laws. This would mean that the insurance 
department would apply their normal standards and then if there were complaints about 
provider rates being inequ itable they wou ld investigate those on a case by case basis which 
is their current standard .  

Chairman Krebsbach : Which section i s  that in? 

Representative Hogan :  26 . 1 .47, that is the mechan ism whereby if there were complaints 
about Sanford not g iving equ itable treatment those are the protocols which are a lready i n  
p lace for addressing those concerns and we would use existing law to do that. I make that 
motion. 

Chairman Krebsbach : You have made the motion , is there a second? 

Senator Heckama n :  Second. 
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Senator Dever: I l ike section 6 .  

Representative Hogan :  Are we voting on section 6 a lone or the whole th ing? 

Chairman Krebsbach: The whole amendment. 

Roll was taken and the motion fai led on a 1 -5-0 count. (Vote #5) 

Chairman Krebsbach : I th ink that we are at a stalemate, 40 minutes unti l  we go on the floor. 
We will be in recess on this and l isten for announcements on when we wi l l  meet again .  

The hearing was then closed . 
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Chairman Krebsbach cal led the Conference Committee Hearing to order on Monday, April 
28, 201 5 at 2 :00 pm in the Harvest Room in regards to SB 2022 . All Conference 
committee members were present. They are as fol lows: 

Senators: Karen Krebsbach , Chair; Dick Dever, Joan Heckaman 
Representatives: Blair Thoreson ,  George Keiser, Kathy Hogan 

M ichael Johnson , and Allen Knudson , Leg islative Counci l  
Becky Deichert, OMB and Lori Laschkewitsch ,  OMB 

Chairman Krebsbach : What i s  our  approach? Do we have any amendments? 

Representative Thoreson : We certain ly made some changes from our position I don't 
have anyth ing at this time. 

Senator Dever: Just to get to conversation point, I would move the House recede 
from its amendments and further amend. 2"d by Senator Heckaman :  

Representative Thoreson : The motion would be for u s  to recede and adopt what we had 
agreed to previously, it would also remove other amendments the House had made to the 
b i l l .  

Senator Dever: That would be both my understanding and my intent. 

Chairman Krebsbach :  From section 3 thru section 1 0  would be removed , but the 
amendments that we agreed upon on the budget would be remain ing .  

Senator Dever:  I would be wi l l ing to add two leg islators to the PERS board and keeping 
the 2 members on there but we are at an impasse on that. The PBM provision PERS has 



Senate Appropriations Committee 
SB 2022 PERS Conference Committee Hearing (3rd Hearing) 
04-28-201 5  - 2 :00 pm 
Page 2 

the abi l ity to do that. We are in a contract with Sanford now and I don't know we should be 
renegotiating that contract thru legislation .  

Chairman Krebsbach:  Any further d iscussion? I f  not, cal l  the rol l  on Senator Dever's 
motion. 

A Roll Ca l l  vote was taken:  Yea : 4;  Nay: 2 ;  Absent: 0 .  (Vote # 1 )  Motion fa i led. 
Krebsbach:  Yes 
Dever: Yes 
Heckaman: Yes 
Thoreson:  No 
Keiser: No 
Hogan :  Yes 

Chairman Krebsbach:  I do not agree with changing that board whatsoever. I specia l ly do 
not agree with adding leg islators,  they do not belong there .  Anyth ing further? 

Representative Thoreson ; I th ink the House does not have anything else to offer at this 
t ime. What we have offered to put employees back in, the FTEs, we added add itional 
funding needed for the temporary items, we have offered amendments to clarify the issues 
deal ing both with the board makeup and the confidential ity issue, as it were. I th ink we sti l l  
bel ieve there are very important portions on this b i l l  that need to be there. 

Chairman Krebsbach:  we are going to take a five minute recess to d iscuss th ings among 
our own group.  We wil l  come back to order and go from this point. 

Representative Keiser: Another set of amendments are basical ly the amendments we 
offered this morn ing .  We d id not get the language corrected relative to the PBM audit; it 
would be one time in the next two years vs a requirement to do it every 2 years . I n  
add ition,  we d id not change, a s  proposed , the reduction to 7 members .  We req uest a 
correction .  We did add the insurance dept. and attorney genera l  and health dept. would 
designate one person to serve in  an  advisory position nonvoting capacity on the PERS 
board , i f  the issue was for them to provide expertise to the board . Those 3 are advisory, 
nonvoting members .  Because the subject matter the PERS board considers them valuable 
information resources. Our  amendment would sti l l  be 7 .  It wou ld take out the AG 
designee and the health officer and add 2 legis lators. 

Senator Dever: I 've expressed my concerns about the bi l l .  I would be happy to review the 
amendments. We don't know where the wil l  of the Senate is u nti l  we ru n it up .  

Chairman Krebsbach :  I am trying to get this moved a long , i f  we cou ld see this 
amendment during this t ime. It would speed up the process. We wil l  recess for a short 
t ime. We wil l  reconvene. I bel ieve he House members have a motion for action . 

Representative Thoreson: we have adopted certa in changes with the FTE's that would 
be part of the motion .  The add itional portion wou ld be to have the Senate accept the House 
amendments to the b i l l .  That wou ld be the motion.  We would recede and further amend . 
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Representative Keiser seconded. 

Michael Johnson ,  Leg is lative Counci l ;  the motion so far that was passed was to include 
1 . 5 FTEs, to add a CFO position and a benefits support position ;  a motion passed to 
restore the affordabi l ity for health cred it, motion passed to include onetime fund ing of 
$ 1  OOK to temporary support and to restore the ongoing temp support position to what was 
provided back in  the governor' recommendation . 

Representative Keiser: And then that is added into wh ich version of the House 
amendments .  

Sheila M. Sandness, Leg islative Counci l :  The house would recede and further amend , 
your  motion is to further amend with the dollar amount amendment , in  add ition to the 
sections added by the House. 

Representative Thoreson:  Yes and the add itional sections in amendment i n  02003. 

V. Chairman Krebsbach:  That is my understanding.  

Senator Dever: Need to correct the 7 or 9 persons on the PERS board , 

RepresentativeThoreson : 02003 is the amendment that the House adopted . 

V. Chairman Krebsbach :  We are going back to the orig inal  b i l l ,  goes to a 9 member board . 
I th ink there is an  understanding what the motion was .  If there is no further d iscussion on 
that motion,  Call the rol l  for the House to recede and further amend . 

Senator Heckaman :  I wi l l  vote o n  th is to get it moving but I don't know if I wil l  vote for it on 
the floor. 

A Roll Cal l  vote was taken.  Yea : 4; Nay: 2; Absent: 0.  Motion Carried. 
Krebsbach: Yes 
Dever: No 
Heckaman :  Yes 
Thoreson : Yes 
Keiser: Yes 
Hogan :  No 

Chairman Krebsbach:  The motion has carried . The work on conference committee is 
d issolved . 
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Chairman Krebsbach called the Conference Committee Hearing to order on Wednesday, 
April 29, 201 5 at 1 1  :00 am in  the Harvest Room in regards to SB 2022 . The conferees are 
as fol lows : 

Senators : Karen Krebsbach , Chair; Dick Dever, Joan Heckaman 
Representatives: Blair Thoreson ,  George Keiser, Kathy Hogan 

M ichael Johnson , and Al len Knudson and Sheila M.  Sand ness , Leg is lative Counci l  
Pam Sharp and Lori Laschkewitsch , OMB 

Chairman Krebsbach :  We wi l l  open the Conference Comm ittee Hearing on 2022 and 
Let the record show that the three Senate Conferees are in  attendance. Senator 
Dever, Senator Heckaman and Senator Krebsbach. Folks, I hate to waste people's time 
but I do th ink that it's important that we review what we have come to conclusion on and as 
the version was when it left th is body on Friday. The fi rst part I want to cover is the budget 
part which is a rea l  important part of this b i l l  and that is the budget for the PE Rs and the 
R IO ,  Retirement Investment Office. Good concessions were made on that budget between 
the conferees and we have a total budget for that entity of $ 1 4 ,309,77 1 . 00 ,  a total between 
the Retirement and the PERS.  The Retirement Office is a total of $5 ,4 1 3,425 .00 and 
includes 1 9  employees . The PERS budget is $8,896 ,346 .00 and includes 33 employees . 
That covers the budget, the very important part of this b i l l .  I am going to refer to Senator 
Dever to go through the rest of the amendments that were placed on this b i l l  at this time. 

Senator Dever: ( 1 . 53) Thank you for covering the budget part. This is my fi rst experience 
sitti ng on Appropriations. There were 1 0  Sections in the b i l l  and there was a th i rd section 
added referring to $ 1 00, 000.00 for funding for temporary salaries, it th ink that's overtime. 
So now as we go through with the numbers,  Section numbers are a l ittle bit d ifferent. 
Sections 4 and 5 have to do with the makeup of the PERS Board . Section 4 is in reference 
to the Retirement Board changes the number from 7 to 9 .  
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Section 5 (2.32) now wou ld add 4 legis lators to the PERs board including the Majority 
Leader or designee from the House and Majority Leader or designee from the Senate, 2 
members appointed by the chairman of leg islative management and then it would delete or 
remove from the Board the Attorney Genera l  or designee, which I understand is currently 
the Deputy Attorney General  and it a lso removes the State Health Officer, and currently 
that's being covered by the Deputy Health Officer. So there would be 9 members on the 
Board instead of 7 and 4 of those would be leg islators . 

Section 6 (3. 1 3) has to do with PBMs. Some people don't know what PBMs are. They are 
Pharmacy Benefit Managers.  I nsurance compan ies employ them to manage that part of 
the contract. So what this is asking is the state audit the subcontractor or the insurance 
company of the PBM at least once every 2 years . The Senate objects to Section 6 as it 
does to the previous section I mentioned . Section 6, we are told that if there is a compla int 
about PBM that the I nsurance Commissioner has the opportu nity to aud it them . (3 . 56) 
Also that the PERS Board can and does audit PBMs period ica l ly when they consider it to 
be appropriate and when they see a return on investment because they get some rebates 
back through that whole process. I can't explain that whole process. I don't know many 
people who can .  The feel ing of the Senate is that if there is a problem the I nsurance 
Commissioner can do it. We support free market, free enterprise, if it's a good business 
decision to audit the PERS Board has the abi l ity to do that. Also that provision of the bi l l  
d id not have any pub l ic hearing .  It was added on the Appropriations Committee. 

Section 7 (4.44) says that the contract would be rebid every two years. Currently, and in  
the current contract, the contract is  for two years but  renewab le twice, so up to 6 years 
depending on whether or not they come to negotiations at the 3 year point and the 4 year 
point. So that's in the contract. We felt to put this provision in  here would basical ly change 
that contract and we see that as problematic. There is the opportun ity at the end of 2 years 
if there's a problem to rebid it and al low for another competitive b id .  Another effect of that 
in  the view of the Senate is that It would stifle competition because it takes a lot to gear up 
to operate the contract. So,  with th is  change now with Sanford taking the contract, they 
came into it with the expectation that they would perform wel l  and they would have the 
contract for up to 6 years . So they're able to spread that cost out over 6 years . This would 
require over two years . So one of the effects would be competition .  The other effect would 
be to raise the costs and they would have to just bui ld into their bid . 

Section 8 (6. 1 9) has two subsections. Subsection 1 says they can not d isclose identifiable 
or un identifiable insured or provider data or information with related or unrelated health 
care .  The concern of the House on that is that Sanford Health is a part of an organization 
that includes Sanford Provider. They're concerned that they would share information from 
one to the other. There is a couple of th ings that enter in there.  One is H I PPA, they cannot 
share inappropriate individual ly identifiable information .  As far as aggregated information , 
the feel ing of the Senate was for a point for that to share it with anybody they should share 
it with everybody. There is benefit to the state of having that information .  The PERS 
popu lation is a large popu lation .  It's barely represented with in the cross section of the 
popu lation of the state of ND .  As healthcare trends develop, we can look at that 
information and make that decisions on how we can add ress those d ifferent concerns. So 
we find the House concern that they not share that information prevents them from sharing 
it with anybody and it's usefu l and should be publ ic information . 
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Section 9 (7 . 58) refers to leg islative intent. It says that if this contract is rebid now, with the 
new rules that are written into the b i l l ,  the previous carrier would be able to continue under 
the old contract for 9 months. We th ink if we remove the other language that is not 
necessary because we have a contract. 

Section 1 0  (8 .27) says that it would freeze the health insurance reserve funds. Now what 
that does is ,  the intent, it seems to us, maybe it's not fai r  to speak for the House, and I 'm 
sure if they were here they would speak for themselves, i t  seems \ that the intent of that is 
that if there is add itional costs as a result of provisions in  this b i l l  that they would be able to 
address those costs where those costs exist. And they need to be dealt with somehow. So 
either the carrier wou ld have to absorb those costs , or we may have to look at reduction of 
benefits to state employees and I am not prepared to go there .  There are other reasons I 
th ink  some un intended consequences with reasoning the insurance reserve fund and 
sometimes is used , as I u nderstand it to buy down premiums so we save costs in  hea lth 
care .  

Section 1 1  (9 . 32) is an  emergency clause regarding Sections 8 ,  9 ,  1 0  wh ich had to do with 
the possibi l ity of reb id .  So Madam Chair, that's the explanation .  I know that some are 
concerned about it and I 've heard the number of 68 ,000 state employees.  I th ink,  and I 
th ink my fel low conferees would agree that to throw this into the courts would create a 
n ightmare that would not be to the benefit of state employees. I work pretty hard ,  I chaired 
the employee benefits to support state employees and I take a second seat to nobody. 

Senator Heckaman :  ( 1 0 .23) I want to thank Senator Dever for his very thorough 
explanation of the pol icy part of th is b i l l  and that's my concern on this b i l l .  We were brought 
in  as conferees for the appropriations section of th is b i l l  and not to look at the pol icy part 
and that's my rea l  concern is the extensive adoption of pol icy on this without a publ ic 
hearing . Our  understand ing in our gathering of documents from the House found that here 
was no pub l ic input from anybody let alone the agency involved here at that hearing .  It was 
adopted by a subcomm ittee and moved into the b i l l .  And so when we look at this policy, 
that's problematic for me. So is that pol icy in  an appropriations b i l l  is properly vetting that. 
I do have trouble with the board ,  not the numbers, up to n ine members, but the composition 
s imi lar to what Senator Dever has said . I don't think it is our responsibi l ity as leg islators to 
be in on every Board that agencies have and the Board has been competent for 37 years 
with our health insurance and I have confidence the way the board sits today. Our d ifficu lty 
right now is how this pol icy is embedded in this b i l l .  And looking at a couple of other 
Sections the bid for 2 years is very detrimental to the pol icies of North Dakota . To the 
pol icy holders .  It will certain ly maybe l imit ,  in my mind ,  the number of Vetter's , because 
they know they on ly have a two years option for the state of North Dakota and I th ink that's 
going to sign ificantly impact the health insurance as you go forward from here .  One of my 
objections is the lack of publ ic input into moving this into an appropriations b i l l .  

Senator Dever: I th ink we've had 6 or 7 one hour  conference committees and I would l ike 
to say I very much enjoyed the 1 0  minutes we spent ta lking about the appropriation . 

Senator Heckaman:  ( 1 2 .58) There were two amendments brought forward on this b i l l .  
Neither of them were in  amendment form and made i t  d ifficult to place into the b i l l .  
Probably one had some opportun ities that would have been a l ittle b it better to one section 
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of the b i l l  but maybe not to the others .  The other amendment that was brought forward 
and was not approved by either side had some d ifficu lty in the way it was worded . The 
wording wasn't correct when it was sent up to council and the d rafter adm itted that. The 
legis lator admitted that. We're looking at pol icy. I think that th is is encumbered that this 
should have gotten a very thorough hearing .  I sit on Appropriations now and that's where 
we are looking at funding agencies and looking at fund ing their FTE's and provid ing the 
services that they need for the state of North Dakota .  We did not have pol icy vetting on 
this b i l l .  I 'm very concerned about that. 

Senator Dever: ( 1 4 . 03) In response to that I 'd l ike to say that the provisions that were 
ru led into this b i l l  came from H B  1 475.  My understanding is that that had a hearing in the 
House. There was a very large fiscal note on it. It d id not go to House Appropriations, 
went r ight to the Senate . I n  the House it had a hearing and it was passed out in  the next 
meeting . I n  the Senate it had a very aggressive hearing and then we spent a lot of hours 
amending the bi l l  to make it look prospectively over to the next bid process instead of 
retroactively to this one. I n  the end we made a determination that we thought the House 
and Senate were so far apart that there was no real possib i l ity of resolution.  I know the 
House is offended that we d id not pass that bil l in  that form to go to conference committee. 
The House does what the House does and the Senate does what the Senate does and I 
don't know if that was disrespectfu l in  any way in  this b i l l .  We are not ready to go to court 
as the House said they wou ld . 

Senator Heckaman :  ( 1 5 .22) Just one final comment on the budget portion . I mentioned it 
before but I want to reiterate it so it's on the record for sure is that both sets of conferrers 
agreed on the budget portion for both R IO and PERS. We d id have that portion resolved . 

Chairman Krebsbach:  ( 1 5 .52)  You've heard from the conferees. I have a few comments . 
Very few. We are here in  good faith today to try to resolve this issue. As you have heard 
the House has taken a strong position that they want this. The Senate has pretty much 
rejected everything that was in  this bi l l  in a previous vote in the Senate. I bel ieve it was a 
46 to 0 vote with 1 absent. I do want to say that in  regard to add ing to the PERS Board , 
I do have problems with that. That Board was establ ished to keep legislators out of it. The 
PERS Board as you heard has been operating very wel l .  They've done a very thorough job 
for the insured that they are responsible for. It was my understanding that the Employee 
Benefits Committee was the area to weigh in on whatever action the Board takes. And 
we've been doing that ever since I 've been on that Board or comm ittee s ince in  the early 
90's. Senator Dever's done an excel lent job sharing that. And that's where we can rea l ly 
vet the issues that the PERS Board brings to us, or the R IO Board - the State I nvestment 
Board . That is part of our duties and I see a complete separation is necessary between 
those two entities. Now the other thing that we've d iscussed qu ite at length are the other 
sections of the bi l l  which are very problematic. They're problematic to the leg is lators and I 
th ink as Senator Dever has wel l  expressed , we see no need to d rag legal issues into this 
body which the parts that they are trying to include in  here could very wel l  lead us. It 
would be fai r  if the other side would come down and give you their side of the story. I l ike 
to be fai r  because I th ink we are laying everything on the table and people can make up 
their own minds is the right way to do things. With that, un less there is any further 
comment from the conferees, we wil l  more or less recess unti l  we hear further notice from 
the House. 
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is a conference committee on the North Dakota Publ ic Employees Reti rement System 
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Min utes : II Attachments 1 - 3 

Leg islative Counci l  - Jenn ifer Clark & Brady Larson 
OMB - Lori Laschkewitsch & Nick Creamer 

Senator Wardner, Senator Gary Lee, Senator Heckaman 
Representative Carlson, Vigesaa, Hogan 

Chairman Wardner cal led the conference committee to order on Tuesday, Ju ne 1 6 ,  201 5 
in  regards to SB 2022 and gave the instructions on how the committee wi l l  proceed . Brady 
Larson will go over the budget part of the b i l l  using the amendments and the Jenn ifer Clark 
wi l l  go over the pol icy part using the marked up version of the b i l l .  

Brady Clark: (Amendment 1 5 . 8 1 55 .02030 - Attachment 1 )  Went over the changes in the 
budget start ing with and read ing the Statement of Purpose on page 4 of the amendments. 

Jenn ifer Clark, Legislative Counci l :  (Speaking from the marked up copy of the 
amendments - Attachment 2 . )  On page 3, sections 4 & 5 of the amendments are the 
make-up of the PERS Board .  There are two changes: from the current 7 member board ,  
we're add ing two legis lators for a total of n ine members .  I f  the House and Senate have the 
same majority party, that membership wou ld be one majority and one minority member. If 
the House and Senate had d ifferent majority, we would have a majority member from the 
House and a majority member from the Senate, so there would be someone from both 
parties sitti ng on the board . 
On page 4 ,  l ines 1 0- 1 1 ,  we're recogn izing that the state health officer can appoint a 
desig nee if the state health officer does not want to serve on the PERS board . 
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Representative Carlson:  We had requested 4 leg islative members and moved going back 
to two. I have heartburn in the fact that when we hold a two to one majority in  one chamber 
and a three to one majority in  the other chamber, that there is equal representation on the 
board . I would have preferred to see a majority member from each chamber plus one 
m inority member at large. The three members would have worked better. I understand 
that its important that we get two members on there,  but it is imbalanced accord ing to the 
way we are elected today. That is a concern that some of the caucus members expressed . 

Senator Heckaman:  That would be a consideration , that every other committee that has 
appointees that a re leg islative would be treated the same. Looking at many of the boards 
and commissions that are appointed and have leg islators on them wou ld a lso have a l l  
majority when there's four  on and no minority people represented . If we want to take a look 
at that, then I recommend that we do someth ing with the b i l l  next session that states that 
accord ing to the percentages of who are elected. 

Representative Carlson:  If we looked closer, there are probably a few that would lose 
representation because they're probably over represented on a few that wou ld have those 
numbers and are imbalanced as it is, as wel l  as some interim committees . I 'm j ust saying 
that it doesn't properly reflect the way we're elected today. I th ink it's a good move to put 
the two on there ,  but I don't bel ieve it's balanced right. 

Senator Wardner: You make a point, but we want to keep it non-pol itical and keep this 
board focused on doing the job for the employees of the state . 

Senator Heckaman:  You have good statement there for the fact that maybe no legislators 
should be on this committee then because it's probably going to get politica l if you have a 
couple of leg islators on there. I n  our fina l  debate, that's something for us to reconsider is 
whether we want any leg islators on that board .  

Jenn ifer Clark: On page 5 of the markup , l ines 1 6-30. This chapter add resses more than 
just the hea lth insurance pol icies and is referencing a fu l ly insured un iform group insurance 
contract to a hospita l ,  medica l  or prescriptions. This ta lks about the medical pol icies as it 
relates to those contracts . This is making a broad statement ind icating that the term of the 
contract wil l not exceed two years. This g ives the PERS board d i rections on what to do if 
they're going to look at renewing that contract. I n  the renewing the contract, to consider the 
performance of the existing carrier as wel l as what the proposed premium wou ld be for that 
new two year term . I n  looking at that, we are d i recting the PERS board to contract with a 
consu ltant to prepare information relating to how to establ ish what's reasonable for that 
premium.  And we a lso d i rect the PERS board to evaluate certa in measurements in  
determin ing the carrier's performance. 
In subd ivision C ,  page 6 ,  l i nes 5-9 that if it's determined that the premium is too high and 
the performance is not acceptable and they do go out and re-sol icit, that the board needs to 
specify its business for that determination.  

Senator G.  Lee : We've talked about includ ing some metrics in this section ,  but I 'm 
wondering if these a ren't metrics that are already being used by the board in terms of 
making a renewal agreement or  not - or if something else is being used . Or a re these 
d ifferent or new l ike add ing a consu ltant for example. 
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Jennifer Clark: I 'd l ike to defer to Mr. Col l ins,  but language that we put in  here was 
created in  consu ltation with PERS so we worked together in determin ing those metrics . I 
can't te l l  you if that d iffers in  what they are doing now. 

Spark Col l ins,  Executive Director, NDPERS: This matches up with what we do today. 
We do or retain a consu ltant who independently and concurrently wi l l  do a projection of 
premiums for us that we can use as a basis or a benchmark to compare the 
reasonableness of the proposed renewal .  Sometimes 5% is the most reasonable number 
and sometimes 20 is the most reasonable number, but we need the expertise of an actuary 
to go back thru that data and help do the metrics . 
On the performance side , there are things we look at, l ike cal l  response time, bad cal ls ,  and 
al l  k inds of variables that we review. Yes, this does match up .  

Senator G .  Lee : I s  that a consistent consu ltant that you've used over time or is this 
someth ing you put out on a bid? How do you retain that particular consultant? 

Sparb Col l ins:  We put it out on b id .  (Named 4 d ifferent services they have previously 
used . )  

Representative Carlson : I 'm satisfied that the language is what we asked for as to cod ify 
the process they use so we have something understanding at how we arrive at these 
premiums and so the person getting the contract understands exactly what are the 
requ i rements. Whether you ' re going to do it in  two years or not in  two years,  someone who 
double checks you r  numbers to make sure they're right. 

Senator Heckaman :  Would the contractor know about these rules whether it was in code 
or not? Would they understand the rebid process if we d idn't have it here? 

Sparb Col l ins :  They understand that there is a possib i l ity for a renewal that wi l l  occur. 
That is specified in  the RFP.  Have we laid this out with this deta i l ,  no .  This does provide 
that clarification .  This renewal process doesn't start in two years,  it will start next summer. 
In this case, they wi l l  have twelve months to be judged on .  

Jennifer Clark :  On page 6 ,  Section 7 of the proposed amendments . Here we are creating 
a brand new section of law. This is specific to the health insurance un iform group plans. 
We start out with a broad statement saying the privacy issue of i nformation the carrier has 
relating to the providers and to the insureds. 
Except as necessary for treatment, payment, or health care operations ,  a health insurance 
carrier cannot d isclose identifiable or un identifiable information relating to the insured or the 
provider. It specifical ly add resses information that it would be sharing with health care 
del ivery entities. So they're not addressing other people they may share that information 
with if you provide information to a hea lth care del ivery entity. The genera l  statement is 
"Don't do it." Lines 1 7-2 1 is a safety net with this general  statement saying don't share that 
identifiable or un identifiable information;  however, we're authorizing the PERS board to 
establ ish some exceptions where they wil l a l low that information to be shared with the 
health care del ivery entity. They've been given some parameters which is basical ly some 
H I PPA language. That language is to g ive them gu idance,  how far they can open that up.  
What we've said is for the l im ited purpose of addressing research , publ ic health care ,  



Senate Appropriations Committee 
SB 2022 conference committee 
June 1 6 , 201 5 
Page 4 

health care operations, publ ic interest and benefit activities. They can open that up and 
a l low a carrier to d isclose identifiable or un identifiable information to a health care del ivery 
entity. Regard less of what kind of authority we g ive the PERS board , they are not a l lowed 
to open it up or may not be more permissive than state and federal law. 

Jennifer Clark (continu ing with section 8): This is temporary or session laws . This 
language relates specifical ly to 201 5-1 7 bienn ium.  It's a statement saying essentia l ly i f  the 
PERS health insurance premium increases, the PERS board is restricted and is not 
al lowed to use any funds from the reserve fund or from another source to cover that 
increase in pol icy premium . In  the upcoming bienn ium,  if there is an  increase in  health 
insurance premium,  there is no funding source to cover that. My understanding is that 
they'd be looking at increasing benefits to address the premium increase. 

Senator Heckaman:  If we're looking at bidding this out for two years , we're looking at 
premiums staying constant, but we know that there are things come a long and I 'd l ike to 
ask Mr. Col l ins what kind of a bind does this put the PERS board in? Wil l  we expect 
services or benefits to be cut? 

Sparb Col l ins:  As a fu l ly insured plan rig ht now, we've contracted for the scope of 
coverage and plan signed that's there. So as long is everyth ing stays the same - no 
problem . As we mentioned the other day, a grandfathered plan does not cover b i rth control 
right now. That's being contested in the courts and if during the next two year period , the 
court would determine that grandfathered plans have to have this coverage and they say 
you have to do it immed iately, the procedure would have to be, s ince that wasn't part of the 
contract, we'd have to go back to the carrier and come up with an amount to provide that 
add itional coverage. With the reserve funds being l im ited , we would not be able to go to 
the reserve fu nds to be able to offset that increase as a result, therefore we'd negotiate with 
the carrier to provide that. The options would be to cut benefits somewhere else because, 
let's say birth control costs $6/month/contract, then you'd have to look for $6/month in 
offsets somewhere else. Or we'd try to negotiate with the carrier that we would bring that 
issue to the next session in  January and then agree to wait for the session to cover that. 

Senator Heckaman : So this is not necessarily the carrier's issue, it m ight be a court that is 
causing th is? 

Sparb Col l ins:  There shouldn't be anything from the carrier's standpoint that is going to 
cause an increase to us.  We're locked in. It's external entities, for example, if today for 
some reason ,  you added a benefit to the plan that isn't there ,  we'd have to go back and 
renegotiate it . It 's j ust any change to the contract. 

Representative Hogan:  When those external changes have happened , I bet there were 
some relate to ACA. Do they typica l ly also include the opportun ity to wa it unt i l  the next 
leg islative session? 

Sparb Coll ins: Like the ACA changes, and a lot of t imes this is a federa l  leg is lative 
change, the federa l  government wi l l  say they become effective on the next renewal date 
rather than immed iately which means that the change would occur but our next renewal 
date would be after you have met. 
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Senator Wardner: It was kind of my understanding that if there were external changes, 
that those would be covered with the reserve fund,  but I misunderstood when we were 
ta lking last week. You don't th ink this is a problem the way its written rig ht now? 

Sparb Col l ins :  Assuming no externa l  events. Do we have many external events? Just so 
everyone is aware , that if one happens, then this is what we'd have to ta lk about. Maybe 
there are other remed ies in the statute that might be able to be used as wel l .  

Senator Wardner: This concerns me that we would cut benefits. I don't want that to 
happen .  

Representative Hogan :  Could PERS go to the emergency commission for authority? 

Senator Wardner: I can 't answer that. Is  there anyone on leg islative staff that cou ld 
answer that?? 

Representative Carlso n :  We don 't' have that kind of money s itting in  there .  (Senator 
Wardner agreed . )  

Sparb Col l ins:  There is a provision in the statute that as a result of federal changes 
employee we've formed Leg is lative Employee Benefits Committee. That may be an option 
too. 

Senator Heckaman:  I th ink we should seriously reconsider this section g iven the 
information we got today. I certa in ly don't want to cut benefits to anyone either. Even Mr. 
Col l ins has no idea what's com ing down , if the court rul ing is coming down . He has no 
idea about that. I guess I don't know why we even have this section in  here anyhow. I th ink 
we should consider omitt ing th is  section .  

Sparb Col l ins :  Another option wou ld be to provide a caveat that should there be requ i red 
externa l  changes in the plan design that those would be able to be clearly identified to you .  

Senator Wardner: We'd add a l ine that says "frozen except for external  or requ i red by 
state or federal" 

Representative Carlson:  The bid is the bid and we' re dea l ing with hypotheticals on 
everything else. This was meant to make sure we save money on this bid. We don't want 
that bid enhanced because it's l ike a change order to a contractor. We don't want to 
change orders because the bid is the b id .  We feel very strongly in  the house that th is 
money should be set there and see how this new change works and have the bid be the 
bid .  They based their assumptions on past history, on claims and a l l  those things. If we 
want to leg islate a hypothetica l ,  I suppose we can ,  but it would have to be a pretty rare 
exception that we'd al low that and in most cases, we found out from the ACA that if they 
a l low us to deal with those when the next contract comes due so it isn't l ike you have to do 
it immediately. In most cases you're g iven the time unt i l  you get to the next renewal 
because they can't dump it on you in the middle.  I th ink the language is just fine the way it 
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is .  I th ink it is wel l  covered . The bid is the bid . If someth ing comes up ,  there's usual ly 
language that al lows from the federa l  government for us to deal with the next budget cycle. 

Senator Wardner: I agree that the bid is the bid . The insurance carrier d id not plan on 
anything being added when they bid i t .  They cannot change their  bid . A contract is a 
contract but if you have something come in from the outside that wasn't a part of the 
situation when it was b id ,  then you cou ld have some added issues. 

Senator Heckaman:  We had a document last Monday from PERS that documented the 
amount that you used out of the reserves .  Was that for the current bien n ium or the last? 
How was that money used - about $ 1 0M ,  right? 

Sparb Col l ins:  That was the one that Leg islative Counci l  prepared . This last bienn ium 
there was a 2% buydown of the premiums. This bienn ium there is no buydown of 
premiums, so that's why the reserves, this assets not an issue for us.  

Senator Wardner: Sparb,  if  you th ink we can l ive with section 8 for two years, I ' l l  buy that. 

Sparb Col l ins : Yes, we j ust don't general ly have these events come up .  When they do 
come up,  they have a delayed implementation time. We've understood that for 
admin istrative purposes , we can continue to adjust for that, so yes . It would be a very 
remote possib i l ity. 

Representative Carlson:  I 'd l ike to bring up one th ing extra . I 'd l ike to ask M r. Bjornson to 
expla in section 4 of amendment 1 5 .8 1 55.02031 (Attachment 3) .  It has to do with the 
Attorney General 's opin ion that was g iven on continu ing appropriations. 

John Bjornson, Legislative Counci l :  This is in  response to the opinion of the Attorney 
Genera l  that there may be impl ied authority for PERS or other agencies to operate under a 
continued appropriation .  The opinion rel ied upon imp l ied authority having to suggest that 
an agency cou ld operate with a continued appropriation. So this states that if there's a 
statute that provides a cont inu ing appropriation to a state agency, that authority, if it is 
specified in a statute is said to be for the express purpose that's specified and that there 
may be no impl ied authority beyond that expressed purpose. Essential ly, in the heart of 
that opin ion , that there was impl ied authority in  several p laces to operate . This would 
e l iminate any impl ication of additional authority beyond the expressed purpose for 
leg is lative continu ing appropriation that is created . 

Senator Wardner: So only where it's impl ied? You can't extrapolate anyth ing else that 
can be added to that. 

Representative Carlson:  If it is not stated , it cannot be impl ied . That's basical ly what the 
amendment says. If it's not stated , it can't be impl ied . His opin ion was very much lead ing 
on the fact that it's imp l ied but we're rea l ly not sure if it says or it doesn't say it, but it's 
impl ied that you could do it. I th ink that's dangerous pol icy from the leg islative perspective . 
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Senator G.  Lee: So this wou ld clarify the fact that, in the case we're deal ing with now in 
terms of what the attorney genera l  had said , PERS and R IO would not be able to go into 
the next bienn ium with spending authority? 

John Bjornso n :  The opin ion was somewhat vague and d idn't u lt imately conclude how 
much authority there is under the continu ing appropriations. This would be for what's 
specifica l ly stated in those continu ing appropriations. For instance,  there's a continu ing 
appropriation for PERS to adm in ister retirement funds. Then under this statute, it wou ld 
simply be that - to admin ister the funds or for R IO to work with consu ltants and manage 
investments. So the authority wou ld only be to what is specifica l ly stated in that cont inuing 
appropriation and they cou ldn 't do other things. It's not tota l ly contrary to what that opinion 
states, but this would state that you can't go any further than what's actually in  the 
language of statute. So PERS could sti l l  operate for certain th ings.  The opinion stated that 
but it also stated that it wasn't sure how far they could go in certain  areas. This would say 
you can only go this far because that is what's stated and there's no impl ication you can do 
other th ings. 

Representative Carlson : I br ing this forward because I th ink it's important that we clarify 
that. When we saw the opin ion,  we al l  had the question , " Is  th is a new pol icy that we don't' 
have to settle the budget ever for anybody and they can just continue funding?" This is a 
legis lative responsib i l ity and I th ink we need to be clear that if it's in  statute that they can 
continue, and if it's not in  statute they can't. I brought it forward because it was specifically 
addressed in  this bil l i n  h is opin ion.  

Senator Wardner: We don't know for sure if  i t  is or isn't and we want it to be correct. 
don't want to deal with this in th is particu lar b i l l .  I th ink we need to take care of th is next 
session to make sure we clarify that so we do not have an executive branch dictating what 
the leg is lature should be doing.  I th ink we need to be carefu l about putting pol icy on 
budget b i l ls .  We don't do that because that's what gets us into this bind so we need to be 
fa i rly cogn izant of that. I appreciate you bringing it up, but I 'm not in favor of dealing with it 
at this t ime. 

Representative Hogan :  I agree that it's a leg itimate issue and needs to be stud ied , but 
because we haven't researched it and not have an opportun ity for a pub l ic hearing,  I 'm 
concerned about putting it in this bi l l  at this t ime. 

Senator Wardner: When we do pass leg islation ,  and if it's for continu ing appropriation , we 
better make it clear that this is what we want. We may have to take a look at language in 
the PERS section of the code and ask if  th is is what we want and make sure it's not 
impl ied . I agree with Representative Carlson that we have to be carefu l about having 
th ings impl ied by an executive branch office . 

Representative Carlson:  The word impl ied means a lot of d ifferent things to a lot of 
d ifferent people. I n  most cases, our  budgets are very clear as to whether or not there is 
anyth ing impl ied to be continu ing or not. I wanted to make sure this is on everybody's radar  
screen that i t  is our  constitutional responsibi l ity to fund money. This cannot go by without 
having this add ressed in  the next session . It's also not unusual that there is pol icy among 
budget b i l ls .  
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Senator Heckaman:  I moved that the conference committee approve SB 2022 only 
sections 1 through 3 omitting 4-8. The reason for that is that we just told PERS that they 
are able to hold on unti l  the next session coming up .  These issues impact 65 ,000 pol icy 
holders in the State of North Dakota . 

Representative Hogan seconded the motion. 

Senator Wardner: We went thru negotiation process last week. I real ize it was a tentative 
recommendation but it was a good faith negotiation .  For that reason , I wi l l  not vote for the 
motion but I do agree with what you say. This was a good faith agreement. 

Senator Heckaman :  I understand good fa ith , but this morn ing we brought forth more 
concerns about this that we d idn 't resolve to my satisfaction and I 'm not sure to the 
satisfaction of a lot of the pol icy holders. There has been change. At this point, there's no 
need to put new pol icy on this budget but we do need to pass the budget then next session 
these changes can be addressed and find something that works for everybody. 

A Roll Ca l l  vote was taken.  Yea : 2 Nay: 4 Absent: 0 
Motion fa i led. 

Representative Carlson moved to accept amendment 1 5. 8 1 55 .02030 . 
Representative Vigesaa seconded . 

Representative Carlson:  We had good faith negotiations on both issues and d idn't get 
everyth ing we were looking for here ,  but there is $254M that we pay as a state for fu l l  
coverage which is better than a lot of the citizens of th is state are able to carry and afford -
$ 1 1 30/month/ind ividua l .  It's a big deal and needs our watchful eye as we look over this. Al l  
these issues were vetted in  a hearing in both the House and in the Senate - in  H B 1 475 and 
again when it came to the conference committees. I would hope we would take this to our 
chambers and pass th is b i l l .  

Senator Wardner: I would hope we can support this issue. Both sides have some things 
they don't l ike in  the bi l l  and both sides have some things that they do l ike i n  the bi l l .  We 
came back because we wanted the leg islature to do their job.  It was the right thing to do. 
We were at 1 80 degrees on Day 77 of the session . The process works. I t 's not done yet , 
but hopefu l ly later on today we' l l  be able to pass this b i l l  now and do our job. As we come 
back and get ready for the next session ,  we take care of some of these shortcomings that 
we've identified. 

A Roll Cal l  vote was taken .  Yea : 5 Nay: 1 Absent: 0 
Motion carried . 

Senator Wardner thanked Legislative Counci l and their staff, and the conferees for the 
professional negotiations last week and this morning . He adjourned the meeting . 



15.8155.02025 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Keiser 

April 28, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2022 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1778-1784 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 1982-1988 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2022 
be amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 2, remove the second "and" 

Page 1, line 2, after "transfers" insert "; to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-52.1 of , 
the North Dakota Century Code, relating to uniform group insurance program benefits 
coverage contract requirements, prescription drug coverage audits, and a report to the 
legislative audit and fiscal review committee; to amend and reenact subsection 17 of 
section 54-02-01 and section 54-52-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
the retirement board and section 54-52.1-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, 
relating to public employee retirement system contracts for health insurance benefits 
coverage; to provide a statement of legislative intent; to provide for application; to limit 
the use of health insurance program reserves; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1, replace line 13 with: 

"Salaries and wages 

Page 1, replace line 17 with: 

"Total special funds 

Page 1, replace line 23 with: 

"Salaries and wages 

Page 2, replace line 1 with: 

"Operating expenses 

Page 2, replace lines 3 and 4 with: 

''Total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Page 2, replace lines 9 and 10 with: 

"Grand total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Page 2, after line 15, insert: 

$3,772,504 

$4,899,369 

$5,016,339 

2,280,894 

$7,650,450 
33.00 

$12,549,819 
52.00 

$568,047 

$514,056 

$972,063 

377,050 

$1,245,896 
0.00 

$1,759,952 
0.00 

$4,340,551" 

$5,413,425" 

$5,988,402" 

2,657,944" 

$8,896,346 
33.00" 

$14,309,771 
52.00" 

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Subsection 17 of section 54-52-01 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

17. "Retirement board" or "board" means the seven persons designated by 
this chapter as the governing authority f.or the retirement system created 
under section 54-52-03. 
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SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

54-52-03. Governing authority. 

A state agency is hereby created to constitute the governing authority of the 
system to consist of a board of seveAnine persons known as the retirement board . No 
more than one elected member of the board may be in the employ of a single 
department, institution , or agency of the state or in the employ of a political subdivision . 
No employee of the public employees retirement system or the state retirement and 
investment office may serve on the board. 

1. The majority leader of the house of representatives or a desiqnee is a 
member of the board. 

2. The majority leader of the senate or a desiqnee is a member of the board . 

~ One member of the board must be appointed by the governor to serve a 
term of five years. The appointee must be a North Dakota citizen who is 
not a state or political subdivision employee and who by experience is 
familiar with money management. The citizen member is chairman of the 
board. 

&. One member of the board must be appointed by the attorney general from 
tfle attorney general's legal staff and shall serve a term of five years . 

~ The state health officer appointed under section 23 01 05 is a member of 
tfle board . 

4. Three board members must be elected by and from among the active 
participating members , members of the retirement plan established under 
chapter 54-52.6, members of the retirement plan established under 
chapter 39-03.1, and members of the job service North Dakota retirement 
plan . Employees who have terminated their employment for whatever 
reason are not eligible to serve as elected members of the board under 
this subsection. Board members must be elected to a five-year term 
pursuant to an election called by the board. Notice of board elections must 
be given to all active participating members. The time spent in performing 
duties as a board member may not be charged against any employee's 
accumulated annual or any other type of leave. 

5. One board member must be elected by and from among those persons 
who are receiving retirement benefits under this chapter. The board shall 
call the election and must give prior notice of the election to the persons 
eligible to participate in the election pursuant to this subsection . The board 
member shall serve a term of five years. 

6. The members of the board are entitled to receive one hundred forty-eight 
dollars per day compensation and necessary mileage and travel expenses 
as provided in sections 44-08-04 and 54-06-09. This is in addition to any 
other pay or allowance due the chairman or a member, plus an allowance 
for expenses they may incur through service on the board. 

7. A board member shall serve a five-year term and until the board member's 
successor qualifies. Each board member is entitled to one vote, and four of 
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the seven board members constitute a quorum. Four votes are necessary 
for resolution or action by the board at any meeting. 

SECTION 5. A new section to chapter 54-52.1 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Health insurance benefits coverage of prescription drug coverage -
Analysis. 

1.. At least once every two years, the board shall select a firm to complete a 
financial and health care analysis of the prescription drug coverage under 
the health benefits coverage. This may not be construed to require the firm 
to be a certified public accounting firm. The board shall develop the scope 
of the evaluation and the review of the proposals. The contract the board 
enters with the firm must include appropriate confidentiality clauses. The 
analysis must include a review of the following. without limitation: 

a. Based on medi-span definitions of "brand drug" and "generic drug", 
the average annual brand drug costs and the generic drug costs at 
each of the following pharmacy channels: 

ill Retail; 

m Retail-90; and 

.{fil Mail. 

b. The average annual drug-by-drug costs of each drug dispensed from 
specialty drug pharmacies used by the carrier or the pharmacy 
benefits manager. 

c. The rebates and other third-party financial benefits passed through to 
the board. measured in the aggregate and on a per brand drug 
prescription basis, to verify the carrier satisfied the contract's rebate 
guarantees. 

d. ill At a minimum. an evaluation of the effectiveness of the following 
programs implemented on behalf of the board by the carrier or 
the pharmacy benefits manager: 

.(fil Quantity limit program; 

{Ql Step therapy program: and 

Lru Prior authorization program. 

ill The evaluation of effectiveness under this subdivision must 
include: 

.(fil The approval and disapproval rates for each 
first-line-treatment drug in the prior authorization program: 
and 

{Ql Recommendations to the board addressing how to 
improve each of the programs. 
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~ An evaluation of and recommendations concerning the refill practices 
of the carrier or the pharmacy benefits manager to determine. without 
limitation: 

ill Whether and to what extent automatic refills are being 
dispensed; and 

.(.2.2 The point in time refills are being dispensed. 

~ Upon the request of the board . the health benefits coverage carrier or 
pharmacy benefits manager that provides prescription drug coverage 
under the health benefits coverage shall produce. without limitation: 

~ The prescription drug coverage contract controlling prescription 
coverage under this chapter; and 

b. A list of the prior authorization, step therapy. and quantity limit 
programs implemented on behalf of the board , identifying , without 
limitation, each drug in the program and whether the drug is a first- or 
second-line-of-treatment drug or the relevant quantity limit. 

~ As a term of the contract, the firm shall submit and present this report to 
the board. 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52.1-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

54-52.1-05. Provisions of contract - Term of contract. 

i_ Each uniform group insurance contract entered into by the board must be 
consistent with the provisions of this chapter, must be signed for the state 
of North Dakota by the chairman of the board , and must include the 
following : 

4:- ~ As many optional coverages as deemed feasible and advantageous 
by the board . 

&. ~ A detailed statement of benefits offered, including maximum 
limitations and exclusions , and such other provisions as the board 
may deem necessary or desirable. 

~ The term of a uniform group insurance contract for hospital benefits 
coverage, medical benefits coverage, or prescription drug coverage may 
not exceed two years. A contract subject to this subsection may not be 
renewed without solicitation of a bid under section 54-52.1-04. 

SECTION 7. Section 54-52.1-05.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 
and enacted as follows: 

54-52.1-05.1. Provisions of health insurance benefits coverage. 

i. The board contract for health insurance benefits coverage under this 
chapter must provide that for the duration of the term of that contract 
except as necessary for treatment, payment. and operations. the carrier 
may not disclose identifiable or unidentifiable insured or provider data or 
information with a related or unrelated health care delivery entity. 
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2. If the board enters a contract for health insurance benefits coverage under 
this chapter with a carrier that has common ownership with a health care 
delivery entity, for purposes of the carrier's negotiated provider discount 
rates with in-state providers: 

a. For a provider that is a critical access hospital that does. not have 
common ownership with the carrier. the negotiated provider discount 
rates may not be less than the negotiated provider discount rates the 
carrier has with the related health care delivery entity that is a critical 
access hospital. 

b. For a provider that is not a critical access hospital and that does not 
have common ownership with the carrier. the negotiated provider 
discount rates may not be less than the negotiated provider discount 
rates the carrier has with the related health care delivery entity that is 
not a critical access hospital. 

SECTION 8. UNIFORM GROUP INSURANCE PROGRAM HEALTH 
INSURANCE BENEFITS· LEGISLATIVE INTENT. During the period beginning with 
the effective date of this Act through June 30, 2015, if the public employees retirement 
system board determines it is necessary to rebid the uniform group insurance program 
health insurance benefits contract, the carrier providing coverage at the time of that 
determination may continue under the existing contract until a new contract is finalized, 
but not to exceed nine months beyond the date the board makes that determination. 

SECTION 9. HEALTH INSURANCE RESERVE FUNDS - LIMITATIONS. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of law, for the period beginning with the effective 
date of this Act and ending June 30, 2017, the public employees retirement system 
board may not spend any moneys in the fund created under section 54-52.1-06 or any 
other accumulated reserves under the uniform group insurance program for the 
purpose of reducing any increase in uniform group insurance premium amounts 
beyond the rates used by the sixty~fourth legislative assembly for developing 2015-17 
state agency budgets. 

SECTION 10. HEALTH INSURANCE RESERVE FUND - PUBLIC 
EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM - ANALYSIS. The public employees retirement 
system shall use the sum of $100,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, of 
the funds available in the health insurance reserve fund for the purpose of contracting 
for the analysis required under section 5 of this Act for the biennium beginning July 1, 
2015, and ending June 30, 2017. 

SECTION 11. EMERGENCY. Sections 7, 8, and 9 of this Act are declared to be 
an emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 
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15.8155.02026 
Title . 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Hogan 

April 28 , 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2022 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1778-1784 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 1982-1988 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2022 
be amended as follows : 

Page 1, line 2, remove the second "and" 

Page 1, line 2, after "transfers" insert "; to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-52 .1 of 
the North Dakota Century Code , relating to uniform group insurance program benefits 
coverage contract requirements , prescription drug coverage audits , and a report to the 
legislative audit and fiscal review committee; to amend and reenact subsection 17 of 
section 54-02-01 and section 54-52-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
the retirement board and section 54-52.1-05 of the North Dakota Century Code , 
relating to public employees retirement system contracts for health insurance benefits 
coverage; to provide a statement of legislative intent; to provide for application; to limit 
the use of health insurance program reserves ; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1, replace line 13 with : 

"Salaries and wages 

Page 1, replace line 17 with : 

"Total special funds 

Page 1, replace line 23 with : 

"Salaries and wages 

Page 2, replace line 1 with : 

"Operating expenses 

Page 2, replace lines 3 and 4 with : 

"Total special funds 
Fu ll-time equivalent positions 

Page 2, replace lines 9 and 10 with : 

"Grand total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Page 2, after line 15, insert: 

$3 ,772,504 

$4,899,369 

$5,016,339 

2,280,894 

$7 ,650,450 
33.00 

$12 ,549,819 
52.00 

$568,047 

$514,056 

$972 ,063 

377,050 

$1 ,245,896 
0.00 

$1,759,952 
0.00 

$4,340,551 " 

$5,413,425" 

$5,988,402" 

2,657 ,944" 

$8,896,346 
33.00" 

$14,309,771 
52.00" 

"SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Subsection 17 of section 54-52-01 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows : 

17. "Retirement board" or "board" means the seven persons designated by 
this chapter as the governing authority for the retirement system created 
under section 54-52-03. 
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SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

54-52-03. Governing authority. 

A state agency is hereby created to constitute the governing authority of the 
system to consist of a board of seveAnine persons known as the retirement board. No 
more than one elected member of the board may be in the employ of a single 
department, institution, or agency of the state or in the employ of a political subdivision . 
No employee of the public employees retirement system or the state retirement and 
investment office may serve on the board . 

_L The majority leader of the house of representatives or a designee is a 
member of the board . 

~ The majority leader of the senate or a designee is a member of the board . 

~ Two members of the legislative assembly appointed by the chairman of the 
legislative management consisting of one member from the majority party 
and one member from the minority party are members of the board. 

+.4. One member of the board must be appointed by the governor to serve a 
term of five years. The appointee must be a North Dakota citizen who is 
not a state or political subdivision employee and who by experience is 
familiar with money management. The citizen member is chairman of the 
board. 

~ One member of the board must be appointed by the attorney general from 
the attorney general's legal staff and shall serve a term of five years. 

¢:. The state health officer appointed under section 23 01 05 is a member of 
the board . 

4.-5. Three board members must be elected by and from among the active 
participating members, members of the retirement plan established under 
chapter 54-52.6, members of the retirement plan established under 
chapter 39-03.1, and members of the job service North Dakota retirement 
plan. Employees who have terminated their employment for whatever 
reason are not eligible to serve as elected members of the board under 
this subsection . Board members must be elected to a five-year term 
pursuant to an election called by the board . Notice of board elections must 
be given to all active participating members. The time spent in performing 
duties as a board member may not be charged against any employee's 
accumulated annual or any other type of leave. 

§.:-6. One board member must be elected by and from among those persons 
who are receiving retirement benefits under this chapter. The board shall 
call the election and must give prior notice of the election to the persons 
eligible to participate in the election pursuant to this subsection . The board 
member shall serve a term of five years . 

6-:-L The members of the board are entitled to receive one hundred forty-eight 
dollars per day compensation and necessary mileage and travel expenses 
as provided in sections 44-08-04 and 54-06-09. This is in addition to any 
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other pay or allowance due the chairman or a member, plus an allowance 
for expenses they may incur through service on the board. 

7:-8. A board member shall serve a five-year term and until the board member's 
successor qualifies. Each board member is entitled to one vote, and 
fetl.Ffive of the s&Yefl-nine board members constitute a quorum. FetifFive 
votes are necessary for resolution or action by the board at any meeting. 

SECTION 5. A new section to chapter 54-52.1 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Health insurance benefits coverage of prescription drug coverage • 
Analysis - Report to legislative audit and fiscal review committee . 

.:L. At least once every two years. the board shall request the state auditor to 
select a firm to complete a financial and health care analysis of the 
prescription drug coverage under the health benefits coverage. This may 
not be construed to require the firm to be a certified public accounting firm. 
In contracting for the analysis. the state auditor shall consider input from 
the board regarding the scope of the evaluation and the review of the 
proposals. The analysis must include a review of the following. without 
limitation: 

a. Based on medi-span definitions of "brand drug" and "generic drug", 
the average annual brand drug costs and the generic drug costs at 
each of the following pharmacy channels: 

ill Retail; 

ill Retail-90; and 

.Ql Mail. 

b. The average annual drug-by-drug costs of each drug dispensed from 
specialty drug pharmacies used by the carrier or the pharmacy 
benefits manager. 

c. The rebates and other third-party financial benefits passed through to 
the board, measured in the aggregate and on a per brand drug 
prescription basis. to verify the carrier satisfied the contract•s rebate 
guarantees. 

d. ill At a minimum. an evaluation of the effectiveness of the following 
programs implemented on behalf of the board by the carrier or 
the pharmacy benefits manager: 

.(fil Quantity limit program: 

.(Ql Step therapy program: and 

f.91 Prior authorization program. 

ill The evaluation of effectiveness under this subdivision must 
include: 

.(fil The approval and disapproval rates for each 
first-line-treatment drug in the prior authorization program; 
and 
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l.Q} Recommendations to the board addressing how to 
improve each of the programs. 

e. An evaluation of and recommendations concerning the refill practices 
of the carrier or the pharmacy benefits manager to determine, without 
limitation: 

ill Whether and to what extent automatic refills are being 
dispensed; and 

ill The point in time refills are being dispensed. 

£. Upon the request of the board, the health benefits coverage carrier or 
pharmacy benefits manager that provides prescription drug coverage 
under the health benefits coverage shall produce. without limitation : 

fL The prescription drug coverage contract controlling prescription 
coverage under this chapter; and 

~ A list of the prior authorization , step therapy, and quantity limit 
programs implemented on behalf of the board. identifying, without 
limitation, each drug in the program and whether the drug is a first- or 
second-line-of-treatment drug or the relevant quantity limit. 

~ The board shall submit and present this report to the legislative audit and 
fiscal review committee. 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52.1-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

54-52.1-05. Provisions of contract - Term of contract. 

_L Each uniform group insurance contract entered into by the board must be 
consistent with the provisions of this chapter, must be signed for the state 
of North Dakota by the chairman of the board , and must include the 
following : 

+. fL As many optional coverages as deemed feasible and advantageous 
by the board . 

&. ~ A detailed statement of benefits offered, including maximum 
limitations and exclusions , and such other provisions as the board 
may deem necessary or desirable . 

2. The term of a uniform group insurance contract for hospital benefits 
coverage , medical benefits coverage, or prescription drug coverage may 
not exceed six years; however, must be subject to two-year renewals . 

SECTION 7. Section 54-52.1-05.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 
and enacted as follows: 

54-52.1-05.1. Provisions of health insurance benefits coverage. 

_L The board contract for health insurance benefits coverage under this 
chapter must provide that for the duration of the term of that contract 
except as necessary for treatment, payment, and operations , the carrier 
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may not disclose identifiable or unidentifiable insured or provider data or 
information with a related or unrelated health care delivery entity. 

2. The board contract for health insurance benefits coverage under this 
chapter must provide that for purposes of the carrier's preferred provider 
arrangements with in-state providers. the carrier shall comply with chapter 
26: 1-47. regarding preferred provider organizations. 

SECTION 8. UNIFORM GROUP INSURANCE PROGRAM HEALTH 
INSURANCE BENEFITS - LEGISLATIVE INTENT. During the period beginning with 
the effective date of this Act, through June 30, 2015, if the public employees retirement 
system board determines it is necessary to rebid the uniform group insurance program 
health insurance benefits contract, the carrier providing coverage at the time of that 
determination may continue under the existing contract until a new contract is finalized, 
but not to exceed nine months beyond the date the board makes that determination. 

SECTION 9. HEALTH INSURANCE RESERVE FUNDS -LIMITATIONS. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of law, for the period beginning with the effective 
date of this Act, and ending June 30, 2017, the public employees retirement system 
board may not spend any moneys in the fund created under section 54-52.1-06 or any 
other accumulated reserves under the uniform group insurance program for the 
purpose of reducing any increase in uniform group insurance premium amounts 
beyond the rates used by the sixty-fourth legislative assembly for developing 2015-17 
state agency budgets. 

SECTION 10. EMERGENCY. Sections 7, 8, and 9 of this Act are declared to be 
an emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 
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15.8155.02024 
Title.04000 
Fiscal No. 1 

1/ '6 
Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for >Ji'.o\ 
Conference Committee \. CfJ 

April 28, 2015 \ ~ 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2022 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1778-1784 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 1982-1988 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2022 
be amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 2, remove the second "and" 

Page 1, line 2, after "transfers" insert "; to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-52.1 
and section 54-52.1-05.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to uniform group 
insurance program benefits coverage contract requirements , prescription drug 
coverage analyses, and a report to the legislative audit and fiscal review committee; to 
amend and reenact subsection 17 of section 54-02-01 and sections 54-52-03 and 
54-52.1-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the retirement board and 
public employees retirement system contracts for health insurance benefits coverage; 
to provide a statement of legislative intent; to limit the use of health insurance program 
reserves; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1, replace line 13 with: 

"Salaries and wages 

Page 1, replace line 17 with: 

"Total special funds 

Page 1, replace line 23 with : 

"Salaries and wages 

Page 2, replace line 1 with: 

"Operating expenses 

Page 2, replace lines 3 and 4 with: 

"Total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Page 2, replace lines 9 and 10 with: 

"Grand total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

$3,772,504 

$4,899,369 

$5,016,339 

2,280,894 

$7,650,450 
33.00 

$12,549,819 
52.00 

$568,047 

$514,056 

$1 ,399,021 

397, 169 

$1,692,973 
1.50 

$2,207,029 
1.50 

$4,340,551" 

$5,413,425" 

$6,415,360" 

2,678,063" 

$9,343,423 
34.50" 

$14,756,848 
53.00 

SECTION 2. ONE-TIME FUNDING - EFFECT ON BASE BUDGET - REPORT 
TO SIXTY-FIFTH LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. The following amounts reflect the 
one-time funding items approved by the sixty-third legislative assembly for the 2013-15 
biennium and the 2015-17 one-time funding items included in the appropriation in 
section 1 of this Act: 

Public employees retirement system 

One-Time Funding Description 2013-15 2015-17 
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Temporary salaries 
Total special funds 

~ 
$0 

$100,000 
$100,000 

The 2015-17 one-time funding amounts are not part of the entity's base budg~t for the 2017-19 
biennium. The public employee retirement system shall report to the appropriations committees 
of the sixty-fifth legislative assembly on the use of the one-time funding for the biennium 
beginning July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017." 

Page 2, after line 15, insert: 

"SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subsection 17 of section 54-52-01 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

17. "Retirement board" or "board" means the seven persons designated by 
this chapter as the governing authority for the retirement system created 
under section 54-52-03. 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

54-52-03. Governing authority. 

A state agency is hereby created to constitute the governing authority of the 
system to consist of a board of sevoonine persons known as the retirement board. No 
more than one elected member of the board may be in the employ of a single 
department, institution, or agency of the state or in the employ of a political subdivision . 
No employee of the public employees retirement system or the state retirement and 
investment office may serve on the board. 

j_,_ The majority leader of the house of representatives or a designee is a 
member of the board. 

2. The majority leader of the senate or a designee is a member of the board. 

3. Two members of the legislative assembly appointed by the chairman of the 
legislative management consisting of one member from the majority party 
and one member from the minority party are members of the board. 

4-4. One member of the board must be appointed by the governor to serve a 
term of five years. The appointee must be a North Dakota citizen who is 
not a state or political subdivision employee and who by experience is 
familiar with money management. The citizen member is chairman of the 
board. 

6- One member of the board must be appointed by the attorney general from 
the attorney general's legal staff and shall serve a term of five years. 

-&.- The state health officer appointed under section 23 01 05 is a member of 
the board. 

4:5. Three board members must be elected by and from among the active 
participating members, members of the retirement plan established under 
chapter 54-52.6, members of the retirement plan established under 
chapter 39-03.1, and members of the job service North Dakota retirement 
plan. Employees who have terminated their employment for whatever 
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reason are not eligible to serve as elected members of the board under 
this subsection. Board members must be elected to a five-year term 
pursuant to an election called by the board. Notice of board elections must 
be given to all active participating members. The time spent in performing 
duties as a board member may not be charged against any employee's 
accumulated annual or any other type of leave. 

&.-6. One board member must be elected by and from among those persons 
who are receiving retirement benefits under this chapter. The board shall 
call the election and must give prior notice of the election to the persons 
eligible to participate in the election pursuant to this subsection . The board 
member shall serve a term of five years. 

fr.7 . The members of the board are entitled to receive one hundred forty-eight 
dollars per day compensation and necessary mileage and travel expenses 
as provided in sections 44-08-04 and 54-06-09. This is in addition to any 
other pay or allowance due the chairman or a member, plus an allowance 
for expenses they may incur through service on the board. 

~8. A board member shall serve a five-year term and until the board member's 
successor qualifies. Each board member is entitled to one vote, and 
fetff=five of the seveRnine board members constitute a quorum. FeHi=Five 
votes are necessary for resolution or action by the board at any meeting. 

SECTION 6. A new section to chapter 54-52.1 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Health insurance benefits coverage of prescription drug coverage -
Analysis - Report to legislative audit and fiscal review committee . 

.1. At least once every two years, the board shall request the state auditor to 
select a firm to complete a financial and health care analysis of the 
prescription drug coverage under the health benefits coverage. This may 
not be construed to require the firm to be a certified public accounting firm . 
In contracting for the analysis, the state auditor shall consider input from 
the board regarding the scope of the evaluation and the review of the 
proposals. The analysis must include a review of the following, without 
limitation: 

Sh Based on medi-span definitions of "brand drug" and "generic drug", 
the average annual brand drug costs and the generic drug costs at 
each of the following pharmacy channels: 

ill Retail; 

ill Retail-90; and 

@ Mail. 

b. The average annual drug-by-drug costs of each drug dispensed from 
specialty drug pharmacies used by the carrier or the pharmacy 
benefits manager. 

c. The rebates and other third-party financial benefits passed through to 
the board, measured in the aggregate and on a per brand drug 
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prescription basis. to verify the carrier satisfied the contract's rebate 
guarantees. 

d. ill At a minimum. an evaluation of the effectiveness of the following 
programs implemented on behalf of the board by the carrier or 
the pharmacy benefits manager: 

@). Quantity limit program; 

fQ)_ Step therapy program; and 

{g). Prior authorization program . 

.(21 The evaluation of effectiveness under this subdivision must 
include: 

@). The approval and disapproval rates for each 
first-line-treatment drug in the prior authorization program; 
and 

fQ)_ Recommendations to the board addressing how to 
improve each of the programs. 

e. An evaluation of and recommendations concerning the refill practices 
of the carrier or the pharmacy benefits manager to determine, without 
limitation: 

ill Whether and to what extent automatic refills are being 
dispensed; and 

.(21 The point in time refills are being dispensed. 

2. Upon the request of the board, the health benefits coverage carrier or 
pharmacy benefits manager that provides prescription drug coverage 
under the health benefits coverage shall produce. without limitation: 

a. The prescription drug coverage contract controlling prescription 
coverage under this chapter; and 

~ A list of the prior authorization, step therapy, and quantity limit 
programs implemented on behalf of the board. identifying, without 
limitation. each drug in the program and whether the drug is a first- or 
second-line-of-treatment drug or the relevant quantity limit. 

3. The board shall submit and present this report to the legislative audit and 
fiscal review committee. 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52.1-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

54-52.1-05. Provisions of contract - Term of contract. 

.1. Each uniform group insurance contract entered into by the board must be 
consistent with the provisions of this chapter, must be signed for the state 
of North Dakota by the chairman of the board, and must include the 
following: 
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4:- a. As many optional coverages as deemed feasible and advantageous 
by the board. 

~ Q,_ A detailed statement of benefits offered, including maximum 
limitations and exclusions, and such other provisions as the board 
may deem necessary or desirable. 

2. The term of a uniform group insurance contract for hospital benefits 
coverage, medical benefits coverage, or prescription drug coverage may 
not exceed two years. A contract subject to this subsection may not be 
renewed without solicitation of a bid under section 54-52.1-04. 

SECTION 8. Section 54-52.1-05.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 
and enacted as follows: 

54-52.1-05.1. Provisions of health insurance benefits coverage. 

i The board contract for health insurance benefits coverage under this 
chapter must provide that for the duration of the term of that contract, 
except as necessary for treatment, payment, and operations, the carrier 
may not disclose identifiable or unidentifiable insured or provider data or 
information with a related or unrelated health care delivery entity. 

2. If the board enters a contract for health insurance benefits coverage under 
this chapter with a carrier that has common ownership with a health care 
delivery entity. for purposes of the carrier's negotiated provider discount 
rates with in-state providers: 

g,_ For a provider that is a critical access hospital that does not have 
common ownership with the carrier, the negotiated provider discount 
rates may not be less than the negotiated provider discount rates the 
carrier has with the related health care delivery entity that is a critical 
access hospital. 

Q,_ For a provider that is not a critical access hospital and that does not 
have common ownership with the carrier, the negotiated provider 
discount rates may not be less than the negotiated provider discount 
rates the carrier has with the related health care delivery entity that is 
not a critical access hospital. 

SECTION 9. UNIFORM GROUP INSURANCE PROGRAM HEALTH 
INSURANCE BENEFITS - LEGISLATIVE INTENT. During the period beginning with 
the effective date of this Act through June 30, 2015, if the public employees retirement 
system board determines it is necessary to rebid the uniform group insurance program 
health insurance benefits contract, the carrier providing coverage at the time of that 
determination may continue under the existing contract until a new contract is finalized , 
but not to exceed nine months beyond the date the board makes that determination. 

SECTION 10. HEALTH INSURANCE RESERVE FUNDS - LIMITATIONS. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of law, for the period beginning with the effective 
date of this Act and ending June 30, 2017, the public employees retirement system 
board may not spend any moneys in the fund created under section 54-52.1-06 or any 
other accumulated reserves under the uniform group insurance program for the 
purpose of reducing any increase in uniform group insurance premium amounts 
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beyond the rates used by the sixty-fourth legislative assembly for developing 2015-17 
state agency budgets. 

SECTION 11. EMERGENCY. Sections 8, 9, and 10 of this Act are declared to 
be an emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Summary of Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House 

Budget Version Changes Version Version 

Retirement and Investment 
Office 

Total all funds $4,899,369 $5,427,729 ($14,304) $5,413,425 $5,413,425 
Less estimated income 4,899,369 5,427,729 114 304) 5,413,425 5,413,425 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Public Employees Retirement 
System 

Total all funds $7,650,450 $9,407,473 ($64,050) $9,343,423 $8,896,346 
Less estimated income 7,650,450 9,407,473 (64,050) 9,343,423 8,896,346 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Bill total 
Total all funds $12,549,819 $14,835,202 ($78,354) $14,756,848 $14,309,771 
Less estimated income 12,549,819 14,835,202 (78,354) 14,756,848 14,309,771 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Retirement and Investment Office - Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House 

Budget Version Changes Version Version 

Salaries and wages $3,772,504 $4,354,855 ($14,304) $4,340,551 $4,340,551 
Operating expenses 973,324 990,874 990,874 990,874 
Contingencies 82,000 82,000 82,000 82,000 
Accrued leave payments 71 541 

Total all funds $4,899,369 $5,427,729 ($14,304) $5,413,425 $5,413,425 
Less estimated income 4,899,369 5,427,729 (14,304) 5,413,425 5,413,425 

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 19.00 19.00 0.00 19.00 19.00 

Department No. 190 - Retirement and Investment Office - Detail of Conference Committee 
Changes 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Contingencies 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

Adjusts 
Funding for 

Health Total 
Insurance 
Premium 

Increases' 
($14,304) 

($14,304) 
(14,304) 

$0 

0.00 

Conference 
Committee 
Changes 

($14,304) 

($14,304) 
(14 304) 

$0 

0.00 

Comparison 
to House 

$0 
0 

$0 

$447,077 
447,077 

$0 

$447,077 
447 077 

$0 

Comparison 
to House 

$0 
0 

$0 

0.00 
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1 Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised premium estimate of 
$1 , 130.22 per month. 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Public Employees Retirement System - Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House Comparison 

Budget Version Changes Version Version to House 
Salaries and wages $5,016,339 $6,479,410 ($64,050) $6,415,360 $5,988,402 $426,958 
Operating expenses 2,280,894 2,678,063 2,678,063 2,657,944 20,1 19 
Contingencies 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 
Accrued leave payments 103,217 

Total all funds $7,650,450 $9,407,473 ($64,050) $9,343,423 $8,896,346 $447,077 
Less estimated income 7,650,450 9 407 473 (64,050) 9,343,423 8,896,346 447 077 

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 33.00 34.50 0.00 34.50 33.00 1.50 

Department No. 192 - Public Employees Retirement System - Detail of Conference Committee 
Changes 

Adjusts 
Funding for 

Health Adds One-Time Total 
Insurance Reduces Adds Portability Funding for Conference 
Premium Temporary of Retiree Temporary Committee 

Increases' Salaries2 Health Credit' Salaries' Changes 
Salaries and wages ($27, 102) ($180,000) $43,052 $100,000 ($64,050) 
Operating expenses 
Contingencies 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds ($27,102) ($180,000) $43,052 $100,000 ($64,050) 
Less estimated income (27,102) (180,000) 43 052 100,000 164 050l 

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1 Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised premium estimate of 
$1, 130.22 per month including FTE adjustments made by the conference committee. 

2 Funding is reduced for additional temporary support. The Senate increased temporary salaries 
$302,352 and the House included a temporary salaries increase of $102,352. 

3 Funding is added for additional workload due to the portability of retiree health credit. This funding was 
not included in the House version, but was included in the temporary salary increase provide by the 
Senate. 

4 One-time funding is added for temporary salaries. Neither the Senate nor the House versions included 
funding for one-time temporary salaries. 

This amendment also: 
Adds sections to amend North Dakota Century Code Sections 54-52-01 and 54-52-03 to 
increase retirement board membership from 7 members to 9 members to add the Majority 
Leader of the House of Representatives, the Majority Leader of the Senate, and two members of 
the Legislative Assembly appointed by the Chairman of the Legislative Management; and 
remove members appointed by the Attorney General and the State Health Officer, the same as 
the House version . 
Adds a section to create a new section to Chapter 54-52.1, relating to a health insurance 
prescription drug coverage audit, and reporting to the Legislative Audit and Fiscal Review 
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Committee, the same as the House version. 
Adds a section to amend Section 54-52. 1 -05, relating to provisions of the health insurance 
benefits coverage to requ i re a contract may not exceed two years, the same as the House 
version. 
Adds a section to amend Section 54-52. 1 -05. 1 related to uniform group insurance program 
benefits coverage, the same as the House version. 
Adds a section l im iting the use of health insurance program reserves, the same as the House 
version.  
Adds a section of legislative intent relating to the extension of the existing health insurance 
benefits contract if the uniform group insurance program contract is rebid, the same as the 
House version. 
Provides amendments related to un iform group insurance program benefits coverage and health 
insurance program reserve l im itations are emergency measures, the same as the House 
version. 
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15.8155.02030 
Title.05000 
Fiscal No. 3 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Wardner 

June 11 , 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2022 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1778-1784 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 1982-1988 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2022 
be amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 2, remove the second "and" 

Page 1, line 2, after "transfers" insert"; to create and enact section 54-52 .1-05.1 of the North 
Dakota Century Code, relating to the terms of public employees retirement system 
contracts for uniform group health insurance benefits coverage; to amend and reenact 
subsection 17 of section 54-52-01 and sections 54-52-03 and 54-52.1-05 of the North 
Dakota Century Code, relating to the public employees retirement system board and 
disclosure of information by uniform group health insurance benefits coverage carriers ; 
and to limit the use of health insurance program reserves" 

Page 1, replace line 13 with: 

"Salaries and wages 

Page 1, replace line 17 with : 

"Total special funds 

Page 1, replace line 23 with : 

"Salaries and wages 

Page 2, replace line 1 with: 

"Operating expenses 

Page 2, replace lines 3 and 4 with: 

"Total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Page 2, replace lines 9 and 10 with: 

"Grand total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

$3,772,504 

$4,899,369 

$5,016,339 

2,280,894 

$7,650,450 
33.00 

$12,549,819 
52.00 

$568,047 

$514,056 

$1 ,339,021 

397, 169 

$1,692,973 
1.50 

$2,207,029 
1.50 

$4,340,551 " 

$5,413,425" 

$6,415,360" 

2,678,063" 

$9,343,423 
34.50" 

$14,756,848 
53.50 

SECTION 2. ONE-TIME FUNDING - EFFECT ON BASE BUDGET - REPORT 
TO SIXTY-FIFTH LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. The following amounts reflect the 
one-time funding items approved by the sixty-third legislative assembly for the 2013-15 
biennium and the 2015-17 one-time funding items included in the appropriation in 
section 1 of this Act: 

One-Time Funding Description 
Public employees retirement system - temporary salaries 
Total special funds 
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2013-15 
~ 
$0 

2015-17 
$100,000 
$100,000 
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The 2015-17 one-time funding amounts are not part of the entity's base budget forthe 2017-1 9 
biennium. The public employees retirement system shall report to the appropriations 
committees of the sixty-fifth legislative assembly on the use of the one-time funding for the 
biennium beginning July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017." 

Page 2, after I ine 15, insert: 

"SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subsection 17 of section 54-52-01 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

17. "Retirement board" or "board" means the seven persons designated by 
this chapter as the governing authority for the retirement system created 
under section 54-52-03. 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

54-52-03. Governing authority. 

A state agency is hereby created to constitute the governing authority of the 
system to consist of a board of seven personsnine individuals known as the retirement 
board. No more than one elected member of the board may be in the employ of a 
single department, institution, or agency of the state or in the employ of a political 
subdivision . NeAn employee of the public employees retirement system or the state 
retirement and investment office may not serve on the board . 

.L Two members of the legislative assembly must be appointed by the 
chairman of the legislative management to serve on the board . 

.e_,_ If the same political party has the greatest number of members in both 
the house and senate, one member must be from that majority party 
and one member from the political party with the next greatest number 
of members in the house and senate. 

~ If the same political party does not have the greatest number of 
members in both the house and senate. one member must be from 
the majority party in the house and one member must be from the 
majority party in the senate. 

2. One member of the board must be appointed by the governor to serve a 
term of five years. The appointee must be a North Dakota citizen who is 
not a state or political subdivision employee and who by experience is 
familiar with money management. The citizen member is chairman of the 
board . 

&.3. One member of the board must be appointed by the attorney general from 
the attorney general's legal staff and shall serve a term of five years. 

d-:4. The state health officer appointed under section 23-01-05 or the state 
health officer's designee is a member of the board . 

4:-~ Three board members must be elected by and from among the active 
participating members, members of the retirement plan established under 
chapter 54-52.6, members of the retirement plan established under 
chapter 39-03.1 , and members of the job service North Dakota retirement 
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plan. Employees who have terminated their employment for whatever 
reason are not eligible to serve as elected members of the board under 
this subsection. Board members must be elected to a five-year term 
pursuant to an election called by the board. Notice of board elections must 
be given to all active participating members. The time spent in performing 
duties as a board member may not be charged against any employee's 
accumulated annual or any other type of leave. 

&.-6. One board member must be elected by and from among those 
personsindividuals who are receiving retirement benefits under this 
chapter. The board shall call the election and must give prior notice of the 
election to the personsindividuals eligible to participate in the election 
pursuant to this subsection. The board member shall serve a term of five 
years. 

&.-7. The members of the board are entitled to receive one hundred forty-eight 
dollars per day compensation and necessary mileage and travel expenses 
as provided in sections 44-08-04 and 54-06-09. This is in addition to any 
other pay or allowance due the chairman or a member, plus an allowance 
for expenses they may incur through service on the board. 

7:-8. A board member shall serve a five-year term and until the board member's 
successor qualifies. Each board member is entitled to one vote, and 
fOOffive of the seveRnine board members constitute a quorum. Foof:Five 
votes are necessary for resolution or action by the board at any meeting. 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52.1-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

54-52.1-05. Provisions of contract - Term of contract. 

.1. Each uniform group insurance contract entered ffit&.-by the board must be 
consistent with the provisions of this chapter, must be signed for the state 
of North Dakota by the chairman of the board , and must include the 
following : 

+. a. As many optional coverages as deemed feasible and advantageous 
by the board. 

2-.,. ~ A detailed statement of benefits offered , including maximum 
limitations and exclusions , and such other provisions as the board 
may deem necessary or desirable. 

2. The initial term or the renewal term of a fully insured uniform group 
insurance contract for hospital benefits coverage, medical benefits 
coverage. or prescription drug coverage may not exceed two years. 

a. The board may renew a contract subject to this subsection without 
soliciting a bid under section 54-52.1-04 if the board determines the 
carrier's performance under the existing contract meets the board's 
expectations and the proposed premium renewal amount does not 
exceed the board's expectations. 

~ In making a determination under this subsection. the board shall : 
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ill Use the services of a consultant to concurrently and 
independently prepare a renewal estimate the board shall 
consider in determining the reasonableness of the proposed 
premium renewal amount. 

ill Review the carrier's performance measures. including payment 
accuracy. claim processing time, member service center 
metrics. wellness or other special program participation levels. 
and any other measures the board determines relevant to 
making the determination and shall consider these measures in 
determining the board's satisfaction with the carrier's 
performance. 

Ql Consider any additional information the board determines 
relevant to making the determination. 

~ If the board determines the carrier's performance under the existing 
contract does not meet the board's expectations or the proposed 
premium renewal amount exceeds the board's expectations and the 
board determines to solicit a bid under section 54-52.1-04 the board 
shall specify its reasons for the determination to solicit a bid . 

SECTION 7. Section 54-52.1-05.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 
and enacted as follows: 

54-52.1-05.1. Health insurance benefits coverage - Insured and provider 
data disclosure. 

Except as necessary for treatment. payment. or health care operations. a 
carrier providing health insurance benefits coverage under this chapter may not 
disclose identifiable or unidentifiable insured or provider data or information to a related 
or unrelated health care delivery entity. The board may establish exceptions to the 
disclosure limitations under this section for the limited purpose of addressing public 
interest and benefit activities or for the limited purpose of addressing research , public 
health. or health care operations. An exception established by the board under this 
section may not be more permissive than allowed under state and federal privacy laws. 

SECTION 8. HEALTH INSURANCE RESERVE FUNDS - LIMITATIONS. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of law, during the 2015-17 biennium, the public 
employees retirement system board may not spend any moneys in the fund created 
under section 54-52.1-06 or from any other source for the purpose of reducing any 
increase in uniform group insurance premium amounts beyond the rates used by the 
sixty-fourth legislative assembly for developing 2015-17 state agency budgets." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Summary of Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House Comparison 

Budget Version Changes Version Version to House 

Retirement and Investment 
Office 

Total all funds $4,899,369 $5,427,729 ($14,304) $5,413,425 $5,413,425 $0 
Less estimated income 4,899,369 5,427,729 (14 304) 5,413,425 5,413,425 0 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
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Public Employees Retirement 
System 

Total all funds $7,650,450 $9,407,473 ($64,050) $9,343,423 $8,896,346 $447,077 
Less estimated income 7,650,450 9 407 473 64 050 9,343,423 8,896,346 447 077 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Bill total 
Total all funds $12,549,819 $14,835,202 ($78,354) $14,756,848 $14,309,771 $447,077 
Less estimated income 12,549,819 14 ,835,202 78 354 14,756,848 14,309,771 447 077 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Retirement and Investment Office - Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House Comparison 

Budget Version Changes Version Version to House 
Salaries and wages $3,772,504 $4,354,855 ($14,304) $4,340,551 $4,340,551 
Operating expenses 973,324 990,874 990,874 990,874 
Contingencies 82,000 82,000 82,000 82,000 
Accrued leave payments 71 541 

Total all funds $4,899,369 $5,427,729 ($14,304) $5,413,425 $5,413,425 $0 
Less estimated income 4,899,369 5,427,729 (1 4 304) 5,413,425 5,413,425 

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 19.00 19.00 0.00 19.00 19.00 

Department No. 190 - Retirement and Investment Office - Detail of Conference Committee 
Changes 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Contingencies 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

Adjusts 
Funding for 

Health 
Insurance 
Premium 

Increases' 
($1 4,304) 

($14,304) 
(14,304) 

$0 

0.00 

Total 
Conference 
Committee 
Changes 

($14,304) 

($1 4,304) 
(14 304\ 

$0 

0.00 

0 

$0 

0.00 

1 Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised premium estimate of 
$1,130.22 per month . 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Public Employees Retirement System - Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House Comparison 

Budget Version Changes Vers ion Vers ion to House 

Salaries and wages $5,016,339 $6,479,410 ($64,050) $6,415,360 $5,988,402 $426,958 
Operating expenses 2,280,894 2,678,063 2,678,063 2,657,944 20,119 
Contingencies 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 
Accrued leave payments 103 217 

Total all funds $7 ,650,450 $9,407,473 ($64,050) $9,343,423 $8,896,346 $447,077 
Less estimated income 7,650,450 9,407,473 164 050\ 9,343,423 8,896,346 447 077 

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
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FTE 33.00 34.50 l.___--=..:o .~oo I 34.50 33.00 1.50 

Department No. 192 • Public Employees Retirement System - Detail of Conference Committee 
Changes 

Adjusts 
Funding for 

Health Adds One-Time Total 
Insurance Reduces Adds Portability Funding for Conference 
Premium Temporary of Retiree Temporary Committee 

Increases' Salaries2 Health Credit' Salaries' Changes 
Salaries and wages ($27,102) ($180,000) $43,052 $100,000 ($64,050) 
Operating expenses 
Contingencies 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds ($27,102) ($180,000) $43,052 $100,000 ($64,050) 
Less estimated income (27,102) (180,000) 43 052 100,000 (64 050} 

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1 Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised premium estimate of 
$1 , 130.22 per month including FTE adjustments made by the Conference Committee. 

2 Funding is reduced for additional temporary support to provide an increase of $122, 352. The Senate 
increased temporary salaries by $302,352 and the House included a temporary salaries increase of 
$102 ,352. 

3 Funding is added for additional workload due to the portability of retiree health credit. This funding was 
not included in the House version , but was included in the temporary salary increase provided by the 
Senate. 

4 One-time funding is added for temporary salaries. Neither the Senate nor the House versions included 
funding for one-time temporary salaries. 

This amendment also: 

• Adds sections to amend North Dakota Century Code Sections 54-52-01 and 54-52-03 to 
increase retirement board membership from seven to nine members by adding two members of 
the Legislative Assembly appointed by the Chairman of the Legislative Management. The 
House version added four members of the Leg islative Assembly to the board and removed 
members appointed by the Attorney General and the State Health Officer. 

• Adds a new section to statute relating to the process to rebid the health insurance contract. 

• Adds a new section to statute relating to the disclosure of health information . 

• Adds a section limiting the use of health insurance program reserves. The House version 
included a similar section relating the use of health insurance program reserves. 
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Date: 
Roll Call Vote #: 

2015 SENATE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

- - -----
-------

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. ____ A_l'.:?_~_~ _____ as (re) engrossed 

Senate Appropriations Committee 
Action Taken D SENATE accede to House Amendments 

D SENATE accede to House Amendments and further amend 
D HOUSE recede from House amendments 
D HOUSE recede from House amendments and amend as follows 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged and a new 
committee be appointed 

Motion Made by: Seconded by: 
~ Prn f{ft1 "J p/)1'1 :i. .j{)1\ "i/ P 1 PffT' 

Senators l!J1 1~'} '-1£1 Yes· No ., Representatives ~'/ t ¥£~ '/ I 
Yes No 

ff n~IJ»_b .J v v r /IJ ore,,~ o /J .) y y ,/ 

n.P J-e,,,r y J/ )I i K,; ,,., n/f../ l ,,, y /~ 
kl .R (' I'_,., fY) /1-A J ~ , / / t.J/J-t':///7.11.1 _/ y y / 

() 

Total Senate Vote Total Rep. Vote 

Vote Count Yes: No: Absent: 

Senate Carrier House Carrier 

LC Number of amendment 

LC Number of engrossment 
----------

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Statement of purpose of amendment 



Date: 
Roll Call Vote #: 

2015 SENATE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2022 as (re) engrossed 

Senate Appropriations Committee 
Action Taken D SENATE accede to House Amendments 

----
----

D SENATE accede to House Amendments and further amend 
D HOUSE recede from House amendments 
D HOUSE recede from House amendments and amend as follows 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged and a new 
committee be appointed 

Motion Made by: 

Senators 

Krebsbach 
Dever 
Heckaman 

Total Senate Vote 

Vote Count 

Senate Carrier 
A 
LC Number 

LC Number 

{) Jl/f] 

~ 
v ., 

/ 

Yes: 

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Statement of purpose of amendment 

Yes No 

Seconded by: 
lf /j 7 

Representatives ~ Yes No 

Thoreson // 

Keiser ;/ 

Hoqan / 

Total Rep. Vote 

No: Absent: 

House Carrier 

of amendment 

of engrossment 
~--------~ 



Date: 
Roll Call Vote #: 

2015 SENATE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2022 as (re) engrossed 

Senate Appropriations Committee 
Action Taken D SENATE accede to House Amendments 

----
----

D SENATE accede to House Amendments and further amend 
D HOUSE recede from House amendments 
D HOUSE recede from House amendments and amend as follows 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged and a new 
committee be appointed 

Motion Made by: 

Senators 

Krebsbach 
Dever 
Heckaman 

Total Senate Vote 

Vote Count 

Senate Carrier 
A 
LC Number 

LC Number 

()/i).N I { °jO J Pf() 
I • 

#~ 1/d 4/28 

x v:_ v' 
x , y 

x / / 

Yes: 

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Statement of purpose of amendment 

Yes No 

Seconded by: 
4.ai\o 1 1:~0,tf;fl 

Representatives 4/28 -'(~ v* Yes No 
/ 

Thoreson x ·v y 

Keiser x / / 
Hogan x / / 

Total Rep. Vote 

No: Absent: 

House Carrier 

of amendment 

of engrossment 
~--------~ 



Date: 
Roll Call Vote#: 

2015 SENATE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2022 as (re) engrossed 

Senate Appropriations Committee 
Action Taken D SENATE accede to House Amendments 

----

----

D SENATE accede to House Amendments and further amend 
D HOUSE recede from House amendments 
D HOUSE recede from House amendments and amend as follows 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged and a new 
committee be appointed 

Motion Made by: Seconded by: -----------
i 

Senators ~i° Yes No Representatives Yes No 

Krebsbach ,,.. Thoreson 
Dever y Keiser 
Heckaman r Hoqan 

Total Senate Vote Total Rep. Vote 

Vote Count Yes: No: Absent: 

House Carrier Senate Carrier 
A 

-----------

LC Number of amendment 

LC Number of engrossment 
---------~ 

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Statement of purpose of amendment 



Date: Click · 

2015 SENATE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2022 as (re) engrossed 

J/- 4, I ~---. q H('f\ 
Roll Call Vote #: f 

Senate "Enter committee name" Committee 
Action Taken D SENATE accede to House Amendments 

Motion Made by: 

Senators 

Krebsbach 
Dever 
Heckaman 

Total Senate Vote 

Vote Count 

Senate Carrier 

LC Number 

LC Number 

D SENATE accede to House Amendments and further amend 
D HOUSE recede from House amendments 
D HOUSE recede from House amendments and amend as follows 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged and a new 
committee be appointed 

f} Jl,1_, L e-U Seconded by: L/;_,,,, './,11'/ ti>t~) 
9fl!fl I 

l//111J1 

%! Yes No Representatives Yes No 
, 

I/ v Thoreson 1/ // 
,/ v keiser / !/ 

/ v Hogan ./ ,/ 

Total Rep. Vote 

Yes: 3 No: Absent: ~CJ----bc""-'-d/J~vµ ltj; 
House Carrier 

of amendment 

of engrossment 
~~~~~~~~~~ 

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Statement of purpose of amendment 



oate•--1/d_;o 
Roll Call Vote#:~'~-

2015 SENATE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2022 as (re) engrossed 

Senate Appropriations Committee 
Action Taken D SENATE accede to House Amendments 

Motion Made by: 

Senators 

Krebsbach 
Dever 
Heckaman 

Total Senate Vote 

Vote Count 

Senate Carrier 
A 
LC Number 

LC Number 

D SENATE accede to House Amendments and further amend 
D HOUSE recede from House amendments 
D HOUSE recede from House amendments and amend as follows 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged and a new 
committee be appointed 

I J~ Seconded by: y~ 
, \ -

Yes No Representatives Yes No 
-v Thoreson Y' 

/ Keiser / 
¥' HoQan y 

Total Rep. Vote 

No: (} ----- Absent: {/ -=-----Yes: 

House Carrier 

of amendment 

of engrossment 
~---------

Emergency clause added or deleted 



oate 1/;f/;s 
Roll Call Vote #: :2.-..,.;> 

2015 SENATE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2022 as (re) engrossed 

Senate Appropriations Committee 
Action Taken D SENATE accede to House Amendments 

D SENATE accede to House Amendments and further amend 
D HOUSE recede from House amendments 
D HOUSE recede from House amendments and amend as follows 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged and a new 
committee be appointed 

Motion Made by:~ 
Senators 

Krebsbach 
Dever 
Heckaman 

Total Senate Vote 

Vote Count 

Senate Carrier 
A 
LC Number 

LC Number 

Yes: 

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Statement of purpose of amendment 

Yes No 

v 
~ 

v 

Seconded by: 

Representatives Yes No 

Thoreson 
,, 

Keiser v-
Hogan b,..t'.. 

Total Rep. Vote 

0 Absent: 0 
~----

No: 

House Carrier 

of amendment 

of engrossment 
~~~~~~~~~~ 



Date IJ! ~ t!J 
Roll Call Vote #: 

2015 SENATE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2022 as (re) engrossed 

Senate Appropriations Committee 
Action Taken D SENATE accede to House Amendments 

Motion Made by: 

Senators 

Krebsbach 
Dever 
Heckaman 

Total Senate Vote 

Vote Count 

Senate Carrier 
A 
LC Number 

LC Number 

D SENATE accede to House Amendments and further amend 
D HOUSE recede from House amendments 
D HOUSE recede from House amendments and amend as follows 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged and a new 
committee be appointed 

I ryU Seconded by: {J_ t4avJ 
v (/ 

Yes No Representatives Yes No 
/ / 

y Thoreson v _ -v Keiser yr 

.v Hoqan v 

Total Rep. Vote 

() Absent: ~Q~---
/ 

Yes: No: 

House Carrier 
~~~~~~~~~~-

of amendment 

of engrossment 
~~~~~~~~~-

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Statement of purpose of amendment 



Date 11/2://~ 
Roll Call Vote #: t/_ 

2015 SENATE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2022 as (re) engrossed 

Senate Appropriations Committee 
Action Taken D SENATE accede to House Amendments 

D SENATE accede to House Amendments and further amend 
D HOUSE recede from House amendments 
D HOUSE recede from House amendments and amend as follows 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged and a new 
committee be appointed 

Motion Made by: ~f .f; 1 )-() 

Senators 

Krebsbach 
Dever 
Heckaman 

Total Senate Vote 

Vote Count 

Senate Carrier 
A 
LC Number 

LC Number 

""' ' 

Yes: 

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Seconded by~ 
Yes No ,, Representatives Yes No 

/ / 

/ / Thoreson ,, 
y / Keiser ],/"',,, v 
y Hogan v 

Total Rep. Vote 

3 Absent: ,J 
------

No: 

House Carrier 

of amendment 

of engrossment 
~~~~~~~~~~ 

Statement of purpose of amendmefl" /5, Y/S5_ Oc?O;l.] ./)~ ~ 

.JV~ ;tkv~~r-o 

~9 -bS~ 



Date: 
Roll Call Vote # :-3~--· -

2015 SENATE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2022 as (re) engrossed 

Senate Appropriations Committee 
Action Taken D SENATE accede to House Amendments 

Motion Made by: 

Senators 

Krebsbach 
Dever 
Heckaman 

Total Senate Vote 

Vote Count 

Senate Carrier 
A 
LC Number 

LC Number 

D SENATE accede to House Amendments and further amend 
D HOUSE recede from House amendments 
D HOUSE recede from House amendments and amend as follows 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged and a new 
committee be appointed 

r!IAH1mJ Seconded by: ~ / v (/ 
v 

Yes J No Yes No/ / Representatives 
! Y/ Thoreson .1y ..... 

v / Keiser ,/ 
/ Hogan ,/ 

, 

, 

Total Rep. Vote I 
I 

Yes: I No: .:5 Absent: 

House Carrier 

of amendment 

of engrossment 
~~~~~~~~~-

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Statement of purpose of amendment 



Date r /; f /t 5 J f tfY\ 
Roll Call Vote #: 

2015 SENATE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2022 as (re) engrossed 

Senate Appropriations Committee 
Action Taken D SENATE accede to House Amendments 

D SENATE accede to House Amendments and further amend 
........ DJiOUSE recede from House amendments 
_A HOUSE recede from House amendments and amend as follows 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged and a new 
committee be appointed 

Motion Made by: ____,f),~t}--~0){) ___ Seconded by: ~~ 
Senators 

Krebsbach 
Dever 
Heckaman 

Total Senate Vote 

Vote Count Yes: 

;enate Carrier~ 
LC Number 

LC Number 

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Yes No 
y 

/ 

/ 

Representatives Yes No 

Thoreson .I' 

Keiser y 

Hoqan i/ 

Total Rep. Vote 

No: c:f Absent: {} 

House Carrier 

of amendment 

of engrossment 
~~~~~~~~~~ 



Date: lf. Jf" J5 1flJ) 
Roll Call Vote # :_Q~_;-

2015 SENATE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2022 as (re) engrossed 

Senate Appropriations Committee 
Action Taken D SENATE accede to House Amendments 

Motion Made by: 

Senators 

Krebsbach 
Dever 
Heckaman 

Total Senate Vote 

Vote Count 

Senate Carrier 
A 
LC Number 

LC Number 

D SENATE accede to House Amendments and further amend 
~OUSE recede from House amendments 
~HOUSE recede from House amendments and amend as follows 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged and a new 
committee be appointed 

~!IYU Seconded by: cJ:/ / /}.ur) 
'-.._ -

Yes No Representatives 
I 

Yes No -- ~ 

s/ / 
Thoreson v 

y Keiser y 
./ HoQan ,/ 

-
Total Rep. Vote 

Yes: No: Absent: ~O~____,,c ...... L_i~ ~ 

House Carrier 

of amendment 

of engrossment 
~~~~~~~~~-

Emergency clause added or deleted 



2015 SENATE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2022 as (re) engrossed 

Senate Appropriations Committee 
Action Taken D SENATE accede to House Amendments 

Date: 6/16/2015 
Roll Call Vote # : 1 

D SENATE accede to House Amendments and further amend 
D HOUSE recede from House amendments 
D HOUSE recede from House amendments and amend as follows 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged and a new 
committee be appointed 

Motion made to appropriate sections 1-3 and omit sections 4-8 from amendment 15. 8155. 02030 

Motion Made by: Senator Heckaman Seconded by: Representative Hogan 

Senators Yes No Representatives Yes No 

Senator Wardner x Representative Carlson x 
Senator G. Lee x Representative Vigesaa x 
Senator Heckaman x Representative Hogan x 

Total Senate Vote Total Rep. Vote 

Vote Count Yes : 2 No: 4 Absent: 0 -----

Senate Carrier 

LC Number of amendment 

LC Number of engrossment 
------ -----

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Statement of purpose of amendment 



2015 SENATE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2022 as (re) engrossed 

Senate Appropriations Committee 
Action Taken 0 SENATE accede to House Amendments 

Date: 6/16/2015 
Roll Call Vote#: 2 

0 SENATE accede to House Amendments and further amend 
0 HOUSE recede from House amendments 
IZI HOUSE recede from House amendments and amend as follows 

0 Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged and a new 
committee be appointed 

Motion made to accept amendment 15.8155.02030 

Motion Made by: Representative Carlson Seconded by: Representative Vigesaa 

Senators Yes No Representatives Yes No 

Senator Wardner x Representative Carlson x 
Senator G. Lee x Representative Vigesaa x 
Senator Heckaman x Representative Hoqan x 

Total Senate Vote Total Rep. Vote 

Vote Count Yes: 5 No: 1 Absent: 0 

Senate Carrier Wardner House Carrier Carlson 

LC Number 15.8155 . 02030 of amendment 

LC Number 15.8155 . 05000 of engrossment 
~~~~~~~~~~~- -~~~~~~~~~~ 

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Statement of purpose of amendment 
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REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
SB 2022, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Krebsbach , Dever, Heckaman 

and Reps. Thoreson, Keiser, Hogan) recommends that the HOUSE RECEDE from 
the House amendments as printed on SJ pages 1778-1784, adopt amendments as 
follows , and place SB 2022 on the Seventh order: 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1778-1784 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 1982-1988 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 
2022 be amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 2, remove the second "and" 

Page 1, line 2, after "transfers" insert "; to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-52.1 
and section 54-52.1-05.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to uniform 
group insurance program benefits coverage contract requirements, prescription drug 
coverage analyses, and a report to the legislative audit and fiscal review committee; 
to amend and reenact subsection 17 of section 54-02-01 and sections 54-52-03 and 
54-52.1-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the retirement board and 
public employees retirement system contracts for health insurance benefits 
coverage; to provide a statement of legislative intent; to limit the use of health 
insurance program reserves; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1, replace line 13 with : 

"Salaries and wages 

Page 1, replace line 17 with : 

"Total special funds 

Page 1, replace line 23 with : 

"Salaries and wages 

Page 2, replace line 1 with : 

"Operating expenses 

Page 2, replace lines 3 and 4 with : 

"Total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Page 2, replace lines 9 and 10 with : 

"Grand total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

$3,772,504 

$4,899,369 

$5,016,339 

2,280,894 

$7,650,450 
33.00 

$12,549,819 
52.00 

$568,047 

$514,056 

$1 ,399,021 

397, 169 

$1 ,692,973 
1.50 

$2,207,029 
1.50 

$4,340,551 " 

$5,413,425" 

$6,415,360" 

2,678,063" 

$9,343,423 
34.50" 

$14,756,848 
53.00 

SECTION 2. ONE-TIME FUNDING - EFFECT ON BASE BUDGET - REPORT 
TO SIXTY-FIFTH LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. The following amounts reflect the 
one-time funding items approved by the sixty-third legislative assembly for the 2013-
15 biennium and the 2015-17 one-time funding items included in the appropriation in 
section 1 of this Act: 

Public employees retirement system 

One-Time Funding Description 
Temporary salaries 
Total special funds 

2013-15 
iQ 
$0 

2015-17 
$100,000 
$100,000 

The 2015-17 one-time funding amounts are not part of the entity's base budget for the 2017-
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19 biennium. The public employee retirement system shall report to the appropriations 
committees of the sixty-fifth legislative assembly on the use of the one-time funding for the 
biennium beginning July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017." 

Page 2, after line 15, insert: 

"SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subsection 17 of section 54-52-01 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows : 

17. "Retirement board" or "board" means the seven persons designated by 
this ohapter as the governing authority for the retirement system created 
under section 54-52-03. 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

54-52-03. Governing authority. 

A state agency is hereby created to constitute the governing authority of the 
system to consist of a board of seveRnine persons known as the retirement board . 
No more than one elected member of the board may be in the employ of a single 
department, institution, or agency of the state or in the employ of a political 
subdivision. No employee of the public employees retirement system or the state 
retirement and investment office may serve on the board . 

.1_ The majority leader of the house of representatives or a designee is a 
member of the board. 

2. The majority leader of the senate or a designee is a member of the 
board . 

~ Two members of the legislative assembly appointed by the chairman of 
the legislative management consisting of one member from the majority 
party and one member from the minority party are members of the board. 

+.4. One member of the board must be appointed by the governor to serve a 
term of five years. The appointee must be a North Dakota citizen who is 
not a state or political subdivision employee and who by experience is 
familiar with money management. The citizen member is chairman of the 
board. 

2-:- One member of the board must be appointed by the attorney general 
from the attorney general's legal staff and shall serve a term of five years . 

d-:- The state health offioer appointed under seotion 23 01 05 is a member of 
the board. 

4:-~ Three board members must be elected by and from among the active 
participating members, members of the retirement plan established under 
chapter 54-52.6, members of the retirement plan established under 
chapter 39-03.1, and members of the job service North Dakota retirement 
plan. Employees who have terminated their employment for whatever 
reason are not eligible to serve as elected members of the board under 
this subsection. Board members must be elected to a five-year term 
pursuant to an election called by the board . Notice of board elections 
must be given to all active participating members. The time spent in 
performing duties as a board member may not be charged against any 
employee's accumulated annual or any other type of leave. 

e:-6 . One board member must be elected by and from among those persons 
who are receiving retirement benefits under this chapter. The board shall 
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call the election and must give prior notice of the election to the persons 
eligible to participate in the election pursuant to this subsection. The 
board member shall serve a term of five years . 

&.-L. The members of the board are entitled to receive one hundred forty-eight 
dollars per day compensation and necessary mileage and travel 
expenses as provided in sections 44-08-04 and 54-06-09. This is in 
addition to any other pay or allowance due the chairman or a member, 
plus an allowance for expenses they may incur through service on the 
board . 

+.:-~ A board member shall serve a five-year term and until the board 
member's successor qualifies. Each board member is entitled to one 
vote, and felli:five of the seveRnine board members constitute a quorum. 
~Five votes are necessary for resolution or action by the board at any 
meeting. 

SECTION 6. A new section to chapter 54-52.1 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Health insurance benefits coverage of prescription drug coverage -
Analysis - Report to legislative audit and fiscal review committee . 

.L At least once every two years. the board shall request the state auditor to 
select a firm to complete a financial and health care analysis of the 
prescription drug coverage under the health benefits coverage. This may 
not be construed to require the firm to be a certified public accounting 
firm . In contracting for the analysis, the state auditor shall consider input 
from the board regarding the scope of the evaluation and the review of 
the proposals. The analysis must include a review of the following, 
without limitation: 

a. Based on medi-span definitions of "brand drug" and "generic drug", 
the average annual brand drug costs and the generic drug costs at 
each of the following pharmacy channels: 

ill Retail; 

.(22 Retail-90; and 

Q,_ The average annual drug-by-drug costs of each drug dispensed from 
specialty drug pharmacies used by the carrier or the pharmacy 
benefits manager. 

g_,_ The rebates and other third-party financial benefits passed through 
to the board . measured in the aggregate and on a per brand drug 
prescription basis. to verify the carrier satisfied the contract's rebate 
guarantees. 

Q,. ill At a minimum an evaluation of the effectiveness of the 
following programs implemented on behalf of the board by the 
carrier or the pharmacy benefits manager: 

@). Quantity limit program; 

.(Ql Step therapy program; and 

M Prior authorization program. 
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ill The evaluation of effectiveness under this subdivision must 
include: 

@l The approval and disapproval rates for each 
first-line-treatment drug in the prior authorization 
program: and 

.(Ql Recommendations to the board addressing how to 
improve each of the programs. 

~ An evaluation of and recommendations concerning the refill 
practices of the carrier or the pharmacy benefits manager to 
determine. without limitation : 

ill Whether and to what extent automatic refills are being 
dispensed : and 

ill The point in time refills are being dispensed . 

£. Upon the request of the board. the health benefits coverage carrier or 
pharmacy benefits manager that provides prescription drug coverage 
under the health benefits coverage shall produce. without limitation : 

~ The prescription drug coverage contract controlling prescription 
coverage under this chapter: and 

~ A list of the prior authorization. step therapy. and quantity limit 
programs implemented on behalf of the board. identifying . without 
limitation . each drug in the program and whether the drug is a first­
or second-line-of-treatment drug or the relevant quantity limit. 

~ The board shall submit and present this report to the legislative audit and 
fiscal review committee. 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52.1-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

54-52.1-05. Provisions of contract - Term of contract. 

1,_ Each uniform group insurance contract entered into by the board must be 
consistent with the provisions of this chapter, must be signed for the state 
of North Dakota by the chairman of the board, and must include the 
following : 

4-:- ~ As many optional coverages as deemed feasible and advantageous 
by the board . 

2-:- ~ A detailed statement of benefits offered, including maximum 
limitations and exclusions, and such other provisions as the board 
may deem necessary or desirable. 

£. The term of a uniform group insurance contract for hospital benefits 
coverage. medical benefits coverage, or prescription drug coverage may 
not exceed two years. A contract subject to this subsection may not be 
renewed without solicitation of a bid under section 54-52 .1-04. 

SECTION 8. Section 54-52.1-05.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
created and enacted as follows : 
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54-52.1-05.1. Provisions of health insurance benefits coverage . 

.L The board contract for health insurance benefits coverage under this 
chapter must provide that for the duration of the term of that contract. 
except as necessary for treatment. payment. and operations. the carrier 
may not disclose identifiable or unidentifiable insured or provider data or 
information with a related or unrelated health care delivery entity. 

£. If the board enters a contract for health insurance benefits coverage 
under this chapter with a carrier that has common ownership with a 
health care delivery entity. for purposes of the carrier's negotiated 
provider discount rates with in-state providers: 

a. For a provider that is a critical access hospital that does not have 
common ownership with the carrier, the negotiated provider discount 
rates may not be less than the negotiated provider discount rates the 
carrier has with the related health care delivery entity that is a critical 
access hospital. 

~ For a provider that is not a critical access hospital and that does not 
have common ownership with the carrier, the negotiated provider 
discount rates may not be less than the negotiated provider discount 
rates the carrier has with the related health care delivery entity that is 
not a critical access hospital. 

SECTION 9. UNIFORM GROUP INSURANCE PROGRAM HEALTH 
INSURANCE BENEFITS - LEGISLATIVE INTENT. During the period beginning with 
the effective date of this Act through June 30, 2015, if the public employees 
retirement system board determines it is necessary to rebid the uniform group 
insurance program health insurance benefits contract, the carrier providing coverage 
at the time of that determination may continue under the existing contract until a new 
contract is finalized, but not to exceed nine months beyond the date the board 
makes that determination. 

SECTION 10. HEALTH INSURANCE RESERVE FUNDS - LIMITATIONS. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of law, for the period beginning with the effective 
date of this Act and ending June 30, 2017, the public employees retirement system 
board may not spend any moneys in the fund created under section 54-52.1-06 or 
any other accumulated reserves under the uniform group insurance program for the 
purpose of reducing any increase in uniform group insurance premium amounts 
beyond the rates used by the sixty-fourth legislative assembly for developing 
2015-17 state agency budgets. 

SECTION 11. EMERGENCY. Sections 8, 9, and 10 of this Act are declared 
to be an emergency measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Summary of Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House Comparison 

Budget Version Changes Version Version to House 

Retirement and Investment 
Office 

Total all funds $4,899,369 $5,427,729 ($14,304) $5,413,425 $5,413,425 $0 
Less estimated income 4,899 369 5 427,729 14,304 5 413 425 5 413 425 0 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Public Employees Retirement 
System 

Total all funds $7,650,450 $9,407,473 ($64,050) $9,343,423 $8,896,346 $447,077 
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Less estimated income 7 650 450 9,407,473 (64,050) 9,343,423 8,896,346 447,077 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Bill total 
Total all funds $12,549,819 $14,835,202 ($78,354) $14,756,848 $14,309,771 $447,077 
Less estimated income 12549819 14,835,202 178 354\ 14 756 848 14 309 771 447 077 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Retirement and Investment Office - Conference Committee 
Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House 

Budget Version Changes Version Version 

Salaries and wages $3,772,504 $4,354,855 ($14,304) $4,340,551 $4,340,551 
Operating expenses 973,324 990,874 990,874 990,874 
Contingencies 82,000 82,000 82,000 82,000 
Accrued leave payments 71,541 

Total all funds $4,899,369 $5,427,729 ($14,304) $5,413,425 $5,413.425 
Less estimated income 4 899 369 5 427 729 {14 304) 5 41 3 425 5 41 3 425 

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 19.00 19.00 0.00 19.00 19.00 

Department No. 190 - Retirement and Investment Office - Detail of Conference 
Committee Changes 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Contingencies 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

Adjusts 
Funding for 

Health 
Insurance 
Premium 
Increases' 

($14,304) 

($14,304) 
(14,304) 

$0 

0.00 

Total 
Conference 
Committee 
Changes 

($14,304) 

($14,304) 
{14,304\ 

$0 

0.00 

1 Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised 
premium estimate of $1 , 130.22 per month. 

Comparison 
to House 

$0 
0 

$0 

0.00 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Public Employees Retirement System - Conference Committee 
Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House Comparison 

Budget Version Changes Version Version to House 

Salaries and wages $5,016,339 $6,479,410 ($64,050) $6,415,360 $5,988,402 $426,958 
Operating expenses 2,280,894 2,678,063 2,678,063 2,657,944 20,11 9 
Contingencies 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 
Accrued leave payments 103 217 

Total all funds $7,650,450 $9,407,473 ($64,050) $9,343,423 $8,896,346 $447 ,077 
Less estimated income 7 650 450 9 407 473 {64 050) 9 343 423 8,896,346 447 077 

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 33.00 34.50 0.00 34.50 33.00 1.50 

Department No. 192 - Public Employees Retirement System - Detail of Conference 
Committee Changes 

(1) DESK (2) COMMITTEE 

Adjusts 
Funding for 

Reduces 
Temporary 

Page 6 

Adds 
Portability of 

Adds One-Time I Total 
Funding for I Conference 
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Retiree Health Temporary Committee 
Credit' Salaries' Changes 

Salaries and wages ($27 , 102) ($180,000) $43,052 $100,000 ($64,050) 
Operating expenses 
Conlingencies 
Accrued leave payments 

Tolal all funds ($27, 102) ($180,000) $43,052 $100,000 ($64 ,050) 
Less estimated income {27,102) {180,000) 43 052 100 000 (64 0501 

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1 Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised 
premium estimate of $1 , 130.22 per month including FTE adjustments made by the 
conference committee. 

2 Funding is reduced for additional temporary support The Senate increased temporary 
salaries $302,352 and the House included a temporary salaries increase of $102,352. 

3 Funding is added for additional workload due to the portability of retiree health credit This 
funding was not included in the House version , but was included in the temporary salary 
increase provide by the Senate. 

4 One-time funding is added for temporary salaries. Neither the Senate nor the House 
versions included funding for one-time temporary salaries. 

This amendment also: 
Adds sections to amend North Dakota Century Code Sections 54-52-01 and 54-52-
03 to increase retirement board membership from 7 members to 9 members to add 
the Majority Leader of the House of Representatives, the Majority Leader of the 
Senate, and two members of the Legislative Assembly appointed by the Chairman of 
the Legislative Management; and remove members appointed by the Attorney 
General and the State Health Officer, the same as the House version . 
Adds a section to create a new section to Chapter 54-52 .1, relating to a health 
insurance prescription drug coverage audit, and reporting to the Legislative Audit 
and Fiscal Review Committee, the same as the House version . 
Adds a section to amend Section 54-52.1-05, relating to provisions of the health 
insurance benefits coverage to require a contract may not exceed two years, the 
same as the House version . 
Adds a section to amend Section 54-52.1-05.1 related to uniform group insurance 
program benefits coverage, the same as the House version. 
Adds a section limiting the use of health insurance program reserves, the same as 
the House version . 
Adds a section of legislative intent relating to the extension of the existing health 
insurance benefits contract if the uniform group insurance program contract is rebid , 
the same as the House version . 
Provides amendments related to uniform group insurance program benefits 
coverage and health insurance program reserve limitations are emergency 
measures, the same as the House version . 

Engrossed SB 2022 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar. 

(1) DESK (2) COMMITIEE Page 7 s_cfcomrep_77 _007 



Com Conference Committee Report 
June 16, 2015 9:50am 

Module ID: s_cfcomrep_79_001 

Insert LC: 15.8155.02030 

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
SB 2022, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Wardner, G. Lee, Heckaman 

and Reps. Carlson, Vigesaa, Hogan) recommends that the HOUSE RECEDE from 
the House amendments as printed on SJ pages 1778-1784, adopt amendments as 
follows , and place SB 2022 on the Seventh order: 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1778-1 784 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 1982-1988 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 
2022 be amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 2, remove the second "and" 

Page 1, line 2, after "transfers" insert"; to create and enact section 54-52.1-05.1 of the North 
Dakota Century Code, relating to the terms of public employees retirement system 
contracts for uniform group health insurance benefits coverage; to amend and 
reenact subsection 17 of section 54-52-01 and sections 54-52-03 and 54-52 .1-05 of 
the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the public employees reti rement system 
board and disclosure of information by uniform group health insurance benefits 
coverage carriers; and to limit the use of health insurance program reserves" 

Page 1, replace line 13 with : 

"Salaries and wages 

Page 1, replace line 17 with: 

"Total special funds 

Page 1, replace line 23 with: 

"Salaries and wages 

Page 2, replace line 1 with : 

"Operating expenses 

Page 2, replace lines 3 and 4 with : 

"Total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Page 2, replace lines 9 and 10 with: 

"Grand total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

$3 ,772,504 

$4,899,369 

$5,016 ,339 

2,280,894 

$7,650,450 
33.00 

$12,549,819 
52.00 

$568,047 

$514,056 

$1 ,339,021 

397, 169 

$1 ,692,973 
1.50 

$2 ,207,029 
1.50 

$4,340,551 " 

$5,413,425" 

$6,415,360" 

2,678,063" 

$9,343,423 
34.50" 

$14,756,848 
53.50 

SECTION 2. ONE-TIME FUNDING - EFFECT ON BASE BUDGET - REPORT 
TO SIXTY-FIFTH LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. The following amounts reflect the 
one-time funding items approved by the sixty-third legislative assembly for the 2013-
15 biennium and the 2015-17 one-time funding items included in the appropriation in 
section 1 of this Act: 

One-Time Funding Description 
Public employees retirement system - temporary salaries 
Total special funds 

2013-15 
.$_Q 
$0 

2015-17 
$100.000 
$100,000 

The 2015-17 one-time funding amounts are not part of the entity's base budget for the 
2017-19 biennium. The public employees retirement system shall report to the 
appropriations committees of the sixty-fifth legislative assembly on the use of the one-time 
funding for the biennium beginning July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017." 
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"SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subsection 17 of section 54-52-01 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

17. "Retirement board" or "board" means the seven persons designated by 
this ohapter as the governing authority for the retirement system created 
under section 54-52-03 . 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

54-52-03. Governing authority. 

A state agency is hereby created to constitute the governing authority of the 
system to consist of a board of seven personsnine individuals known as the 
retirement board. No more than one elected member of the board may be in the 
employ of a single department, institution, or agency of the state or in the employ of 
a political subdivision. NeAn employee of the public employees retirement system or 
the state retirement and investment office may not serve on the board . 

.1. Two members of the legislative assembly must be appointed by the 
chairman of the legislative management to serve on the board. 

g_,_ If the same political party has the greatest number of members in 
both the house and senate, one member must be from that majority 
party and one member from the political party with the next greatest 
number of members in the house and senate. 

Q,_ If the same political party does not have the greatest number of 
members in both the house and senate, one member must be from 
the majority party in the house and one member must be from the 
majority party in the senate. 

£_ One member of the board must be appointed by the governor to serve a 
term of five years. The appointee must be a North Dakota citizen who is 
not a state or political subdivision employee and who by experience is 
familiar with money management. The citizen member is chairman of the 
board . 

2-:-~ One member of the board must be appointed by the attorney general 
from the attorney general 's legal staff and shall serve a term of five years. 

~. The state health officer appointed under section 23-01-05 or the state 
health officer's designee is a member of the board. 

4:-~ Three board members must be elected by and from among the active 
participating members, members of the retirement plan established under 
chapter 54-52.6, members of the retirement plan established under 
chapter 39-03.1, and members of the job service North Dakota retirement 
plan. Employees who have terminated their employment for whatever 
reason are not eligible to serve as elected members of the board under 
this subsection. Board members must be elected to a five-year term 
pursuant to an election called by the board . Notice of board elections 
must be given to all active participating members. The time spent in 
performing duties as a board member may not be charged against any 
employee's accumulated annual or any other type of leave. 

&.-6 . One board member must be elected by and from among those 
personsindividuals who are receiving retirement benefits under this 
chapter. The board shall call the election and must give prior notice of the 
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election to the personsindividuals eligible to participate in the election 
pursuant to this subsection . The board member shall serve a term of five 
years. 

&.-L The members of the board are entitled to receive one hundred forty-eight 
dollars per day compensation and necessary mileage and travel 
expenses as provided in sections 44-08-04 and 54-06-09. This is in 
addition to any other pay or allowance due the chairman or a member, 
plus an allowance for expenses they may incur through service on the 
board . 

+:-a_ A board member shall serve a five-year term and until the board 
member's successor qualifies. Each board member is entitled to one 
vote, and fetlffive of the seveRnine board members constitute a quorum. 
~Five votes are necessary for resolution or action by the board at any 
meeting . 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52.1-05 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

54-52.1-05. Provisions of contract - Term of contract. 

.1. Each uniform group insurance contract entered ffite--by the board must be 
consistent with the provisions of this chapter, must be signed for the state 
of North Dakota by the chairman of the board, and must include the 
following : 

+. ~ As many optional coverages as deemed feasible and advantageous 
by the board. 

2-:- ~ A detailed statement of benefits offered, including maximum 
limitations and exclusions, and such other provisions as the board 
may deem necessary or desirable. 

£. The initial term or the renewal term of a fully insured uniform group 
insurance contract for hospital benefits coverage, medical benefits 
coverage, or prescription drug coverage may not exceed two years. 

~ The board may renew a contract subject to th is subsection without 
soliciting a bid under section 54-52.1-04 if the board determines the 
carrier's performance under the existing contract meets the board's 
expectations and the proposed premium renewal amount does not 
exceed the board's expectations. 

~ In making a determination under this subsection , the board shall : 

(1) DESK (2) COMMITTEE 

ill Use the services of a consultant to concurrently and 
independently prepare a renewal estimate the board shall 
consider in determining the reasonableness of the proposed 
premium renewal amount. 

.(2l Review the carrier's performance measures, including payment 
accuracy, claim processing time. member service center 
metrics, wellness or other special program participation levels, 
and any other measures the board determines relevant to 
making the determination and shall consider these measures in 
determining the board's satisfaction with the carrier's 
performance . 

.Ql Consider any additional information the board determines 
relevant to making the determination . 
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~ If the board determines the carrier's performance under the existing 
contract does not meet the board's expectations or the proposed 
premium renewal amount exceeds the board's expectations and the 
board determines to solicit a bid under section 54-52.1-04, the board 
shall specify its reasons for the determination to solicit a bid . 

SECTION 7. Section 54-52.1-05.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
created and enacted as follows : 

54-52.1-05.1. Health insurance benefits coverage - Insured and provider 
data disclosure. 

Except as necessary for treatment, payment, or health care operations. a 
carrier providing health insurance benefits coverage under this chapter may not 
disclose identifiable or unidentifiable insured or provider data or information to a 
related or unrelated health care delivery entity. The board may establish exceptions 
to the disclosure limitations under this section for the limited purpose of addressing 
public interest and benefit activities or for the limited purpose of addressing research , 
public health. or health care operations. An exception established by the board under 
this section may not be more permissive than allowed under state and federal 
privacy laws. 

SECTION 8. HEALTH INSURANCE RESERVE FUNDS - LIMITATIONS. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of law, during the 2015-17 biennium, the public 
employees retirement system board may not spend any moneys in the fund created 
under section 54-52.1-06 or from any other source for the purpose of reducing any 
increase in uniform group insurance premium amounts beyond the rates used by the 
sixty-fourth legislative assembly for developing 2015-17 state agency budgets." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Summary of Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House Comparison 

Budget Version Changes Version Version to House 
Retirement and Investment 

Office 
Total al l funds $4,899,369 $5,427,729 ($14,304) $5,413,425 $5,41 3,425 $0 
Less estimated income 4 899,369 5,427,729 (14,3041 5,413 425 5,413,425 0 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Public Employees Retirement 
System 

Total all funds $7,650,450 $9,407,473 ($64,050) $9,343,423 $8,896,346 $447,077 
Less estimated income 7,650 450 9,407 473 (64,050) 9 343 423 8,896 346 447,077 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Bill total 
Total all funds $12,549,819 $14,835,202 ($78,354) $14,756,848 $14,309,771 $447,077 
Less estimated income 12,549 819 14,835,202 (78,354) 14,756,848 14,309,771 447,077 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Retirement and Investment Office - Conference Committee 
Action 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Contingencies 
Accrued leave payments 

(1) DESK (2) COMMITTEE 

Base 
Budget 

$3,772,504 
973,324 
82,000 
71 ,541 

$4,899,369 

Senate 
Version 

$4,354,855 
990,874 
82,000 

$5,427,729 

Page 4 

Conference 
Committee 
Changes 

($14,304) 

($14,304) 

Conference 
Committee 

Version 

$4,340,551 
990,874 

82,000 

$5,413,425 

House 
Version 

$4,340,551 
990,874 

82,000 

$5,413,425 

Comparison 
to House 

$0 
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Total all funds 
Less estimated income 4 899 369 5 427 729 

General fund $0 $0 

FTE 19.00 19.00 

114 304\ 

$0 

0.00 

5 413 425 

$0 

19.00 

5 413 425 

$0 

19.00 

Department No. 190 - Retirement and Investment Office - Detail of Conference 
Committee Changes 

Salaries and wages 
Operating expenses 
Contingencies 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 

General fund 

FTE 

Adjusts 
Funding for 

Health 
Insurance 
Premium 
Increases' 

($14,304) 

($14,304) 
(14,304) 

$0 

0.00 

Total 
Conference 
Committee 
Changes 

($14,304) 

($14,304) 
{14,304) 

$0 

0.00 

1 Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised 
premium estimate of $1 , 130.22 per month. 

$0 

0.00 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Public Employees Retirement System - Conference Committee 
Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House Comparison 

Budget Version Changes Version Version to House 

Salaries and wages $5,016,339 $6,479,410 ($64 ,050) $6,415,360 $5,988,402 $426,958 
Operating expenses 2,280 ,894 2,678,063 2,678,063 2,657,944 20,11 9 
Contingencies 250,000 250,000 250 ,000 250,000 
Accrued leave payments 103 217 

Total all funds $7,650 ,450 $9,407,473 ($64 ,050) $9,343,423 $8,896,346 $447,077 
Less estimated income 7 650 450 9 407 473 164 0501 9 343 423 8 896 346 447 077 

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 33.00 34.50 0.00 34.50 33.00 1.50 

Department No. 192 - Public Employees Retirement System - Detail of Conference 
Committee Changes 

Adjusts 
Funding for 

Health Adds Adds One· Time Total 
Insurance Reduces Portability of Funding for Conference 
Premium Temporary Retiree Health Temporary Committee 
Increases' Salaries' Credit' Salaries' Changes 

Salaries and wages ($27, 102) ($180,000) $43,052 $100,000 ($64,050) 
Operating expenses 
Contingencies 
Accrued leave payments 

Total all funds ($27, 102) ($180,000) $43,052 $100,000 ($64,050) 
Less estimated income (27, 102) {180,000) 43,052 100,000 164,0501 

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

(1) DESK (2) COMMITIEE Page 5 s_cfcomrep_79_001 



Com Conference Committee Report 
June 1 6, 201 5  9 :50am 

Module ID:  s_cfcomrep_79_001 

Insert LC: 1 5.81 55.02030 

1 Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised 
premium estimate of $ 1 , 1 30 .22 per month including FTE adjustments made by the 
Conference Committee. 

2 Funding is reduced for additional temporary support to provide an increase of $ 1 22, 352. 
The Senate increased temporary salaries by $302 , 352 and the House included a temporary 
salaries increase of $ 1 02, 352 . 

3 Funding is added for add itional workload due to the portabi l ity of retiree health credit. This 
funding was not included in the House version, but was included in  the temporary salary 
increase provided by the Senate. 

4 One-time funding is added for temporary salaries. Neither the Senate nor the House 
versions included fund ing for one-time temporary salaries. 

This amendment also: 
Adds sections to amend North Dakota Century Code Sections 54-52-0 1 and 54-52-
03 to increase retirement board membership from seven to n ine members by add ing 
two members of the Leg islative Assembly appointed by the Chairman of the 
Leg islative Management. The House version added four members of the 
Leg islative Assembly to the board and removed members appointed by the Attorney 
General and the State Health Officer. 
Adds a new section to statute relating to the process to rebid the health insurance 
contract. 
Adds a new section to statute relating to the d isclosure of health information . 
Adds a section l imit ing the use of health insurance program reserves. The House 
version included a simi lar section relating the use of health insurance program 
reserves. 

Engrossed SB 2022 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar. 
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organizations to ensure the SIB is kept current on investment best-practices. 
Past budget requests generally only applied to one or two professionals .. �- • ..v '.. . 0  

);;>- The Printing line is increasing by 14.2% or $3,695 . Half of this increase is due 
to a calculation error in the previous budget request. The other half is for 
retirement benefits counseling materials. We have had an adequate supply on 
hand through the current biennium but will need to replenish them in the next 
biennium. 

);;>- Technology/Ergonomics Initiative (IT Hardware<$5,000, IT Software and 
Supplies, and Other Equipment<$5,000) With technology becoming a main 
focus in society, we are f inding that we have fallen slightly behind in keeping up 
with the technology expectations of our boards , members and employees. It is 
our desire to provide these groups with the necessary tools to efficiently meet 
their goals in today's technology-driven world. Therefore, our budget request 
includes just under $31, 000 or a 0.63% increase over our 2013-15 apprq_y�d 
budget , to begin a technology and ergonomics-related initiative for the a·gency : 
This initiative will provide for : 

· ' 

·"-: ! • i.::, 

./ Options for v ideo conferencing for TFFR and SIB board meetings and one': 
on-one member benefits counseling sessions, with the hope that we may be 
able to reduce the amount of funds requested for travel reimbursement in 
the future as well as increase productivity of staff who may not need to be 
away from the office as much as they currently are . 

./ Provide board and staff members with the option to use personal technolqgy 
(such as tablets and laptops) to accomplish their required tasks while a�� 
from the office or in board meetings. 

· 

./ Professional update to our website, which we have not requested funding: J�( 
in over 15 years. All updates since the init ial launch of our current web:$tl� 
have been done internally and have been minimal . It is our desire to · cr��f� 
a more user friendly site, incorporating current informat ion with · newly 
designed interfaces for T F F R  members and employers . 

./ Purchase of ergonomic sit/stand workstations for our staff. Due to the nature 
of their job duties , the majority of our staff is required to sit at th�jr 
workstations for most , if not all of their 40 hour work weeks. Studies have 
suggested that this amount of sedentary activity contributes to many 
physical ailments , including back and neck pain and weight gain, which in 
turn results in lost work hours and medical and/or workers compensation 
claims. It is our hope that this initiative can begin in the 2015-17 biennl.�,h) 
and continue on in future biennia, resulting in increased productivity a�ll 
ideally decreased expenses in other related areas over t ime. 

. .  . .  · . .  , 

.: VH 
• Contingency - RIO is not requesting an increase in the contingency l ine. We did;-�,�@ 

approximately $62,000 of our contingency line in the current biennium for paynie@�!@ 
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We are a lso concerned with m a i nta i n i ng the qua l ity of what we do .  To that extent, we 

have sought nat iona l  review of our  systems and other reviews as noted in  the fo l lowing : 

• We have rece ived the Pub l i c  Pension Ach ievement Award and the Recogn it ion 

Award for Adm i n istrati on .  

• We have received the Cert ificate of Ach ievement for Excel lence in  F inanc ia l  

Report i ng for the past 1 8  yea rs ( 1 996-201 3) . 

• We have had unqua l if ied aud it op in ions for over 24 years.  

At th is t ime,  I wi l l  turn the p resentat ion over to Sharon Schiermeister to review our work 

efforts and  budget req uest. 

Fo l lowing a re some of the major work efforts s ince we last reported to you in the 20 1 3  

sess ion :  

• Hea lth P lan 

- Worked with the O M B  to assist state government and our  part ic ipat ing 

subd iv is ions to comply with the Emp loyer Shared Respons ib i l ity p rovision 

of the Affordab le Care Act . In partnersh ip  with OMB we hosted severa l 

conferences on  th is  issue at the Bismarck Civ ic Center. 

P repared a nd d istr ibuted an  RFP for the OPEB va luation ;  reviewed bids 

and selected a new vendor who comp leted the va luation i n  June 20 1 4  

- Prepared and d istributed RFPs for fu l ly  i nsured and self i nsured hea lth 

p lans as noted above. 

- Developed add it iona l  reserves 

- Worked with the Department of Hea lth , Department of Human Services 

and I nd ian  Affa i rs Department to prepare a report for the legis lature on the 

status of d iabetes efforts i n  North Dakota 

- Red uced the state OPEB Actuaria l  Accrued L iab i l ity from $65 M i l l ion to 

$29 mi l l ion .  

Dental P lan 

- I ntegrated a new vendor i nto the p lan i n  20 1 3 . 

{). 1 3 1 P a g c  



Retirement 

- Prepared legis lat ion for the last yea r of contribution i ncreases as part of 

the PERS 4 year recovery p la n .  

Received legis lative authority to imp lement the th i rd year of contr ibut ion 

i ncreases wh ich was imp lemented 1 /1 /201 4.  This is putting  the plan on 

track to be1 00% fu nded by 2059 

- I m p lemented legis lat ion to offer a l l  state emp loyees h i red on or  after 

1 0/ 1 /20 1 3 the opportun ity to elect to jo in  the Defined Contribut ion P lan .  

- Started de-risk ing the asset a l location for the Job Service Reti rement p lan 

by d ropping the assumed rate of return from 8% to 7%. The Board p lans 

further red uct ions to this closed p la n .  

- Reviewed and adopted u pdated investment pol ic ies for the Defined 

Contribut ion Reti rement Plan and Deferred Compensation Companion 

P la n .  

- Worked with TFFR ,  the State Aud itor's office, p lan  actuary and p lan 

aud itor to develop a n  imp lementation p lan for GASB Statement No.  67 -

F ina ncia l  Reporting for Pens ion P lans ,  and GASB Statement No .  68 -

Account ing and F inancia l  Report ing for Pension .  

Tra in ing  for p i lot g roup he ld  June 2 0 1 4  

• Tra in ing  for a l l  em ployers held December  20 1 4  

• Adm i n istrative Accom pl ish ments 

- P ERSLink Member Self Service(MSS) was ro l led out to a l l  emp loyees 

d uring 20 1 3  

Over 80% of a l l  benefit elect ions made d u ring a n nua l  enrol lment 

were entered through M SS 

- Contin ued work ing on  updat ing the N DPERS bus iness cont inu ity p lan 

Estab l ished a secondary data center for d isaster recovery of the 

PE RSLink system , and successfu l ly tested restoration  of the 

system 

Estab l ished a Service Level Agreement with ITD for d isaster 

recovery serv ices ,  which is reviewed quarterly 
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serv ice cost a l locat ion . Operat ing fees and services were a lso i ncreased by $5 ,000 to 

reflect the fi l i ng  fee for I RS determ ination letters for the ret i rement p lans ,  which is 

needed every 5 years . These increases were offset by a decrease of $49 ,600 to 

remove fund ing  re lated to com puter hardwa re and software that was replaced in the 

cu rrent b ien n i um , fo l lowing the agency's 4 year rep lacement cycle.  

Sa l a ry a n d  Wages . I n  add it ion to the cost to continue the FY 201 5 salary i ncrease, the 

base budget req uest inc ludes add it iona l  fu nd ing of approximately $275 , 000 to start 

address ing  ser ious sa lary equ i ty issues faced by the agency. Approximately 73% of the 

agency's posit ions are in e ither the fi rst or second q u a rt i le of the pay g rades,  with about 

47% just in the fi rst quart i le .  There a re a lso severa l posit ions with s im i lar  C-ratios ,  but 

with a wide range of years of service. The Board has identified the goal of estab l ish ing 

a sa lary equ ity package to move staff up  i n  the pay g rades, so their C-Ratio is 

com para b le to the average C-Ratio for a l l  state employees in the same pay g rade with 

s im i la r  years of service. Th is p roposal is not attempt ing to match market sa laries ,  but 

on ly  com para ble state sa laries.  We fee l  th is is important for employee retent ion , 

recru itment and mainta in ing  cu rrent work efforts . Whi le our employees are beh ind the 

p rivate sector ,  accord ing to other  surveys , they a re a lso behind comparable state 

emp loyees a nd as a resu lt they can make more j ust by moving with i n  state government .  

This b ie n n i u m ,  we have lost 3 P ERS emp loyees to other  state agencies. 
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C FO posit ions can be sp l it .  PERS is continu ing to become more comp lex with the 

number of programs we now admin ister. This i nc ludes seven defined benefit p lans ,  the 

defined contribut ion p la n ,  the deferred compensation plan (Compan ion  Plan and 8 

add it iona l  provider com pan ies) ,  the retiree hea lth insurance credit p la n ,  the group 

i nsurance p lans  (hea lth , l ife , denta l ,  v is ion ,  long-term care) ,  the  flex program and EAP .  

T h e  hea lth p lan i s  fu rther broken down i nto the H igh  Ded uctible Health P lan a n d  Hea lth 

Savings Account,  HMO,  Med icare Part D and low i ncome subsid ies. Over the years ,  

coord inat ion req u i rements with the federa l  govern ment have become more complex a s  

a resu lt of Med icare Part D a nd the Affordab le Care Act requ i rements. We a lso know 

that th i ngs are go ing to cont inue to become more complex with the changes coming  i n  

the ret i rement p lan fi nanc ia l  reporti ng ,  hea lth p l a n  admin istrat ion ,  the reti ree health p lan  

portab i l ity and the recent changes in  offer ing the DC p lan to  more members .  The 

agency's i nterna l  aud itors have a lso noted that with the number  of federa l and state 

statutes a nd rules we must now fol low, having a centra l compl iance specia l ist wou ld be 

benefic ia l  for the agency. Th is would potentia l ly  red uce the r isk to the agency of non­

com p l iance ,  reduce errors a nd improve cons istency in  our processes . In  add it ion to 

our  program areas,  our  bus iness system req u i rements for P ERSLink req u i re overs ight  

in  o rder to be successfu l .  The agency is a lso respons ib le for ma inta in i ng  the Benefits 

Modu le  on the State PeopleSoft system.  PERS was g iven th is  respons ib i l ity at the t ime 

the system went l ive , however, no new staff was added . The work effort with in  our 

office has been d iv ided between three staff, wh ich has not a l lowed us to support the 

system effectively. As these and other comp lexities a rise , agency operations req u i re 

more attent ion ,  gu idance , p lann ing  and coord inat ion .  We need a fu l l  t ime ch ief 

operat ing officer to p rovide that level of deta i led gu idance .  

We a lso know that  our  fi nanc ia l  p rocesses cont inue to be comp l icated and demand ing .  

We pay out  approximate ly $ 1 2  m i l l ion i n  ret i rement benefits to  about 1 0 , 000 reti rees 

each month ;  ma inta i n  accounts for over 22 , 000 act ive members in the reti rement p la n ;  

co l lect over $ 1 3 mi l l ion  i n  ret i rement a n d  RH IC contributions from part ic ipat ing 

emp loyers each month ; coord inate cash flows for DC members and 457 plan members 

that a re i n  the range of $ 1 .6  mi l l ion  per month .  For the group insurance p lans we b i l l  
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and  we a re now ca refu l ly reviewing  th is i n  our  most recent b ids .  If we are self insured 

o u r  premiums wou ld  not reflect th is  cost. 

P rescript ion Drug coverage is a g rowing  area as we l l .  Severa l sessions ago the 

leg is lature authorized PERS to ca rve out th is benefit and self insure it .  I n  th is bid we 

a re a l so carefu l ly  reviewing th is  option .  I n  fact , the PERS Board will be i nterviewing 

several Pharmacy Benefit Managers (PBM) tomorrow. 

J ust last week the Board i nterviewed the med ical p roviders .  In the next severa l weeks 

the Board wi l l  be rece iving add it iona l  i nformation and wi l l  be making a decis ion whether 

we shou ld  contin ue as a fu l ly i nsured p lan or self i nsure .  The Board wi l l  also be 

decid i ng  who the med ica l  p rovider  shou ld be a nd if we shou ld carve out the P B M  

services. 

I f  the decis ion is to go self i nsured we know that it wi l l  have an effect on PERS agency 

operations .  The fo l lowing are some of those effects :  

• ACA comp l iance - report ing requ i rements 

• Add it iona l  aud it requ i rements to ascerta in  whether PBM has compl ied with the 
term of its agreement with regard to : 

o Pric ing 
o Obl igat ions to satisfy annua l  guarantees 
o F ina nc ia l  benefit gua rantees re lated to subs id ies ,  cla ims processor fees ,  

manufacturer  d iscou nts , rebates ,  serv ice fees 
o Med icare Part D o b l igat ions re lated  to L I S ,  L IC ,  a n d  TrOOP 
o Accuracy re lated to the management of N DPERS data 
o Satisfact ion of average annua l  guarantees 

• Mon itor ing activit ies to i nc lude :  
o Pric ing of newly ava i lab le generic d rugs to ensure we a re rece iv ing the 

lowest cost from P B M  
o Attendance at quarterly meetings to negotiate d rug add it ions or  deletions ,  

mod ify any p reviously agreed guarantees to cap ita l ize on any 
improvements 

o C hanges in  formu la ry 
o F inanc ia l  benefit and  D I R  guara ntees (at least annua l ly) 
o I m p lementat ion of new p rograms to improve d rug coverage,  improve 

health of p lan part ic ipants ,  red uce costs ; 
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o Develop programs to decrease purchase of specia lty d rugs and rev iew 
respons ib i l ity for q u a rterly p rescription d rug reports .  

o Assess to feas ib i l ity of negotiat ing i ndependent contracts with 
pharmaceutica l manufacturers to obtain  better fi nanc ia l  benefits . 

o Genera l  respons ib i l it ies i n  connection with Med icare Part D P lan to inc lude 
CMS compl iance .  

• Lia ison responsib i l it ies between member and 3rd party vendors : 
o I ncreased member comm u n ications (ca l ls ,  correspondence ,  e-mai ls) 
o Assistance with member i nqu i r ies (coverage, den ia ls ,  appeals ,  

compla ints) 
o Documenting p rocedu res a nd po l icies developed in  response to various 

issues to ensure cons istent operating protocols .  
o Mandate requ i rements 
o Plan Des ign ma intenance 

C o nseq uently, th is optiona l  request p roposes two FTE. One would be to oversee the 

self i nsured contracts . Specifica l ly ,  the Rx contract wou ld req u i re a more active role by 

the agency .  We wou ld  anticipate th is  wou ld be an ind ividua l  with a med ical background 

and a pa rt icu lar  expert ise i n  Rx. The second posit ion would be for a member serv ice 

specia l ist in the health insura nce a rea.  Th is  i nd iv idual  wou ld be responsib le for work ing 

with our members and emp loyers i n  exp la in ing  and resolving issues with the group 

med ical  p lan  and Rx p la n .  Here aga in  we wou ld be look ing for someone with a medical 

backgro u n d .  The cost of these posit ions should be offset by the savings i n  the 

p rem iums .  

M r. Cha i rm a n ,  members of the committee , I would a lso l ike to take th is opportun ity on  

beha lf o f  PERS to  thank  you for your  past support .  Together we have provided our  

members va luab le benefits that have tru ly made a s ign ificant d ifference i n  people's l ives 

and  he lped to support the econom ic health of North Dakota . We look forward to 

contin u i ng to work with you i n  the future .  Aga i n ,  thank you ,  and th is concludes our  

test imony.  
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Prepared by the North Dakota Legislative Council 
staff for Senate Appropriations 

Department 192 - Public Employees Retirement System 
Senate Bill No. 2022 

January 14, 2015 

Executive BudQet c omparison to Prior Biennium Appropriations 
FTE Positions General Fund Other Funds 

2015-17 Executive Budget 36.50 $0 $9,856,218 
2013-15 Legislative Appropriations 1 33.00 0 7,650,450 

Increase (Decrease) 3.50 $0 $2,205,768 

Agency Funding FTE Positions 

58 Ji 
<l-_o J.01s-

) 

Total 
$9,856,218 

7,650,450 

$2,205,768 

$12.00 37.00 -,--------------- -----.,=-=-=----, 

$10.00 

Ill $8.00 
c 
.!2 

$6.00 

$7.65 

$6.87 -
$6.13 -

$4.00 

$2.00 

$0.00 
$0.01 $0.00 $0.00 

2009-11 2011-13 2013-15 

•General Fund CJ Other Funds 

$9.86 

'-

'-

'-

$0.00 

2015-17 
Executive 

Budget 

2009-11 2011-13 

E xecut1ve BudQet c omparison to Base Level 
General Fund Other Funds 

2015-17 Executive Budget $0 $9,856,218 
2015-17 Base Level 0 7,650,450 

Increase (Decrease) $0 $2,205,768 

2013-15 2015-17 
Executive 

Budget 

Total 
$9,856,218 

7,650,450 

$2,205,768 

Attached as an appendix is a detailed comparison of the executive budget to the agency's base level appropriations. 

Executive Budget Highlights 

1. Provides funding for state employee salary and benefit 
increases, of which $320,465 relates to performance increases, 
$58,656 is for market equity adjustments, $164,075 is for health 
insurance increases, and $32,995 is for retirement contribution 
increases 

2. Adds 2 FTE administrator positions ($366,056) and related 
operating expenses ($40,238) in the event PERS becomes a 
self-funded insurance program 

3. Adds 1 FTE chief financial officer position ($195,950) and 
related operating expenses ($20, 119) for additional support for 
management 

4. Adds a .5 FTE benefits position ($51,346) to support an 
increase in the number of retirement benefits processed 

5. Adds funding for a temporary position to support several 
activities of limited duration, which includes transitioning from 
providing pre-Medicare retiree health insurance to not providing 
this service, assisting with the portability of the retiree health 
credit, and, if changed, assist with implementation to not offer a 
Part D product as part of the health insurance plan 

General Fund 
$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

Other Funds 
$576,1 91 

$406,294 

$216,069 

$51 ,346 

$122,352 

Total 
$576,191 

$406,294 

$216,069 

$51 ,346 

$122,352 
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6. Adds funding to implement additional PERSLink system 
refinements 

7. Adds funding for workload adjustments related to the retiree 
health credit which becomes portable July 2015 

8. Adds funding to redesign the Public Employee Retirement 
System website 

9. Adds funding . to secure the reception area at the Public 
Employee Retirement System main office 

10. Adds funding for increases in operating expenses 

Other Sections in Bill 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$147,000 $147,000 

$43,052 $43,052 

$73,880 $73,880 

$27,500 $27,500 

$134,470 $134,470 

Section 2 - Provides upon approval of the respective boards, the Retirement and Investment Office and the Public Employee's 
Retirement System may transfer from their respective contingencies line items in subdivision 1 and 2 of section 1 of the bill to 
all other line items. 

Continuing Appropriations 
Public Employees Retirement System - Various sections of the North Dakota Century Code - For benefit payments, 
investments, and actuarial/technical consulting for each program area. 

Significant Audit Findings 
There are no significant audit findings for this agency. 

Major Related Legislation 
Senate Bill No. 2038 - State Employee Retirement Plan - Provides for changes to the main state employee retirement plan 
to require eligible employees hired for the first time after December 31, 2015, to enroll in the defined contribution plan under 
Chapter 54-52.6, rather than the defined benefit plan . State employees currently in the defined benefit plan and those hired 
before January 1, 2016, who elect to participate in the defined benefit plan will continue to participate in the defined benefit 
plan . 

Senate Bill No. 2039 - School Construction Assistance Loan Fund and Public Employee Retirement Stabilizatio 
Fund - Establishes a school construction assistance loan fund and a public employee retirement stabilization fund an 
provides for a contingent transfer of $250 million into the school construction assistance loan fund and a contingent transfer o 
$200 million into the public employee retirement stabilization fund from the foundation aid stabilization fund. 

House Bill No. 1038 - Telemedicine Insurance Coverage - Provides the Public Employees Retirement System uniform 
group insurance must provide medical benefits coverage for services. 

House Bill No. 1053 • Desktop Support Services - Requires all state agencies to obtain centralized desktop support 
services from the Information Technology Department, except the legislative and judicial branches and other large state 
agencies, based on the results of a hardware relocation and consolidation study. 

House Bill No. 1062 · Public Employee Retirement System - Provides technical changes for the highway patrolmen's 
retirement plan , public employees retirement system defined benefit plan, defined contribution plan retirement plan, health 
insurance plans, life insurance benefits, and employee assistance benefits coverage. 

House Bill No. 1080 - Employer and Employee Contributions - Increases employer and employee contributions under the 
public employees retirement system defined benefit and defined contribution plans, decreased employee contributions under 
the public employees retirement system for peace officers employed by the bureau of criminal investigation, and benefit 
changes for employees first enrolled after December 31 , 2015. 
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Public Employees Retirement System - Budget No. 192 
Senate Bill No. 2022 
Base Level Funding Changes 

Executive Budget Recommendation 

2015-17 Biennium Base Level 

2015-17 Ongoing Funding Changes 
Base payroll changes 
Salary increase - Performance 
Salary increase - Market equity 
Retirement contribution increase 
Health insurance increase 
Remove 2013-15 funding for retirement plan election 
General operating expenses 
Perslink system refinements 

FTE 
Positions 

33.00 

Chief Financial Officer position 1.00 
Benefits support position 0.50 
Temporary support position 
Portability of retiree health credit 
Website redesign 
Secure reception area 
Self-funded health insurance 2.00 
Total ongoing funding changes 3.50 

One-time funding items 
Total one-time fund ing changes 0.00 

Total Changes to Base Level Funding 3.50 

2015-17 Total Funding 36.50 

Other Sections in Senate Bill No. 2022 

General Other 
Fund Funds Total 

$0 $7,650,450 $7,650,450 

$429,614 $429,614 
320,465 320,465 

58,656 58,656 
32,995 32,995 

164,075 164,075 
(22,000) (22,000) 
134,470 134,470 
147,000 147,000 
216,069 216,069 

51 ,346 51 ,346 
122,352 122,352 
43,052 43,052 
73,880 73,880 
27,500 27,500 

406,294 406,294 
$0 $2,205,768 $2,205,768 

$0 $0 $0 

$0 $2,205,768 $2,205,768 

$0 $9,856,218 $9,856,218 

Executive Budget Recommendation 
Contingencies line item transfers Section 2 provides upon approval of the respective 

boards, the Retirement and Investment Office and the 
Public Employees Retirement System may transfer from 
their respective contingencies line items in subdivision 1 
and 2 of section 1 of the bil l to all other line items. 
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15.8155.01001 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Krebsbach 

Fiscal No. 2 February 21 , 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2022 

Page 1, replace lines 13 through 17 with : 

"Salaries and wages 
Accrued leave payments 
Operating expenses 
Contingencies 
Total special funds 

Page 1, remove lines 23 and 24 

$3,772,504 
71 ,541 

973,324 
82.000 

$4,899,369 

Page 2, replace lines 1 through 4 with: 

"Salaries and wages 
Accrued leave payments 
Operating expenses 
Contingencies 
Total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Page 2, replace lines 9 and 10 with : 

"Grand total special funds 
Full-time equivalent positions 

Renumber accordingly 

$5,016,339 
103,217 

2,280,894 
250,000 

$7,650,450 
33.00 

$12,549,819 
52.00 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Summary of Senate Action 

Retirement and Investment 
Office 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

Public Employees Retirement 
System 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

Bill total 
Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

Base 
Budget 

$4 ,899,369 
4,899 ,369 

$0 

$7 ,650,450 
7,650 450 

$0 

$12,549,819 
12,549,819 

$0 

Senate 
Changes 

$528,360 
528,360 

$0 

$1 ,757,023 
1,757 023 

$0 

$2,285,383 
2,285 ,383 

$0 

Senate 
Version 

$5,427,729 
5,427,729 

$0 

$9,407,473 
9 407,473 

$0 

$14 ,835,202 
14,835 ,202 

$0 

$582,351 
(71 ,541) 

17,550 
Q 

$528,360 

$1,463,071 
(103,217) 

397, 169 
Q 

$1 ,757,023 
1.50 

$2 ,285,383 
1.50 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Retirement and Investment Office - Senate Action 

Salaries and wages 
Operat ing expenses 

Base 
Budget 

$3,772,504 
973,324 

Senate 
Changes 

$582,351 
17,550 

Senate 
Version 

$4,354,855 
990,874 

$4,354,855 
0 

990,874 
82.000 

$5,427, 729" 

$6,479,410 
0 

2,678,063 
250.000 

$9,407,473 
34.50" 

$14,835,202 
53.50" 
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Contingencies 82 ,000 82 ,000 
Accrued leave payments 71 541 171 541) 

Total all funds $4 ,899,369 $528,360 $5.427.729 
Less estimated income 4,899,369 528,360 5.427,729 

General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 19.00 0.00 19.00 

Department No. 190 - Retirement and Investment Office - Detail of Senate Changes 

Adds Funding Adds Funding 
Adds Fund ing for Salary and Adds Funding for Increases in 

for Base Payroll Benefit for Salary Operating Total Senate 
Changes' Increases' Adjustments' Expenses' Changes 

Salaries and wages $301 ,879 $230.472 $50,000 $582,351 
Operating expenses 17,550 17,550 
Contingencies 
Accrued leave payments 71 ,541 (71 ,541) 

Total all funds $230 ,338 $230.472 $50,000 $17,550 $528,360 
Less estimated income 230,338 230.472 50 ,000 17,550 528 ,360 

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1 Fund ing is added for cost-to-continue 2013-1 5 bienn ium salaries and benefit increases and for other 
base payroll changes. 

2 The following funding is added for 2015-17 biennium performance salary adjustments of 2 to 4 percent 
per year and increases in monthly health insurance premiums: 

Salary increase - Performance 
Health insurance increase 
Total 

Other Fund 

$148.434 
82,038 

$230.472 

Total 

$148.434 
82 ,038 

$230.472 

3 Funding is added for additional salary adjustments to increase the agency's compensation ratio from 
94 .6 to 97 percent of the market policy points for employees. 

4 Fund ing is added for operating ex pense increases . 

Senate Bill No. 2022 - Public Employees Retirement System - Senate Action 

Base Senate Senate 
Budget Changes Version 

Salaries and wages $5,016,339 $1.463,071 $6.479.410 
Operating expenses 2,280,894 397,169 2,678 ,063 
Contingencies 250,000 250,000 
Accrued leave payments 103,217 103,217 

$7 ,650.450 $1.757,023 $9.407.473 
Total all funds 
Less estimated income 7,650.450 1.757,023 9.407.473 

$0 $0 $0 
General fund 

33.00 1.50 34 .50 
FTE 

Department No. 192 - Public Employees Reti rement System - Detail of Senate Changes 

Adds Funding 
for Base Payroll 

Changes' 

Adds Fund ing 
for Salary and 

Benefit 

Adds Funding 
for Chief 
Financial 

Page No. 2 

Adds Funding 
for Benefits 

Position' 
Adjusts Base I Total Senate 

Level Funding' Changes 
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Officer 
Increases' Position' 

Salaries and wages $532 ,831 $380,592 $195 ,950 $51 ,346 $302,352 $1,463 ,071 
Operating expenses 20 ,119 377,050 397 ,169 
Contingencies 
Accrued leave payments (103,217) (103,217) 

Total all funds $429 ,614 $380,592 $216,069 $51 ,346 $679,402 $1 ,757,023 
Less estimated income -- 429,61 4 380,592 216,069 51 ,346 679,402 1,757 ,023 

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 1.00 0.50 0.00 1.50 

1 Fund ing is added for cost-to-continue 2013-15 biennium salaries and benefit increases and for other 
base payroll changes. 

2 The following fu nding is added for 2015-17 biennium performance salary adjustments of 2 to 4 percent 
per year and increases in monthly health insurance premiums: 

Salary increase - Performance 
Health insurance increase 
Total 

Other Funds 

$225,151 
155,441 

$380,592 

Total 

$225 ,151 
155,441 

$380 ,592 

3 Funding is added from the general fund for 1 chief financial officer FTE position ($195,950) and related 
operating expenses ($20, 119). 

4 Funding is added from the general fund for .5 FTE position ($51 ,346) to support an increase in the 
number of retirement benefits processed . 

5 Base level funding is adjusted as follows : 

Remove 2013-15 funding for retirement plan election 
General operating expenses 
Perslink system refinements 
Temporary support positions 
Website redesign 
Secure reception area 
Total 

Other Fund 

Page No. 3 

($22,000) 
134,470 
147,000 
302 ,352 
90 ,080 
27 ,500 

$679,402 

Total 

($22,000) 
134,470 
147,000 
302,352 

90,080 
27,500 

$679,402 
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Retirement and Investment Office - Budget No. 190 
Senate Bill No. 2022 
Base Level Funding Changes 

2015-17 Biennium Base Level 

2015-17 Ongoing Funding Changes 
Base payroll changes 
Salary increase - Performance 
Salary increase - Market equity 
Retirement contribution increase 
Health insurance increase 
Employee base level salary adjustment 
Increased operating expenses 
Total ongoing funding changes 

One-time funding items 
Total one-time funding changes 

Total Changes to Base Level Funding 

2015-17 Total Funding 

Other Sections in Senate Bill No. 2022 

Contingencies line item transfers 

FTE 
Positions 

19.00 

0.00 

0 .00 

0.00 

19.00 

Executive Budget Recommendation 
General 

Fund 
$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

Other Funds 
$4,899,369 

$230,338 
198,535 
24,769 
22,401 
82,038 
50,000 
17 550 

$625,631 

$0 

$625,631 

$5,525,000 

Executive Budget Recommendation 

Total 
$4,899,369 

$230,338 
198,535 
24,769 
22,401 
82,038 
50,000 
17,550 

$625,631 

$0 

$625,631 

$5,525,000 

Section 2 provides upon approval of the respective boards, the 
Retirement and Investment Office and the Public Employees 
Retirement System may transfer from their respective 
contingencies line items in subdivision 1 and 2 of Section 1 of 
the bi ll to all other line items. 

FTE 
Positions 

19.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

19.00 

Senate Version 
General 

Fund 
$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

Other Funds 
$4,899,369 

$230,338 
148,434 

82,038 
50,000 
17,550 

$528,360 

$0 

$528,360 

$5,427,729 

Senate Version 

Total 
$4,899,369 

$230,338 
148,434 

0 
0 

82,038 
50,000 
17 550 

$528,360 

$0 

$528,360 

$5,427,729 

Section 2 provides upon approval of the respective boards, 
the Retirement and Investment Office and the Public 
Employees Retirement System may transfer from their 
respective contingencies line items in subdivision 1 and 2 
of Section 1 of the bill to all other line items. 

5 
d-

Senate Changes to Executive Budget 
FTE General Other 

Positions Fund Funds 
QOO ro ro 

0.00 $0 

0.00 $0 

0.00 $0 

0.00 $0 

(50,101 ) 
(24,769) 
(22,401 ) 

($97,271 ) 

$0 

($97,271 ) 

($97,271 ) 

Total 
$0 

$0 
(50,101 ) 
(24,769) 
(22,401 ) 

0 
0 
0 

($97,271 ) 

$0 

($97,271) 

($97,271) 
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Public Employees Retirement System - Budget No. 192 
Senate Bill No. 2022 
Base Level Funding Changes 

2015-17 Biennium Base Level 

2015-17 Ongoing Funding Changes 
Base payroll changes 
Salary increase - Performance 
Salary increase - Market equity 
Retirement contribution increase 
Health insurance increase 
Remove 2013-15 funding for retirement plan election 
General operating expenses 
Perslink system refinements 
Chief Financial Officer position 
Benefits support position 
Temporary support position 
Portability of retiree health credit 
Website redesign 
Secure reception area 
Self-funded health insurance 
Total ongoing funding changes 

One-time funding items 
Total one-time funding changes 

Total Changes to Base Level Funding 

2015-17 Total Funding 

Other Sections in Senate Bill No. 2022 

Contingencies line item transfers 

FTE 
Positions 

33.00 

1.00 
0.50 

2.00 
3.50 

0.00 

3.50 

36.50 

Executive Budget Recommendation 
General 

Fund 
$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

Other Funds 
$7,650,450 

$429,614 
320,465 
58,656 
32,995 

164,075 
(22,000) 
134,470 
147,000 
216,069 

51 ,346 
122,352 
43,052 
73,880 
27,500 

406,294 
$2,205,768 

$0 

$2,205,768 

$9,856,218 

Executive Budget Recommendation 

Total 
$7,650,450 

$429,614 
320,465 

58,656 
32,995 

164,075 
(22,000) 
134,470 
147,000 
216,069 

51 ,346 
122,352 
43,052 
73,880 
27,500 

406,294 
$2,205,768 

$0 

$2,205,768 

$9,856,218 

Section 2 provides upon approval of the respective boards, the 
Retirement and Investment Office and the Public Employees 
Retirement System may transfer from their respective 
contingencies line items in subdivision 1 and 2 of section 1 of 
the bill to all other line items. 

FTE 
Positions 

33.00 

1.00 
0.50 

1.50 

0.00 

1.50 

34.50 

Senate Version 
General 

Fund 
$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

Other Funds 
$7,650,450 

$429,614 
225, 151 

155,441 
(22,000) 
134,470 
147,000 
216,069 

51 ,346 
302,352 

90,080 
27,500 

$1 ,757,023 

$0 

$1 ,757,023 

$9,407,473 

Senate Version 

Total 
$7,650,450 

$429,614 
225, 151 

0 
0 

155,441 
(22,000) 
134,470 
147,000 
216,069 

51,346 
302,352 

0 
90,080 
27,500 

0 
$1 ,757,023 

$0 

$1 ,757,023 

$9,407,473 

Section 2 provides upon approval of the respective boards, the 
Retirement and Investment Office and the Public Employees 
Retirement System may transfer from their respective 
contingencies line items in subdivision 1 and 2 of section 1 of 
the bill to all other line items. 

Senate Changes to Executive Budget 
FTE General Other 

Positions Fund Funds 
0.00 $0 $0 

(2.00) 
(2.00) $0 

0.00 $0 

(2.00) $0 

(2 .00) $0 

(95,314) 
(58,656) 
(32,995) 

(8,634) 

180,000 
(43,052) 
16,200 

(406,294) 
($448,745) 

$0 

($448,745) 

($448,745) 

Total 
$0 

$0 
(95,314) 
(58,656) 
(32,995) 
(8 ,634) 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

180,000 
(43,052) 
16,200 

0 
(406,294) 

($448,745) 

$0 

($448,745) 

($448,745) 
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ENGROSSED SB 2022 

North Dakota Retirement and Investment Office (RIO) 
Testimony to the House Appropriations Government Operations Committee 

David Hunter, Executive Director/CIC 

March 11, 2015 

RIO Programs Overview 

RIO was created by the 1989 Legislative Assembly to capture administrative and investment 
cost savings in the management of two important long-standing state programs - the 
retirement program of the Teachers' Fund for Retirement (TFFR) and the investment program 
of the State Investment Board (SIB) . 

• Teachers' Fund for Retirement (TFFR) 

TFFR is a qualified defined benefit public pension plan . The program is managed by a seven 
member board of trustees which consists of the State Treasurer, State Superintendent, and 
five active and retired teachers and administrators appointed by the Governor. 

The plan covers North Dakota public school teachers and administrators . Benefit funding 
comes from member and employer contributions and investment earnings. During the past 
decade, active membership has increased from 9,800 to 10,300 participants, while retirees 
and beneficiaries have increased from less than 5,400 to over 7, 700 participants. 

There are currently 219 participating TFFR employers comprised as follows : 

School Districts 178 
Special Ed Units 19 
Vocational Centers 5 
Counties 7 
State Agencies/Institutions 5 
Other - Closed groups 5 
2013-14 Total Employers 219 

The $3.1 million requested in the RIO budget relating to the TFFR program includes salaries, 
benefits and administrative overhead costs for 12.05 Full Time Equivalents (FTEs) who 
deliver and support high quality member services and outreach programs to members and 
employers. Administration of the TFFR program includes monthly collection and reporting of 
member and employer contributions; maintaining membership records of active and retired 
members; processing claims for retirement , disability, death benefits , refunds, and service 
purchases; distributing monthly benefit payments; and providing publications and educational 
outreach programs as part of our continuing effort to keep members and employers informed 
about their retirement program . 



• State Investment Board (SIB) 

The SIB is responsible for the investment of nearly $10.2 billion in assets for seven pension 
funds and 16 other non-pension funds . The 11-member board includes the Lt. Governor, 
State Treasurer, State Insurance Commissioner, State Land Commissioner, Workforce 
Safety and Insurance designee, 3 PERS board members , and 3 TFFR board members. All 
the funds are invested in accordance with the "Prudent Investor Rule". 

Investment guidelines and asset allocations are determined by the govern ing bodies of the 
individual funds and then turned over to the SIB for implementation . The SIB selects 
investment managers to manage different types of portfolios within each asset class with the 
goal of maximizing return under the clients ' acceptable risk levels. Similar client funds are 
pooled together when possible to receive lower fees from investment managers. 

The staff of RIO administers the day-to-day operations of the investment program by 
monitoring the client guidelines and asset allocations, managing the consultant, custodian 
and investment manager relationships , conducting due diligence on the investment managers 
and maintaining separate accounting for all funds . The SIB has continuing appropriation 
authority under ND Century Code section 21-10-06.2 to pay for investment related costs of 
the program such as investment management fees , custodial fees , performance 
measurement fees and fees associated with manager searches and onsite reviews of 
investment managers . These costs are allocated directly to the client funds affected by the 
expense. We are happy to report that investment fees were reduced significantly last year 
declining from 0.65% in fiscal 2013 to 0.51 % for the fiscal year ended June 30 , 2014. 

• 

The $2.3 million requested in the RIO budget relating to the SIB investment program includes • 
salaries , benefits and administrative overhead for the 6.95 FTEs who are responsible for the 
day-to-day operations of the program as described above. 

2013-15 Budget Review 

Current budget estimates for the 2013-15 biennium indicate that RIO will have unexpended 
appropriation in the salary line of approximately $400 ,000. The unexpended funds in the 
salary line are due to various vacancies, all of wh ich had been filled . 

We currently expect to have a balance of approximately $80 ,000 in our operating line at the 
end of the biennium. Following are a few categories in which we had deviations from 
budgeted amounts. 

• After review of our current IT equipment (PCs and laptops), half of which was 
scheduled for replacement in the current biennium, it was determined that replacement 
was not needed for at least another year, possibly two years. Therefore a total of 
$23 ,900 included in our 2013-15 appropriation will not be spent and the replacement 
schedule will be rolled forward . Funds for replacement of one half of our PCs and 
laptops are being requested for the 2015-1 7 biennium, and the remaining half will be 
requested in the following biennium. 

• Certa in ITD charges have been less than those used for budget purposes, resulting in 
savings. Additionally, we had anticipated the need for a second Oracle application 
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hosting site, however, this was not needed in the current biennium, so a savings was 
realized . We have included similar funds in our 2015-17 budget request. 

• Both the SIB and TFFR Boards consider board member education a top priority. 
However, for a variety of reasons, board members were not able to attend their 
allotted number of training opportunities this biennium. To ensure board members 
continue to be appropriately educated , outside professionals are brought in frequently 
to conduct educational sessions during board meetings, generally at little or no cost to 
the funds. We currently expect to have travel related funds remaining at the end of this 
biennium. 

2015-17 Budget Highlights 

The budget request you have before you for RIO for the 2015-17 biennium totals just over 
$5.4 million and is all special funds . There are no general or federal funds requested. Some 
of the highlights for your consideration are detailed below. 

• Salaries - In addition to the costs to continue current salaries, requested increases in 
the salary line include $50,000 for salary adjustments for current classified staff. 

An internal analysis of current classified RIO staff was conducted . RIO currently has 
16 approved classified FTEs. Excluding the three positions that were filled in the last 5 
months, the average years of service of our classified staff is 16 years , and nine have 
more than 15 years of service . In the analysis, we utilized data from HRMS identifying 
the average salary and years of service of each pay grade at the state level. We then 
compared those salaries to the minimum of each pay grade and came up with an 
average increase per year of service . We then used that data to calculate where each 
RIO classified staff person's salary should be , based on their actual years of service . 
And finally , we compared each RIO classified staff person 's current salary against this 
"comparison salary" to see how they stack up against the state average. We capped 
the maximum increase per employee at 7%. The total cost of these increases is 
approximately $50,000 and would move the average "comp ratio" for the agency from 
94.6% to 97.0%, which we bel ieve is a reasonable position based on the longevity of 
our staff. 

The following chart graphically depicts the growth in assets under management (AUM) 
of RIO compared to the FTE count over time . 
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2015-17 Biennium $526 million AUM per FTE ($10 billion I 19 FTE) 
2013-15 Biennium $392 million AUM per FTE ($7.45 billion I 19 FTE) 
1989-91 Biennium $ 67 million AUM per FTE ($1 billion I 15 FTE) 

- Assets Under 
Management 

- FTEs 

As you can see, our staffing levels have remained relatively stable over the past 25 
years , ranging from 15-19 FTEs, but the asset levels have risen dramatically. Most 
recently, the 2013 Legislature approved an additional FTE for an Investment Analyst 
position to assist the State Investment Board in its very important mission of 
safeguarding the assets that have been entrusted to them . The position has been filled 
and we are very appreciative of the support. Due to the current job market, filling 
recent vacancies has caused internal equity issues with existing , long-term staff. We 
are hoping to be able to rectify this , to a small degree, with the requested $50,000 in 
additional salary funds . 

Much of the growth in assets under management in recent years has come from the 
Legacy Fund. The following chart displays the historical market values of the Legacy 
Fund since its inception in September, 2011 . The current balance is nearly $3 billion 
and projections included in the Governor's budget indicate that the balance will exceed 
$6 billion by the end of the 2015-17 biennium. 
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• Operating - We are requesting a net increase of $17,550 in our total operating line. 
This increase is a direct result of a concentrated effort to improve and expand the use 
of technology throughout our agency. Prior to adding this initiative to our request, we 
were actually able to decrease our total operating line by over $13,000. In previous 
biennia we have focused on finding efficiencies and holding down operating costs. 
Over the previous four biennia , RIO has averaged overall increases in operating 
expense requests of 0.3% per biennium. With the recent growth in assets under 
management and the availability of more sophisticated tools for asset management, 
coupled with an increase in the expectations surrounding fiduciary responsibility and 
risk, it has become increasingly more difficult to continue to operate effectively without 
increasing costs. We feel a refocus on technology at this time is prudent. 

Following are details on some of the larger increases and decreases in our request. 

Operating Line Decreases 

~ The IT Communications line is decreasing by 18.9% or $4,680 due to a 
decrease in rates from ITD and a decrease in long distance usage likely due to 
more electronic communications . 

~ The IT Software and Supplies line is decreasing by 39.4% or $4,245. Microsoft 
Office and Windows upgrades were budgeted in the 2013-15 biennium, 
therefore only miscellaneous supplies and software are being requested . 

~ The Office Supplies line is decreasing by 16.2% or $1,445 based on actual 
usage. 

Operating Line Increases 

~ The Professional Development line 1s increasing by 24.2% or $10,800. This 
increase is reflective of having three investment professionals on staff requiring 
new/continuing education , certification and membership in national 
organizations to ensure the SIB is kept current on investment best-practices. 
Past budget requests generally only applied to one or two professionals . 
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� The Printing l i ne i s  i ncreasing by 1 4 .2% or  $3,695.  Ha lf of this i ncrease is  due • to a calculation error i n  the previous budget request. The other ha lf is for 
reti rement benefits counsel ing materia ls .  We have had an adequate supply on 
hand through the current b ienn ium but wi l l need to replen ish them in  the next 
b ienn ium .  

� Technology/Ergonomics I n itiative ( IT  Hardware<$5 , 000,  IT  Software and 
Suppl ies ,  and Other  Equ ipment<$5 ,000) With technology becoming a main 
focus i n  society, we a re fi nd ing that we have fa l len s l ightly beh ind i n  keeping up  
with the  technology expectations of  our  boards ,  members and employees.  I t  is  
our  desire to provide these groups with the necessary tools to efficiently meet 
thei r  goals i n  today's technology-driven world .  Therefore , our budget request 
i ncludes just under $31 , 000 or  a 0 .63% increase over our 201 3-1 5 approved 
budget, to begin a technology and ergonomics-related in i tiative for the agency. 
This in itiative wil l  p rovide for: 

./ Options for video conferencing for TFFR and S I B  board meetings and one­
on-one member benefits cou nsel ing sess ions ,  with the hope that we may be 
able to reduce the amount of funds requested for travel reimbursement in 
the future as wel l  as increase productivity of staff who may not need to be 
away from the office as m uch as they currently are . 

./ Provide board and staff members with the option to use personal technology 
(such as tab lets and laptops) to accompl ish their requ i red tasks whi le away • from the office or  in  board meetings . 

./ Professional  update to our  website ,  which we have not requested fund ing for 
i n  over 1 5  years .  A l l  updates s i nce the in it ia l  launch of our current website 
have been done i nterna l ly and have been m in ima l .  It is our  desire to create 
a more user friendly site, incorporating current i nformation with newly 
designed i nterfaces for TFFR members and employers . 

./ Purchase of ergonomic s it/stand workstat ions fo r our  staff. Due to the nature 
of the i r  job duties, the majority of our  staff is  requ i red to s it at their 
workstations for most, if not al l  of their 40 hour work weeks. Studies have 
suggested that th is  amount of sedentary activity contributes to many 
physica l a i lments, inc luding back and neck pa in and weight ga in ,  wh ich in  
turn  resu lts in  lost work hours and medical and/or workers compensation 
cla ims .  I t  i s  our hope that this in itiative can beg in  in the 2 0 1 5-1 7 b ienn ium 
a nd conti nue on in  future b ienn ia ,  result ing i n  increased prod uctivity and 
ideal ly decreased expenses i n  other re lated a reas over t ime.  

• Conti ngency - R IO is not requesti ng an i ncrease i n  the conti ngency l i ne .  We d id use 
a pproximately $62 , 000 of our contingency l ine in  the current b ienn ium for payment to 
an executive search fi rm who assisted the S I B  in identify ing cand idates for and h i ring 
the Executive Director/CI O  position .  
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• There are no one-time funding requests in the RIO budget request. 

The following chart compares the increase in assets under management at RIO versus the 
increase in appropriation requests since RIO was created in 1989. As you can see, RIO has 
been able to become more efficient over time, managing more assets per appropriated dollar. 
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Budget$ 
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2015-17 Biennium $1 ,810 AUM per appropriated dollar ($10 billion I $5.525 million) 
2013-15 Biennium $1 ,520 AUM per appropriated dollar ($7.45 billion I $4.9 million) 
1989-91 Biennium $ 500 AUM per appropriated dollar ($1 billion I $2 million) 

Conclusion 

In summary, the RIO budget request of $5.4 million for the 2015-17 biennium represents an 
approximate $528,000 increase over the current budget. Given the 33% rise in invested 
assets, which have increased by $2.74 billion since June 30, 2013 to nearly $10.2 billion at 
January 31 , 2015, RIO deems the requested budget increase to be reasonable. 

As always, the Retirement and Investment Office strives to provide high quality services to its 
members and clients in a cost effective and efficient manner. We feel this budget will allow us 
to continue to do so. Thank you for your time and consideration . 
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• • ND RETIREMENT AND INVESTMENT OFFICE 
ND STATE INVESTMENT BOARD 

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE SUMMARY 
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014 

Investment Performance (net of fees) 

Fund Name 

Pension Trust Fund 
Teachers' Fund for Retirement (TFFR) 
Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) 
City of Bismarck Employees Pension 
City of Bismarck Police Pension 
Job Service of North Dakota Pension 
City of Fargo Employees Pension 
City of Grand Forks Employees Pension 
Grand Forks Park District 
Subtotal Pension Trust Fund 

Insurance Trust Fund 
Workforce Safety & Insurance (WSI) 
Legacy Fund 
State Fi re and Tornado Fund 
State Bonding Fund 
Petroleum Tank Release Compensation Fund 
Insurance Regulatory Trust Fund 
State Risk Management Fund 
State Risk Management Workers Comp Fund 
Cultural Endowment Fund 
Budget Stabilization Fund 
ND Association of Counties (N DACo) Fund 
Bismarck Deferred Sick Leave Account 
City of Fargo FargoDome Permanent Fund 
State Board of Medical Examiners Fund 
PERS Group Insurance Account 
Subtotal Insurance Trust Fund 

Market Values 
as of 12/31 /14 

2,046,439,456 
2,345,979,927 

79,421 ,743 
34,834,996 
96,920, 165 

9,656 
56,347,332 

5,893,072 
4,665,846,346 

1,710,647,794 
2,900,880,837 

25,065,765 
3,299,303 
7, 152,822 

646,335 
6,771,080 
6,141 ,008 

373,276 
589,598,047 

3,481,321 
859,648 

40,651,973 
2,131 ,999 

42,705, 101 
5,340,406,309 

Quarter Ended 
FYTD 

9/30/14 12/31 /14 3/31/15 6/30/15 2015 

-1 .14% 
-1 .11% 
-0 .91 % 
-1 .09% 
-0.69% 
0.01 % 

-0.95% 
-0.39% 

-0.43% 
-1 .77% 
-0.89% 
0.08% 
0.07% 

-0.86% 
-0 .29% 
-0 .39% 
-1 .11 % 
0.11 % 

-0.82% 
-0.81 % 
-1 .65% 
-0 .58% 
0.00% 

1.55% 
1.57% 
1.71 % 
1.66% 
2.14% 
0.02% 
1.89% 
2.15% 

1.85% 
2.07% 
2.19% 
0.84% 
0.76% 
1.56% 
2.96% 
3.34% 
3.43% 
0.44% 
1.89% 
2.02% 
2.61 % 
1.19% 
0.00% 

0.40% 
0.44% 
0.78% 
0.55% 
1.43% 
0.03% 
0.92% 
1.75% 

1.41 % 
0.27% 
1.28% 
0.92% 
0.83% 
0.69% 
2.66% 
2.94% 
2.28% 
0.55% 
1.05% 
1.19% 
0.92% 
0.61 % 
0.01 % 

16.53% 
16.38% 
14.56% 
15.27% 
13.54% 

8.42% 
16.33% 
16.44% 

11 .71 % 
6.64% 

12.78% 
4.06% 
3.68% 
9.88% 

12.29% 
13.68% 
16.94% 

1.94% 
11 .61 % 
12.32% 
16.34% 

0.06% 

Fiscal Years ended June 30 

13.57% 
13.44% 
12.41% 
13.03% 
11 .71 % 
13.90% 
14.01% 
14.43% 

8.31 % 
1.15% 

10.59% 
2.96% 
2.47% 
8.49% 

10.19% 
11 .61 % 
15.58% 

1.87% 
9.46% 
9.83% 

13.46% 

0.27% 

-1 .12% 
-0.12% 
1.57% 
1.31% 
3.09% 
0.97% 

24.05% 
21 .27% 
20.32% 
21 .10% 
16.39% 
21 .58% 

1.09% 21 .64% 
0.86% 20.98% 

6.17% 

4.93% 
5.31 % 
4.84% 
2.82% 
7.63% 
7.40% 
4.65% 
2.03% 
1.69% 
5.69% 
3.14% 

0.24% 

13.23% 

14.52% 
5.01 % 
4.97% 

11.61% 
14.36% 
16.23% 
21 .33% 

3.73% 
17.73% 
13.80% 
19.16% 

0.31 % 

13.87% 
13.67% 
12.74% 
13.30% 
13.63% 
14.82% 
13.91 % 

11 .94% 

14.52% 
8.63% 
7.79% 

10.29% 
16.02% 
16.40% 
14.89% 
7.38% 

15.34% 
15.30% 
16.78% 

0.36% 

9.38% 13.07% 
9.66% 12.70% 
9.36% 12.15% 
9.69% 12.61 % 
9.35% 11 .58% 
7.63% 11.72% 

10.27% 13.19% 
10.36% 

8.71 % 10.24% 

9.38% 11.41 % 
4.11 % 5.18% 
3.66% 4.73% 
7.02% 8.57% 

10.02% 12.06% 
10.87% 13.01 % 
12.25% 14.54% 

1.95% 3.37% 
7.50% 11 .02% 
9.25% 11 .34% 

10.83% 13.63% 

0.19% 0.25% 

PERS Retiree Insurance Credit Fund 93,282,939 -1.10% 2.53% 1.40% 16.53% 14.80% 2.62% 21.65% 16.86% 11 .14% 14.31% 

Total Assets Under SIB Management 10,099,535,594 

• These funds do not have the specified periods of history under SIB management. 

Note: Asset allocation largely drives investment performance. Each fund has a unique allocation that takes into consideration 
return objectives, risk tolerance , liquidity constraints, and unique ci rcumstances. Such considerations must be taken into 
account when comparing investment returns . All figures are preliminary and subject to revision. 

• • 
Periods ended 6/30/14 (annualized) 

6.84% 
7.01 % 
6.99% 
6.98% 
7.28% 

6.04% 

6.46% 
2.77% 
2.58% 
5.37% 
6.55% 
6.76% 

5.53% 
6.56% 
6.79% 

1.79% 

6.68% 

5.51% 
5.92% 
5.94% 
5.82% 
5.75% 

6.01 % 

6.05% 
3.71 % 
3.47% 
5.32% 
5.47% 

5.26% 

5.16% 

7.73% 
8.18% 
8.08% 
7.96% 
9.22% 

7.58% 

6.92% 
5.13% 
5.29% 
6.46% 

8.11 % 

7.98% 
8.24% 

7.78% 

7.12% 
5.73% 

6.25% 

9.11 % 
9.34% 
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ORGANIZAIIONAL BENEFICIARIES 

INVESTMENT CLIENTS: 

Statutory: 

1. Budget Stabilization Fund 
2. Cultural Endowment Fund 
3. Insurance Regulatory Trust Fund 
4. Petroleum Tank Release Compensation Fund 
5. Public Employees Retirement System Fund 
6. Risk Management Fund 
7. State Bonding Fund 
8. State Fire and Tornado Fund 
9. Teachers' Fund for Retirement 

10. The Legacy Fund 
11. Workforce Safety & Insurance Fund 

Contractual: 

1. City of Bismarck Deferred Sick Leave Fund 
2. City of Bismarck Employees Retirement Fund 
3. City of Bismarck Police Retirement Fund 
4. City of Fargo Dome Permanent Fund 
5. City of Grand Forks Park District Pension Fund 
6. City of Grand Forks Pension Fund 
7. ND Association of Counties Fund 
8. ND Job Service Retirement Fund 
9. Public Employees Retirement System Group Health Insurance Fund 

10. Public Employees Retirement System Retiree Health Insurance Fund 
11. State Board of Medical Examiners 

ADMJNISTRATIVE CLIENTS: 

Statutory: 

1. Teachers' Fund for Retirement Beneficiaries 

Amended: April 30, 2014 
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• State Investment Board (SIB) Members 20 14-20 15: 

Position Incumbent Designation Term Expiration 

Lt. Governor Drew Wrigley Ex officio Open 

State Treasurer Kelly Schmidt Ex officio Open 

State Insurance Commissioner Adam Hamm Ex officio Open 

Commissioner 
I lniversitv & ~rhnn l I .l'lnrk Lance Gaebe Appointed NIA 

Executive Director 
W " r ·~ <;:'If Ptv RI- Jn <; 11 rnnr.P Bryan Klipfe l Appointed NIA 

Trustee, TFF R Mel Olson Appointed by TFF R Board 6/30/18 

Trustee, TFF R Michael Gessner Appointed by TFFR Board 6130116 

• Trustee, TFFR Rob Lech Appointed by TFF R Board 6130115 

Trustee, PERS Mike Sandal Appointed by PERS Board 6130117 

Trustee, PERS Tom Trenbeath Appo inted by PERS Board 6130115 

Trustee, PERS Yvonne Smith Appointed by PERS Board 6130119 

• 
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TESTIMONY OF NDPERS 

SENATE BILL 2022 

Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, good morning my name is Sparb Collins. I 

am the Executive Director of the North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System or 

PERS. With me is Sharon Schiermeister, our Chief Operating Officer and Chief 

Financial Officer. Today we appear before you to give you an overview of our agency, 

our work efforts and our budget request. 

Agency Overview 

First let me start by providing an overview of our agency. PERS is directed by a Board 

composed of the following members: 

Chair (appointed by Governor) Jon Strinden 

Appointed by Attorney General Tom Trenbeath 

State Health Officer or Deputy Arvy Smith 

Elected Kim Wassim 

Elected Casey Goodhouse 

Elected Mike Sandal 

Elected Retiree Yvonne Smith 



Administratively PERS is organized as illustrated : 
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As you will note just before the last session we added a COO (chief operating officer) . 

Our Chief Financial Officer (CFO) fills both roles within our organization ; we hope to 

segregate those positions with the proposed budget before you today. 

The PERS program responsibilities fall under two broad categories - retirement and 

group insurance. Section 54-52-02 states the overall mission for the retirement 

program as: " ... to provide for the payment of benefits to state and political subdivision 

employees or to their beneficiaries thereby enabling the employees to care for 
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themselves and thei r dependents and which by its provisions will improve state and 

political subdivision employment, reduce excessive personnel turnover, and offer career 

employment to high grade men and women". Similarly, state statute establishes the 

overall mission for the group insurance plan as: "In order to promote the economy and 

efficiency of employment in the states service, reduce personnel turnover, and offer an 

incentive to high grade men and women to enter and remain in state service, there is 

hereby created a uniform group insurance program". 

Concerning the retirement programs, the following table gives you an overview of the 

programs and some statistical information : 

January 2015 RETIREMENT PROGRAMS 
MANAGED AND ADMINISTERED BY NDPERS 

TOTAL Main Law Highway Job D.C. DEFERRED HEALTH 
RETIREMENT System Judges Guard Enforcement Patrol Service 401 (a) COMP CREDIT 

PARTICIPATION 

AGENCY 
State 94 94 94 90 94 
Counties 49 49 13 37 49 
School Dist 119 119 21 119 
Crties 85 85 9 35 85 
Others 76 76 34 76 

423 217 423 

EMPLOYEES 
State 10,805 10536 48 16 44 153 11 233 5,118 10,805 
Counties 3,941 3688 253 708 3,941 
School Dist 6,037 6036 1 71 6,037 
Cities 
Others 

Retirees 

1,827 1758 69 243 1,827 
615 615 208 615 

8,966 8628 32 9 45 112 140 4 ,828 

32, 191 31 ,261 80 25 412 265 151 233 6,348 28,053 

As you will note, our agency is responsible for the administration of approximately 10 

different retirement plans. The Law Enforcement Plan is divided into two plans, those 

with past service and those without. Several of the above plans were assigned to our 

agency by the 2001 and 2003 legislative session . Those were the Job Service 

Retirement Plan and the Law Enforcement Plans for political subdivisions. The Law 

Enforcement Plan has since been expanded to certain State employees. The 401 (a) 

plan or optional defined contribution plan for non-classified state employees was 

assigned to our agency in 1999 and expanded in 2013 as an option to new State 

employees. The other retirement programs have been a part of PERS since the 1980's. 
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You will note the largest retirement plan we administer is the Main/Hybrid retirement 

system which provides services to not only the State, but also to political subdivisions. 

In this plan about 50% of the active members are State employees and 50% are 

political subdivision employees. School districts are our second largest group followed 

by counties and cities . 

Some historical statistics about the retirement plan include membership: 

NDPERS 
Retirement Plan Membership 

45,000 --------------~ 

40,000 -+------ -----------,,..<-! 

35,000 -+--------------~-----< 

30,000 +--------------,~"-----------1 

25,000 +---------=...-"""=-----------1 

20,000 +--=...-"""=-------'--'L..1-..'-"'--~~........,~ 

15,000 -+----------------

10,000 -+----------------

5,000 -+----------------

0 -+----~~-~~--~~-~-.----.---< 
,,~,,~,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,~~,,~ 

Of this, the number of active members has grown: 

NDPERS Retirement Actives 
(Main System, Judges, Guard, Law Systems) 

25,000 -,--------------------~ 

20,000 -+-------------------...-< 

15,000 -+--------~~ ......... 

10,000 

5,000 
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• The number of retired members has grown as well and at an even greater rate than our 

active members: 

NDPERS Retirement Retirees 

10000 
9000 
8000 
7000 
6000 
5000 
4000 
3000 
2000 
1000 

0 

(Main System, Judges, Guard, Law Systems) 

-.... <> .... '\ ....... '\ ...... <f>~ ........... "-., .. " .... ~~ ........ <1> .... ~ .. 4' .... 4' .... <f> ............... "-., ........... <1-.... <t> .... <l' ............. .,. .... "'-£><1'.f~~-£>"'~i'-£><l>.f".l'-£><f>-£>"~"~"~"~~ 

• Another interesting statistic about the retirement plan is since 1977 the PERS plan has 

received approximately $1 .35 billion in contributions and as of the last fiscal year (July 

2014) we had $2.28 billion in assets. During that same period we paid out about $1.36 

billion in benefits . 

• 

As we look to the future , we see the retired membership continuing to grow and the 

number of active members remaining about the same. Servicing the present and future 

needs of the retired membership is a growing challenge for NDPERS. The proposed 

budget before you includes funding to address this challenge. 

In addition to the administration of the traditional retirement plans, PERS administers 

the state's supplemental savings program as well. The membership in that program 

has also grown over the years (this shows both active and inactive accounts): 
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NDPERS 
Deferred Compensation Plan Membership 
10,000 ~-------------~ 

8,000 -+-------------------< 

6,000 +--=------~-----------j 

30°/o Increase 
4,000 -+----- ---------------< 

2,000 -+--------------------i 

0 -+--------~----------< 

• - Estimated 

We are pleased by th is growth since it is important that our members save for 

retirement. In 1999 the legislature started the PEP provision in our retirement plan, 

thereby turning the Main plan into a hybrid plan to encourage employees to do 

supplemental savings. As of June 30, 2014 , assets in this plan totaled approximately 

$207 million. 

Deferred Compensation offers our members the following 8 providers to choose from in 

addition to the PERS Companion Plan (presently with TIAA-CREF) : 

American Trust Center 
AXA Equitable 
Bank of North Dakota 
Mass Mutual 

Jackson National 
Nationwide Life 
VALIC 
Waddell & Reed 

Concerning the group insurance programs, the following gives you an overview of the 

programs and some statistical information : 
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January 2015 GROUP INSURANCE PROGRAMS 
MANAGED AND ADMINISTERED BY NDPERS 

HEALTH LIFE DENTAL VISION EAP FLEXCOMP LT Care 
PARTICIPATION 

AGENCY 
State 95 95 95 95 95 90 95 
Counties 45 33 
School Dist 38 15 
Cit ies 50 30 
Others 64 31 20 20 20 20 20 

292 204 115 115 115 110 115 

EMPLOYEES 
State 15,203 16,037 6.717 7,948 16,013 2.735 55 
Counties 2,244 2,390 
School Dist 1,188 85 
Cities 1,845 234 
Others 592 355 247 
Legislators 133 
Ret irees 6,973 3,152 1,864 1600 
COBRA 425 47 53 

28,603 22,253 8,628 9,601 16,260 2,735 55 

As you will note, the largest responsibility in this area is the health plan. In this program 

about 54% of members are state employees and 46% are political subdivisions or other 

groups such as retirees. This biennium one of the challenges we faced with the health 

program was the enactment of federal health care reform and legislation passed last 

session . In response , we took the following actions: 

1. Maintained the plan as a grandfathered plan under the law which means we 

do not have to comply with all the provisions. 

2. Assisted our participating employers with compliance 

3. Developed and started work on a transition plan to get out of the Pre-Medicare 

retiree business by July 1, 2015 and make the retiree health credit portable . 
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The following table shows the history of the membership in the health plan : 

NDPERS 
Health Plan Membership 

70,000 ~--------------------, 

60,000 -+-------------------=---------i 

50,000 -l--------=---e::::__----------------1 

40 '000 -+---------9-8-0/c-o -, n_c_r_e_a_s_e____, 
30,000 -+-------------------------1 

20,000 -+-------------------------1 

10,000 -4------------------------i 

0 --+----,~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-----,------< 

In 2014 we went out for bid on the Health plan . The following is the schedule on that 

effort: 

• Released fully-insured RFP (7/9/14) 

• Released self-insured RFP (8/13/14) 

• Deloitte independently developed claims projections 

• Fully insured bids due Sept 4 

• Self insured bids due October 10th 

• Evaluated proposals 

• Hosted fully-insured vendor interviews (10/21/14) 

- Medical & Rx: BCBS I Sanford 

• Released fu lly-insured RFP re-bid (10/30/14) 

• Hosted vendor interviews for fully-insured re-bid and self-insured bid 

- Medical & Rx: BCBS I Sanford (11/24/14) 

- Carve-out Rx: Express Scripts I Navitus (11/25/14) 

• Released proposed pharmacy contract to vendors requesting redline feedback 

(12/11/14) 

• Board reviewed the Health bids - December 181
h 
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• Best and final  offers due on January 2 

• PERS Board interviews BCBS and Sanford on Jan 5 

• PERS Board interviews PBM vendors on Jan 1 5  

• PERS Board members and staff do a site visit with Sanford on Jan 1 9  

• PERS Board reviews fu lly insured/self insured proposa ls on Feb 5th 

• PERS Board d iscusses PBM proposals and fu l ly insured/self insured bids on Feb 

1 3th 

• PERS Board award contract to Sanford on Feb 1 9th 

On February 1 9th the PERS Board awarded the group health plan contract to Sanford 

Health Plan on a fu lly- insured basis. The plan has been fu lly insured with Blue Cross 

Blue Shield since 1 989 and immed iately before that it was self- insured . The overa l l  

increase in  premiums for 201 5-20 1 7  proposed by Sanford was approximately 1 5% 

compared to the Blue Cross Blue Shield of North Dakota (BC BS) bid which proposed an 

approximate 20% increase for a fu l ly insured plan for the next two years. Both bids 

were to mainta in the existing plan design for the next two years (ded uctib les, co­

insurance and copayments) .  

The Board also reviewed self- insuring the p lan  but determined that fu l ly insuring the 

plan was a more financial ly beneficial arrangement and was less of a financial 

risk. When self- insuring the plan the risk of loss is transferred from the insurance 

company to PERS or the state . When fu l ly insured the risk of loss stays with the 

insurance company. This risk on a self- insured plan can be best understood by looking 

back to the last time PERS was self- insured in the 1 980's.  The plan ran out of reserves 

and d id not have enough cash flow to pay a l l  medica l  b i l ls timely and it required over a 

40% increase in  premiums to get the plan on a sustainable course after 1 989. The loss 

of reserves and cash flow issues are avoided under a fu l ly insured p lan .  

I n  the late 1 990's the Employee Assistance Prog ram ,  Long Term Care Plan,  Denta l 

Plan & Vision Plan were added to PERS. The other group insurance programs have 
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been a part of the agency since before 1990. The following table is the history of the 

voluntary insurance programs (not including the EAP): 

NOPE RS 
Voluntary Insurance Plans Membership 

(Dental , Vision , Long-Term Care) 

18,000 ~-------------------, 

16,000 -+------- ---------- ----. 

14,000 -+------ - - -------- ----j 

1000°/o Increase 12 '000 -+-------''---'---''---'--"--'--'-'--=-'--=--=c.-=--=-----+-------1 

10,000 +--------------:;;;~-------i 

8 ,000 +---------~~----------1 

6,000 -+------------<0-------------i 

4,000 -t-----::;;;;~;;;;;;:::::;~-----------1 

2 ,000 -+----.,,.__- - - - - - - - --------< 

The FlexComp Program, which has been a part of the agency since 1989, allows 

members to pretax certain insurance premiums, dependent care expenses and medical 

expenses. The following tables show the history of the number of members and 

deferrals: 

NDPERS Flexcomp Participation 
ID Dependent Care • Medical Spending I 
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NDPERS Flexcomp Participation 
ID Dependent Care • Medical Spending I 

$6.0 
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NDPERS Flexcomp Participation 
ID Dependent Care • Medical Spending I 

$4,500 ~----------------------~ 
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NDPERS Flexcomp Participation 
I Pre-Taxed Premiums I 

$4,000,000 

$3,500,000 

$3,000,000 

$2,500,000 

$2,000,000 

$1,500,000 

$1 ,000,000 

$500,000 

$0 
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Participation in this program has remained level over time and more recently new 

options have been added including a debit card , auto adjudication and mobile 

applications. 

While we have been serving more members in more programs over time, we have also 

been serving more employers as they join PERS. The following table shows each 

employer relationship for each program (an employer in more than one program would 

count more than once) : 

NDPERS 
Participating Employers (All Programs) 

2500 ~-------------~ 

2000 -+-----------~::::===..-/________, 

1500 --t----/--,,.-...CC~-----------i 

1000 -r----~--------------1 

500 -+-----------------------< 
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As shown above, PERS has faced two chal lenges over the years.  First, is the growth of 

program responsibi l it ies. Second,  is the growing membership needs for assistance.  

We are also concerned with mainta in ing the qua l ity of what we do. To that extent, we 

have sought national review of our systems and other reviews as noted in  the fol lowing:  

• We have received the Publ ic Pension Ach ievement Award and the Recognition 

Award for Admin istration .  

• We have received the Certificate of Ach ievement for Excel lence in  F inancial 

Report ing for the past 1 8  years ( 1 996-20 1 3) .  

• We have had unqual ified audit opin ions for over 24 years . 

At th is t ime, I wi l l  turn the presentation over to Sharon Schiermeister to review our work 

efforts and budget request. 

Fol lowing are some of the major work efforts since we last reported to you in the 20 1 3  

session :  

• Health Plan 

- Worked with the OMB to assist state government and our participating 

subd ivisions to comply with the Employer Shared Responsibi l ity provision 

of the Affordable Care Act. In partnership with OMB we hosted severa l 

conferences on th is issue at the Bismarck Civic Center. 

Prepared and d istributed an RFP for the OPEB valuation ;  reviewed bids 

and selected a new vendor who completed the valuation in  J une 201 4 

- Prepared and d istributed RFPs for fu l ly insured and self insured health 

plans as noted above . 

- Developed add itional reserves 

- Worked with the Department of Health , Department of Human Services 

and I nd ian Affa i rs Department to prepare a report for the leg islature on the 

status of d iabetes efforts in North Dakota 
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- Red uced the state OPEB Actuarial Accrued Liab i l ity from $65 Mi l l ion to 

$29 mi l l ion and put it on a path to fu rther reductions in the years to come. 

• Dental Plan 

- I nteg rated a new vendor into the plan in 20 1 3 . 

• Retirement 

- Prepared legislation for the last year of contribution increases as part of 

the PERS 4 year recovery p lan.  

Received legislative authority to implement the third year of contribution 

increases which was implemented 1 /1 /2014 .  This is putting the plan on 

track to be 1 00% funded by 2059 

- Implemented leg islation to offer al l  state employees h i red on or after 

1 0/ 1 /20 1 3  the opportun ity to elect to join the Defined Contribution Plan.  

- Started de-risking the asset a l location for the Job Service Retirement plan 

by d ropping the assumed rate of return from 8% to 7%. The Board plans 

fu rther red uctions to th is closed p lan .  

- Reviewed and adopted updated investment pol icies for the Defined 

Contribution Retirement Plan and Deferred Compensation Companion 

P lan .  

- Worked with TFFR, the State Aud itor's office , p lan actuary and plan 

auditor to develop an implementation plan for GASB Statement No.  67 -

Financial Reporting for Pension Plans,  and GASB Statement No. 68 -

Accounting and F inancial Reporting for Pension .  

• Train ing for p i lot group held June 201 4 

• Train ing for a l l  emp loyers held December 20 1 4  

• Admin istrative Accompl ishments 

- PERSLink Member Self Service (MSS) was rol led out to a l l  emp loyees 

during 20 1 3  

• Over 80% of a l l  benefit e lections made during annual  enrol lment 

were entered th rough MSS 

- Contin ued working on updating the NDPERS business continu ity plan 
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• Established a secondary data center for disaster recovery of the 

PERSLink system, and successfully tested restoration of the 

system 

• Established a Service Level Agreement with ITD for disaster 

recovery services, which is reviewed quarterly 

PERS Budget 

The proposed budget before you today is all special funds . 

The following is a summary comparing the current budget to the Governor's Executive 

Recommendation and the Senate vers ion : 

2015-2017 
Executive 2015-2017 

2013-2015 Recommend- Senate 
Appropriation Change ation Change Version 

Salaries & 
wages $5, 119,556 $1 ,784,561 $6 ,904, 117 $ (424,707) $6,479,410 
Operating 
Expenses $2,280,894 $ 421 ,207 $2 ,702 , 101 $ (24,038) $2,678,063 
Contingency $ 250,000 $ 250,000 $ 250,000 

Total $7,650,450 $2 ,205,768 $9 ,856,218 $ (448,745) $9,407,473 
FTE 33.0 3.5 36.5 (2 .0) 34.5 
% Change 29% 23% 

The changes from the 2013-15 budget that are included in the Senate version above 

can be broken down as follows : 

Salary/Benefit Adjustment 
PERS proposed Base Budget Adjustment 
PERS Optional Budget Request 

Base Budget Request 

$ 380,592 
$ 542,085 
$ 834,346 
$1 ,757,023 

5% 
7% 

11% 
23% 

Our proposed base budget request includes the following changes: 

Remove one-time expenditures 
General operating expense 
Salary and Wages 

($ 22,000) 
$134,470 
$429,615 
$542,085 
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Remove One-time Expenditures . The agency received an appropriation of $22 ,000 

for the imp lementation of H B  1 452 passed last legislative session which expanded 

el ig ib i l ity for the Defined Contribution plan to al l  State employees through J une 20 1 7 . 

This was implemented October 1 ,  20 1 3 . Ongoing costs for this program are included in 

genera l  operating expenses. 

General  Operati ng Expense. Operating expenses were increased by $ 1 79 ,070 for 

inflation . The increases were primari ly for office rent, software l icensing fees and 

support costs for the PERSLink system,  data processing fees paid to ITD and central 

service cost a l location.  Operating fees and services were also increased by $5 , 000 to 

reflect the fi l ing fee for I RS determination letters for the retirement plans,  which is 

needed every 5 years. These increases were offset by a decrease of $49,600 to 

remove funding related to computer hardware and software that was replaced in  the 

current bienn ium,  fol lowing the agency's 4 year replacement cycle. It is our 

understanding that if  HB 1 053 is passed in the Senate, our desktop support wi l l  move 

under ITD during the 20 1 5- 1 7  bienn ium,  at a proposed cost of approximately $ 1 36, 1 70 . 

Our budget request does not include fund ing for this change. 

Salary and Wages . In add ition to the cost to continue the FY 20 1 5  salary increase, the 

base budget request includes addit ional funding of approximately $275 , 000 to start 

addressing serious sa lary equ ity issues faced by the agency. Approximately 75% of the 

agency's positions are in  either the first or second quart i le of the pay g rades, with about 

50% just in the first q uarti le. There are also several positions with s imi lar C-ratios, but 

with a wide range of years of service. The Board has identified the goal of establ ishing 

a salary equ ity package to move staff up in  the pay grades, so their C-Ratio is 

comparable to the average C-Ratio for a l l  state employees in  the same pay grade with 

s imi lar years of service. This proposal is not attempting to match market salaries , but 

on ly comparable state salaries. We feel this is important for employee retention ,  

recru itment and mainta in ing current work efforts. While our employees are beh ind the 

private sector, accord ing to other surveys , they are also behind comparable state 

emp loyees and as a resu lt they can make more just by moving with i n  state government. 

This bienn ium,  we have lost 3 PERS employees to other state agencies. 
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• The following table shows the challenge we face: 

NDPERS C-Ratios - Jan 2015 
1.30 ~--------------------------

Ma ximum i.2o -+-----------------. -------4- t_h_Q-ua_rt_i-le 

1.10 -+------------------.----------

• 3rd Quartile 

i.oo-+------------------~--------
id point • • 2nd Quartile 

0.70 1n1 mum • 0 .00 5.00 10 .00 15 .00 20.00 25.00 30.00 35 .00 40 .00 

Years of Service 

Optional Budget Request 

Following are the optional budget requests : 

FTE as Cost as Cost in FTEin 
originally originally Senate Senate 

Initiative requested requested ~ersion Version 
PERSLink Refinements $147,000 $147,000 
Accounting Position 1.0 $216,069 $216,069 1.0 
Benefits Position 0.5 $ 51 ,346 $ 51 ,346 0.5 
Temporary Position $122 ,352 $302,351 
Retiree Health Insurance Portability $ 43,052 --------

Website Redesign $73,880 $90,080 
Secure Reception Area $27,500 $27,500 
Self-Funding Health Insurance 2.0 $406,294 --------

• TOTAL 
3.5 $1 ,087,493 $834,346 1.5 

171 Page 



Priority 1 - PERSLink Refinements - $147,000 
(Summary: Additional investment to complete system refinements that have not been 
able to get completed after go-live, this request is a one-time cost) 

Several bienniums ago, you approved funding for the replacement of our business 

system. As we reported to you last session we went live as projected in October of 

2010 after three years of development. We were pleased to be able to report in our 

close out report that the project came in $432,435 or 4.1 % under budget. 

However, since implementing the PERSLink system in 2010, several system 

refinements have not been able to get completed . This is the result of a high volume of 

enhancements (member self service, benefit plan changes, vendor changes, Affordable 

Care Act) having to be implemented in a short timeframe and the support team size 

being inadequate to manage the workload . The agency is making an additional 

investment in the system to complete this backlog . Efforts on this project began this 

biennium, but will not be completed by the end of the biennium . Funding is being 

requested to pay for additional developers to complete the work on the backlog of 

system refinements . The PERSLink system is integral to the efficient administration of 

our benefit programs, therefore, th is is our first priority. 

Priority 2 - Chief Financial Officer (1.0 FTE) - $216,069 
(Summary: Split the Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer into two 
positions) 

In 2012 , the organizational structure was modified to add a Chief Operating Officer 

(COO). However, in order to accomplish this without additional staffing, the Chief 

Financial Officer (CFO) was moved into the COO role but required to also maintain the 

existing role as CFO. Funding is being requested to add an FTE so that the COO and 

CFO positions can be split. PERS is continuing to become more complex with the 

number of programs we now administer. This includes seven defined benefit plans, the 

defined contribution plan , the deferred compensation plan (Companion Plan and 8 

additional provider companies), the retiree health insurance credit plan , the group 

• 

• 

insurance plans (health , life, dental , vision , long-term care) , the flex program and EAP. • 
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The health p lan is further broken down into the H igh  Deductible Health Plan and Health 

Savings Account, H MO,  Med icare Part D and low income subsid ies. Over the years ,  

coord ination requ i rements with the federal  government have become more complex as 

a resu lt of Med icare Part D and the Affordable Care Act requ i rements. We also know 

that th ings are going to continue to become more complex with the changes coming in 

the retirement plan financial reporting , health plan admin istration ,  the reti ree health plan 

portabi l ity and the recent changes in  offering the DC plan to more members .  The 

agency's internal  aud itors have a lso noted that with the number of federa l  and state 

statutes and ru les we must now fol low, having a central compl iance special ist would be 

beneficial for the agency. This would potentia l ly reduce the risk to the agency of non­

compl iance, red uce errors and improve consistency in  our processes. In add ition to 

our program areas, our business system requirements for PERSLink requ i re oversight 

in  order to be successfu l .  The agency is also responsible for maintain ing the Benefits 

Module on the State PeopleSoft system. PERS was g iven this responsibi l ity at the time 

the system went l ive , however, no new staff was added . The work effort with in our 

office has been d ivided between th ree staff, which has not a l lowed us to support the 

system effectively. As these and other complexities arise, agency operations requ i re 

more attention ,  gu idance, p lann ing and coord ination . We need a fu l l  time ch ief 

operating officer to provide that level of detai led gu idance.  

We a lso know that our financial processes continue to be complicated and demand ing.  

We pay out approximately $ 1 2 mi l l ion in  retirement benefits to about 1 0 , 000 retirees 

each month ; maintain  accounts for over 22, 000 active members in the retirement plan ;  

col lect over $ 1 3  mi l l ion in retirement and RH IC contributions from participating 

employers each month; coord inate cash flows for DC members and 457 plan members 

that are in the range of $ 1 .6 mi l l ion per month . For the group insurance plans we bi l l  

our  participating employers and members each month and col lect approximately $24 

mil l ion in prem ium.  The recent changes for the Governmenta l  Accounting Standards 

Board are going to requ i re more work from the agency and coord ination with our many 

employers. Our ana lysis of this situation is the only way to provide adequate resources 

1 9 1 P a g e  



to these efforts is to split the COO/CFO position into two positions. This is the Board 's 

#2 priority since it is so important to the agency. 

Priority 3 - Benefits Position (.5 FTE) - $51,346 
(Summary: Increase existing position from . 5 to 1. 0 FTE - Support increase in number 
of retirements ) 

The number of retirements processed by our agency continues to increase and we 
expect this to increase even more into the future . The following table shows the 
change: 
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The number of members el igible to retire is significant as well : 

NDPERS Main System Active Members (Does not include deferred 
vested) 
13-May-14 
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• In addition, the number of retirees continues to increase: 

NDPERS Main System 
Receiving Retirees/Spouses 

1 

41 7000 .! 
I:! 
~ 6000 
.5 
le 5 
.Si 0 
le 
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As we look to the future , we would expect the number of member retirements to 

• increase even more due to a combination of factors: a) able to find better paying jobs in 

the private sector, and when combined with a retirement benefit, allows a member to 

substantially enhance their lifestyle and savings and b) with the implementation of HB 

1058, members who are retired before July 1, 2015 will be able to maintain their 

eligibility for the Pre-Medicare Retiree plan. 

• 

The solution to handling the existing increase and future increases is to add more effort 

in this area. While we considered adding a full time position, at this time we are 

proposing an increase in an existing position from .5 FTE to 1.0 FTE and we will 

continue to monitor this situation. 

Priority 4 - Temporary Position - $122,352 (Increased to 
$302,351 in Senate Version) 
(Summary: Temporary support for several activities that are expected to be of limited 
duration) 
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Fund ing for this i n itiative was increased in  the Senate Version . It was anticipated that if 

the plan was self insured that those FTE cou ld assist with some of the short term 

chal lenges the agency was going to have in the fol lowing areas. G iven that these 

resources are not avai lable, add itional temp assistance wil l  be needed . The fol lowing 

are some of the efforts that requ i re d ifferent types of expertise and are hard to estimate 

the level of effort . PERS is proposing to add fu nd ing for temporary employees to a l low 

us to bring in the expertise, as needed , instead of add ing fu l l  t ime staff. We bel ieve in  

time these work efforts wi l l  peak and we wi l l  return to a more normal work flow. The 

fol lowing are the areas that may need assistance :  

1 .  Assist with the implementation of H B  1 058 that becomes effective 7 /1 /20 1 5  and 

was passed last session . PERS wil l  be transition ing from provid ing pre-Med icare 

reti ree health insurance to not provid ing such services, as wel l  as making the 

retiree health credit portable. 

2. PERS is reviewing the possib i l ity of not offering a Part D product as part of the 

health insurance p lan .  If the agency was to d iscontinue this prod uct in the 20 1 5-

• 

1 7  bienn ium,  there may be some short term implementation actions that would • 
be req u i red . 

3 .  Provide support during the website upgrade and with implementation of other 

social commun ication channels. 

4. Provide short-term assistance with the last of the PERSLink refinements. 

5. Provide add itional support for our ca l l  center or reception area.  

6.  Provide assistance with PERS outreach programs. 

7. Assist PERS I nternal  Aud it d ivision with imp lementing an expanded audit 

program to verify payrol l  data provided by employers , as a resu lt of new GASB 

67 /68 financial statement reporting requ i rements and a recommendation 

received from our external audit fi rm . 

8 .  Assist with imp lementing changes to forms and records retention schedu les, 

based on recommendations received through an ITD Records Review. 

9.  Assist with business process documentation . 

1 0 . Assist with documentation of agency's business recovery p lan .  

22 1 P a g e  

• 



• 

• 

• 

Priority 5 - RHIC Portability - $43,052 (Removed from Senate 
version) 
(Summary: Funding for workload adjustments for the staff impacted by this.) 

Beginning July 2015, the retiree health credit becomes portable as approved in the 
2013-15 legislative session. This provides for retirees to apply for direct reimbursement 
of their credit; presently, the credit is limited to PERS health insurance. At the time the 
budget was submitted , it was not known whether this initiative would be handled 
internally or moved to a vendor. A Request for Proposal was issued and a vendor was 
selected in February 2015. Therefore, funding for these workload adjustments is no 
longer necessary. 

Priority 6 - RHIC Website Redesign - $73,880 (Increased to 
$90,080 in Senate version) 
(Summary: Development costs to modernize and enhance the site - one-time cost.) 

Funding is being requested to redesign the PERS website. We feel this needs to be 

done for the following reasons: 

• Modernizing and enhancing the site's look, feel and organization to ensure 
that our stakeholders find the information they seek and can easily conduct 
business with PERS. 

• Our members, both active and retired , are already using social media, so we 
should consider leveraging these channels to broaden our reach . 

• Our members, both active and retired, are also rapidly adopting mobile 
devices. So as we redesign our website, we have the opportunity to build it 
for easy access regardless of the user's device of choice (computer, tablet, 
mobile phone) and operating system. 

• As access is improved for mobile devices, we anticipate that there will be 
higher demand for electron ic content and less reliance on print media over 
time, hopefully reducing print and postage costs . 

Please note we have not updated our website in many years and we are receiving 

comments from members and others that it is out of date and difficult to use. Our 

proposed budget is based upon the following development cycle 
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Timeline for This Approach 
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The budget was developed around the following : 

Possible Budget Requirements -
Outside Develooment Resources 

QU·- 1 

To test this estimate we sent out an RFP in December with the detailed specifications . 
Several proposals were received , with cost estimates ranging from $65,000 to 
$281 ,000. The proposals were reviewed and the work was awarded to a local firm 
whose bid was approximately $16,000 higher than what had been included in our 
budget request. 

Priority 7 - Secure PERS Reception Area - $27,500 
(Summary: Funding to redesign reception area at NDPERS office to better protect 
member confidentiality and increase office security - one-time cost) 

The number of walk in 's to the office continues to be high (as reflected in the number of 
retirements in discussed above) and our call volume remains high. 

JAN FEB MARCH APRIL MAY J UNE J ULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC TOTAL 

2010 2010 1761 2063 1571 1326 1596 1560 2328 1826 3093 2630 2303 24,064 

2011 2590 2638 2321 2056 2167 2120 1841 2274 2210 2503 2134 1943 26,797 

2012 2779 2134 2033 1864 1658 1776 1848 231 0 1735 2400 2349 1801 24,687 

2013 2461 1873 1682 192 1 1883 1759 1876 2161 1837 2573 21 66 1738 23,930 

2014 2385 1803 1809 1796 1513 1663 1731 2035 1738 2265 2080 1926 22,744 
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Presently one of our call center employees greets walk in members and handles calls. • 

We have two other call service employees in the call center in private offices away from 

the waiting area. The dilemma is that we now have more members sitting in the waiting 

area when our call center rep is on the phone. We have had to become more sensitive 

to what is discussed so confidential information is not inadvertently disclosed (this would 

be a felony violation under state law and a violation under federal HIPPA). One solution 

to this situation would be to hire a receptionist and move our call center rep into an 

office. Another solution would be to redesign the area so confidential information is 

protected and to provide better security for the office and confidential information 

contained therein. We are proposing to redesign the area instead of adding a 

receptionist, therefore one-time funding is being requested to redesign our entry area to 

better insure any conversations are not overheard . The second purpose would be to 

increase our office security. We could add doors to the two hallways leading from our 

entry way to secure the rest of the office. Visitors would only be able to access our 

office area while being escorted by a staff member. 

Priority 8 - Self Funded Insurance (2.0 FTEs) - $406,294 
(Removed from Senate version) (Summary: Contingent on outcome of 
health plan bid process to be completed in February 2015. If health plan were to 
become self-funded, PERS would have additional administrative efforts and increased 
accountability for the plan) 

The health insurance contract was awarded under a fully insured arrangement in 

February 2015, therefore funding for this initiative was removed. 

Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, I would also like to take this opportunity on 

behalf of PERS to thank you for your past support. Together we have provided our 

members valuable benefits that have truly made a significant difference in people's lives 

and helped to support the economic health of North Dakota. We look forward to 

continuing to work with you in the future. Again , thank you, and this concludes our 

testimony. 
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Retirement . vestment Office - Budget No. 190 
Senate Bill No. 2022 
Base Level Funding Changes 

2015-17 Biennium Base Level 

2015-17 Ongoing Funding Changes 
Base payroll changes 
Salary increase - Performance 
Salary increase - Market equity 
Retirement contribution increase 
Health insurance increase 
Employee base level salary adjustment 
Increased operating expenses 
Total ongoing funding changes 

One-time funding items 
Total one-time funding changes 

Total Changes to Base Level Funding 

2015-17 Total Funding 

Other Sections in Senate Bill No. 2022 

Contingencies line item transfers 

Executive Budget Recommendation 
FTE General 

Positions Fund Other Funds Total 
19.00 $0 $4,899,369 $4,899,369 

$230,338 $230,338 
198,535 198,535 
24,769 24,769 
22.401 22,401 
82,038 82,038 
50,000 50,000 
17,550 17,550 

0.00 $0 $625,631 $625,631 

0.00 $0 $0 $0 

0.00 $0 $625,631 $625,631 

19.00 $0 $5,525,000 $5,525,000 

Executive Budget Recommendation 
Section 2 provides upon approval of the respective boards, the 
Retirement and Investment Office and the Public Employees 
Retirement System may transfer from their respective 
contingencies line items in subdivisions 1 and 2 of Section 1 of 
the bill to all other line items. 

Senate Version 
FTE General 

Positions Fund Other Funds Total 
19.00 $0 $4,899,369 $4,899,369 

$230,338 $230,338 
148,434 148,434 

0 
0 

82,038 82,038 
50,000 50,000 
17,550 17.550 

0.00 $0 $528,360 $528,360 

0.00 $0 $0 $0 

0.00 $0 $528,360 $528 ,360 

19.00 $0 $5,427,729 $5,427,729 

Senate Version 
Section 2 provides upon approval of the respective boards, 
the Retirement and Investment Office and the Public 
Employees Retirement System may transfer from their 
respective contingencies line items in subdivisions 1 and 2 
of Section 1 of the bill to all other line items. 

• 
Senate Changes to Executive Budget 

FTE General Other 
Positions Fund Funds Total 

0.00 $0 $0 $0 

$0 
(50,101) (50,101) 
(24,769) (24,769) 
(22,401) (22,401) 

0 
0 
0 

0.00 $0 ($97,271) ($97,271) 

0.00 $0 $0 $0 

0.00 $0 ($97,271) ($97,271) 

0.00 $0 ($97,271) ($97,271) 



Public Empl 
Senate Bill No. 

Retirement System - Budget No. 192 
022 

Base Level Funding Changes 

2015-17 Biennium Base Level 

2015-17 Ongoing Funding Changes 
Base payroll changes 
Salary increase - Performance 
Salary increase - Market equity 
Retirement contribution increase 
Health insurance increase 
Remove 2013-15 funding for retirement plan election 
General operating expenses 
PERSlink system refinements 
Chief Financial Officer position 
Benefits support position 
Temporary support position 
Portability of retiree health credit 
Website redesign 
Secure reception area 
Self-funded health insurance 
Total ongoing funding changes 

One-time funding items 
Total one-time funding changes 

Total Changes to Base Level Funding 

2015-17 Total Funding 

Other Sections in Senate Bill No. 2022 

Contingencies line item transfers 

FTE 
Positions 

33.00 

1.00 
0.50 

2.00 
3.50 

0.00 

3.50 

36.50 

Executive Budget Recommendation 
General 

Fund 
$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

Other Funds 
$7,650,450 

$429,614 
320,465 
58,656 
32,995 

164,075 
(22,000) 
134,470 
147,000 
216,069 

51 ,346 
122,352 
43,052 
73,880 
27,500 

406,294 
$2,205,768 

$0 

$2,205,768 

$9,856,218 

Executive Budget Recommendation 

Total 
$7,650,450 

$429.614 
320,465 

58,656 
32,995 

164,075 
(22,000) 
134,470 
147,000 
216,069 

51,346 
122,352 
43,052 
73,880 
27,500 

406,294 
$2,205,768 

$0 

$2,205,768 

$9,856,218 

Section 2 provides upon approval of the respective boards, the 
Retirement and Investment Office and the Public Employees 
Retirement System may transfer from their respective 
contingencies line items in subdivision 1 and 2 of Section 1 of 
the bill to all other line items. 

FTE 
Positions 

33.00 

1.00 
0.50 

1.50 

0.00 

1.50 

34.50 

Senate Version 
General 

Fund 
$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

Other Funds 
$7,650,450 

$429,614 
225, 151 

155,441 
(22,000) 
134,470 
147,000 
216,069 

51 ,346 
302,352 

90,080 
27,500 

$1 ,757,023 

$0 

$1 ,757,023 

$9,407,473 

Senate Version 

Total 
$7,650,450 

$429,614 
225,151 

155,441 
(22,000) 
134,470 
147,000 
216,069 

51 ,346 
302,352 

90,080 
27,500 

$1,757,023 

$0 

$1 ,757,023 

$9,407,473 

Section 2 provides upon approval of the respective boards, the 
Retirement and Investment Office and the Public Employees 
Retirement System may transfer from their respective 
contingencies line items in subdivision 1 and 2 of Section 1 of 
the bill to all other line items. 

• 
Senate Changes to Executive Budget 

FTE General Other 
Positions Fund Funds 

0.00 $0 $0 

(2.00) 
(2.00) $0 

0.00 $0 

(2.00) $0 

(2.00) $0 

(95,314) 
(58,656) 
(32,995) 

(8,634) 

180,000 
(43,052) 
16,200 

(406,294) 
($448,745) 

$0 

($448,745) 

($448,745) 

Total 
$0 

$0 
(95,314) 
(58,656) 
(32,995) 

(8,634) 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

180,000 
(43,052) 
16,200 

0 
(406,294) 

($448,745) 

$0 

($448,745) 

($448,745) 
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SB 2022 - NDPERS 
Information requested by House Appropriations 

Government Operations Division 

Cost to replace desktop hardware/software in 2013-15 biennium: 

Desktop computers & monitors 

Desktop Software - M icrosoft Office 

Laptops 

Laptop Software - MicroSoh Office 

Total 

Website Redesign Project: 

Development costs 

Ma intena nce costs 

Total 

Quantity 

34 

34 

4 

4 

Actual 

Expend iture 

$52,235.76 

$8,464.76 

$955.20 

$61,655.72 

Original Budget 

Request 

$63,090.00 

$10,790.00 

$73,880.00 

Projected 

Expenditure 

$8,000.00 

$8,000.00 

Senate Version 

$79,290.00 

$10,790.00 

$90,080.00 

MABU Proposal 

$79,773.75 

See note below 

$79,773.75 

The MABU proposal does not include a fixed fee for maintenance, as it would be Incurred on an 'as needed' basis at an 

hourly rate of $78.75. The proposal also indicates that the fixed fee for development costs could be impacted by how much 

content and digital assets from the existing website w ill be either discarded or retained. They reta in the right to negotiate 

a fi nal fixed fee for contract ing purposes, based on an initial discovery meeting with ND PERS. NDPERS feels that the 

$10,790 included in the budget request for maintenance be retained for support needed from MABU, as well as to 

cover any add itiona l fees that may be incurred as a result of adjustments to the work effort based on an actual 

assessment of content . 

NDPERS Board Election: 
The following information is attached 

1. Minutes of June 16, 2014 NDPERS Election Committee showing results of last Board elections 

2. Chapter 71-01-02 of NDAC pertaining to the NDPERS Board elect ion process 

3. Sample ballot for the 2014 ret iree and active member elections 

4. Information sheet on candidates running fo r elect ion, included with each ballot 



• MINUTES 

North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System 
Election Committee 

Members Present: 

Others Present: 

Monday, June 16, 2014 
3rd Floor Conference Room 

400 E Broadway 
Bismarck, ND 58502 

9:00 A.M. 

Mike Sandal - Chair 
Tom Trenbeath 
Kim Wassim 

Sparb Collins, NDPERS 
Kathy Allen, NDPERS 
MaryJo Steffes, NDPERS 

Meeting convened at 9:00 a.m . 

The ballots for the active and retiree candidates were tallied by the Committee. The Committee 
Chair, Mike Sandal authorized Sparb Collins, Kathy Allen, and MaryJo Steffes to assist with the 
canvassing. 

The tally after the count had been completed for the active candidates was as follows : 

Casey Goodhouse 
Taylor Lee 
Levi Erdmann 
Write-in Candidates 
Invalid Ballots 
Received after Deadline 

704 
566 
437 

8 
11 

~ 

1,789 

The tally after the count had been completed for the retiree candidates was as follows : 

Yvonne Smith 
David Clinton 
Alan Person 
Write-in Candidates 
Invalid Ballots 
Received after Deadline 

792 
625 
511 

1 
24 

__§_Q 

2,013 
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Section 
7 1 -0 1 -02-0 1 
71 -0 1 -02-02 
71 -0 1 -02-03 
71 -01 -02-04 
7 1 -0 1 -02-05 
7 1 -01 -02-06 
71 -01 -02-07 
71 -0 1 -02-08 
71 -0 1 -02-09 
7 1 -01 -02-1 0 
71 -0 1 -02-1 1 
7 1 -0 1 -02-1 2 
7 1 -0 1 -02- 1 3 

CHAPTER 7 1 -01 -02 
ELECTION RULES 

Election Committee 
El igible Voters 
Candidate El ig ib i l ity 
E lection Notification 
Petition Format 
Procedure for Completing and Fi l ing Petitions 
E lection Bal lots 
E lection 
Canvassing Rules 
Notification of Election Resu lts 
Special E lections 
Penalties 
E lection Voting 

71 -01 -02-01 . Election committee. 

1 .  The retirement board must appoint a committee of th ree, one of whom 
wi l l  be designated as chair, from its membership to oversee e lections to 
the board. 

2.  Committee members .  or their authorized representatives , are 
responsible for reviewing the election rules for the retirement board 
membersh ip of the North Dakota publ ic employees reti rement system, 
for counting ballots , and for reporting the e lection results to the board .  

3 .  Committee members w i l l  be  appointed at the February meeting of  the 
North Dakota publ ic employees retirement system board to serve unti l 
the retirement board meeting for the fol lowing February. 

H istory : Effective April 1 ,  1 992. 
General  A uthority :  NDCC 54-52-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52-03 

7 1 -0 1 -02-02. Elig ible voters. 

1 .  All active employees, el ig i ble to serve as e lected members of the board 
in accordance with subsection 4 of North Dakota Century Code section 
54-52-03, are el ig ib le to cast one vote for each active member vacancy 
on the reti rement board .  

2 .  All persons rece iving retirement benefits are el ig ib le to cast one vote for 
a retiree member vacancy on the reti rement board .  

3 .  Persons participating in the un iform group insurance program, the 
deferred compensation plan for public employees, or the pretax 



benefits program but not in the retirement system are inel ig ible to cast 
votes in retirement board elections. 

History: Effective Apri l 1 ,  1 992 ; amended effective Ju ly 1 ,  1 994; April 1 ,  2008; 
April 1 ,  20 1 2. 
General Authority : NDCC 54-52-04 ,  54-52-1 7(5) 
Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52-03 

7 1 -01 -02-03. Candidate el ig ibil ity. 

1 .  Any active participating member, members of the defined contribution 
retirement plan , the h ighway patrol ret irement system, and the job 
service retirement plan are el igible to serve as an elected member of 
the board in accordance with subsection 4 of North Dakota Century 
Code section 54-52-03, may become a candidate for e lection to the 
board.  A department or politica l subdivision may not be represented 
by more than one elected member. Employees who have terminated 
their employment for whatever reason are not el igible to serve as an 
active elected member of the board.  

2 .  Any person ,  as of April fifteenth of  the election year, who has accepted a 
retirement a l lowance, may become a cand idate for the retiree member 
to the board .  

History: Effective April 1 ,  1 992; amended effective Ju ly 1 ,  1 994; Ju ly 1 ,  2000 ; 
April 1 ,  2008; Ju ly 1 ,  20 1 O; April 1 ,  201 2. 
General Authority: NDCC 54-52-04, 54-52-1 7(5} 
Law Implemented : NDCC 54-52-03 

7 1 -01 -02-04. Election notification.  

1 .  The director of the North Dakota publ ic employees retirement system 
shal l ensu re that notification of an active member vacancy and the 
election is g iven to all employees through publ ication of a notice in the 
North Dakota publ ic emp loyees retirement system newsletter and any 
other method of communication as deemed appropriate by the d irector 
at least th ree weeks in advance of a fil ing date for nomination petitions.  
The d i rector shal l  ensure that notification of the vaca ncy of a retiree 
member and the e lection is g iven to al l  persons who have accepted 
a retirement al lowance through publ ication of a notice in the North 
Dakota publ ic employees reti rement system newsletter and any other 
method of communication as deemed appropriate by the director at 
least th ree weeks in advance of a fi l ing date for nomination petitions .  





2 .  Nomination petit ions must be fi led with the North Dakota public 
employees retirement system no later than four p .m .  on the first 
Friday of May and must be validated by the election committee or their 
representatives fol lowing the fi l ing dead line and prior to ballots being 
d istributed . 

3. Nomination petitions not furnished by the North Dakota public 
employees reti rement system will be accepted provided they are 
submitted in the prescribed form . 

4 .  A candidate may withdraw that cand idate's nomination petition up until 
one week prior to the date the ballots are printed. The notice must be 
in writing and duly witnessed . 

5. Nomination petitions may be accompanied by a th ree-inch 
[76.20-mil l imeter] by five-inch [1 27.00-mil l imeter] photograph of the 
candidate and a narrative not to exceed two hundred words. The 
absence of a photo or narrative will not invalidate the candidate's 
el ig ib i l ity, but only the candidate's name will then appear with the other 
candidates' information that accompanies the ballots. 

6. The retirement board or its representative reserves the right to edit 
lengthy narratives to the two hundred word l imit. 

7. The board or its representative shal l  inform all candidates of the 
val idation of their candidacy. 

History :  Effective April 1 ,  1 992; amended effective July 1 ,  2000; April 1 ,  2008. 
Genera l  Authority :  NDCC 54-52-04 
Law Implemented : NDCC 54-52-03 

7 1 -0 1 -02-07.  Election bal lots. 

1 .  Bal lots must be prepared by the North Dakota publ ic employees 
reti rement system staff in accordance with the election rules. 

2 .  Bal lots must be  printed on  postcards with return postage suppl ied and 
wil l be mai led to all e l ig ib le voters with a narrative on candidates who 
have provided that information .  

3 .  Bal lots must fi rst be  arranged with the names of each candidate on 
the bal lot. In printing the bal lots , the position of the names must be 
changed as many times as there are cand idates' names on the ballot. 
The change must be accompl ished by taking the name at the head of 
the ballot and p lacing it at the bottom and moving the name that was 
second before the change to the head of the names on the ballot. The 
same number of bal lots must be printed after each change of position 
so as to result in  an equal number of bal lots with each candidate's name 



• 

• 

• 

4. 

5.  

at the head of the ballot. The bal lot must provide a space for write-in 
candidates. 

I f  there is only one candidate for an election , the election wi l l  
nonetheless be conducted in compl iance with the provisions of this 
chapter. 

If there is no candidate, the board shal l  sol icit at least two persons from 
the e l ig ible pool of cand idates to run for election to the board .  The 
election wi l l  then be conducted in compliance with the provisions of this 
chapter. 

History : Effective April 1 ,  1 992; amended effective J u ly 1 ,  2000; April 1 ,  2008. 
General  Authority :  NDCC 54-52-04 
Law Implemented : NDCC 54-52-03 

71 -01 -02-08. Election.  

1 .  Bal lots must be mailed by fi rst-class Un ited States mai l  to the home 
address of a l l  e l igible active voters for an e lection of an active board 
member, o r  a l l  e l igible retired voters for an e lection of a retired 
board member, as determined by the North Dakota publ ic employees 
retirement system's membersh ip roles as of Apri l fifteenth in the year 
of the e lection . 

2. North Dakota publ ic employees retirement system members who 
become el igible to vote after Apri l fifteenth , but before the dead l ine 
for the receipt of bal lots , may be issued a special e lection ballot by 
making their request for such ballot in  writ ing to the North Dakota publ ic 
employees retirement system office no later than the second Monday 
in June. 

3 .  Bal lots must be returned to the North Dakota publ ic employees 
retirement system office no later than the close of business on the 
Friday immediately preced ing the third Monday in June.  

4 .  The candidate receiving the h ighest n umber of votes must be 
considered elected . When there is more than one active member 
board vacancy to be fi l led , the candidate with the second h ighest 
number of votes must be considered elected. If there are three active 
member board vacancies to be fi l led , the person with the third h ighest 
number of votes must be considered elected. 

History : Effective Apri l 1 ,  1 992; amended effective Apri l  1 ,  2008 . 
Genera l  Authority : NDCC 54-52-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52-03 



• 7 1 -01 -02-09. Canvass ing rules. 

1 .  Bal lot counting by election committee members or their authorized 
representatives wil l  commence at n ine a .m. on the th i rd Monday of 
June and wil l  continue unti l complete . 

2 .  Each cand idate may have one overseer present a t  the canvassing who 
may examine each bal lot as to its sufficiency after the canvassers have 
completed the canvassing of a l l  ballots . No overseer may possess 
a pen , penci l ,  or other device which could be considered capable of 
a ltering a bal lot in any manner. 

3 .  A cand idate may act as h is or  her overseer. If a cand idate wishes to 
designate a representative to act as h is or her overseer, that cand idate 
must provide a written authorization ,  duly witnessed , to the election 
committee at the canvassing. An overseer may act on behalf of more 
than one candidate; however, each person must show the requ i red 
authorization from each cand idate represented . 

4 .  The overseer may question the decision of  the  canvassers regarding a 
bal lot after completion of the canvassing. If questioned, the comments 
of an overseer wil l be heard .  The canvassers wil l  then vote regarding 
the acceptabi l ity of the bal lot with the majority vote ru l ing .  

5.  A bal lot is  not val id where the n umber of votes on the bal lot exceeds 
the number of vacancies in the e lection .  A ballot that does not, in the 
opinion of a majority of the canvassers ,  show a clear ind ication of the 
voter's intention , may not be counted . 

6. If the percentage of votes received by the cand idate receiving the 
h ighest number of votes is less than one percent more than the votes 
received by the candidate receiving the next h ighest number of votes, 
the board shal l  o rder a recount. 

7. Tie votes wi l l  be determined by a coin toss. If this procedure is 
necessary, the election committee wil l estab l ish and notify the tied 

cand idates of the procedure and location for resolving the tie. 

8. I f  the committee should determine that the outcome of the election has 
been compromised for any reason ,  the committee may determine the 
election to be inval id. If the election is determined to be inval id ,  the 
committee shall call for a new election with a new election schedu le .  

History: Effective Apri l  1 ,  1 992; amended effective April 1 ,  2008 ; July 1 ,  201 0 .  
General Authority :  NDCC 54-52-04 
Law Im plemented:  NDCC 54-52-03 



7 1 -01 -02-1 0.  Notification of election results.  

1 . Election results must be presented to the retirement board fol lowing 
the canvassing of votes. Such report must include an  itemization of 
the number of ballots retu rned, votes cast for each candidate , votes 
i nvalidated, and votes not cou nted due to late receipt. 

2. All cand idates wil l  be notified of the election results no later than the 
bus iness day fo llowing the June meeting of the retirement board. 

3. Departments and agencies participating i n  the North Dakota public 
employees retirement system wil l  be notified of the election resu lts . I n  
add ition ,  a report o f  the election resu lts wil l  b e  i ncluded i n  the North 
Dakota public employees reti rement system n ewsletter. 

History: Effective April 1 ,  1 992;  amended effective April 1 ,  2008. 
General  Authority :  NDCC 54-52-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52-03 

71 -0 1 -02-1 1 .  Special elections . 

1 .  A special e lection wi l l  be called for by the retirement board in  the event 
of a vacancy result ing from the death , resignation ,  o r  termination of 
North Dakota publ ic employees retirement system membership by any 
elected board members .  

2. Special elections must be conducted in accordance with the regu lar 
elections rules, except that the board will determ ine a new election 
schedule .  

3 .  I n  the case of  a special election , the term to be fi l led is the unexpired 
portion of the vacant board pos ition .  

History: Effective April 1 ,  1 992. 
General Authority :  NDCC 54-52-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52-03 

71 -01 -02-1 2. Penalties. A violation of any provision u nder th is chapter may 
resu l t  in one or more of the fol lowing pena lties, as determined by the board :  

1 .  A cand idate 's petitions may be declared void. 

2. A candidate's nomination may be declared void . 

3.  A cand idate's e lection may be decla red void. 



• 4.  Within th i rty days of beg inn ing an elected member's term i n  office ,  the 
elected member may be removed . 

History : Effective J u ly 1 ,  2000.  
General  Authority :  NDCC 54-52-04 
Law Implemented: NDCC 54-52-03 

71 -01 -02-1 3.  E lection voting.  ln l ieu of sections 7 1 -0 1 -02-07 and 
7 1 -0 1 -02-08,  the retirement board may al low for a process by which electron ic 
bal lots are submitted to elect an active or reti ree cand idate to the board .  

History: Effective Apri l 1 ,  20 1 4 . 
General Authority :  NDCC 54-52-04 
Law Implemented :  NDCC 54-52-03 
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January 8, 2018 

Cheryl Stockert, M anager, Administrative Services 

North Dakota Publ ic Employees Retirement System 

400 E. Broadway, Su ite 505 

Bismarck, ND 58501 

(701 )  328-3900 

Dear Ms. Stockert, 

Greetings on behalf of Agency MABU (Marketing & Advertising Business Un l imited, Inc.) .  

Thank you for provid ing the opportunity to submit a proposal to redesign and redeploy your 

organization's website and socia l  media connections. 

We have reviewed your Request for Proposals (RFP)  and have prepared a recommended solution 

which exceeds all requ irements. After reviewing the proposal which fol lows, please l et me know if 

you have any questions or if you need additional information. Thank you. 

Sincere ly, 

M ichael J. (M ike) Mab in  

President/Owner 
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Confidential & Proprietary Information 

© Marketing & Advertising Business Unlimited, I nc. January 8, 2015 

The proposal which follows is not to be reproduced or distributed, in ful l  or partial form, 

without written permission from Agency MABU. 

1 .0  Technical  U n derstand in g, Timel ines  and Report 

The proposal which fol lows is subm itted by Marketing & Advertising Business Un l imited, Inc. in 

response to a Request for Proposa ls ( R FP) issued by the North Dakota Publ ic Emp loyees Retirement 

System ( N D PE RS) to secure a contractor to develop a new website and social m edia connection. 

1 . 1  Provide your understanding of the required work effort 

Del iverab les  

Agency MABU proposes to  work with N D PERS to  design, program and  launch a high-qual ity, 

interactive website with social media connection. The custom ized website wi l l  be developed based 

on the cl ient's specifications and will feature the capacity to grow the new website to an indefinite 

number of web pages in the future. Below is a summary of the requ irements for this project, based 

on our understanding of the RFP.  

Project management - Throughout the project, Agency MABU wil l  assign a project manager to 

manage the project. This includes defining the scope of work, setting a rel iab le timel ine and defining 

key m ilestones throughout the project. The project manager will assign tasks among the web team, 

manage the a l lotted time and budget for the project and be responsible for the majority of client 

communication and progress reports via e-mai l ,  phone and in-person meetings. 

Content Analysis - Agency MABU will be responsible for reviewing and cataloging all of the current 

site content for N D  PERS includ ing forms, documents, video and secure content. Based on this review 

content gaps and potential content development will be rea l ized and documented. Older content 

that is no longer required will be archived as  necessary. 

Site Organ ization - MABU wil l  p lan and provide recommendations for site navigation and content 

structure. Emphasis will be placed on integrating content into an easi ly navigab le structure, as well 

as  assuring that users can return to the home page, as  well as easi ly access content offerings from 

any location on the new site. A sitemap wi l l  be constructed to demonstrate the site layout, including 

both secure and non-secure content. 

Brand ing - Launching a website provides a prime opportunity to refresh the logo and branding for 

N D  PERS. This wil l  offer the organization a clean, modern look to identify them by and wil l  form the 

basis of the website design. MABU wil l  refresh the brand concept includ ing logo, tagl ine and 

print/web style guide . 

MABU 



Professional  Design - MABU wil l  professional ly design three (3) graphic templates that can be 

carried throughout the entire site [one (1) home page template, one (1) level 1 subpage template and 

one ( 1 )  l evel 2 subpage template) .  The design templates wil l  combine colors, images, typestyles, and 

other graphic e lements into an aesthetica l ly p leasing modern design as a means of appeal ing to a 

wide variety of audiences. The modern look and feel wil l  ensure mem bers find the information they 

seek, a l lowing them to easily conduct business with ND PERS. 

Social Media - MABU wil l  work with ND PERS to leverage the use of social media to broaden its reach 

to members. Harnessing these outlets will a l low N D  PERS to l ink back to the main website, its 

pub lications and other media .  MABU will assist N D  PERS in developing a social media implementation 

plan.  However, considering N D PERS very specific core audience, MABU would also recommend 

consideration of an email/e-newsletter component to its communications plan. 

Content - MABU wil l  transfer content provided by cl ient and/or content from current website to new 

site. As part of the content m igration and handl ing process, MABU expects to address the fol lowing: 

Document content governance structure and process (i.e., who is responsible for content 

management and updates, review and approval process and publishing parameters) 

Draft/re-purpose content to populate site pages 

Establ ish editoria l calendar for content updates and pub lication to social channels 

Create contextual  FAQs 

Archive outdated content avai lable through current ND PERS site 

Domain Name - MABU will work with cl ient to keep current domain name. 

Development Site - MABU wil l  set up  a development s ite.  The c l ient wi l l  be able to review this site 

d uring the development process and pass a long any necessary changes to MABU. 

Responsive I ntegration - The website wi l l  be designed and integrated with responsive functional ity 

in m ind.  A mobi le-first approach wi l l  be used to ensure seamless use, regardless of the user's device 

type and operating system . This will also help to meet the higher demand for e lectronic content, 

lowering the need for trad itional print media over t ime. 

Content Management System - The CMS wil l  be easy to use and can be configured to automate 

tasks such as  the review/approval process, content publ ication dates and archiving. 

MABU will bui ld the site using the chosen, open source content management system to manage and 

update images, l i nks and copy on al l static pages, incl uding: 

Format Text - bold, underl ine, ital icize, justify, change fonts, color, etc. 

Format HTM L - create hyperlinks, create tab les, insert horizontal l ines, special characters, 

insert images, and paste from word as p la in text, bu l let/number l ist, and indent. 

Create N ew Web Pages - Expand the existing website to include new pages under the 

existing navigation categories. 

-
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User Personas - The site wi l l  be constructed so that upon entry, users wi l l  be clearly d irected to 

relevant content, based on the selections they make. This information could include whether they 

a re active members, retired members etc. Site content will be custom ized to reflect the information 

needs of the visitor. 

Popu lating Content - All new and existing site content wil l  be populated into the new site, ensuring 

a finished product that reflects the ana lysis performed earl ier. 

Traffic Ana lysis Tool - Agency MABU wil l  set up Google Analytics, a traffic analysis and reporting tool 

used to track actual visits to the new website. Automated ana lytics reporting wi l l  be setup to send 

desired report information to N DPERS. 

Internal Testing - MABU goes through multiple testing processes before launching a site: 

Browser tests: Firefox; I nternet Explorer 8, 91 10; Chrome, iOS, Safari, Android. 

Fu l l-site standards  check: Make sure a l l  l inks a re functioning, and test that special 

programming and/or features are working as they should. 

User testing - Fol lowing internal testing, MABU wil l  submit the completed copy of the site to 

ND PERS for user and acceptance testing. 

Revisions - Fol lowing the review of the site by ND PERS, changes/additions may be required before 

completion of the project. MABU wil l  p lan to make these requested changes. 

Launch - When the site is ready to launch, Agency MABU wil l  coordinate the transfer of the new site 

to the chosen domain. 

Ownersh ip - The cl ient wi l l  reta in ownership of control over the completed website. This includes, 

but is not l imited to, reta ining a l l  of its intel lectual property rights in any text, images or other 

components it owns and transm its to MABU .  All data added to the CMS by MABU or the cl ient, or 

data collected through the website is property of the cl ient. 

CMS Train ing - One training session wil l  be provided to the cl ient on how to administer/use the 

chosen content management system. The client wil l also be provided "no cost" access to Agency 

MABU 's staff via telephone and e-mai l  for basic troubleshooting and assistance. Training wil l  include 

items such as:  

How to add/delete a page, edit content on a page 

Updating navigation elements 

Uploading video/graphics 

Content review/approval process 

Trouble shooting technical issues 

Ana lytics review 
' 
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Web Su pport - MABU wi l l  work with N D  PERS to identify and estab l ish the process for ongoing 

technical support. This can include but is not l imited to regular site updates, fixes and alterations to 

content and ana lytics reporting as requ ired . 

If the client requests work or changes which are not within the defined scope of work as set forth in this 

proposal, MABU will issue a written change order outlining the changes/additions and the additional 

costs incurred. Client must approve additional costs before changes or additions will be made. 

1 .2 Discuss your understanding of the project timelines 

Based on a combination of the development steps l isted by ND PERS in the RFP, and the processes 

used by Agency MABU on website projects, the fol lowing i l lustrates our understanding of the 

timeline del iverables: 

Project initiation and planning - During this phase, Agency MABU wi l l  meet with the cl ient in a 

kickoff meeting to ful ly define the project scope and requested del iverab les. Team members wil l  be 

assigned with responsibi l ities outl ined. Communication standard wil l  be set with regu lar meetings to 

touch base. Key m ilestones wi l l  be outl ined in addition to review points and expectations. 

Develop site user experience - Agency MABU wil l  undergo content review and site map completion 

during this phase. Design will commence with emphasis on branding and overa l l  site design. 

Implement social channels - Agency MABU wil l  work with ND PERS to deve lop a social media p lan 

that makes sense in reaching their  core audience and implement those channels with a messaging 

and management p lan in place. 

Content development and m igration - Content development will be underway based on initial 

findings from the content review. A plan wil l  be developed to migrate the existing site's content. 

Site bu ild - Agency MABU will implement the site during this phase, working from the approved 

brand and site designs. Content wil l  be p laced on the site during the site bui ld process. 

User testing and acceptance - U pon com pletion of the site, ND PERS will be asked to conduct a 

thorough review, documenting feedback and any necessary changes. Agency MABU wi l l  then work 

to complete the requested changes to del iver the finished product. 

Site admin istrative tra ining - Agency MABU wil l  provide site and CMS tra ining at the end of the 

project, preparing N DPERS for routine monitoring and updating of site content. 

Site launch - The final site wil l  be made l ive during this phase. 

MABU 
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• Ongoing support and maintenance - Agency MABU offers a web support pol icy that wi l l  be made 

avai lable after project completion to handle any necessary content or s ite changes. 

1 .3 Provide a copy of similar work effort your firm has recently completed 

In addition to the projects noted in section 2 .9 :  Previous Experience below, Agency MABU recently 

launched the North Dakota Stud ies curricu lum website in partnership with the North Dakota State 

H istorical Society, br inging interactive North Dakota history into the state's classrooms. The new 

site, bui lt  using Dru pal, is ful ly responsive, which means it automatica l ly resizes to the device on 

which it is being viewed (desktop, tablet and mobi le) .  

The site features over 300 pages of historical content and images includ ing interactive maps, 
animated graphics and visual effects that bring the information to l ife. Teachers and students across 
the state will now be using this site to learn about and experience the rich history of North Dakota. 

MABU 



The project was so wel l -received that Agency MABU worked with Great Plains Energy Corridor to 
create a second North Dakota Studies curricu lum site with content about North Dakota's various 
energy industries. 

1 .4 Methodology to meet or exceed State Enterprise Architecture Standards 

Agency MABU is among a select group of firms in this region to have successfu l ly  completed a 

rigorous app l ication process to become an  approved web design and development firm with the 

North Dakota I nformation Technology Department ( N D ITD). Having been an approved contractor 

on the State's IT Vendor Pool since 2008, Agency MABU has gained much knowledge, experience 

and expertise in bu i ld ing dozens of government agency websites based on the State's Enterprise 

Architecture Standards. 

As further evidence of our advanced web development capabil ities relative to State agencies, we 

were hired by N D ITD in 2013 through a competitive bid process to serve as their "go-to" web 

development firm for hand l ing overflow and special projects relating to Dru pal-based websites. 

More recently, we were hired in  2014 to rebui ld N D ITD's main website, as  well as other N D ITD-related 

websites (e.g., Broadband, G I S, N D  Maps, etc.). As a result of our special ized web deve lopment 

ski l ls ,  we have a lso been hired by leading federal agencies and corporations al l  across the nation. 

In keeping with the State's Enterprise Architecture Standards, Agency MABU provides cl ients with a 

choice of several user-friendly content management systems - a u n ique point of difference from 

other website development firms. Content management systems enable cl ients to update and 

expand their websites without having to rely on outside vendors, special ized software or advanced 
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computer knowledge. Agency MABU uti l izes three (3) d ifferent content management systems 

(Drupal,  Word Press, and Tao), and the use of each depends on the cl ient's requirements. 

Drupa l CMS - Drupal is an  open-source (non-proprietary) CMS that is  extremely robust and 

constantly being upgraded and expanded by a worldwide comm unity of web developers. 

The ever-evolving nature of the system makes Dru pal attractive to large corporations and 

government agencies, especia l ly those' with in-house IT support ab le  to continua l ly manage 

their website(s) to keep them current with the latest software releases and modules. 

Organizations without internal web or IT support wi l l  need to rely on an  outside vendor to 

manage and mainta in their Drupal site(s). 

Word Press CMS - M uch l ike Dru pal, Word Press is an open-source CMS that is constantly 

being improved by a worldwide community of web programmers. I ndividuals and 

organ izations us ing Word Press don't need to be web programmers in  order to develop and 

manage a Word Press site; however, there a re regular updates that need to be implemented 

to any Word Press p lug-ins or modu les. 

taoCMS - taoCMS is a proprietary software product used by MABU to create websites with a 

robust, yet very easy-to-use content editor. The editor a l lows cl ients to quickly update text, 

l inks and images on a l l  pages and expand their websites without having to rely on an outside 

vendor, specia l ized software or advanced computer knowledge. Out of the three CMS offers 

by MABU, taoCMS is typica l ly  the easiest CMS for users wil l  l ittle web experience to maintain. 

Note: Selecting the ideal CMS will require further discussion with NDPERS. 

2.0 Qual ifications a n d  Staffing 

Agency MABU special izes in  providing consu ltation, development and implementation of internet­

based marketing services includ ing website design and maintenance, search engine optim ization, E­

mai l  marketing, web-based tra ining and social media management. Our  team wil l  work with N D  PERS 

to create a new website with a modern design, organ ized content and additional features to improve 

the overal l  visitor experience. 

2.1 Firm's name, office address, etc. 

Name: 

Home Office: 

Satell ite Office: 

Phone Number:  

Website: 

Point of Contact: 

Marketing & Advertising Business Un l imited, I nc. (MABU) 

1003 Gateway Avenue, Bismarck, ND 58503 

905 Barton Street, Fredericksburg, VA 22401 

(701) 250-0728 (1-800) 568-9346 

www.agencymabu.com 

M ike Mabin,  President, mmabin@agencymabu.com 

ID 



2.2 Organization's approach to conducting projects, including project timeline 

Our team takes great pride in being strategic advisors, problem solvers, idea generators and hard 

workers. To assure our cl ients receive high qua l ity service and expected outcomes, we employ a 

structured process for p lanning and implementing each project. This process involves: 

Clearly defin ing the scope of work to be performed 

Developing deta i led action plans with tasks, timel ines and assignments 

Conducting timely communication, progress updates and financial reporting 

Securing input and approval from the c l ient on key elements of the p lan (del iverables, 

m i lestones, pol icies, budget parameters, etc.) 

More specifica l ly, we use detai led action plans that enable all team mem bers to be highly productive. 

Each project is well-defined and fu l ly-documented, whereby team members can clearly see their role, 

impending deadl ines and completed tasks. In this way, the entire team is engaged in assuring the 

successful completion of each project, while anticipating and responding to any d ifficu lties or 

unforeseen issues that may a rise. 

Agency MABU uti l izes various inspection and surveil lance methods to monitor performance on 

projects and tasks. Every mem ber of MABU's team is personal ly responsible for qua l ity assurance as 

it relates to their  work performance. The Project Director and Account/Project Managers are 

responsib le for monitoring processes and outcomes using the fo l lowing methodology: 

Direct Observation: The Project Director and Account/Project Managers observe the work 

performance of Team MABU associates and provide positive and constructive feedback relative to 

productivity, cl ient comm unication and technical ski l ls .  

Management Information Systems (M IS): MABU monitors and evaluates operational performance 

through various management information reports. Productivity is monitored through weekly and 

end-of-month reports on time and attendance, time tracking by project, and payroll reports. 

Periodic Inspection: Periodic inspections are conducted by MABU's Project Director and 

Account/Project Managers on the qual ity of produced materia ls, as wel l  as indiv idual  employee work 

performance. 

100% Inspection: All comm unications materia ls produced by MABU undergo inspection 100% of the 

time for typographical errors, fi le formatting errors, and cost estimate errors. Such inspections are 

conducted by the Account and Project Managers who are assigned as the lead consu ltants on each 

project. 
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• MABU is headquartered in Bismarck, North Dakota, and has a satell ite office in Fredericksburg, 

Virginia to serve federal agencies and other cl ients located in the Washington, DC area. We primarily 

work with government agencies in producing websites, videos and print materia l s  as  evidenced by 

the following m ix of c l ients and service offerings. 

Cl ient M ix:  State/federal agencies (75%), Non-profits ( 15%) and Native American tribes ( 10%) 

Service M ix:  Mu ltimedia production and websites (70%), Marketing and advertising campaigns (20%) 

and management and event-related services ( 10%) 

The company was estab l ished in 2001 by M ike Mabin as a for-profit corporation with one employee. 

As the firm 's client base expanded, Mab in hired a team of associates that now includes fourteen (14) 

employees in North Dakota and six (6) employees in Virginia. The team includes writers, graphic 

designers, videographers, web programmers, meeting planners and social media managers. 

2.4 Professional experience and qualifications 

Agency MABU wil l  a ssign a team of five (5) seasoned web development professionals to work on this 

project. The team has successful ly completed hundreds of s imi lar projects on behalf of government 

agencies, non-profit organizations and corporate cl ients. 

Beth Schatz Kaylor, Cl ient Services Director 

Agency MABU wil l  a ssign Beth Schatz Kaylor to serve as the account 
manager on this project. I n  this capacity, she wi l l  work with N D  PERS to 
assess the project needs, provide regu lar progress reports and respond 
quickly to client ca l l s  and emai ls. 

A graduate of the University of North Dakota, Kaylor holds a Bachelor's 
Degree in I nternational Studies with an emphasis in Business. Kaylor is 
a Lean Six Sigma black belt with over 10 years of management 
experience. Her broad-based education and experience includes 
working with notable cl ients such as  the U.S. Smal l  Business 
Admin istration, the North Dakota Department of Commerce, the 
Theodore Roosevelt Foundation, the Bank of North Dakota, and the 
N ational Congress of American I ndians. 
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Ed Sargeant, M ultimedia Services Director 

Agency MABU wil l  assign Ed Sargeant to serve as the project manager. 
In this role, Sargeant wi l l  coordinate efforts with the MABU web 
development team.  He will manage production deta i ls  includ ing task 
assignments, t imel ine development, qual ity assurance and creative 
service coord ination. 

Sargeant earned a Master's degree in Drawing from Camberwell College 
of Art, and a Bachelor's degree in Computer Visual ization and Animation 
from Bournemouth University, England. Sargeant brings over 10 years of 
experience in web development, e-learning tools, m ultimedia 
production, visual effects and 3D/2D design and animation. Prior to 
joining MABU, he gained experience working as  a Technical Director in 
visual effects for severa l movies, most notably Batman Begins, Harry 
Potter and the Gob let of Fire. 

N ick Kramer, Web Development Director 

N ick Kramer, web development director, will be responsible for website 
programming, CMS integration and onl ine market research. 

Kramer is a graduate of Bismarck State College in North Dakota with an 
App l ied Associate's Degree in Web Design and Development. 

He is a Certified I nternet Web Professional with Certification Partners, a 
vendor-neutral leader in web education and certification programs. 

Derek M il ner, Web Developer/Graphic Designer 

Derek Mi lner, website developer, is responsible for designing, 
program m ing, integrating, and optim izing websites as part of the 
MABU web team. 

M i lner is a graduate of the University of North Dakota in Grand Forks, 
N D, holding a Bachelor's Degree in Graphic Design and New Media.  
Prior experience includes freelance and agency work on projects such 
as websites, logos and animation. M i lner has designed websites for 
several State agencies including the departments of commerce, health, 
agriculture and treasury. 
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• N ick N ess, Web Deve loper/Programmer 

N ick Ness provides a variety of professional mu ltimedia and web 
development services inc luding programming, CMS integration and 508 
compl iance testing. He is a graduate of Fu l l  Sai l  Un iversity in Winter 
Park, Florida with Bache lor's degree in Game Development. Ness has 
over 5 years of experience in developing and testing websites. Prior to 
Agency MABU, Ness was a technica l analyst at Affinity Global  Solutions in 
Bismarck. Ness is proficient in deve loping websites us ing Dru pal ,  
Word Press and taoCMS. 

References for the web team are included in section 2.11  and include numerous federal and state 

agencies, non-profit organizations and corporate clients. 

2.5 Computer equipment 

We util ize the latest technology, as  well as the most advanced computer hardware and software, to 

deliver the highest qua l ity website products and services. Our account and project managers use PC 

desktop computers with the latest version of M icrosoft Office. Our creative and web development 

staff use Mac computers with the most current version of Adobe Creative Cloud and Adobe 

Production Su ite software. Al l  of our computers are l inked to a secured server that provides a 

centra l ized storage location, as well as offsite dai ly back-up of fi les. These computers are protected 

by an enterprise version of Kaspersky I nternet Security and Anti-virus software. All of our computers 

and periphera l devices are owned by MABU and housed at our offices in North Dakota and Virginia.  

2.6 Staff availabil ity 

Agency MABU has both the capacity and capab il ity to successfu l ly complete the del iverables of this 

project within the cl ient's indicated timelines. Our existing team is in a good position to add this 

project to their current workload. MABU util izes a sophisticated, onl ine project management system 

to organize teams and tasks. This tool provides a l l  members of our team with a secured onl ine 

environment in which to assign tasks, set deadl ines, share fi les and track time. 

2.7 Unique qual ifications 

Over the past decade, Agency MABU has emerged as a leading web development company in this 

region and beyond. Having developed and launched over 300 websites on behalf of cl ients all across 

the nation, MABU has bu ilt a web team of unmatched capabi l ities. 

We offer cl ients a choice of three content management systems (CMS) to meet their unique 

needs (e.g., Word Press, Dru pal and TaoCMS). 

We bui ld websites on mobi le-optim ized platforms that automatica l ly respond and display 

properly on m ultiple devices (e.g., smart phones, tablets, desktops, etc.). 

We provide options for hosting websites on various servers, including the cl ient's. 



Our core skil l set includes programming and designing websites using PH P, HTM L5, JavaScript, CSS3 

and Flash. We are proficient in areas including brand development, web accessibi l ity, browser 

compatibi l ity, e-commerce, and Section 508 compl iance. Our capabi l ities also include search engine 

marketing and web ana lytics services such as d irectory submissions, keyword optim ization, 

architecture review, pay-per-cl ick campaigns and inbound/outbound l inking strategies. MABU 

employs certified search engine marketers (SEM) and certified socia l  media managers (SM M )  who 

offer our clients a wide range of internet marketing and public re lations services. 

2.8 Offices from which work will be provided 

This project wi l l  be performed primarily by employees working from Agency MABU's office in 

Bismarck, N D. However, if special ized support is needed, we also have staff avai lable from our 

Virginia office who can assist with social media connectivity and web programming. Both offices are 

universa l ly-accessib le and equipped with software solutions including Skype and ReadyTa lk 

(audio/web conferencing) to support both onsite and onl ine meetings. 

2.9 Previous experience 

The following projects are offered as evidence of our previous experience in developing websites of 

a s imi lar nature and scope to this project. 

N orth Dakota Farm Bureau 

www.ndfb .org: North Dakota Farm Bureau was 

looking for a way to promote their frequent 

news updates as a centerpiece of their mobi le 

web presence while enhancing their brand with a 

modern, clean design. The new site, bu ilt using 

taoCMS, is ful ly responsive, which means it 

automatica l ly resizes to the device on which it is 

being viewed (desktop, tablet and mobi le). 

BTlnet { Basin Telecommunications, Inc.) 

www.btinet.com : MABU worked with BTl net to 

redesign, program and launch a new website 

which is ful ly responsive, meaning it 

automatica l ly resizes to the device on which it is 

being viewed (desktop, tab let and mobi le). The 

website also features origina l  graphics, videos 

and pricing configurators for site vis itors to use. 

The site was bui lt on the taoCMS and has seen 

an average of 40 percent more daily page views 

and 20 percent more average dai ly visitors since 

the site was launched in April 2013 .  
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Bismarck Parks and Recreation Department 

www.b is�arks.org: MABU redesigned and 

programmed Bismarck Parks and Recreation 

Department's previous  website, which was 

outdated and d ifficult to update. MABU created a 

fun new design in Word Press to better reflect the 

organization, programmed an updatable 

homepage sl ider area for the latest 

announcements, reorganized the content and 

navigation to be accessib le, and made the site 

more attractive and usable for both users and the 

client. 

N orth Dakota Game and Fish Department 

www.gf.nd.gov: MABU completely overhauled 

the North Dakota Game and Fish Department's 

website, which included m igrating and 

condensing over 1 , 0 0 0  pages of content while 

giving the website a fresh, new, updated look. 

MABU transitioned the site to the Drupal 

content management system to stream line the 

cl ient's website update process. 

N ational  Congress of American Indians 

www.triba lhealt
.
hcare.org: MABU worked with 

the National Congress of American Indians 

(NCAI)  and the National I ndian Health Board 

( N I HB) to help deve lop and deploy a consumer­

oriented, interactive website to provide 

stakeholders with access to tribal-specific health 

care information. The site was bui lt using 

Word Press, enabl ing the cl ient to easily update 

and add web pages as needed, and features a 

private d iscussion area for members. 
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2.10 Work experience with public sector clients 

In 2008,  Agency MABU became an approved contractor on the State's IT vendor pool for web 

designers. Since that time, the company has provided website development support to numerous 

State agencies includ ing the Health Department, Commerce Department, Bank of North Dakota, 

Human Services Department, Game & Fish Department, State Treasurer's Office, State Historical 

Society, Department of Agriculture, I nformation Technology Department and Job Service North 

Dakota to name a few. A smal l  sampling of state websites developed by MABU: 

Job Service ND:  jobsnd.com 

N D  Information Technology: Broadband.nd.gov 

N D  State H istorical Society: n dstu dies.gov/gr8 

N D  Department of Commerce: l n novateN D.com 

N D  Department of Commerce: Operationlntern.com 

N D  Game and Fish Department: gf.nd.gov 

N D  Health Department: ndhea lth .gov/knowyou rrisk 

N D  Health Department: ndhealth.gov/N Dquits 

N D  Hea lth Department: n dhealth.gov/breastfeeding 

N D  Hea lth Department: diabetesnd.org 

In addition, MABU works with cl ients in the public sector on social media p lanning, practices, 

engagement and advertising. Some cl ients in this rea lm include: 

Elevation Advertising (for Virginia-based economic development organization) 

Great Plains Energy Corridor 

ND Department of Commerce 

U.S. Army Civi l ian Corps (medical recruitment) 

2.11 Listing of clients and references 

Agency MABU provides the fo l lowing references of three (3) state agencies with whom 
we 've worked in the p a s t  year  to dep loy website projects s im il a r  to N D P E R S .  

Client Reference # 1  
a. Client name: North Dakota Department of Commerce 

Client address: 1600  E. Century Ave., Suite 2, Bismarck, N D  58503 

Client phone: (701) 328-5300 

b. Descript ion of service provided: MABU currently serves as  the principal marketing and 
advertising agency for the North Dakota Department of Commerce . This contract has been 
awarded to Agency MABU and renewed on a competitive bid basis for 10 consecutive years. 
Our work with the Commerce Department involves the provision of a ful l  array of marketing 
services including website development ( N DYouthForward .com, Operation I ntern.com, 
StrongFutureN D.com, LuvN D.com), brand management, internet marketing and content 
creation for all media.  



c. Maximum number of staff on-site with the client: 10 

d. Time period: June 2013 - May 2015  

e. Reference contact information: 

• Name: Sandra McMerty 

• Phone #: (70 1 )  328-5371 

• Fax #: (701 ) 328-5320 

• Email Address: smcmerty@nd.gov 

Client Reference #2 

a .  Client name: North Dakota Game and  Fish Department 

Client address: 1 0 0  N .  Bismarck Expressway, Bismarck, N D  5 8501-5095 

Client phone: (70 1 )  328-6300 

b.  Description of  service provided: MABU completely overhauled the North Dakota Game and 

F ish Department's website (www.gf. nd.gov), which included m igrating and condensing over 

1 ,000 pages of content while giving the website a fresh, new, updated look. MABU 

transitioned the site to the Dru pal content management system to streaml ine the cl ient's 

website update process. 

c. Maximum number of staff on-site with the client: 4 

d. Time period: Jan .  201 1  - May 2012 

e .  Reference contact information: 

• Name: Craig Bihrle 

• Phone #: (701 ) 3 28-6317 

• Fax #: (701)  328-6352 

• Email Address: cbihrle@nd.gov 

Client Reference #3 

a .  Client name: North Dakota I nformation Technology Department, Broadband Website 

Client address: Bismarck, North Dakota 58505 

Client phone: (70 1 )  328-2666 

b. Description of service provided: MABU is currently redesigning, developing and launching the 

Broadband website. This project included working with the State to develop a design 

template that can be used on mu ltiple sites. 

c. Maximum number of staff on-site with the client: 5 

d. Time period: May 2014 - Current 

e. Reference contact information: 

• Name:  Della Thorsness, Enterprise Division Manager 

• Phone #: (701)  205-7802 

• Fax #: (70 1 )  328-4309 

• Email Address: dthorsness@nd.gov 



2.1 2  Personnel resumes 

Resumes for each member of the web team a re included in the pages which fo l low. 

Beth Schatz Kaylor 

Current Position: 
Director of Client Serv ices 
Marketing & Advertising Business Unl imited, I nc, ( dba Agency MABU) 

Current Job Responsibilities 

April 2010 - Present 

Responsible for strategic consu ltation, project management and client satisfaction.  

Education & Professional Certifications 
• University of North Dakota - Bachelor of Arts, I nternational Studies with Spanish emphasis, 

graduated with summa cum laude honors 
• Member of Phi Beta Kappa Academic Honor Society 
• I nternship at US  State Department, Washington DC - 2002 
• Studied at U niversidad de Cantabria, Santander, Spain - 2001 
• I nternship at Walt Disney World, Orlando, FL - 2000 

Employment History 

Bismarck Tribune and M idwest Living Magazine 
Freelance Writer and Photographer, Bismarck, N D  

• Researching and writing articles on various topics 
• Producing and editing origina l  photography for publ ication 

2009 - Present 

Bobcat Com pany 2004 - 2010 
Aftermarket and Export Parts Manager, Bismarck, N D  

• Managed $7 m il l ion in parts accounts for Bobcat equipment dealers in Latin America and the 
Caribbean 

• Managed special projects related to the Aftermarket departments with overall objective to 
red uce costs and increase profitab i l ity 

• Led the expansion of Aftermarket dealer training program 

Community Involvement 
• Junior Achievement - volunteer 
• Friends of the Bismarck Publ ic Lib rary - board member 
• I nternational Association of Business Communicators ( IABC) - mem ber 

Other Relevant Information 
• Lean Six Sigma black belt, leading Kaizen events to reduce waste and improve process 

effectiveness resulting in more than $soo,ooo in savings 
• University of San Francisco, Certificate in Internet Ana lytics & Analysis, 2013 



• Edward Sargeant 
Current Position: 
Director of M ultimedia Services Ju ly  2014 - Present 
Marketing & Advertising Business Un l imited, Inc. ( dba Agency MABU) 

Current Job Responsibilities 
• Responsible for maintaining and promoting the growth of the media services department 
• Responsible for project management of web team projects including proposal writing, 

schedu l ing and cl ient communication 
• Responsible for production/ development of both m ultimedia and web-based projects 

Education & Professional Certifications 
• Master of Arts in Drawing, August 2006. Camberwell College of Arts, London, England 
• Bachelor of Arts (Honors) in Computer Visual ization and Animation, June 2004. First Class 

Honors. The National Centre for Computer Animation, Bournemouth University, Dorset, 
England 

• BTEC Dip loma in Art and Design Foundation Studies, June 2000. Distinction. Central St. 
Martins Col lege of Art and Design, London, England 

• Advanced Level Dip lomas in Art, Computing and Electronics, July 1 999. The Henley College, 
Oxfordshire, England 

Employment History 
Multimedia Program Coord inator/Media Special ist 2010-Present 
Rasmussen Col lege, Bismarck, North Dakota 

• Responsible for setup and day-to-day running of local Associates/Bachelor's Design program 
• Performed residential and onl ine instruction in a range of design and animation areas 
• Offered weekly tutoring support 
• Taught a variety of community workshops 
• Hosted local design c lub 
• Creation of residential and onl ine curriculum 
• Hosted Academic Advisory Board twice a year 

30/2D Consultant 2008-Present 
Freelance, Bismarck, North Dakota 

• Provided a range of custom 2D/3D m ultimedia solutions for local businesses including KAT 
Communications, U nited Tribes Technical Col lege, Agency MABU and Dakota Media Access 

• Provided curricu lum consultation and instruction for Un ited Tribes Technical Col lege 

Forensic Animator 
Kineticorp, Denver, Colorado 

• Processed and cleaned survey data for use in scene reconstruction 
• Modeled, textured, animated and rendered scene assets from survey data and scene 

photographs 

2008 

Technical Director/ Matchmove Artist 
Double Negative, London, England 

2004-2005 
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• Visual effects team member for Batman Begins, Harry Potter and the Goblet of Fire, Flyboys 
and Doom 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Created h igh and low resolution 3D  models, textures and H ORI/  l ighting maps 
Live footage matchmoving and scene setup for CG integration 
Lighting, rendering, technical and pre-visual ization animation of CG assets 
Cloth model ing, setup, simu lation and workflow 
Created in-house instructional guides for production procedures and workflow 

3D Modeler Intern 
Framestore CFC, London, England 

• Visual effects team member for Thunderbirds 
• Modeled and UV'd high resolution 3D  assets for use in the feature 

Community Involvement 
• Dakota D igital Fi lm Festival - Presenter and volunteer, 2013, 2015 
• Dakota Media Access - Custom DDFF animation, 2012 
• Thrive Softba l l  - Logo and brand design, 2010 
• United Way - volunteer, 2010-2014 
• Drawing from Turner Exhibition, artist. Tate Brita in Onl ine: 2006 

2003 



N ick Kramer 

Current Position: 
Web Development Director 
Marketing & Advertising Business Unl im ited, I nc. (dba Agency MABU) 

Current Job Responsibilities 

April 2008 - Present 

• Responsib le  for promoting the growth of a strong team-oriented web development department. 
• Responsib le for developing websites and web appl ications, planning user interfaces and 

features, and overseeing interactive product QA. 
• Responsible for creating and maintaining agency coding standards, procuring new development 

tools and techniques, overseeing agency development practices, approving new web 
technologies for use in production. 

Education & Professional Certifications 
• Bismarck State Col lege, Associate in Applied Science Web Page Development and Design 2009 
• Bismarck State Col lege, Associate in Science 2009 
• Bismarck State Col lege, Associate in Arts 2009 
• CIW Professional 
• CIW E-Commerce Specia l ist 
• CIW Web Foundations Associate 
• CIW Internet Business Associate 
• CIW Network Technology Associate 

Employment History 
Loss Prevention Officer 
Scheels, B ismarck 

April 2007 - Ju ly 2008 

• Responsible for observing and apprehending shopl ifters and trespassers, working with local 
police, writing and fi l ing pol ice reports, handling evidence, working with management to 
coord inate store security, and testifying in court. 

• Responsib le for emergency coordination during natural d isasters (such as tornadoes). 
• Responsible for observing Scheels employees to identify internal theft, and working with 

management to handle sensitive issues relating to employees. 
• Worked with Bismarck Police Department and Kirkwood Mal l  Security on a regu lar basis to share 

information and coordinate apprehensions of trespassers and shoplifters. 

Community I nvolvement 
• Bismarck State College Web Development Advisory Board Member, 2013 - Present 
• Volunteer DJ and Financia l Advisory Board Member, C lub Radio 100.7FM, 2005-2008 

FBLA-PBL Bismarck State College Chapter, 2008 - 2009 

Other Relevant Information 

Eagle Scout in Boy Scouts of America 
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Derek Milner 

Current Position: 
Graphic Designer & Web Developer July 2011  - Present 
Marketing & Advertising Business Un l imited, I nc. (dba Agency MABU)  

Current Job Responsibil ities 
Responsible for graphic design, user interface design, onl ine market research, integration, and 
website development. 

Education & Professional Certifications 
• University of North Dakota - Bachelor of Fine Arts in Graphic Design and New Art Media 
• Mem ber of Sigma N u  fraternity - Participated in a multitude of vol unteer opportunities and 

ra ised funds for local non-profits 

Employment History 
Ad Armor 
Self-Employed 

2008 - 2013 

• I ndependently took on various projects including websites, branding, logos, print projects, 
and animation 

• Managed projects, produced final pieces, b i l led cl ients 

Ad Monkeys, I nc. 2008 
Internship - Graphic Designer 

• Worked on various projects independently and through collaboration with the rest of the 
team.  

• Projects inc luded branding, logos, print projects & campaigns, websites, animation, and 
aud io/video work 

Sign & Design 2006 - 2008 
Graphic Designer, Printer 

• Worked on graphic design, layout, and print services 
• Did projects for individual clients as well as Un iversity of North Dakota departments and 

student organizations 

Community Involvement 
• Habitat for H umanity - volunteer 
• H umane Society - volunteer 
• Relay for Life 
• Raised funds for Comm unity Violence I ntervention Center - Grand Forks, N D  
• Raised funds for the Su icide Prevention Program - Grand Forks, N D  
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N ick Ness 
Current Position 

Senior Web Developer 
Marketing & Advertising Business Unl imited, I nc. (dba Agency MABU)  

Current J o b  Responsibil ities 

March 2014 - Present 

Bu i ld, develop, and test websites and fully i ntegrate them into one of three major content 
management systems, taolcms, Dru pal, or Word Press. 

Education & Professional Certifications 

• Bachelor of Science in Game Development, Ful l  Sai l University, Winter Park, FL - June 2008 
• Sun Certified Java Programmer - March 2010 

Employment H istory 

Affinity Global  Solutions 
Technical Analyst, Bismarck, N D  

Decem ber 2010 - February 2014 

• Mainta in the front and back end of a large user based budgeting system.  
• Develop, implement, test, and deploy various enhancements, bug fixes, and changes for our 

many cl ients. 
• Primari ly programming in Java and Oracle for back end server and JSP, Javascript, CSS, and 

HTM L for front end web interface . 

National Information Solutions Cooperative 
Software Special ist, Mandan, N D  

September 2008 - Ju ly 2010 

• Designed, developed, tested, and maintained the front and back end of user screens for their 
telecommunications software. 

• Worked with and implemented object-oriented design and worked with large-sca le 
enterprise cl ient-server architectures. 

• Primarily programmed in Java, used XM L for user interface layouts, and Oracle for querying 
databases. 

LifeStream Development Group May 2005 - December 2006 
Tester, Debugger, Database Administrator, Bismarck, N D  

• Tested and fixed issues with the new medical program being developed. 
• Responsible for maintenance of the old medical program's  database. 
• Primarily programmed in Visual Basic and used SQL for querying the database. 

Community I nvolvement 

• Knights of Columbus 
• Boy Scouts of America ( Eagle Scout, Order of the Arrow) 



2.13 Subcontractors 

For this particu lar  project, we don't a nticipate using any subcontractors; however, such professionals 

a re an integral part of our team.  If for any reason subcontracted support is deemed to be necessary 

during the course of this project, Agency MABU wi l l  notify N D  PERS to secure c l ient approval. Once 

approved, MABU wil l  implement the fo llowing steps to assure qua l ity control when working with 

outside consultants. These inc lude: 

MABU conducts a thorough screening and assessment process before contracting with 

freelance professionals, much l ike h iring a new employee. 

Every subcontractor signs an agreement with MABU to define their role and responsibi l ity. 

Reporting relationships and decision-making authority is addressed upfront with each 

subcontractor so they clearly understand boundaries and oversight. 

3.0 Other I nform ation 

According to the Q&A portion of the RFP process, Agency MABU understands that the cl ient 

currently prefers a Content Management System (CMS) based on M icrosoft . N ET. We strongly 

encourage N D  PERS to consider the fo l lowing information as part of their final CMS decision. 

At the end of 2014, M icrosoft . NET was partially open sourced for server-side applications, which would 

include a CMS, but it is still not a fully open sourced platform, which does not meet the requirement in 

the RFP for a CMS based on open source code. The terms governing the new open sourced . NET platform 

still gives M icrosoft leverage over implementations if they are not "compliant" with their standards. 

Additionally, using a Windows Server to host . NET is not a "low-cost solution" due to the necessary 

enterprise licensing of the Windows software itself, and in addition, licensing any other software 

components deemed necessary for the project. Maintenance costs for Windows environments are 

generally much higher than for other environments. 

MABU builds on a fully open source platform. Instead of Windows, MABU uses the free and open source 

Linux operating system, on top of which, instead of Microsoft's /IS Server, MABU uses the completely 

free Apache web server, which is the most reliable and popular web server, being utilized on 42% of all 

web servers in the world as of 2014. (http:ljwww.scri{.2trock. com/articles/iis-apache) 

For databases MABU uses the open source MySQL server, and for server-side code MABU uses the open 

source PHP language. In addition, two of the three CMS platforms MABU builds on are also the two most 

popular open source CMS available today: WordPress and Drupal. The third CMS we build on, TaoCMS, is 

not open source (it is proprietary, although it runs on our full open source platform and has been used 

on numerous government websites in North Dakota), but its feature set is comparable to Dru pal and 

Word Press, and it is developed and maintained locally in Bismarck, North Dakota by Tao Interactive, 

with whom MABU has been partnered for over a decade; additionally, it also had the lowest overall 

development and maintenance costs of the three CMS we offer. 
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M a d a m e  Cha i r, mem bers of the com m ittee, good morn ing my n a me is Jon  

Str i nden .  I a m  the cha i r  of  the Pub l i c  E m p loyees Retirement System ( P ERS )  Boa rd . 

I a ppea r  before you th is  morn i ng on beha lf of the P E RS Boa rd and  i n  opposit ion to 

House B i l l  1475 . The Boa rd reviewed th i s  b i l l ,  a long with i nfo rmat ion from staff 

a n d  lega l cou nse l ,  at a meet ing l a st Fr iday a n d  u n a n i mous ly  adopted th is positio n .  

A long with m e  today is Spa rb Co l l i ns, o u r  Executive Di rector, a n d  J a n  M u rtha, o u r  

atto rney. With you r  a pprova l ,  I w i l l  have M r. Co l l i n s  s ha re with you i nfo rmation 

s h a red with the boa rd concern ing th is  b i l l  a n d  Ms .  M u rtha wi l l  a lso be ava i l ab le  

fo r a ny questions .  

F i rst l e t  me  sha re with you  some i nfo rmation o n  the process of  the P E RS Boa rd i n  

m a k ing  the dec is ion to  awa rd the contract to Sa nford . That  dec is ion was  made at  

• the  Febru a ry 19th P E RS Boa rd meet ing .  As you may know, the p l an  has  been fu l ly 

i n s u red with B l ue  Cross B l ue  S h ie ld  s i nce 1989. To ma i nta i n  the p la n a s  fu l ly  

i n s u red the ove ra l l  i ncrease i n  pre m i u ms for 2015-2017 proposed by Sa nford was 

a p p roximately 15% compa red to the B lue Cross B lue Sh ie ld  of North Da kota 

( B CBS} b id which proposed a n  approximate 20%. Both b ids  were to ma inta i n  the 

exist i ng p la n des ign fo r the next two yea rs (ded uct ib les, co-i nsu ra n ce and  

copayments ) .  I n  t he  14 yea rs I have se rved a s  Boa rd Cha i r  t h i s  was  t he  fi rst t ime 

we had  two v iab le  com petitors b idd i ng fo r the hea lth p la n .  

• 

The P E RS Boa rd based its dec is ion o n  the fo l l owing :  

1 .  N orth Da kota state law d i rects the boa rd to se lect a fu l ly-i nsu red p lan  

u n less i t  i s  determined by the board that  a self- insured p lan  i s  l ess  costly 

tha n the lowest bid subm itted by a ca rr ier fo r u nderwrit ing  the p l a n  with 

equ iva l ent contract benefits . 

2 .  Se lf- insu red proposa ls were not as  fi n a nc ia l ly benefic ia l d u e  to the overa l l  

r i sk  at the var ious c l a ims  leve ls i nc l ud i ng  the BCBS C la ims  est imate . 
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3 .  The lowest cost fu l ly i n su red  pro posa l with compara b le  benefits was 

Sa nford's  b id .  

Th i s  decis ion was  the resu lt of  a n  exte ns ive review by the Boa rd, its staff a nd 

co nsu lta nts over a seven month per iod .  Boa rd membe rs spent cons iderab le  t ime 

reviewing re l eva nt info rmat ion,  both at meetings and i n  preparation for m eetings. 

On Februa ry 19, 2015 the bid was awa rded to Sa nford based on  an u n a n i mous 

vote of the Boa rd .  

The  PERS Boa rd h a s  a boa rd membe rs h i p with 3 representative w h o  a re e lected 

from the active e m p l oyees of the system, one  who is e lected from the  ret i red 

m e m bers, the  North Da kota State Hea lth Officer or  h is des ignee, a representative 

from the Attorney G e ne ra l ' s  office a nd the Boa rd Cha i r  who is a ppo inted by the 

G overnor. The Boa rd ,  with the exce ptio n  of me, i nc l udes  p la n part ic ipa nts who 

d i rectly represent the conce rns of o u r  m e m bers, both active a n d  ret i red . 

A l l  of the Trustees have h igh  vis i b i l ity posit ions  with in  the i r  agencies a nd with in  

the  state . Our  ret i ree  representative is we l l  known to other reti rees a nd they a l l  

h ave her  contact info rmat ion .  Th ree o f  o u r  boa rd mem bers a re H R  officers and  

two a re agency executives. Each a nd every day  they work with t he i r  peers a n d  

the i r  peers know who  they a re a nd the  dec i s ion  they have m a d e  on  the i r  

beha lf. C lea r ly i t  wou ld  have bee n  eas ier  to  ma inta i n  the  status quo a nd come to 

you with a 19% to 20% i n crease i nstea d  of a 15% i n crea s e .  I t  wou ld  h ave been 

eas ie r  for these m e m be rs to face the i r  fe l low e m p loyees a nd not r isk cha ng ing 

the  status quo .  We cou ld have used the  concerns presented i n  th is b i l l  n ot to 

a ccept the Sa nford b id  a nd to say we needed more money.  We knew the 

network was not identica l ,  we knew the a uthorizat ion p rocedu re was d ifferent 

a n d  we knew that Sa nfo rd H ea lth P l an  was owned by Sa nford Hea lt h .  We cou ld 

have used these sa me reasons  to tu rn down the Sa nford b id  a nd a sk  you fo r more 

fu n d s  than what was i n  the executive budget.  If that wou ld have bee n  the case, 

then today we may have been d iscuss ing p l a n  des ign changes, i n c l ud i ng  a 

red u ct ion i n  benefits, to m a ke the hea lth p l a n  m ore affo rdab l e .  I nstead  we made 

th i s  d ecis ion concl ud i ng  i t  was the best opt ion  for ou r  m e m bers .  I n  m a king  our  

-

• 

• • 

dec is ion ,  we adhered  to statutory gu ide l i nes  a nd fu lfi l l ed  o u r  fid ucia ry • 
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respons ib i l ity. Afte r a thorough review of the two b ids, the Boa rd of Trustees 

u n a n i mo usly awa rded the contract to Sa nfo rd Hea lth P la n .  

As fid uc ia r ies of the p l an  we h ave a n  ob l igat ion to represent the i nterest of a l l  of 

o u r  m e m be rs .  O u r  membe rs h i p  i n  P E RS i nc l udes active members from both the 

state a n d  po l it ica l s ubd ivis ions  a nd reti red members .  Ou r  goa l i n  the b id p rocess 

was to fi nd  a p l an  that met the  needs of o u r  d iverse mem bersh i p  not on ly in p l a n  

cove rage bu t  prem iums .  Ou r  retirees pay  t he  pre m i u m  out  of pocket. For  them 

we a re a seconda ry payer to M ed ica re .  The Sa nford p lan i s  the sa me as  o u r  

present p l a n  but t h e  pre m i u ms a re 3%-4% lower. A s  you know th is  has  been a 

pa rt icu l a r  cha l leng ing t ime fo r retirees a n d  every do l l a r  is im porta nt for them to 

m eet the i r  d ay to day needs .  

Concern i ng  HB 1475 the boa rd i s  opposed to the b i l l  for the fo l lowi ng rea sons : 

1 .  I n crea ses the cost of the p l an  a s  n oted i n  the fisca l note. For some of o u r  

mem bers th is  wi l l  i ncrease the i r  o u t  o f  pocket p rem ium costs .  

2 .  Red u ces competit ion for the p l a n  i n  the futu re wh ich  w i l l  i n  a l l  l i ke l i hood 

i ncrease futu re pre m i u m  costs . 

3 .  As p resently d rafted w i l l  l i ke ly req u i re P E RS to reb id the p l an  wh ich cou ld  

i nc rease the cost of  the  p l an  to ou r  mem bers, employers and  ret i rees .  

M a d a m e  Cha i r, mem bers of the com m ittee, tha n k  you for a l lowing me to share 

th i s  i nformat ion with you .  As you work through  th is  b i l l  p lease fee l  free to ca l l  

u po n  the PERS staff for tech n ica l ass ista nce .  I have a sked that they m a ke 

themse lves ava i l ab l e  to you when  cons ider ing the i m p l icat ions of House B i l l  1475 . 

With you r  perm ission, I wou ld now ask  Spa rb Co l l i n s, ou r  Executive D i rector, to 

review with you ou r  techn i ca l  a na lys is  of the b i l l , a n d  Ms. M u rtha from the 

Attorney Genera l 's Office w i l l  a lso  be ava i la b le  fo r a ny q uest ions .  

Aga i n  tha n k  you . 
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Deloitte __ 

Memo Atta c h m ent 2 

Date: March 3 I ,  20 1 5  

To: Sparb Col l ins - ND PERS 

From: Joshua K. Johnson and Patrick L. Pechacek - Deloitte Consu lting LLP 

Subject: Analysis of House Bill  No. 1 475 

Deloitte Consulting LLP 
50 South Sixth Street 
Suite 2800 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 

USA 

Tel: 61 2-397-4000 
Fax: 61 2-692-4094 

www.deloitte.com 

You asked that Deloitte Consulting briefly review House Bi l l  No. 1 475 which directly or indirectly is 
related to the recent award of the health insurance contract by the PERS Board to Sanford Health Plan 
(SHP), replacing Blue Cross Blue Shield of North Dakota (BCBS). You asked that we comment on 
the operational issues that may affect or hinder the PERS plan . 

O bservations 

Page 1, Line 18, Section 1 ,  54-52.1-04, Item 2. We don't th ink this language wi l l  have any material 
effect on the practices of PERS . The recent RFP was initially released almost a year prior to the 
effective date. As a practical matter, at least six months prior is prudent. 

Page 2, Line 9, Section 1, 54-52.1-04, Item 3. d. This clause adds network adequacy in-state and out­
of-State to the factors to be c.onsidered in determining a bid award . This addition perhaps adds some 
clarity. Again, in the most recent RFP, PERS evaluated network adequacy as part of its evaluation of 
proposals. 

Page 2,  Line 14, Section 1, 54-52. 1-04, Item 4. This clause specifies that the board may reject bids 
and re-issue the RFP under an expedited process if necessary. We agree this clause may at times be 
necessary and PERS did in  fact issue an expedited re-bid RFP in the recent b idding process. It is 

important to note, however, that having to re-issue an RFP could cause challenges in meeting the 
t imeframes required under Section 2, 54-52 . 1 -05, Item 2 (Page 3) .  

Page 3, Line 4, Section 2, 54-52.1-05, Item 1 .c . With regard to termination for violation of terms, 

Delo itte is not able to provide legal advice, however, the addition of language around a material 
breach in this revised version seems appropriate. We are also in favor of the language al lowing the 
board the option to terminate or institute a penalty until the breach is remedied. We feel that there 
shou Id be some method of appeal, arbitration, etc. 

Page 3, Line 14, Section 2, 54-52. 1-05, Item 2a. Again the timing of contracting would unl ikely 
cause any real issues and PERS has already met such a timel ine with the recent bid award with the 
possible exception of having to reject bids and re-issue the RFP which could strain the timing. 
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Providing a report and materials suppl ied to the Board by the consultant to the legislative management 
no less than sixty days prior to entering a contract may be problematic. If we read this correctly, th is 
wou ld make al l  of the confidential information publ ic prior to the award of the contract. This would  
essential ly put PERS at a significant disadvantage in  negotiations related to  making an award and a 
contract. Competitors would know what was bid prior to award and the selected vendor may also 
become aware in such a way that they may not be as wi l l ing to negotiate certain terms knowing others 
d idn't offer. If for some reason the legislative management d isagreed and somehow forced PERS to 
award to a different vendor, PERS wou ld again be at a significant d isadvantage with al l  confidential 
information of all bidders hav ing been publ icized. [The confidentiality concerns is this clause are 
addressed in the following clause 2b, however we felt it necessary to leave the above comments in this 
memo to stress the importance to the procurement process]. 
Page 3, Line 2 1 ,  Section 2, 54-52.1-05, Item 2b&c. We feel that the language here adequately 
al leviates the confidential ity concerns expressed in the previous paragraph regarding item 2a. 

Page 4, Line 4, Section 3, 54-52.1-05.1 ,  Item 1 .a .  Carrier must process in-state medical and hospital 
claims in-house. It is not clear what this means. Looking at the trend of BCBS organizations across 
the nation many are outsourcing their claims processing to other B lues organizations rather than 
continue to try and upgrade their aged legacy mainframe systems. We suspect, but do not know, that 
BCBSND may very wel l  move to such a model in the next few years. BCBSMN just began moving 
its claims adjudication to Highmark BCBS and expects to have ful ly transitioned by the end of 2 0 1 6 . 
We would also question why this clause app lies only to medical/hospital claims. Both the current and 
new can·iers outsource processing of pharmacy claims to separate pharmacy benefit managers (PB Ms) . 

Page 4, Line 7, Section 3, 54-52.1-05.1 ,  I tem 1 .b. 
( l )  We don ' t  feel that any health plan (carrier) can administer a plan without sharing identifiable or 
unidentifiable data with the care system or fac i l ity provid ing the care and vice versa. The addition in 
this version of the bill of the exception al lowing the sharing of data as necessary for treatment, 
payment, and operations is a more reasonable approach, however, we sti l l  have concerns that this 
clause will l imit the potentia l ly beneficial operations of the health plan .  All health plans are required 
to comply with the data privacy provisions of HIP AA which al low for sharing of data in additional 
situations under certain circumstances. In addition, we are concerned that this may sti l l  preclude the 
sharing of electronic medical records which would be a d isservice to PERS participants as well as 
participating providers such as A1tru. Al l  health p lans share member data with providers in order to 
better manage/coordinate care, faci litate d isease management programs, etc. 
(2) Restricting the carrier from marketing a care system or faci l ity is reasonable. However, there are 
some aspects of this requirement that are unclear. Does this restrict the health plan from notifying a 
member what providers are in-network vs. out-of-network? What if a given care system offers a 
service that no other care systems have avai lable? 

Page 4, Line 1 4, Section 3, 54-52.1-05.1 ,  Item 1 .c. Carrier must provide adequate in-state and out-of­
state network coverage. Dupl icative of Page 2, Line 9, Section 1 ,  54-52. 1 -04, Item 3 .  d .  

Page 4 ,  Line 1 9, Section 3,  54-52.1-05.1 ,  Item 2a&b. Are these provisions only appl icable to  the 
PERS plan network? There is no language that gives any confidentiali ty protection to the 
carrier/administrator. This may put the carrier/administrator at a competitive d isadvantage. What if it 
is  negotiating rates that are s imi lar to those also provided by BCBS? This could work to the 
d isadvantage of PERS from a pure cost position. In addition, we feel that the included language could  

• 

• 

• 
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be misleading. We assume the intent is to require that negotiated fee schedu les for non-Sanford 
providers are not lower than for Sanford providers. If true, then the language "the negotiated provider 
d iscount rates may not be less than" could be mis leading. The rates (fee schedule) may not be less than 
but that wou ld  mean the discounts may not be more than. It is also not specified how this wi l l  be 
monitored and/or measured. 

Page 5, Line 6, Section 4, 54-52. 1 -05.2, Item La.  What does seamless transition mean? Again, we 
bel ieve that PERS made every effort to achieve as l ittle disruption as possible, but if  this means 
without anyone complaining, that would be unreasonable and potentially make it impossible to ever 
change carriers. 

Page 5, Line 9, Section 4, 54-52. 1 -05.2, Item 1 .b .  

Subsections ( 1 )  And (2): Require a carrier to  have at least 95% of  the number of  providers as the 
previous carrier in-state and 90% out-of-state. The first concern here is that it is measuring the number 
of in-network providers not ensuring that providers being uti l ized by PERS members are in-network 
( i .e . ,  measuring geographic access to providers not potential disruption of currently util ized providers). 
The number of providers in the network does not ensure that the providers that PERS members are 
util izing are in-network. Requiring the insured 's l iabi l ity for out-of-network services to be the same as 
if it were in-network would be d ifficult to administer and would l ikely increase PERS ' cost. The 
carrier l ikely wou ld be able to apply the in-network benefit des ign in this  case, however, the provider 
may charge more for services than a provider under contract would thus increasing member 
coinsurance (if applicable) and increasing PERS cost. This also undermines the leverage the carrier 
has to get providers to agree to a contract. 

Subsection (3) a. This requires a bi l l ing process that permits submission of claims d irectly to the 
carrier. Out-of-state and/or out-of-network claims would sti l l  be handled by the network (e.g. 
B lueCard or other PPO network administrator) in order to obtain the proper reimbursement 
arrangements. It is unclear what this clause wi l l  accompl ish. 

Subsection (3) b. Members can select any in-network provider they choose now and could  do so under 
a different carrier. 

Page 5, Line 27, Section 4, 54-52.1 -05.2, Item 1 .c. No balance bi l l ing if the member receives prior­
authorization : The health p lan wi l l  need to be consulted in  this regard to get a more definitive opinion, 
however, we have concerns that prior authorization will not ensure that members util ize in-network 
providers. Should they use out-of-network providers the health plan can ' t  restrict a provider from 

balance b i l l ing. This provision would require the insured carrier to cover any claim amounts for out­
of-network services above the usual and customary amount assigned by the carrier and could 
sign ificantly increase aggregate claims cost. This could also undermine the leverage the carrier has to 
get providers to agree to a contract. 

Page 5, Line 29, Section 4, 54-52. 1 -05.2, Item 1 .d .  Our understanding is that the proposed open 
access network of the new carrier al lows members to choose providers without restriction and does not 
require referrals to see specialists. 

Page 6, Line 1, Section 4,  54-52. 1-05.2, Item 1 .e. After comparing the prior approval and 
preauthorization requirements of the current and new carriers our opinion is that they are significantly 
s imi lar although not exactly the same. The new carrier may be wi l l ing to modify thei r  process in order 
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to comply, however, PERS should be allowed to take into consideration any recommended changes in 
the processes that could improve care or administration of the plan. With an insured contract, the 
carrier may be restricted in their standard abi l it ies to manage care and risk which could impact their 
required premium rates .  

Page 6, Li ne 4, Section 4, 54-52. 1-05.2, Item 1 .f. Directing or recommending that members use in­
network providers as part of the pre or prior authorization process is standard practice for health plans. 
Lim iting this could impact p lan cost. 

These are simply our observat ions and in no way should be construed as attempting to provide legal 
advice. 

• 

• 
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HEAL TH 
PARTICI PATION 

AGENCY 
State 95 
Cou nties 45 
School D ist. 38 
C ities 50 
Others 64 

292 

EMPLOYEES 
State 1 5 ,203 
Counties 2 , 244 
School  D ist. 1 ,  1 88 
Cities 1 , 845 

• Others 592 
Legis lators 1 33 
Reti rees 6 , 973 
C O B RA 425 

28, 603 
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1 5 . 8 1 55.02009 
Title. 

Prepared by the Leg islative Council staff for 
Representative Carlson 

Apri l  6 ,  201 5 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE B ILL NO.  2022 

Page 1 ,  l ine 2, replace the second "and" with "to l im it the use of health insurance program 
reserves; "  

Page 1 ,  l ine 2 ,  after "transfers" insert " ;  and to declare an emergency" 

Page 2, after l ine 1 5 , insert: 

"SECTION 3. H EALTH INSURANCE RESERVE F U N DS - LIMITATIONS. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of law, for the period beg inn ing with the effective 
date of this Act and ending J une 30, 201 7 ,  the publ ic employees retirement system 
board may not spend any monies in the fund created under section 54-52 . 1 -06 or any 
other accumulated reserves under the un iform group insurance program for the 
purpose of reducing any increase in un iform g roup insurance premium amounts 
beyond the rates used by the sixty-fourth leg is lative assembly for developing 201 5-1 7 
state agency budgets. 

SECTION 4. E M ERG E N CY. Section 3 of this Act is declared to be an  
emergency measure . "  

Renumber accordingly 

Page No.  1 1 5 . 8 1 55.02009 
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ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICE AGREEMENT 

This Administrative Service Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into between the State of North 
Dakota acting through its Public Employees Retirement System ("the Plan Sponsor"), the North Dakota 
Publ ic Employees Retirement System (NDPERS) ("the Plan Administrator") and Sanford Health Plan,  a 
South Dakota non-profit corporation ("SHP") SHP the terms of which are as follows: 

WHEREAS, the Plan Sponsor has establ ished and maintains a ful ly insured group health p lan (the 
"Plan") which provides, among other things, various benefits to Members in the Plan,  as set forth in the 
Certificate of I nsurance provided to plan Members. The Plan Administrator is the administrator of the 
Plan established through this Agreement. 

WHEREAS, in consideration of payment of requ ired premium and acceptance of membership 
applications SHP enters into th is Agreement with the Plan Sponsor and the Plan Administrator. S H P  
agrees to provide plan Members the benefits set forth i n  the Certificate of I nsurance, in accordance with 
its terms and conditions. Th is Agreement a lso includes the Certificate of I nsurance, membership 
applications, Identification Cards, Benefit Plan Attachments and any endorsements, supplements , 
attachments, addenda or amendments. 

WHEREAS, NDPERS, as the Plan Administrator, is the sole party with authority to make plan design 
changes to the Plan .  

WHEREAS, S H P  i s  an  affiliate of Sanford , a North Dakota non-profit organization and integrated 
del ivery system;  however, S H P  and Sanford mainta in a firewal l  such that ( i )  SHP maintains a team that 
negotiates participating provider agreements with hospitals, physicians and other providers, ( i i )  Sanford 
provider entities maintain a team that negotiates agreements with third party payers, and ( i i i )  fee 
schedules, d iscounts, pricing and other competitively sensitive data are not shared between those 
teams. 

1 .  EFFECTIVE DATE AND PLAN YEAR 

This Agreement is effective July 1 ,  201 5 through June 30,  201 7, unless termi nated as provided . 

For the purposes of the costs of any and a l l  benefits and services extended through this Benefit 
Plan ,  including the implementation of any benefit changes required under federa l  or state law, 
the Plan Administrator agrees that the Plan Year shall commence on July 1 ,  un less it is 
terminated by one of the parties as specified in  Section 8.  TERM AND TERMI NATION OF 
AGREEMENT. 

2 .  DEFINITIONS 

This section defines the terms used in  this Agreement. These terms wil l  be capital ized 
throughout this Agreement when referred to i n  the context defined . 

A. BENEFIT PAYMENTS - payments of benefits under the Plan. 

B .  CERTIFICATE OF C REDITABLE COVERAGE - a certificate disclosing information relating to 
an ind ividual's creditable coverage under a health care benefit program for purposes of reducing 
any preexisting condition waiting period imposed by any group health plan coverage. 

C. CLAIM - notification in  a form acceptable to S H P  that service has been provided or furnished to 
a Member. 

D .  DRG - shall mean diagnostic related groups. 
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E .  DATA AGGREGATION - the combining of Protected Health Information that SHP creates or 
receives for or from the Plan and for or from other health plans or health care providers for 
which SHP is acting as a business associate to permit data analyses that relate to the Health 
Care Operations of the Plan and those other health plans or providers. 

F .  FEES AND CHARGES - the amounts the Plan Administrator must pay SHP for the 
administrative services described in Section 6. FEES AND CHARGES. 

G .  H EAL TH CARE OPERATIONS - any of the activities of a health p lan to the extent the activities 
relate to functions that make it a health plan .  

H .  H EAL TH CARE PROVIDER - any eligible provider that has provided care, diagnosis, or 
treatment to or for a Member for which benefits are sought under the Plan. 

I .  H EAL T H  CLUB/WE LLNESS CREDIT PROGRAM - means a member-based health club credit 
program and wellness ( points) rewards program substantially similar to that administered by the 
incumbent carrier. 

J .  H SA PROGRAM - means the Health Savings Account program administered by SHP through 
its subcontractor pursuant to the terms and conditions of a separate agreement between S H P  
and NDPERS and acknowledged by said subcontractor. 

K. INELIGIBLE PERSON - any person,  firm, or corporation that has received benefits or on whose 
behalf benefits have been paid but for whom benefits are not payable under the terms of the 
Plan. 

L. M EMBER - the Subscriber and any eligible dependent of a Subscriber who is enrolled in the 
Plan. The term also includes eligible employees of other governmental units as permitted by 
state law. 

M .  PARTICIPATING PROVIDER - A healthcare provider who,  under a contract with SHP, or with 
its contractor or subcontractor, has agreed to provide health care services to Members with an 
expectation of receiving payment, other than coinsurance, copays, or deductibles, d i rectly or 
indirectly, from the Plan .  

N .  PAYMENT - activities u ndertaken to obtain premiums. determine or fulfi l l  coverage and benefits, 
or obtain or provide reimbursement for health care services. 

0. PHARMACY BENEFITS MANAGER (PBM) - shall mean Express Scripts, I nc . ,  or such other 
pharmacy benefits manager as is engaged by S H P  after prior consultation with NDPERS. Said 
PBM is responsible for maintain ing the network of participating pharmacies. 

P. PHARMACY DISEASE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM - shall mean the d iabetes disease 
management program through which Members receive services and support provided by the 
North Dakota Pharmacy Service Corporation , which program is jointly administered by NDPERS 
and SHP hereunder. 

Q. PLAN ADM I NISTRATOR -North Dakota Public E mployees Retirement System (NDPERS) is 
the administrator of the Plan with all of the duties and responsibilities applicable to plan 
administrators, including but not necessarily l imited to com pliance with any and al l  
administrative, reporting,  and disclosure requ irements. SHP is not the Plan Sponsor or the Plan 
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Administrator of the Plan and is not responsible for any of the duties assigned to the Plan 
Sponsor or the Plan Administrator by the terms of the Plan, or by this Agreement. 

R. PLAN SPONSOR -The State of North Dakota , acting through its Publ ic Employees Retirement 
System (NDPERS) is the Plan Sponsor of an employee benefit p lan establ ished under N DCC 
Ch. 54-52 . 1 . 

S. PROTECTED H EALTH I NFORMATION (PHI) - i nd ividual ly identifiable health information , 
including summary and statistical i nformation , col lected from or on  behalf of a Member that is 
transmitted by or maintained in electronic media,  or transmitted or mainta ined in  any other form 
or medium and that: 

a .  i s  created by  or received from a Health Care Provider, health care employer, or health 
care clearinghouse; 

b .  relates to  a Member's past, present or future physical or mental health or  condition ;  
c. relates to the provision of health care to a Member; 
d .  relates to  the past, present, o r  future payment for health care to  o r  on  behalf of a 

Member; or  
e .  identifies a Member or could reasonably be used to identify a Member. 
f. Educational records and employment records are not considered P H I  under federal law. 

T. SANFORD H EALTH P LAN (SHP) - is a health maintenance organ ization that provides ful ly­
insured , prepaid group health care and pharmacy benefits through a n  organ ized health care 
delivery system .  

U .  SECURITY INCIDENT - any attempted o r  successful unauthorized access, use, d isclosure , 
modification, or destruction of a Member's electronic PHI  or interference with SH P's system 
operations in S.HP's i nformation systems. 

V. STANDARD TRANSACTIONS - health care financial or  administrative transactions conducted 
electronically for which standard data elements, code sets and formats have been adopted in  
accordance with federal or  state law. 

W. SUBSCRIBER - any el igible employee of the Plan Sponsor, employee of a participating 
employer or other el ig ible individual  as prescribed by NDCC CH . 54-52. 1 whose appl ication for 
membership has been accepted , whose coverage is in  force with SHP and in  whose name the 
I D  Card is issued . .  

X. SUCCESSFUL SECURITY INCIDENTS - Security Incidents that result i n  unauthorized access, 
use, d isclosure, modification ,  or destruction of information or interference with system 
operations .  

Y. TOBACCO CESSATION PROGRAM - shall mean Member tobacco education and cessation 
programs funded through the Department of Health by appropriation from the state leg islature, 
which programs are jointly administered by SHP,  NDPERS and the ND Department of Health . 

Z. UNSUCCESSFUL SECURITY INCIDENTS - Security I ncidents that do not result i n  
unauthorized access, use, d isclosure ,  modification, or destruction of information or  interference 
with system operations. 

AA.WELLNESS BENEFIT PROGRAM - shall . mean the NDPERS employer-based Wellness 

Benefit Program related to health and wel lness promotion for Members under which funding is 
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made available to State agencies or political subdivisions, as jointly administered by N D PERS 

and SHP hereunder. 

SHP SHALL: 

3 . 1  Establish a membership record for existing Members contain ing information as provided 
by NDPERS.  I n  order to initially enrol l members, SHP will require electronic 834 
compliant files from the Plan Administrator for current membership by 4/1 5/1 5 and 
regular updates through 6/30/1 5. 

3 .2  Provide Identification Cards, Certificates of Insurance, Summary of Benefits and 
Coverage and Summaries of Material Modifications (paper and/or electronic, as 
reasonably agreed by the parties). 

3 .3  Provide the Health P lan  Performance Guarantees, as outlined in  Exhibit B .  

3 .4  Upon enrol lment under the NDPERS Benefit Plan , SHP wi ll provide written notice to 
covered employees and their covered spouses of their appl icable continuation rights 
pursuant to the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act ("COBRA") or under 
State law pursuant to N DCC § 26 . 1 -36-23, if appl icable. 

3 .5 

3 .6 

Receive enrollment file for late entrants who enroll outside of the Plan's annual open 
enrol lment period as part of a special election (for qual ifying events) as defined in the 
Plan Sponsor's Group Health Insurance Eligibi lity and Enrol lment Guidelines and N D  
Administrative Rules. 

Provide Managed Benefits services in  accordance with appropriate licensure and 
certification requ irements; such services to be provided by a dedicated staff person .  

3 .7  Provide a dedicated service unit to adjudicate al l  claims and respond to  Member's 
inquiries. Provide toll-free Member and Health Care Provider service l ines between the 
hours of 8 AM and 5 :30 PM CST at the office(s) in North Dakota, as appropriate. A toll­
free managed benefits l ine for Health Care Providers will also be available between the 
hours of 7:30 AM and 5 :30 PM CST.  During nonbusiness hours, answering machine 
services wi l l  be ava i lable for managed benefits cal ls. 

3.8 Process clai ms a nd inquiries for al l  members, including cla ims from non-participating 
providers. 

3 .9  Correspond with the Members and  Health Care Providers i f  add itional information is 
deemed necessary by S H P  to complete the administrative process. 

3 . 1  O Administer th ird party l iability programs. 

3 . 1 1 Provide to Members an Explanation of Benefits Statement. 

3 . 1 2  Provide a procedure for detection of fraud and unlawful activity. 

3. 1 3  Offer Members an ind ividual policy when application is made within  31  days of the 
termination of enrollment under NDPERS and Member resides in SHP's service area 
where SHP is licensed to sel l an ind ividual policy. 
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3 . 1 4  Provide assistance to NDPERS for the conduct of enrol lment, servicing and education . 

3. 1 5  Provide to NDPERS formal Policy and Procedure guidel ines for the conduct of external 
audits or reviews commissioned by NDPERS. 

NDPERS shal l  provide SHP with the scope and requ irements of any audit or review prior 
to the commencement of activities. If a sample of claims is requ ired, S H P  wil l  provide or 
N DPERS wil l select a statistically valid computerized sample of claims,  if not proh ibited 
by law, regu lation or rule. 

NDPERS wil l  provide a copy of the report of all aud it or review find ings and shal l  d iscuss 
the find ings with S H P  upon d iscovery to a l low further investigation or implementation of 
corrective action .  

3 . 16  Provide NDPERS with reporting to include but not l imited to: 

a. Annual group reporting of membership and util ization by group segments and 
product. 

b .  Estimates of future claim  reserves and premium to claim ratio. 

c. Such other special claims reports as requested from time-to-time by N DPERS, 
subject to the avai labi l ity of data and appropriate cost considerations. 

d .  I nterest calcu lation monthly report, includi ng supporting documentation as 
reasonably req uested . 

e .  Performance objectives as described in Exhibit B of th is  Agreement. 

3 . 1 7  Provide NDPERS with claims specific data o n  a monthly basis in  agreed upon medium.  
Th is  information sha l l  be in  a format acceptable to NDPERS and subject to a l l  federal 
and state laws on confidentiality and open records ;  and provide at least monthly to any 
NDPERS designated third party administrator of a pretax benefits program, for purposes 
of claim reimbursement for any member pretax medical spending account, an electronic 
claims data fi le as reasonably requested, such fi le to include at least the 
following :  member el igibi l ity and demographic information,  provider/pharmacy 
demographic information ( i .e. NPI) ,  appl icable member l iabi l ity ( i .e .  copay, deductible, 
and coinsurance) ,  a nd prescription NOC number. 

3 . 1 8  Provide support t o  NDPERS for the establ ishment of a Preferred Provider Network 
consistent with objectives establ ished by NDPERS .  SHP shal l  determine Participating 
Provider el ig ib i l ity in accordance with its pol icies and accreditation standards. 

a. SHP wil l  provide techn ical and admin istrative advice to NDPERS relative to the 
appropriateness of PPO arrangements for the Plan .  SHP shal l  pursue in  good fa ith 
participating provider agreements with those providers who were historical ly in the 
NDPERS PPO but are not currently SHP Participating Providers. The parties agree 
that participation and reimbursement information may contain trade secret, 
proprietary, commercial ,  and financial information under section  44-04-1 8 .4 or any 
other appl icab le law. To the extent that NDPERS determines that such information is 
confidential u nder applicable state law, NDPERS shal l maintain  the confidential ity of 
the same. Further, NDPERS shall notify SHP of any request for release of 
information and, upon NDPERS' determination to release, shal l  a l low SHP a 
reasonable opportunity to respond prior to d isclosure. The duty of NDPERS to 
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mainta in the confidentiality of information under this section continues beyond the 
term of this Agreement. With respect to historic NDPERS PPO providers who e lect 
not to become Participating Providers at the outset of this Agreement , SHP and 
NDPERS wil l  reasonably d iscuss and cooperate with respect to ( i )  soliciting such 
providers into the network and ( i i )  administration of provider bi l l ing, Member co­
sharing and other financial arrangements with respect to services provided by such 
non-Participating Providers over the initial year of the Agreement. 

b .  SHP wil l  develop jointly with NDPERS a written instrument to be used as the basis 
for providers participating in  the PPO Program. 

c .  SHP wi l l  secure provider agreements upon completion of negotiations with providers. 
Such negotiations may be conducted jointly by SHP and N DPERS .  

d .  SHP will enforce strict managed benefits, utilization review and q ual ity assurance 
criteria to assure atta inment of Preferred Provider program objectives . 

e. SHP wil l ,  upon NDPERS reasonable direction, terminate a Provider's NDPERS PPO 
participation agreement in accordance with terms of the agreement, when a PPO 
Provider is noncompliant with NDPERS/SHP policies and procedures. Said pol icies 
and procedures shal l  be documented and communicated to the Participating 
Provider prior to implementation.  

3 . 1 9  Carry over any Deductible, Out-of-Pocket Maximums, Coinsurance Amounts and other 
benefit accumulators incurred from January 1 to June 30, of the prior contract period . I n  
order to  honor the same, SHP wil l  in itially require electronic files from the Plan 
Administrator or incumbent carrier including at a minimum member name, address, 
SSN,  date of birth, insurance I D  number and carry-over amounts for deductible and out­
of-pocket maximum and other benefit accumulators for year to date 201 5. SHP wil l  
require carry over electronic files to b e  provided starting on 6/1 5/1 5 and on the first day 
and fifteenth day of each month thereafter continuing through 6/30/1 7 to ensure timely 
and proper administration of plan benefits and to minimize member impact. S im ilarly, 
SHP shal l  maintai n  the Health Club/Wellness Credit Program. To facilitate the same, 
S H P  wil l in itial ly require an electronic file(s) with Health Club/Wellness Credit Program 
information from the incumbent carrier i ncluding at a minimum member name, address, 
SSN ,  date of b irth,  insurance I D ,  paymenUvoucher status and current calculated points 
as of 6/30/1 5 incurred date. SHP and NDPERS agree to reasonably cooperate with the 
incumbent carrier regarding log istics of such transitions. 

3 .20 The same process outlined in Section 3 . 1 9  wil l  be requ ired of the incumbent pharmacy 
benefit manager for pharmacy accumulators. SHP and NDPERS wil l  reasonably 
cooperate to, by 4/1 5/1 5, anticipate disruption , if any, resulting from changing to SHP's 
formu lary and, on or prior to 6/1 /1 5, notify members of the same. 

3.21 To enhance servicing of Members with respect to preauthorizations granted by 
incumbent carrier prior to 6/30/ 15 ,  SHP wil l  require from the incumbent carrier the 
secured , electronic file of a pproved care treatment programs, prior 
authorizations/certifications, provider referrals and formulary exception requests by 
6/1 / 1 5 and updated again 7/1 /1 5 ,  which shall include the Member's name, date of birth, 
SSN ,  provider name and provider NPI ,  authorized date of service or span of service and 
any utilization management notes or member correspondence. 

For services to be provided through 201 5, SHP shall honor care treatment programs 
pre-dating 6/30/1 5 for referra ls and prior authorizations/certifications for services to be 
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provided by h istoric PPO providers as approved by the incumbent carrier if such 
information is provided to SHP in a secured , electronic file as described above. 

3.22 Jointly admin ister the Pharmacy Disease Management Program, Tobacco Cessation 
Program, and Wellness Benefit Program substantial ly in accordance with Exhibit E ,  
Exhibit F ,  and Exh ibit G ,  respectively. 

3.23 Reasonably respond to requests for service meetings from NDPERS administration or 
its Board upon request. 

4 .  NDPERS SHALL: 

4 . 1  Prepare and  d istribute monthly b i l l ings to participating employers and  retirees 
participating in the Plan. NDPERS shal l  respond to the participating employers inqu iries 
concerning el ig ib i l ity rules, b i l l ing,  etc. 

4.2 Prepare weekly el igibi l ity file by participating employer and premium classification for 
both active a nd retired employees and provide the file to SHP to be used for el ig ib i l ity 
certification purposes. Along with the el igibi l ity fi le, NDPERS wil l  furnish a fu l l-fi le l i sting 
of participants ( incorporating additions or terminations during the month). Such l isting will 
reflect the name of the employee, dependents, Social  Security Number, the effective 
date of coverage for a new employee or the termination date of a term inated employee 
and the coverage classification . NDPERS wil l  submit enro l lment, b i l l ing and premium 
remittance v ia  a central ized electronic system.  NDPERS wil l  provide enrol lment/el ig ibi l ity 
information on a data file that fol lows the H I PAA 834 file specifications and SHP's 
companion guide. Premium payment information will be provided on a data file that 
fol lows the H I PAA 820 fi le specifications. Fi les wil l  be transmitted using a mutually 
agreed upon secure fi le transmission process. 

4.3 Use best efforts to notify SHP of terminated members no later than 30 days after the 
event that rendered the Member inel ig ible for coverage. Regardless of whether or not 
NDPERS provides notice to SHP of the terminated Member, SHP intends to recoup 
payments for al l  paid claims from applicable providers incurred after the last date of 
eligibility. It then becomes the duty and discretion of said providers to bi l l  the Member 
accord ingly. S imi larly, S H P  intends to recoup from terminated Members prescription 
claims paid after the last date of elig ib i l ity. 

4.4 Provide enro l lment fi les, obta in completed classifications or addresses, etc. from 
participants and furnish SHP with enrol lment files or request for coverage or address 
changes and retai n  the original copy. 

4.5 Be responsible for the administration of and compliance with COBRA or State-mandated 
continuation of coverage.  S H P  wil l  forward requests for COBRA or State law 
continuation of coverage participation by membership to NDPERS upon notification .  

4.6 Comply with SHP's establ ished admin istrative policies which are reasonable and 
consistent with the NDPERS Health Plan and the bid specifications agreed to by the 
parties, including but not l imited to: enrol lment and el igibi lity policies, standard 
adjud ication and Medical Pol icy Guidelines, Payable Provider Guidel ines, Managed 
Benefits Program Guidel ines and claim payment procedures as such materials are 
modified from time to time . 

4. 7 Develop and provide SH P the objectives currently establ ished for the Preferred Provider 
programs and provide SHP with an electronic file of providers currently enro l led in the 
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Preferred Provider Network by 3/1 5/1 5. The file shall include at a minimum the provider 
name, specia lty/type , address, and NPI .  

4.8 Pay premiums to SHP according to the schedule in Section  6. 

4 .9 NDPERS acknowledges that the administration of the Benefit Plan that is the subject of 
this Agreement may be subject to regu lation under federa l  and/or state law. NDPERS 
agrees to furnish SHP with any and al l  information necessary to comply with any 
appl icable federal and/or state laws and to certify that this i nformation is accurate. If 
there are any changes in  the employer contribution rate for benefits a nd services 
avai lable under this Agreement, NDPERS agrees that it is its obligation to provide 
information related to the change in contribution rates immediately to SHP.  

4. 1 0  NDPERS acknowledges that Subscriber satisfaction wil l be enhanced by SH P's 
timely receipt of accurate electron ic files with information housed by the 
incumbent carrier or incumbent pharmacy vendor as described in Sections 
3 . 1 9; 3.20; and 3 .21  of this Agreement. Consequently NDPERS shall use 
commercial best efforts to facil itate SH P's receipt of the same and wil l  forward 
to incumbent carrier a schedule of desired information and timel ines for receipt 
(to be provided by SHP) .  

4 . 1 1 NDPERS agrees to timely provide the i nformation as specified in  Section 3 . 1 .  

4 . 1 2  Perform those functions or duties regarding the Pharmacy Disease Management 
Program, Tobacco Cessation Program and Wellness Benefit Progra m  substantially in 
accordance with Exhibit E ,  Exh ibit F and Exhibit G, respectively. 

5 .  PRIVACY USE AND DISCLOSURE RESPONSIBILITIES 

5. 1 RESPONSIBILITIES OF SHP 

A. Privacy of Protected Health Information (PHI) 

1 .  S H P  wil l  keep confidential al l  Claim records a nd a l l  other PH I  that SHP creates or 
receives in the performance of its duties under this Agreement. Except as 
permitted or required by this Agreement for SHP to perform its duties under this 
Agreement, SHP wil l  not use or d isclose such Claim i nformation or other PHI 
without the authorization of the Member who is the subject of such information or 
as requ i red by law. 

2 .  SHP wil l  neither use nor d isclose Members' PH I  ( including any Members' PH I  
received from a business associate of the Plan) except ( 1 )  as  permitted or 
requ ired by this Agreement, (2) as permitted in writing by the Plan Administrator, 
(3) as authorized by Members, (4) in accordance with the Business Associate 
Agreement ("BAA") between the parties materially in form and substance 
provided in Exhib it H hereto, or (5) as required by law. 

3 .  S H P  wil l  be  permitted to use or  d isclose Members' PH I  only as  follows: 

a .  SHP wi l l  be permitted to use and d isclose Members' PH I  (a) for the 
management, operation and administration of the Plan the Plan Administrator 
offers Members, and (b) for the services set forth in the Plan, which include 
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Payment Activities, Health Care Operations, and Data Aggregation as these 
terms are defined under federal law. 

1 .  SHP will be permitted to use Members' PH I  as necessary for S H  P's 
proper management and administration or to carry out SH P's legal 
responsibi l ities. 

2 .  S H P  will be permitted to disclose Members' P H I  as  necessary for S HP's 
proper management and administration or to carry out SH P's legal 
responsib i l ities only if (i) the disclosure is requ i red by law, or  ( i i )  before 
the d isclosure, SHP obtains from the entity to which the d isclosure is to 
be made reasonable assurance, evidenced by a written contract, that the 
entity wil l  hold Members' PH I  in confidence, use or further d isclose 
Members' PHI  only for the purposes for which S H P  disclosed it to the 
entity or as required by law, and notify S H P  of any instance the entity 
becomes aware of where the confidentiality of any Members' PH I  was 
breached as required by 45 CFR 1 64.4 1 0 .  

b .  S H P  wil l make reasonable efforts i n  accordance with its written privacy 
policies and procedures to use, d isclose, or request only the min imum 
necessary amount of Members' PHI  to accomplish the intended purpose. 
SHP wil l  make its written privacy policies and procedures avai lable to the 
Plan Sponsor, upo n  request. 

4. Other than d isclosures permitted by Section 5 . 1  (A)3 ,  S H P  will not d isclose 
Members' PHI  to the Plan Administrator or to the Plan's business associate 
except as d i rected by the Plan Administrator in writ ing and as permitted by 
appl icable law. 

5 .  SHP wi l l  require each subcontractor and agent to which SHP is permitted by this 
Agreement or in writing by the Plan Administrator to d isclose Members' PHI to 
provide reasonable assurance, evidenced by written contract, that such other 
entity wil l  comply with the same privacy and security obl igations with respect to 
Members' PH I  as this Agreement appl ies to SHP. 

6 .  SHP wil l  not disclose any Members' PHI  to the P lan  Sponsor, except as 
permitted by and in  accordance with Section 5 . 1  (A) 3 .  

7. SHP wil l  report to the Plan Administrator any use or d isclosure of Members' PH I  
not permitted by this Agreement, i ncluding incidents that constitute breaches of 
unsecured PHI  as requ i red by 45 CFR 1 64.41 0 .  S H P  wil l  make any such report 
to the Plan Administrator after SHP learns of such non-permitted use or 
d isclosure.  

8.  SHP wi l l  report to the Plan Administrator attempted or successful unauthorized 
access, use, d isclosure ,  modification or destruction of a Member's electronic PH I  
or interference with SHP's system operations in  S H P's information systems 
("Security I ncident"), of which SHP becomes aware. With regard to attempted 
unauthorized access, use. etc. ,  SHP and the Plan Admin istrator recognize a nd 
agree that the significant number of meaningless attempts to , without 
authorization,  access, use, d isclose, modify or destroy electron ic PH I  will make 
real-time reporting formidable. Therefore, SHP and the Plan Administrator agree 
to the fol lowing reporting procedures for Security I ncidents that result i n  
unauthorized access, use, d isclosure, modification,  or  destruction of information 
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or interference with system operations ("Successful Security I ncidents") and for 
Security I ncidents that do not so result ("Unsuccessful Security Incidents"). 

For Unsuccessful Security Incidents, SHP and the Plan Administrator agree that this Agreement 
constitutes notice from SHP of any such Unsuccessful Security Incidents. In other words, the 
Plan Administrator waives any separate notice of Unsuccessful Security Incidents. By way of 
example, SHP and the Plan Administrator consider the fol lowing to be i l lustrative of 
Unsuccessful Security Incidents when they do not result in  unauthorized access, use, 
d isclosure, modification, or destruction of a Member's e lectronic PHI  or interference with a n  
i nformation system. 

1 .  Pings on SHP's firewal l ,  

2 .  Port scans, 

3. Attem pts to log on to a system or enter a database with an invalid password 
or username, 

4 .  Denial-of-service attacks that d o  not result i n  a server being taken off-l ine, 
and 

5 .  Malware (e.g. ,  worms, viruses). 

For Successful Security I ncidents, SHP shall g ive notice promptly to the Plan 
Administrator in  the event a Member's electronic PHI was compromised. 

9. Disposition of Protected Health Information 

The parties agree that upon termination, cancellation,  expiration or other 
conclusion of this Agreement, SHP wil l  return or destroy all PH I  received or 
created by SHP on the Plan Administrator's behalf as soon as feasible. Due to 
various regulatory and legal requirements, the Plan Administrator acknowledges 
that immediate return or destruction of a ll such information is not feasible. SHP 
agrees that upon conclusion of  this Agreement for any reason,  i t  wil l  use or  
d isclose the PHI  i t  received or created on the Plan's behalf only as necessary to 
meet SHP's regu latory and legal requirements and for no other purposes unless 
permitted in writing by the Plan Administrator. SHP wil l  destroy PHI  received or 
created by SHP on the Plan Administrator's behalf that is in S H  P's possession 
under such circumstances and upon such schedule as SHP deems consistent 
with its regulatory and other lega l  obligations. 

These responsibi l ities agreed to by SHP and related to protecting the privacy and 
safeguarding the security of PH I ,  as wel l  as any terms directly related thereto, 
shall survive the termination of this Agreement and, where applicable, shall 
govern SH P's receipt, use or d isclosure of PHI pursuant to the terms of this 
Agreement. 

1 0. To the extent SHP is to carry out one or more of Plan Administrator's obligations 
under the H IPAA Privacy Regulations, it shal l  comply with the requ irements of 
the Privacy Regu lations that apply to the Plan Admin istrator i n  the performance 
of such obl igations. 
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B.  Access, Amendment and Disclosure Accounting for Protected Health 
I nformation 

1 .  Upon the Plan Administrator's written request, SHP wil l  make avai lable for 
inspection and obtain ing copies by the Plan Administrator, or at the Plan 
Admin istrator's direction by the Member (or the Members' representative} ,  any 
PHI  about the Member created or received for or  from the Plan Admin istrator in  
SHP's custody or control so the Plan Administrator may meet its access 
obligations under federal law. 

2 .  Upon receipt of  a written request from the Plan Admin istrator, or  at  the Plan 
Administrator's direction by the Member (or the Members' representative), S H P  
wi l l  amend or permit the Plan Administrator access to amend a ny portion o f  the 
PHI  created or received for or from the Plan Admin istrator in S H P's custody or 
contro l ,  so the P lan Administrator may meet its amendment obl igations under 
federa l  law. 

3.  So the Plan Administrator may meet its disclosure accounting obl igations under 
federa l  law or state law, SHP wil l  do the fol lowing: 

a .  SHP wil l record each d isclosure of Members' PHI which is not excepted from 
disclosure accounting under Section 5 . 1 (8)  3.b,  that S H P  makes to the Plan 
Administrator or to a third party. 

The information about each disclosure that S H P  must record ("Disclosure 
I nformation"} is ( i }  the disclosure date, ( i i }  the name and ( if known) address of 
the person or entity to whom SHP made the disclosure ,  ( i i i }  a brief description 
of the PH I  disclosed , and (iv} a brief statement of the purpose of the 
d isclosure. 

For repetitive disclosures of Members' PHI  that SHP makes for a single 
purpose to the same person or entity ( including the Plan Administrator}, SHP 
may record ( i)  the disclosure information for the first of  these repetitive 
d isclosures, ( i i )  the frequency, periodicity or number of these repetitive 
disclosures, and ( i i i )  the date of the last of these repetitive disclosures. 

b. SHP wil l  not be required to record disclosure information or otherwise 
account for disclosures of Members' PH I  that this Agreement or the Plan 
Administrator in writing permits or requires: 

( 1 )  for Payment Activities or Health Care Operations, 
(2 ) to the Member who is the subject of the PHI or  to that Members' personal 

representative, 
(3)  to persons involved in that Members' health care or payment for health 

care, as provided under federa l  law, 
(4) for notification for disaster relief purposes or national security o r  

intel l igence purposes as  provided under federa l  law, 
(5) to law enforcement officials or correctional institutions regarding inmates, 
(6) for incidental uses or d isclosures, 
(7)  as part of a l imited data set in accordance with federal law, 
(8) that occurred prior to the H IPAA Privacy Compliance Date, 
(9) pursuant to a va lid authorization, or 
( 1 0} as may be required by law. 
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c. S H P  wil l have avai lable for the Plan Administrator the disclosure information 
requ ired by Section 5. 1 (8)3.a.  for the six (6) years immediately precedi ng the 
date of the Plan Administrator's request for the disclosure information. 

d .  U pon the Plan Administrator's written request. S H P  wil l  make available to the 
Plan Administrator, or at the Plan Administrator's direction to the Member (or 
the Member's representative), d isclosure information regard ing the Member 
so the Plan Administrator may meet its disclosure accounting obligations 
under federal law. 

C. Information Safeguards 

1 .  S H P  wil l maintain reasonable and appropriate administrative, technical and 
physica l safeguards to protect the privacy of Member PH I .  The safeguards must 
reasonably protect Member PHI  from any intentional or unintentional use or 
d isclosure in violation of federal law and l imit incidental uses or d isclosures made 
pursuant to a use or disclosure otherwise permitted by this Agreement. 

2. SHP wil l  implement administrative, techn ical ,  and physical safeguards that 
reasonably and appropriately protect the confidential ity, integrity, and availabi l ity 
of electronic PHI SHP creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of the 
Plan Administrator as required by federal law. 

D. Inspection of Books and Records 

SHP wil l  make its internal practices, books, and records relating to its use and 
disclosure of PHI  created or received for or from the Plan Administrator available to 
the Plan Administrator and to the U.S .  Department of Health and H uman Services to 
determine compliance with federa l  law or this Agreement. 

E. SHP will prepare and distribute a notice of privacy practices appropriate for the Plan 
to meet its notice obl igations under federal law. The Plan Administrator authorizes 
SHP to d isclose the minimum necessary PHI  to the Plan S ponsor for plan 
administration functions specified in  the Plan documents as amended. 

F. Information Privacy and Safeguard Provisions Survive Termination of 
Agreement 

These responsibil ities agreed to by SHP and related to protecting the privacy of PH I ,  
as wel l  as any terms directly related thereto, shall survive the termination of this  
Agreement and where applicable,  shall govern SHP's receipt, use and d isclosure of 
PHI  obtained pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

5 .2  RESPONSIBILITIES OF T H E  PLAN SPONSOR 

A The Plan Sponsor retains full and final  authority and responsibil ity for the Plan and its 
operation. S H P  is empowered to act on behalf of the Plan only as stated in this 
Agreement or as mutually agreed in writing by the Plan Sponsor and SHP. 

B.  Except with respect to services provided by SHP set forth in this agreement, the Plan 
Sponsor wil l  have the sole responsibil ity for and wi l l  bear the entire cost of 
compliance with al l  federal ,  state and local laws, rules, and regulations concern ing 
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the privacy of PH I ,  including any l icensing, fi l ing, reporting , and d isclosure 
requirements, that may apply to the Plan. SHP wil l  have no responsibi lity for the 
Plan's compliance or noncompliance with any appl icable federal ,  state , or local law, 
rule, or regulation, that the Plan Sponsor is responsible for under this subsection .  

C. By executing this Agreement, the Plan Sponsor certifies to  S H P  that i t  has amended 
the Plan documents to incorporate the provisions requ i red by and under federal law, 
and agrees to comply with the Plan Administrator's plan documents as amended. 

SHP may rely on Plan Sponsor's certification and Plan Administrator's written 
authorization, and wil l have no obligation to verify ( 1 )  the Plan Administrator's plan 
documents have been amended to comply with the requirements of federa l  law or 
this Agreement or (2) the Plan Sponsor is complying with the Plan Administrator's 
plan document as amended. 

D. For any high deductible health plan offered by the Plan Sponsor, the Plan Sponsor 
assumes sole responsibi l ity for determining whether the Plan qual ifies as a h igh 
deductible health plan under Section 223(c)(2) of  the U .S .  I nternal Revenue Code. 
SHP MAKES NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR I MPLI ED, I NCLUD ING,  BUT NOT 
LIMITED TO, ANY IMPL IED WARRANTI ES OF MERCHANTAB I LITY OR FITNESS 
FOR A PART ICULAR PURPOSE REGARDING THE PLAN. 

For any high deductible health plan offered by the Plan Sponsor, SHP does not 
provide legal or tax advice , and expressly d isclaims responsibi lity for determining, on 
behalf of any ind ividual or group, the legal and tax implications of: ( 1 )  establishing a 
health savings account; (2) el ig ib i lity for a health savings account; (3)  the 
contributions made to a health savings account; (4) the deductib i l ity of contributions 
to a health savings account; and (5) withdrawals from a health savings account and 
related taxation .  

6 .  FEES AND C H ARGES: 

6 . 1  I n  consideration of  the ful ly insured contract under this Agreement, S H P  agrees to 
accept the following provisions and premium rates for the Effective Date of this 
Agreement. See attached Premium Rate Structure Table in  Exhibit C of this Agreement. 

6.2 SHP and N DPERS agree to the Health Plan Performance Guarantees, as outlined in the 
attached Exhibit B .  

6 .3  NDPERS wil l use best efforts to pay SHP,  on or  before the twentieth day of each month 
(but not later than the last day of the month) .  for the current month's premium i ncome 
based on the amount identified in Exhibit C. 

6.4 NDPERS wi l l  maintain a deposit of $3,000,000 in a Cash Reserve Account held by SHP 
until the settlement of the biennium. Th is  Cash Reserve Account shall earn interest at  a 
rate to be determ ined monthly, based on US Treasury Notes quoted by the Wall Street 
Journal .  The monthly rate wil l  be establ ished at the close of the first trading day each 
month based on the closing yield to maturity of US Treasury Notes maturing 24 months 
hence. If there are multiple notes for that maturity, the rate wil l  be based on an average. 
If there are no notes with that maturity, the next subsequent maturity wil l  be used. 

NDPERS wil l  a lso maintain funds in a Programs Cash Reserve Account held by SHP for 
purposes of funding the Pharmacy Disease Management Program,  the Wellness Benefit 
Program and any other programs funded outside of premium.  NDPERS wil l mainta in a 
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balance reasonably estimated to anticipate experience of such programs. This 
Programs Cash Reserve Account shall earn interest at a rate to be determined monthly, 
based on US Treasury Notes quoted by the Wall Street Journal .  The monthly rate will be 
establ ished at the close of the first trad ing day each month based on the closing yield to 
maturity of US Treasury Notes maturing 24 months hence. If  there are multiple notes for 
that maturity, the rate wil l be based on an average. If there are no notes with that 
maturity, the next subsequent maturity wil l  be used. 

6 .5 SHP wi l l  reta in  any surplus funds from the amounts identified as such in  a schedu le  to 
the Premium Rate Table attached as Exhibit C. Surplus funds retained by SHP shal l  
earn interest at a rate to be determined monthly, based on US Treasury Notes quoted by 
the Wal l  Street Journal .  The monthly rate wil l  be establ ished at the close of the first 
trading day each month based on the closing yield to maturity of US Treasury Notes 
maturing 24 months hence.  If there are multiple notes for that maturity, the rate wil l  be 
based on an average. If there are no notes with that maturity, the next subsequent 
maturity wil l  be used. 

Surplus funds described in the above section 6 .5 not used by SHP to pay NDPERS 
Health Plan incurred claims plus retention wil l be subject to the Final Accounting a s  
described in  Section 7 of this Agreement. 

6 .6 Medicare Part D wi l l  be handled by incumbent carrier through and until 1 2/31 /1 5 .  

6.  7 In the event any Federal or State authority imposes any changes to plan design ,  p lan 
benefits or other mandate affecting the Plan ,  SHP and NDPERS shal l  reasonably 
cooperate to anticipate material increased expenses or other material effects and 
negotiate in  good faith to incorporate consequent premium rate or other contractua l  
changes. I n  the event the parties are unable to reach agreement, either party may 
terminate this Agreementpursuant to Section 8 .2(b) hereof. SHP reserves the right to 
adjust premium rates, with a 90-day notice, for any such changes in  taxes and/or 
benefits imposed upon SHP for the NDPERS health p lan .  S H P  further reserves the right 
to adjust premium rates for any health plan design, plan benefit changes or other 
mandates imposed by State or Federal leg islative action or NDPERS Board mandate 
when such changes become effective . 

7 .  FI NAL ACC O UNTIN G  

7. 1 A continual accounting of NDPERS Health Plan experience wil l take place during the 
201 5-201 7 biennium. Monthly reports of earned i ncome less incurred claims and 
retention wil l be produced during the biennium and the twenty-four months fol lowing the 
bienn ium.  

7 .2 With in 3 1  days of 12 months after the end of the biennium (by Ju ly 3 1 , 201 8) ,  SHP will 
provide an accounting of PPACA fees. This adjustment is in addition to the settlement in 
7.3 and 7.4 .  
1 .  Estimated PPACA fees paid by NDPERS during the biennium ($1 1 .  75 per Non­

Medicare member per month from July 1 ,  201 5 through June 30, 201 6  and $9.91 
per Non-Medicare member per month from Ju ly 1 ,  201 6  through June 30, 20 1 7) 

2.  Less actual PPACA fees paid by SHP for the biennium including: 

a .  Patient Centered Outcomes Research Tax wil l be calculated based on actual 
average Non-Medicare members at the rate defined by the respective federal 

14  



agency. This amount is currently estimated to be $2. 1 6  per Non-Medicare 
member for July 1 ,  20 1 5  through December 3 1 ,  201 5 ,  i ncreasing each ca lendar 
year with inflation at the rate defined by the federal government. 

b .  Transitional Reinsurance Assessment will be ca lculated based on actual 
average Non-Medicare members at the rate of $3.67 per Non-Medicare member 
per month for July 1 ,  20 1 5  through December 3 1 , 201 5  and is estimated at $2.50 
per Non-Medicare member per month for January 1 ,  20 1 6  through December 31 , 
20 1 6. 

c. Health I nsurer Tax wil l be calcu lated using NDPERS' portion of the premium 
used to calculate the bi l l  from the Federal Government, grossed up by 20% for 
Federa l  I ncome Tax. The bi l l ing for this tax is on a year in arrears basis. T he 
201 6  bi l l  wil l reflect premiums paid to SHP in  201 5. The 201 7 bi l l  wil l  reflect 
premiums paid to SHP in 201 6  and the 201 8  bi l l  wi l l  reflect premiums paid to 
S H P  in  201 7. ( I l lustrative example for 201 5  payment: Assume SHP receives a 
$ 1 0  mil l ion H IT tax bi l l  i n  20 1 6. That is based on $ 1  bi l l ion of 201 5  premium. If 
NDPERS contributed $200 mi l l ion  to the $ 1  bi l l ion of 201 5  premium, the 
NDPERS would be charged 20% of $ 1 2  mi l l ion - the $ 1 0  m il l ion dol lar HIT tax 
bill grossed up by 20% for Federal Tax. The same approach would be taken for 
201 6  and 201 7 . )  

3. If 1 -2 of 7.2 is positive , the remainder equals Refund pa id to NDPERS. If 1 -2 of 
7 .2 is negative, the remainder wil l be refunded by N DPERS to S H P. 

4 .  The  parties agree that the above identified PPACA fees are subject to 
modification by the respective federa l  agencies at a ny time. If the PPACA fees 
are so modified , the modifications shal l automatica l ly be incorporated into this 
Agreement without further action by the parties. 

7 .3 Within 3 1  days of 12 months after the end of the biennium (by Ju ly 3 1 , 201 8) SHP wil l 
provide an accounting which wi l l  result in an in itial settlement of the biennium agreement 
as follows: 

1 .  Earned Premium Income (which is net of the NDPERS monthlyadmin fee) during 

the Biennium 

2.  Plus interest on Surplus Funds 

3. Less Claims I ncurred during the Biennium and paid July 1 ,  20 1 5  - June 30, 201 8 

4 .  Less Estimated Claims I ncurred and unpaid at June 30, 201 8  as calculated using 

standard actuarial completion factors 

5. Less Administrative Expense during the Biennium ($1 1 .60 per member per 

month} 

6. Less Service Charge during the Biennium ($4.89 per member per month) 

7 .  Less Disease Management Program fees during the B ienn ium ($0.64 per 

member per month) 

8. Less Health ClubiWellness Credit Program fees during the B ienn ium ($ 1 .96 per 

member per month) 

9 .  Less Actual PPACA fees paid by SHP for the B iennium (as  defined by 7 .2 .2)  

1 0 .  Less appl icable PPACA fees refunded to NDPERS o r  plus appl icable PPACA 

fees funded to SHP as defined by 7.2 .3 .  
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1 1 .  If 1 +2-3-4-5-6-7-8-9(-/+ 1 0) of 7.3 is positive, the lesser of 50% of this amount or 

$ 1 . 5  mi l l ion is retained by SHP. The remainder equals Refund paid to NDPERS.  

1 2. If 1 +2-3-4-5-6-7-8-9 (-/+ 1 0) of 7.3 is negative, the lesser of 50% of this amount or 

$3.0 mi l l ion will be refunded by NDPERS to SHP. 

Within 62 days of 12 months after the end of the biennium (by August 3 1 , 201 8) refunds 
wil l be paid to N DPERS or SHP as defined by 7.3 .  

7 .4 Within 31  days of 24 months after the end of the b iennium (by July 31 , 201 9) SHP wil l 
provide an accounting which wil l  result i n  a final settlement of the biennium agreement 
as follows: 

1 .  Earned Premium Income (which is net of the NDPERS month ly admin fee) 

during the Biennium 

2. Plus interest on Surplus Funds 

3. Less Claims I ncurred during the Biennium and paid July 1 ,  201 5  - June 30, 201 9  

4. Less Admin istrative Expense during the Biennium ($1 1 .60 per member per 

month) 

5. Less Service Charge during the Biennium ($4.89 per member per month) 

6.  Less Disease Management Program fees during the Biennium ($0 .64 per 

member per month) 

7. Less H ealth Club/Wellness Credit Program fees during the Biennium ($ 1 .96 per 

member per month) 

8.  Less Actual PPACA fees paid by SHP for the B iennium (as defined by 7.2.2) 

9.  Less appl icable PPACA fees refunded to NOPERS or plus appl icable PPACA 

fees funded to SHP as defined by 7 .2 .3 .  

1 0. If 1 +2-3-4-5-6-7-8 (-/+9) of 7.4 is positive, the lesser of 50% of this amount or 

$ 1 .5 mi l l ion is retained by SHP. The remainder equals Refund paid to NDPERS. 

If app l icable, the final settlement amount wil l  be net of initial settlement 

payments. 

1 1 .  If 1 +2-3-4-5-6-7-8 (-/+9) of 7.4 is negative, the lesser of 50% of this amount or 

$3.0 mi l l ion  will be refunded by NOPERS to SHP.  If applicable,  the final 

settlement amount wi l l  be net of in itial settlement payments. 

W ithi n  62 days of 24 months after the end of the biennium (by August 3 1 , 201 9) the final 
settlement wil l  be paid to NDPERS or S H P  as defined by 7.2 ,  7 .3 and 7.4. Sample 
i l lustrations of Sections 7.3 and 7.4 are Attached as Exh ibit D. 

8. TERM AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

8 . 1  The term of th is Agreement shal l  be for a two year period from July 1 ,  201 5 through 
June 30, 201 7; provided, however, that, upon satisfactory completion of the in itial 
Agreement term and final approval of the NOPE RS Board, this Agreement may be 
renewed for up to two additional two-year terms, beginning July 1 ,  201 7  to June 30, 
201 9 , and Ju ly 1 ,  201 9  to June 30, 202 1 .  NDPERS and SHP wil l  renegotiate the 
contract terms during the in itia l ,  and any subsequent two-year term , for any subsequent 
two-year term . During the in itial contract term, renegotiations will beg in  in August, 201 6  
and end in  September 201 6  and NDPERS wil l  not in itiate a formal bidding process 
during these renegotiations.  If the Agreement is renewed , renegotiations for a 
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pharmacy provider is that which is due at the time the prescription medication or drug is 
purchased by the Member. The amount due to the pharmacy under the pharmacy provider 
participating agreement with the PBM is ca lculated without regard to any subsequent, 
retrospective manufacturer d iscount that may apply to the cost of the prescription medication or 
drug . 

The Plan Administrator acknowledges and agrees that, in some cases but not al l ,  drug 
manufacturers may offer rebates to SHP on prescription medications and drugs purchased 
under the terms of the Plan. SHP agrees to use best efforts to establish and maintain a drug 
rebate program pursuant to which such rebates directly benefit Members in a manner 
substantial ly simi lar to that provided by the incumbent carrier. 

1 1 .  GENERAL PROVISIONS: 

1 1 . 1  SHP is an independent entity under th is Agreement and is not a State employee for any 
purpose, including the application of the Social Security Act, the Fair Labor Standards 
Act, the Federal Insurance Contribution Act, the North Dakota Unemployment 
Compensation Law and the North Dakota Workforce Safety and I nsurance Act. HSP 
reta ins sole and absolute d iscretion in the manner and means of carrying out HSP'S 
activities and responsibi l ities under This Agreement, except to the extent specified intthis 
Agreement. 

1 1 .2 This Agreem ent, includ ing the fol lowing documents, constitutes the entire agreement 
between the part ies. There are no understandings,  agreements, or representations, 
oral or  written ,  not specified within  this Agreement. This Agreement may not be 
mod ified , supplemented or amended , in any manner, except by written agreement 
signed by  both parties. 
Notwithstand ing anyth ing herein to the contrary, in the event of any inconsistency or 
confl ict among the documents making up this Agreement, the documents m ust 
control in  th is order  of precedence : 

a .  The terms of this Agreement as may be amended;  
b .  S H P's  Proposal dated September 4 ,  201 4  and Rebid Proposal dated 
Nove m ber 1 9, 201 4 i n  response to the RFP; 
c. State 's  Request for Proposal Fu l ly- Insured Group Medica l  and Prescription 
Drug Coverage (the "RFP") reissued and dated October 30 ,  201 4 . 

1 1 .3 This Agreement shal l  be governed by and construed accord ing to the laws of the state of 
North Dakota . 

1 1 .4 Failure of either party at any time to require performance by the other party of any 
provision of this Agreement shal l  not be deemed to be a continuing waiver of that 
provision or a waiver of any other provision of this Agreement. 

1 1 .5 No assignment of this Agreement in whole or in part may be made by either party 
without written agreement approved by both parties. S H P  may not assign or otherwise 
transfer or delegate any rig ht or duty hereunder without N DPERS express written 
consent, or as otherwise set forth in this Agreement. However, S H P  may enter into 
subcontracts for the provision of services under this Agreem ent provided that any 
subcontract acknowledges the binding nature of th is Agreement and incorporates 
this Agreem ent, including any attachments. S H P  is solely responsib le for the 
performance of any subcontractor. Notwithstand ing the foregoing,  N DPERS 
acknowledges a nd agrees that S H P  is  a party to  exist ing subcontracts with the PBM 
and other  entities and may be bound by ,  or subject to, exclusivity or other l im iting 
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provisions u nder such existing subcontracts. S H P  does not have authority to 
contract for or incur obl igations on behalf of the Plan S ponsor or Plan Administrator. 

1 1 .6 All notices and correspondence required or pennitted to be g iven under this Agreement 
shall be g iven by personal delivery to the other party or may be sent by mai l ,  postage 
prepaid to the other party at the fol lowing addresses: 

NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES 
RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

PO Box 1 657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502 

SANFORD HEAL TH PLAN 
300 Cherapa Place, Suite 201 

Sioux Fal ls ,  SD 571 03 

1 1 .  7 Neither party shal l  be l iable for any delay in or fa i lure to perform under this Agreement 
due to an act of God or due to war mobil ization, insurrection, rebel l ion, civil commotion, 
riot, act of an extrem ist or public enemy, sabotage, labor d ispute, explosion, fire, flood, 
storm, accident, drought, equipment fai lure, power fai lure ,  fuel or energy shortages, 
unavoidable delay of carriers, embargo, law, ordinance, act, rule or regulation of any 
government, whether valid or inval id. 

1 1 .8 If NDPERS or  S H P  creates benefit communications for Members, relating to the 
Certificate of I nsurance attached as Exhibit A, such communications wil l  be sent to SHP 
or NDPERS for comment prior to distribution. E ither party wil l  have 5 business days to 
comment on the communication. If one party fai ls to advise the other within that 5-day 
period, it wi l l  be presumed there are no comments on the communication. If NDPERS 
has a d ig ital or on l i ne version of the Certificate of I nsurance available to its Members, 
NDPERS agrees that it will not a lter, modify or change the language of the Certificate of 
Insurance, and further agrees the Certificate of Insurance, attached as Exhibit A, wil l  be 
the control l ing document in  the event of any confl ict or l iabi l ity that might arise as the 
result of any alterations, modifications or changes made by N DPERS. In the event a 
claim is paid based on NDPERS's modified or altered d igital or online Certificate of 
I nsurance, NDPERS is l iable for al l  such claims. N DPERS further agrees that no waiver 
of this agreement is va lid un less in writing and approved by SHP.  

1 1 .9 SHP wil l  prepare Summaries of Benefits and Coverage for d istribution to appl icants and 
Members by N DPERS so that SHP, the Plan and NDPERS may a l l  satisfy related 
d isclosure obl igations u nder federal law. It sha l l  be the sole responsibi l ity of NDPERS to 
distribute the Summaries of Benefits and Coverage in accordance with federal law, and 
the Plan Admin istrator acknowledges and agrees that SHP wil l  rely upon NDPERS for 
compliance with the requirements for d istribution of the Summaries of Benefits and 
Coverage to appl icants and Members. 

1 1 . 1 0  When coverage u nder this Agreement is terminated, SHP wil l ,  within a reasonable 
period of time, issue a Certificate of Creditable Coverage to the Subscriber to the extent 
the certificate is required under state and/or federa l  law. Upon notification by the 
Subscriber of the inel igib i lity of a dependent, a Certificate of Cred itable Coverage will be 
issued to the affected Member within a reasonable period of time. Certificates of 
Creditable Coverage may a lso be obtained from S H P  upon request within 24 months 
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after coverage is terminated. Certificates of Creditable Coverage wil l on ly reflect 
continuous coverage provided through SHP.  

1 1 . 1 1 Upon the effective date of any final regulation or amendment to  fina l  regulations with 
respect to P H I ,  Standard Transactions, the security of health information or other 
aspects of the Health Insurance Portabi l ity and Accountabi l ity Act of 1 996 appl icable to 
this Agreement, this Agreement will automatical ly amend such that the obl igations 
imposed on the Plan Sponsor, the Plan Administrator and SHP remain in compliance 
with such regulations, unless SHP elects to terminate this Agreement by provid ing the 
Plan Sponsor and the Plan Administrator notice of termination in accordance with this 
Agreement at least thirty-one (3 1 )  days before the effective date of such final regu lation 
or amendment to final regu lations. 

1 1 . 1 2  The parties agree that all participation by Members in programs administered by 
NDPERS is confidential under North Dakota law. SHP may request and NDPERS shall 
provide directly to SHP upon such request, confidential i nformation necessary for SHP to 
provide the services described herein .  SHP shal l  keep confidential a l l  NDPERS 
information obta ined i n  the course of del ivering services i n  accordance with law and the 
BAA, and shal l  not use any PHI  or other Member information for any marketing purposes 
without express consent. Fai lure of SHP to maintain the confidential ity of such 
information may be considered a material breach of the contract a nd may constitute the 
basis for additional civil and criminal penalties under North Dakota law. SHP shal l not 
disclose any ind ividual employee or dependent information unless otherwise permitted 
by the terms of th is Agreement or the BAA without the prior written consent of the 
employee or fami ly member. SHP has exclusive control over the d irection and guidance 
of the persons rendering services under this Agreement. Upon termination of this 
Agreement, for any reason,  SHP shal l return or destroy al l  confidential i nformation 
received from N DPERS, or created or received by SHP on behalf of NDPERS except as 
provided in  the BAA. This provision applies to confidential information that may be in  the 
possession of subcontractors or agents of SHP.  SHP shall reta in  no copies of the 
confidential i nformation except as provided in the BAA. In the event that SHP asserts 
that returning or destroying the confidential information is not feasible, SHP sha l l  provide 
to NDPERS notification of the conditions that make return or destruction infeasible. Upon 
explicit written agreement of NDPERS that return or destruction of confidential 
information is not feasible, SHP shall extend the protections of this Agreement to that 
confidential i nformation and l imit further uses and d isclosures of any such confidential 
information to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long 
as SHP mainta ins the confidential information. 

SHP understands that, except for d isclosures prohib ited in this Agreement, NDPERS 
must d isclose to the public upon request any records it receives from SHP unless such 
disclosure is not permitted by law. SHP further understands that any records that are 
obtained or generated by SHP under this Agreement, except for records that are 
confidential under this Agreement, may, under certain circumstances, be open to the 
public upon request under the North Dakota open records law. SHP agrees to contact 
NDPERS i mmediately upon receiving a request for information under the open records 
law and to comply with NDPERS's instructions on how to respond to the request. 

The parties acknowledge and agree that the provisions of N .D.C.C. § 54-52 . 1 - 1 2  apply 
with respect to Member i nformation . 

1 1 . 1 3  SHP agrees to comply with al l  laws, rules, and policies, including those relating to 
nondiscrimination ,  accessibi l ity and civil rights . SHP agrees to timely fi le al l  required 
reports, make required payrol l deductions, and timely pay a l l  taxes and premiums owed, 
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1 1 . 1 4  

including sales and use taxes and unemployment compensation and workers' 
compensation premiums. SHP shall have and keep current at al l  times during the term of 
this Agreement a l l  licenses and permits required by law. 

All records, regard less of physical form, and the accounting practices and procedures of 
SHP relevant to this Agreement are subject to examination by the North Dakota State 
Auditor, the Auditor's designee, or Federal auditors. SHP shall mainta in al l  of these 
records for at least three (3) years following completion of this Agreement and be a ble to 
provide them at any reasonable time. State, State Auditor, or Auditor's designee shal l  
provide reasonable notice. 

12 .  DISPUTES AND INDEMNIFICATION 

If litigation is filed regard ing denial of benefits or otherwise, and SHP is named as the sole 
defendant, SHP wil l  have the right to manage and have ful l  control of litigation and to determine 
whether to pay, comprom ise, litigate or appeal the litigation.  Except as otherwise provided in 
this Agreement, N DPERS and SHP each agree to assume their own l iabil ity for any and a l l  legal 
or equ itable claims of a ny nature including all costs, expenses and attorneys' fees which may in 
any manner result from or arise out of this Agreement. 

NDPERS agrees that all Retrospective Discount Payments wi l l  be made to Members of the 
Plan .  SHP agrees to i ndemnify NDPERS for any judgments against NDPERS solely arising out 
of NDPERS' decision to participate in the Retrospective Discount Payment program. 

SHP shal l  secure and keep in force during the term of th is  Agreement, from insurance 
companies, government self-insurance pools or government self-retention funds, authorized to 
do business in North Dakota, the following insurance coverages: 

1 .  Commercial genera l  l iabi l ity, including premises or operations, contractual ,  and products 
or completed operations coverages ( if applicable), with minimum liabil ity l imits of 
$250,000 per occurrence and $ 1 ,000,000 aggregate. 

2. Professional errors and omissions with minimum liabil ity l imits of $ 1 ,000 ,000 per 
occurrence and in the aggregate, SHP shall continuously mainta in such coverage during 
the term of the Agreement and for three years thereafter. In the event of a change or 
cancellation of such coverage, SHP shall purchase an extended reporting period to meet 
the time periods req uired in this section. 

3. Automobile l iabi lity, including Owned ( if any), H ired , and Non-Owned automobiles, with 
minimum l iabi l ity l imits of $250 ,000 per person and $500,000 per occurrence. 

4 .  Workers compensation coverage meeting al l  statutory requirements. 

The insurance coverages l isted above must meet the following additional requ irements: 

1 .  Any deductible or self-insured retention amount or other similar obligation under the 
policies shal l  be the sole responsibil ity of SHP.  The amount of any deductible or self 
retention is subject to approval by NDPERS,  upon request. 

2. This insurance may be in pol icy or policies of insurance, primary and excess, including 
the so-called u mbrel la or catastrophe form and must be placed with insurers rated "A-" 
or better by A M .  Best Company, I nc . ,  provided any excess pol icy fol lows form for 
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coverage. Less than an "A-" rating must be approved by NDPERS. The policies shal l  be 
in form and terms approved by NDPERS, upon request. 

3 .  SHP shall furnish a certificate of insurance to the u ndersigned NDPERS representative, 
upon request. 

4 .  Failure to provide insurance as required in this Agreement is a material breach of 
contract entit l ing N DPERS to terminate this Agreement immed iately. 

SHP shal l not cancel insurance coverage required by this Agreement or modify the insurance 
coverage below l imits required by this Agreement without th irty (30) days' prior written notice to 
the undersigned NDPERS representative. 
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North Dakota Publ ic Employees Reti rement System 
RFP for Group Medical and Prescription Drug Coverage - Fully Insured 

Key Information 

Objective 

North Dakota Publ ic Employees Retirement System ("NDPERS") is sol iciting proposals for the 
i nsurance and admin istration of its employee/reti ree medical and prescription drug insurance 
plan,  with a Ju ly 1 ,  20 1 5  effective date. Medical insurance responses are requ i red for the fully­
insured financial arrangement as described in this RFP.  Proposals wi l l  be accepted from 
insurance com panies that are capable of offering a statewide provider network, uti l ization 
management, disease management, wel lness program and pharmacy benefit manager services 
a long with other related services. 

This is the first of two RF P's relating to the NDPERS group insurance p lan .  This first RFP,  
which is being re-sol icited , is for a fu l ly insured p lan arrangement and is for a s ix  year contract 
arrangement with renewals each two years (see contract term discussion) .  A second RFP 
requesting proposals for se lf-insured adm in istration was distributed in  August 1 3  and proposals 
were received on October 1 0 , 201 4 . The Prescription Drug Plan ("PDP"), however, wi l l  have a 
contract date beg inn ing January 1 ,  201 6  to December 3 1 , 201 8 .  

The PERS Board wi l l  determ ine which funding approach i t  wi l l  implement based on the resu lts 
of both RFPs. 

Background 

NDPERS is responsible for the admin istration of the State of North Dakota's Retirement, Health , 
Life , Deferred Compensation, FlexComp, and Ret iree Health Credit programs.  I n  addit ion,  
cit ies, counties, schools and other pol it ical subdivisions of the state participate at their option . 
N DPERS also admin isters three voluntary insurance programs: a group denta l ,  v is ion, and long­
term care program .  Approximately 23 ,000 active employees and 8 ,000 retirees are e l ig ible to 
participate in these plans.  

NDPERS reserves the r ight to select the health plan proposals that best fit i ts needs and the 
needs of its e l ig ible employees/retirees. N DPERS has reta ined Deloitte Consult ing LLP 
("Delo itte Consult ing") to assist with the RFP process. 

Currently Blue Cross Blue Shield of North Dakota ("BCBSND" )  insures the medical and 
prescription drug plan under a ful ly-insured arrangement with some risk sharing provis ions. 

I n  determining which bid,  if any, wi l l  best serve the interests of el ig ible employees/retirees and 
the state, the NDPERS and its Board shal l g ive adequate consideration to the fol lowing factors: 

1 .  The economy to be affected .  
2 .  The ease of admin istration .  
3 .  The adequacy of  the coverages. 
4.  The financial  pos ition of the carrier, with special emphasis as to its solvency. 
5. The reputation of the carrier and any other information that is avai lable tending to show 

past experience with the carrier in matters of claim settlement, underwrit ing , and 
serv ices .  

2 

• 







• 

North Dakota Publ ic Employees Reti rement System 
RFP for Group Medical and Prescription Drug Coverage - Fully Insured 

_ I_. Overview of the .NDP�R� P�ogram . 

NDPERS 

North Dakota Publ ic Employees Retirement System (NDPERS) is a separate agency created 
under North Dakota state statute , and whi le subject to state budgetary controls and procedures, 
as are a l l  state agencies, is not a state agency subject to d i rect executive contro l .  NDPERS is 
managed by a Board comprised of seven members: 

• Chairman - appointed by the Governor 
• Member - appointed by the Attorney General 
• Member - elected by retirees 
• Members (3) - elected by active employees 
• State Health Officer or  Designee 

Dakota Plan 

Currently, NDPERS contracts with Blue Cross/Blue Shield of North Dakota ( "BCBSND") to 
provide fu l ly-insured health care coverage with a risk sharing agreement. If incurred claims plus 
expenses are more than premiums during the bienn ium,  50% of the first $6,000,000 is refunded 
to BCBSND.  If incurred c la ims plus expenses are less than premiums p lus interest during the 
b iennium, BCBSND retains 50% of the first $3,000 ,000 of surplus and any remain ing funds are 
returned to NDPERS.  Prior to Ju ly 1 ,  1 989, the program was self- insured. The plans provided 
pursuant to this fu l ly funded arrangement are :  

• PPO/Basic - Grandfathered plan 
• PPO/Basic - Non grandfathered plan 
• HDHP/HSA Plan - Non grandfathered 
• Dakota Retiree Plan including Prescription Drug Program (PDP) 

PPO 

PPO stands for "Preferred Provider Organ ization" and is a group of hospita ls ,  c l in ics, and 
physicians who have agreed to d iscount their  services to members of N DPERS. Members have 
"freedom of choice" in selecting which physician or medical faci l ity to use for services .  Because 
PPO health care providers charge less for medical care services, cost savings are passed on to 
the members by way of reduced cost sharing amounts . The PPO discount N DPERS receives is 
in  addition to the BCBSND negotiated reimbursement schedule with participating professional 
service providers in  North Dakota. The present NDPERS PPO network d iscounts are not 
transferable and would need to re-negotiated by a new vendor. 

Basic Plan 

If a PPO health care provider is not avai lable in the member's area, or if the member chooses or 
is referred to a health care provider not part icipating in  the Preferred Provider Organization ,  the 
member wi l l  receive the Basic Plan benefits. 

High Deductible Health Plan (HDHP)  

I n  addition to  the PPO I Basic Plans,  N DPERS offers el ig ib le participants the option to  enrol l  in a 
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North Dakota Publ ic Employees Retirement System 
RFP for Group Medical and Prescription Drug Coverage - Fully Insured 

Age/Gender Statistics 

Appendix E - Item 1 d isplays a breakdown of the member counts by age and gender for the 
period May 201 4 . 

Contract Count 

Appendix E - Item 2 displays a breakdown of the contract counts by month and cost category 
for the period of 1 /20 1 1 - 5/20 1 4. 

Member Count 

Appendix E - Item 3 displays a breakdown of the member counts by month and cost category 
for the period of 1 /20 1 1 - 5/201 4. 

Claims Volume 

Appendix E - Item 4 d isplays a breakdown of the total claims transactions by month and cost 
category for the period of 1 /201 1 - 5/201 4 .  

C laims Dollars 

Appendix E - Item 5 displays a breakdown of the total c laims plan paid dol lars by month and 
cost category for the period of 1 /201 1 - 5/201 4 .  

Large Claim History 

Appendix E - Item 6 d isplays a h igh level summary of un ique members with p lan paid dol lars in 
excess of $ 1 00,000 for the period of 7/1 /1 2  - 6/30/1 3 and 7/1 / 1 3 - 5/30/1 4 . 

Contracts by Zip Code 

Appendix E - Item 7 displays a breakdown of the contract counts by res idence z ip code for the 
period May 201 4 . 
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North Dakota Publ ic Employees Retirement System 
RFP for Group Medical and Prescription Drug Coverage - Fully Insured 

_ l_I .  RFP Obje<;tiyes and Vendor Resp�nsibil ities 

RFP Objectives 

North Dakota Publ ic Employees Retirement System ("NDPERS") is sol iciting proposals for the 
insurance and admin istration of its employee medica l  and prescription drug insurance plan, with 
a Ju ly 1 ,  201 5  effective date. Medical insurance responses are requ i red for the fu l ly- insured 
financial arrangement as described in this RFP. Proposa ls  wi l l  be accepted for insurance 
companies that are capable of offering a statewide provider network, uti l ization management ,  
d isease management, wellness program ,  pharmacy benefit manager services along with other 
related services . In addition , the successful vendor will provide an HSA product for the HDHP.  
Approximately 23 ,000 active employees and 8 ,000 retirees are e l ig ib le  to participate in  these 
plans.  Total membership in the plan is approximately 65,000 ind ividuals .  

On August 1 3th ,  a separate RFP requesting self- insured admin istration of the same p lans and 
programs was d istributed . Proposals were received on October 1 0 , 201 4 . I n  order for a self­
insured arrangement to be e lected (NDCC 54-52. 1 -04.3) ,  it must be determined to be less 
costly than the lowest bid submitted by a carrier for underwriting the p lan with equ ivalent 
contract benefits on a fu l ly  insured basis. Based upon this legis lative d i rection the Board is 
issuing this fu l ly insured plan RFP and wi l l  be reviewing those responses first to determine 
which fu l ly insured bid to compare to the self- insured bids when subm itted.  

Requested Bids 

Revised Ful ly Insured (Th is RFP) 

• All  services 

• All  services except pharmacy 

Note: Ful ly insured PDP bid and administration of Member Rebate Accounts (MRA) 
under the pharmacy plan are optional 

Self-insured (2"d RFP) 

• All services 

• Pharmacy only 

The contract wi l l  be for a six year term with two year renewals ,  beg inn ing Ju ly 1 ,  201 5 through 
June 30, 20 1 7 . 

N DPERS is interested in providing high qual ity, com prehensive and affordable health care to al l  
of i ts employees and their dependents . The intent of this RFP is to identify and evaluate the 
proposals that meet the min imum requirements as defined, and select one vendor that wi l l  
support the program goals and objectives .  Current goals and objectives include, but are not 
l im ited to, the fol lowing : 

• Competitive Overal l  Cost - NDPERS intends to continue to provide its employees 
and ret irees with comprehensive health care that is affordable and competitive. 
NDPERS is especia l ly interested in stabi l izing or control l ing costs and increases to 
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Annual Premium Reductions to change Rx Formulary Brand copay from $20 to $25 
copay 

Annual Prem ium Reductions to change Rx Formulary Brand copay from $20 to 
$22 . 50 copay 

Annual Premium Reductions to change Rx Non-Formulary copay from $25 to $30 
copay 

Annual Prem ium Reductions to change Rx Non-Formulary copay from $25 to $27.50 
copay 

Annual Premium Reductions to change Rx Formulary coinsurance maximum from 
$ 1 , 000 to $ 1 ,200. 

Annual Prem ium Reductions to change Rx Formulary coinsurance maximum from 
$1 ,000 to $ 1 ,500 

Annual Premium I ncreases to provide coverage for colonoscopy pursuant to the 
appropriate national  standards 

• Comprehensive, Statewide Provider Network - N DPERS is interested in the 
fol lowing :  

Broad network in terms of  the number (%), breadth , qual ity and location of  network 
providers, with the goal of matching as close as possible the current provider 
networks and geographic access. 

Lim ited doctor/patient d isruption - NDPERS is interested in  l im it ing the disruption 
employees may experience in the event of a change in vendors .  (see Appendix I . )  

Access t o  preferred providers outside the local geographic service area (nationa l ) .  

Abi l ity of the vendor to negotiate NDPERS-specific contracts. 

The abi l ity to match or exceed existing d iscount levels 

Commitment to pay for performance and other cost and qual ity in itiatives. 

• Plan Design - with respect to plan options and design ,  N DPERS is interested in :  

Confi rming the vendor's previous experience with and abi l ity to adm in ister the 
current plan designs. 

Continu ing to provide employees with choice and flexib i l ity at an affordable cost. 

Abi l ity to administer existing Medicare Part D Group PDP plan (Optional) .  

• Disease and Other Care Management Programs - N DPERS wishes to continue to 
offer assertive d isease management, care management and care support programs 
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Vendor Responsibi l ities 

The selected vendor must demonstrate the abi l ity to develop and manage a health care provider 
network, provide claims processing services , util ization management, medical management, 
d isease management, wellness program ,  dedicated account service and support ,  dedicated 
member/customer service , data/management reporting, b i l l ing ,  and other  administrative 
services. Vendors should also adjudicate and resolve Medicare Secondary Payer demand 
claims from the Center for Med icare and Medicaid Services (CMS) in  a timely manner and 
reconci le Medicare D el ig ib i l ity and premium discrepancies. (See Exhibit 8) 

In addition ,  vendors are expected to conduct ongoing performance review meetings with 
NDPERS regarding plan financial performance ,  provider contracting issues, progress related to 
network goals and new network development, patient satisfaction , new or emerg ing legal 
issues, and other relevant and timely operational issues that may affect the plan. Vendors are to 
identify actions to enhance that performance . 

Addit ional deta i ls regard ing expected health plan adm in istrator duties can be found in  Appendix 
A - Existing Admin istrative Service Agreement of this RFP. Vendors must review this section 
carefu l ly to identify potentia l  deviations and exceptions. As noted throughout the RFP, vendors 
are required to l ist a l l  exceptions and suggest proposed a lternative contract language in 
Appendix F and submit th is information with your proposal .  Fai lure to provide this may el iminate 
your  proposal from consideration .  

The proposed effective date of the program is Ju ly 1 ,  20 1 5 , except the PDP, that effective date 
is January 1 ,  201 6 . Vendors wi l l  have the opportun ity to demonstrate capabi l it ies in these areas 
by responding to the questionnaire provided in Appendix C of this RFP and potential ly with 
additional fina l ist questions and presentations . 
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This section describes min imum requ i rements, unique content requ i rements , and outl ines 
general conditions and requ i rements that are not specifica l ly addressed in  the sample 
contract/ASA. Review the general condit ions and requirements carefu l ly, and include any 
deviations and exceptions to these with your submission as described in  this section and 
elsewhere in  the RFP.  Also refer to Section IV. , Proposal Subm ission,  for instructions and 
additional information regard ing proposal format and content. 

Required Forms 

The fol lowing forms can be found in Appendix B, Response Template, of this RFP.  

1 .  Face Sheet - This is included in Appendix B, Item 1 .  

2 .  Min imum Requ i rements for Admin istrative Services Checklist - This i s  inc luded in 
Appendix B ,  I tem 2. 

3 .  Affidavit of Non-co l lusion - Each responder must com plete the Affidavit of  Non-col lusion 
form and include it with the response. This is included in Appendix B ,  Item 3 .  

4 .  Confl icts of  I nterest l ist. Responder must provide a l ist o f  a l l  entities with which i t  has 
relat ionships that create, or appear to create, a conflict of interest with the work that is 
contemplated in  this Request for Proposals .  The l ist should ind icate the name of the 
entity, the re lationsh ip ,  and a discussion of the confl ict. This is included in Appendix B ,  
I tem 4 .  

5 .  Compl iance with Federal and  State Laws Form - Responder must provide certification to 
NDPERS that they com ply or if notified wil l  comply with appl icable Federal and State 
laws. This is included in Appendix B, Item 5 .  

6 .  Location of  Service Disclosure Certification . Proposers must certify the  location where 
services to be provided wi l l  be performed, and agree that the location wi l l  not change 
during the course of the contract without prior written approval from N DPERS. This is 
included in  Appendix B,  I tem 6.  

Unique Content Requirements 

1 .  Questionnaire - This is included in  Appendix C.  

2 .  Cost proposal - This is included in Appendix D .  (Revised) 

3 .  Deviations and  suggested alternatives to  sample contract/ASA - This is included in  
Appendix F, Item F 1 . 

Responders should review in  deta i l  the standard contract terms and conditions provided 
in the sample Admin istrative Agreement in preparing their responses. A sample 
NDPERS Financia l  and Admin istrative Services Agreement (ASA) is attached for your 
reference in Appendix A Any fina l  contract will include, but not be l im ited to, the 
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elements in the sample contract. Vendors should note that much of the language 
reflected in  the contract is  requ i red by State statute and therefore is  not negotiable. 

If you take exception to any of the terms, condit ions or language in the sample ASA, you 
must indicate those exceptions and suggest alternative language in your response to the 
RFP by submitting Appendix F and a red line vers ion of the generic  contract language 
(perta in ing prim ari ly to the narrative rather than the financial terms and provisions) ; 
certain exceptions may result in  your proposal being disqual ified from further review and 
evaluat ion.  Only those exceptions indicated in  your response to the RFP wi l l  be avai lable 
for d iscussion or negotiation .  

4.  Deviations to other RFP requirements. This is included in Appendix F, I tem F2. 

5. Summary/checkl ist of specific items identified as trade secret. 

All materia ls submitted in response to this RFP wi l l  become property of N DPERS and 
wi l l  become publ ic record, after the evaluation process is completed. Completion of the 
evaluation process occurs when the government entity has completed negotiating the 
contract with the selected vendor. If the Responder submits information in response to 
this RFP that it bel ieves to be propriety or trade secret materia ls the Responder must: 

a .  clearly mark each provis ion that respondent bel ieves to  be  proprietary or trade 
secret materia ls in its response at the t ime the response is subm itted,  

b. inc lude a statement with its response justifying the proprietary or  trade secret 
designation for each provis ion.  

Responder is put on notice that, except for information that is confidential or 
otherwise exempt from the North Dakota open records law (NDCC § 44-04) ,  
N DPERS must d isclose to the publ ic  upon request any records it receives from 
Responder. If NDPERS receives an open records request for information that has 
been identified by respondent as proprietary or trade secret, NDPERS wi l l  review 
the above information submitted by Responder and may also contact Responder 
for additional  input regarding the nature of those records,  but N DPERS wil l  be 
solely responsible for making the u lt imate determ ination of whether the records 
are open or exempt .  Al l  i nformation that has not been clearly identified by 
respondent as being proprietary or trade secret wi l l  be deemed to be open 
record . N DPERS wi l l  not consider the prices submitted by the Responder to be 
proprietary or trade secret materia ls .  

6 .  Appendix H :  Performance Standards and Guarantees 

7. Appendix I: D isruption Analysis 

8. Appendix J: Fee Schedule Analysis 

9. Appendix K:  Suggested Changes to Plan Design ,  Programs and Services 

1 O.  Appendix M. Listing of Changes to September 4, 201 4  Proposal Content Modified in 
Re-Bid due November 1 9  (New) 
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1 .  Proposal Contents 

By submission of a proposal ,  Responder warrants that the information provided is true, 
correct and re l iable for purposes of evaluation for potentia l  contract award . The 
submission of inaccurate or m isleading information may be grounds for disqual ification 
from the award as well as subject the responder to suspension or debarment 
proceedings as wel l  as other remedies avai lable by law. The contents of the proposal 
and any subsequent clarifications submitted by the successfu l proposers wi l l  become 
part of the contractual obl igation and incorporated by reference into the ensuing 
contract. 

The proposal that you submit wi l l  constitute your unqual ified consent to the following 
mandatory requirements : 

• Proposals submitted in  response to this request wi l l  be considered the only 
submission; revised proposals wi l l  not be al lowed after the proposal return date and 
t ime un less requested by NDPERS or approved by the N DPERS Board .  

• All proposals m ust answer a l l  appl icable questions on the attached q uestionnaire .  

• All proposals become the property of NDPERS and wi l l  not be returned to the offering 
company. Also a l l  i nformation provided is a public record under North Dakota un less 
specifical ly exempted by law. 

• All  offering compan ies must be prepared to make oral presentations if requested . 

2. Term of Contract 

The North Dakota Publ ic Employees Retirement System is governed by North Dakota 
State statues , which includes a requirement to sol icit bids for medical benefits coverage 
for a specified term for a fu l ly-insured arrangement and every other biennium for an 
Administrative Services arrangement. NDPERS has determ ined that the specified term 
for providing such hospital and medical benefits under a fu l ly insured arrangement shal l  
be six years to include three biennium periods: July 1 ,  20 1 5  to June 30, 201 7 ,  Ju ly 1 ,  
20 1 7  to June 30, 201 9 ,  and Ju ly 1 ,  201 9 to June 30, 202 1 . 

If the plan is awarded as a fu l ly insured plan pursuant to this RFP N DPERS and the 
successfu l proposer(s) may renegotiate the existing contract during the interim of each 
biennium without resort ing to a formal bidd ing process. I f  the N DPERS and the 
successful proposer(s) are unable to reach an agreement during renegotiations,  a formal 
bidding process wil l be in it iated . Negotiations wil l  beg in in  August and end in  September 
in the fina l  fixed year of the bienn ium.  NDPERS also reserves the right to terminate any 
contract awarded pursuant to th is bidd ing process with in th irty (30) days notice. 

3. Minimum Requirements 

The fo l lowing are the min imum requirements that need to be addressed in each proposal 
and apply un less waived by the board :  
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1 )  Electronic Data Col lection and Reporting Requirements : Respondents must, at a 
min imum,  meet the data col lection and reporting requ i rements described in Section 1 
under Reporting Requ i rements of the RFP. 

2) Vendor must be able to take current 834 electron ic enro l lment f i le (conta in ing 
member e l ig ibi l ity) at no cost. 

3) Effective Date of Coverage: Respondents must be able to provide requi red 
coverages and services by Ju ly 1 ,  201 5  and for the PDP (Optional)  by January 1 ,  
201 6 . 

4) Licensure :  Respondents m ust have al l  appl icable l icenses required by North Dakota 
or agree to obta in necessary l icensure prior to the effective dates of coverage. 

5) Term of Contract: N DPERS is required by state statue to sol icit bids for medica l  
benefit coverage for a specified term for a fu l ly- insured arrangement and every other 
b iennium for a self-funded arrangement. NDPERS has determ ined that the specified 
term for fu l ly-insured arrangement shal l  be six years, subject to two year renewals;  
however, N DPERS reserves the right to extend the agreement subject to negotiation 
with the successfu l vendor if the Board deems it necessary . 

6) Premium Rate Guarantees: For a l l  i nsured proposals premium rates must be 
guaranteed for a period of two years, from Ju ly 1 ,  20 1 5  to June 30, 201 7 .  PDP rates 
wi l l  be developed each year based upon the federal subsidy. 

7)  Non-Medicare Retirees :  Rates are governed by state statute. Non-Medicare retiree 
s ingle rate is 1 50% of the active member single rate; the rate for a non-Medicare 
retiree plus one is twice the non-Medicare s ingle rate, and the rate for a non­
Medicare retiree plus two or more dependents is two and one-half times the non­
Medicare retiree sing le rate. 

8) PDP rates: Must be submitted to PERS by September of each year (Optional) . 

9) Renewals :  Renewals m ust be submitted to NDPERS in August of the year preceding 
the contract renewal date and in  September of each year for the PDP. 

1 0) Contract Term ination : Respondent's contract termination provis ion may not requ i re 
more than 1 20-day notice and can occur only at renewal .  N DPERS can terminate 
coverage at any t ime. 

1 1 ) Match coverage :  Respondent should match the existing coverage and financial 
terms for two years, including providing an HSA arrangement. Variances and 
exceptions to exist ing coverage can be offered in  appendix F item F2. 

1 2) Leg islative Compl iance :  Respondents agree to comply with a l l  provisions of 
the Health Insurance Portabi l ity Act of 1 996 includ ing ,  but not l imited to 
providing certificates of creditable coverage .  

Respondents m ust a lso be  in  compl iance with a l l  H I PAA Privacy and  H I PAA EDI 
requirements and be able to conduct a l l  appl icable employer/plan sponsor and 
provider transactions consistent with those requirements. Respondents wi l l  be 
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expected to meet H I PAA security requ i rements when appl icable to NDPERS. 
Respondents wi l l  a lso be expected to be in  compl iance with a l l  ACA requ i rements 

1 3) Transit ion Management: Respondents agree, should they be selected , they wi l l  
proactively manage the transit ion of coverage (e .g .  c la im accumulators , etc . )  from 
the subsequent carrier. 

1 4) Admin istration:  Respondents must agree to comply with existing admin istration of 
NDPERS. Any modifications needed to accommodate NDPERS data wil l  be done at 
the vendor's own expense. 

1 5) Audit: Section 54-52-04 ( 1 0) relating to the audit authority of N DPERS 

1 6) North Dakota Leg islation Requirements: Respondent must meet a l l  requ i rements in 
the North  Dakota Century Code including 54-52; 54-52 . 1 ,  54-52.4 and al l  
requirements in  the North Dakota Admin istrative Code including 7 1 -03 and other 
appl icable State Laws. Specific recognition of 54-52. 1 -1 2  should be acknowledged . 

1 7) Abi l ity to meet the specifications outl ined in the RFP un less specifica l ly noted. 

1 8) Premium rates m ust be divisible by two. 

1 9) Subject matter experts and other appropriate personnel wi l l  be ava i lab le to attend 
board meetings, legis lative hearings,  etc. as needed . 
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' 

IV. Proposal Subm ission 
( ' - . � 

Instructions 

All proposals should be subm itted simply and economical ly provid ing a d irect, concise 
del ineation of the vendor's proposal and qual ifications adhering to the proposal format 
gu idel ines outl ined below. Vendors should also refer to Section I l l ,  Proposal Contents, for a l ist 
of min imum requ irements . 

• Proposals should be typed or  printed on 8 .5" x 1 1 " paper (one side only) .  

• All proposals must include the transmittal  letter/statement which includes the fol lowing: 

An acknowledgement of receipt of the group health RFP specifications and any 
addenda and a statement that the proposal conforms to the RFP min imum 
requirements . This letter must include the title and s ignature of a Duly Authorized 
Officer of the company. As noted above, any deviations from the specifications must 
be clearly noted in your proposal .  Fai lure to note deviations may exclude the 
proposal from further consideration .  

• All proposals must include a table of contents and appropriate page number references. 

• All  pages of proposals must have consecutive page numbers . 

• Proposals must respond to RFP min imum, unique, and general requ i rements. 

• Responses to questions must include a restatement of the question (number and text) 
with the response immediately fol lowing . 

• Appendices and other supplemental information provided with your proposal must be 
clearly identified.  

• Cost proposal must be subm itted in  a separate, sealed envelope and clearly marked 
Cost Proposal .  Premiums quoted in Appendix D :  Cost Proposal Exhibits wi l l  be fu l ly 
loaded rates. N DPERS wi l l  not be bi l led any additional amounts for services, including 
commissions or  brokerage fees. 

• North Dakota insurance law 54-52 . 1 - 1 0  (Exem ption From State Premium Tax) provides 
that "Al l premiums, consideration for annuities, pol icy fees, and membership fees 
collected under this chapter are exempt from the tax payable pursuance to section 26. 1 -
03- 1 7" .  Thus, Offerer's responses should riot reflect any amounts for premium taxes. 

• Any and a l l  deviations must be clearly noted and submitted under separate cover. If you 
do not identify and explain deviations,  your proposal wi l l  be deemed a certification that 
you wi l l  comply in every respect with the requirements and contractual language set 
forth in this RFP.  Deviations and exceptions to the sample contracUAdmin istrative 
Services Agreement (ASA) must be subm itted in the form of 1 )  completed Appendix F, 
I tem F1 , in  a sealed envelope clearly marked as such. If you are unable to perform any 
requ i red or requested service, you must also clearly identify in  Appendix F, Item F2 a) 
the specific deviation or requirement your organization is unable to meet and b) the 
suggested alternative or solution . 
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• Retai l  discounts and dispensing fees are 1 00% pass through 
• No spread pricing 

• Bidder may assess an admin istration fee if appropriate 

• Mai l  service terms reflect a standard "trad itional" proposal where d iscounts are fixed 

Bidder wi l l  pass through 1 00% of rebates and "rebate-l ike" revenues received from 
pharmaceutical manufacturers (defined as a l l  revenue/financial benefits and credits received 
from outside sources attributed to the util ization of NDPERS or enro l lment in programs. These 
would include but are not l im ited to a l l  Manufacturer Admin istration Fees, Formulary Access 
Rebates ( inclusive of any bundl ing ) ,  Market Share Rebates, Performance/I ncentive Rebates , 
Data Fees, Compl iance Program Funding , Cl inical Program support/fund ing ,  Therapeutic 
I ntervention funding , Education Fees, Marketing Grants for Cl in ical Studies, Specia lty Drug 
Rebates, Specia lty Cl in ical/Case Management Funding, Specialty Compl iance Program 
funding,  Research,  Prompt Payment Discounts, etc. as a consequence of any relationship with 
NDPERS. Bidder wi l l  a lso include min imum rebate guarantee, preferably on a per paid claim 
basis (per brand basis may is a lso acceptable, however per rebatable claim basis is not 
acceptable) .  

Audit 

PERS is a lso interested in being able to audit the PBM as determined by the board which could 
be annual ly .  Preference wi l l  be g iven to those who agree to audits. 

Proposal Evaluation Process 

Evaluation of the proposals wi l l  be conducted in four phases: 

1 .  Phase I - Prel iminary Review 

Proposals wi l l  receive pre l iminary review to determine if they meet the min imum 
proposal requirements and criteria l isted above. NDPERS reserves the right to ask 
clarifying questions .  Only proposals meeting the min imum requirements above wi l l  be 
considered for further evaluation in Phase I I .  

2. Phase I I  - Proposal Evaluation 

Proposals will be evaluated based on the criteria specified above and per the terms 
outl ined in this RFP. Proposers are encouraged to h ighl ight how they differentiate 
themselves in these areas and provide this information in appendix K. Only the top 
proposals wi l l  be approved for further evaluation in Phase I l l .  Once the in itia l  evaluation 
is com pleted , the review team may ask for additional  information to supplement the in it ial 
i nformation gathered in response to these questions. 

3. Phase I l l  - Reference C hecks,  Best and Final Offer and Presentations 

NDPERS staff may check references, request answers to further questions, and require 
presentations by key administrator personnel ,  which wi l l  be evaluated based on the 
stated criteria .  During final consideration a best and fina l  offer may be requested . Only 
the top proposals wi l l  be approved for further evaluation in  Phase IV. 
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4. Phase IV - S ite Visits, Final  Selection, and Notification 

The evaluation committee wi l l  forward findings and conclusions to the N DPERS Board 
and may request s ite visits and make a fi nal review of the top proposals based on al l  of 
the criteria above to select a fina l ist .  Vendors wi l l  be notified of the intent of N DPERS to 
negotiate a contract with the selected vendors via e-mai l .  

Note : Self- insured proposals wi l l  be evaluated after the fu l ly  insured b ids to determine 
which contract type is expected to be most cost effective for NDPERS . .  

NDPERS reserves the right to request clarifications and addit ional information regarding 
the proposal during the proposal evaluation process . However, N DPERS Board 
reserves the right to m ake an award without further clarification of the proposal received. 
Therefore, it is important that each proposal be subm itted in the most complete manner 
possible. 
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ind ividua ls' health, it's important for N D  PERS to verify that its insurer and PBM are l im iting the 
quantity of opiates that ind ividua ls  can obta in .  As another examp le, to control costs, ND PERS 
needs to verify that its insurer and PBM are l imit ing the amount of chemo that wi l l  be 
dispensed to a new cancer patient obta in ing h is "first fi l l "  of chemo. After a l l , a large 
percentage of cancer  patients are unable to use more than a few days of chemo given its toxic 
side effects. Accord ingly, it makes no sense for a PBM to routinely d ispense 90 days of chemo 
products to every cancer patient. 

Also, it's important for ND PERS to make sure that its insurer and PBM are not refi l l ing more 
prescriptions than appropriate, or refi l l ing prescriptions so soon that excessive p i l l s  are being 
d ispensed, or fa i l ing to refi l l  prescriptions when they are req uested and needed. Subsection (e) 
addresses this matter. 

F ina l ly, let me mention that extensive l itigation by federal and state governments demonstrates 
why the State Legis lature is wise to ensure that its insurer's and PBM's performance wil l  be 
regularly eva l uated. Severa l years ago, the federa l government and severa l dozen states sued 
three of the largest PBMs.  After numerous years of l itigation, the federa l  and state 
governments recovered more than a hundred mi l l ion do l l a rs in sett lements from each of the 
PB Ms. 

Their lawsu its a l leged extensive and widespread wrongdoing by the PBMs, inc lud ing without 
l im itation, that the PBMs were : 

* Fai l ing to pass-through rebate monies from manufacturers that had been earned and 
were owed; 

* Runn ing Programs to switch patients from lower-to-higher cost drugs, among other 
matters; and 

* Falsifying the dates that the PBMs were dispensing drugs from their mai l  order 
pharmacies, and thus falsifying the t im ing of their refi l ls . 

Accord ingly, your  legislature's effort to monitor the State's prescription coverage program is 
wel l-advised.  And the draft legislation that you a re introducing sets forth core elements of a 
successfu l eva luat ion. 
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q Ci fYYV Section 5 

Every two years, PERS shal l  conduct an aud it of the Pharmacy Benefits Management component of the 

PERS contact and prepare a summary report of the findings to present to Legislative Audit and Fiscal 

Review committee by December 2016. The aud it sha l l  be address the issues identified in  the current 

b i l l .  

Section 6 # 2 

Replace with the actua l  contract language from the current contract language. 

Section 7 

Title 26.1-47 currently authorizes the Insurance Commissioner to approve provider agreement contracts 

and to examine and pena l ize insurers that do not fo l low these laws. These provisions have proven 
adequate but do not involve the negotiation of specific rates or fee schedu les. Suggest that the ND  

Insurance Commission shal l  aud it the PERS Contract accord ing to  law and present a report to  Legislative 

Management by Dec 2016. 
Section 9 

Would this section l imit the abi l ity to complete the PBM audit and what are other potentia l risks. 
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